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Financial Performance

Revenue Return on sales? Headline earnings
o pershare?

£1,6839m |9.8% 40.7 pence

2016:£1,401.4m 2016:9.5% 2016:30.4 pence

+20.2% on areported basis +30 basis points 33.9%increase

+12.5% on an underlying +30 basis points onan Recommended
basis’ underlying basis' final dividend

12.50 pence per share

Trading profit? Profit before tax 18.00 pence Group
full year dividend
2016:16.55 pence
£1 65'5m £97’| m Group full year dividend
2016: £133.3m 2016:£79.4m
+24.2% on a reported basis 22.3% increase Year-end netdebt*
+16.1% on an underlying £274.3m
basis' 1.3x net debtto
EBITDA ratio
20161 £320.3m
1.8x

1. Underlying basis s at constant currency and excludes separately reported items and the impact of acquistions
and disposals.

. For definitions of alternative performance measures, refer fo Nate 4 of the Group Financial Staterments.

3. Headline resuits refer to continuing operations and exclude separately reperted items.

]

Forward-looking statements This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements with respect
tathe operations, strategy, performance, financial condition, and grewth opportunities of the Vesuvius
Group. By their nature, these statements involve uncertainty and are based on assumptions and involve risks,
uncertainties ond other factors that could cause aciual results and developments to differ materially from
those anticipated The forward-locking statements reflect knowledge ond information available ot the date
of preparation of this Annual Report and, other than in accordance with its legal and regulatory obligations,
the Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking staterments. Nathing in this Annual
Report should be construed as a profit forecost.



Vesuviusis a globalleader in molten metal flow engineering

Vesuvius develops innovative, customised high-quality products,
services and solutions, to be used in extremely demanding,
high-temperature industrial environments. Our goal is to create
value for our customers, using our expertise to improve the
safety and efficiency of their manufacturing processes,
enhance their end product quality and reduce their costs.

In doing this, we aim to deliver sustainable, profitable growth and
provide our shareholders with a superior return on their investment,
whilst providing each of our employees with a safe workplace
where he or sheis recognised, developed and properly rewarded.

AtaGlance Our Strategy
What we do & where Our aims
OSeepoge 4 O Seepage 10

Inncvation
Cur R&D Focus
O Seepage 32

Melvin Bond, Plastic
Operator & Union Steward,
Chicago Heights, USA
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Ovur
Busin

In this section
4 Vesuviusata Glance

8 OurMarkets

10  Qur Strategy

12  Business Model

The Strategic Report set aut on pages 11073
contains a fair review of our businesses, strategy,
and business model and the associated principal
risks ond uncertainties. We also delver areview of
our 2017 performance and set out an overview of
our markets, Details of our principles, our people
and community engagement, tagether with

our focus onsafety, are alse contained in the
Strotegic Report,

Approved by the Board on 28 February 2018

and signed on its behalf by

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive Chief Financicl Officer



‘I joined Vesuviusin
Brazil as part of
Project Columbus”

Aline Barros, Quality Coordinator and Production
Manager Assistant, Vesuvius Fluxes, Germany

Building on my degree in Chemical
Engineering and several industry
infernships, | joined Vesuviys in Brazil
in 2013, as pert of Project Columbus,
the Group'sinternational graduate
programme. | always wanted to work
overseassince firststarting college,
and was excited to start my nine-
menth international assignment,

Afterinitial tfraining ot home in Braozil,
| moved to India where over the
course of my nine month secondment,
| developed three projects, focusing
onresin production and maching
maintenance at Foseco in Pune,

and onVISO production in Vesuvius
Calcutta. This enabled me to apply
my interest and expertise in process
management and optimisation.

it alse gave me the opportunity fo
immerse myselfin a culturally very
different operation.

Having enjoyed the chollenge of
working abroad, | then moved to
Germany as a Production Manager
Assistant at the newly acquired

mould powder plant in Mutheim.
Whilst there, | worked on the
optfimisation of spraying processes,
improved packoging standards and
implemented cther safefy standards
-all whilst tearning to speak Germen.
More recently, | was pleased to
acceptthe odditional responsibility
of working as the Quality Coordinator
at Milheim, which allows me to

waork with Vesuvius' many different
departments ond learnhowthe
company works as a whole,

I have achieved alotin my first five
years at Vesuvius, developing technical
skills, growing in experience and
expanding my languoge capabilities
and geographicalherizeons.

© Seemore about Vesuvius coreers People and community on p 67-73
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Vesuvius
at a Glance

We are a global group with a business model
based on offering customised praoducts,
solutions and services from production facilities
in close proximity to our customers.

© Seeour Business Model on p12-13

© See more about our Steel and Foundry divisions on p6-7

Our global presence

57

11,010

Countries Employees
Continents Sales offices

66

Production sites

17

R&D centres

Michelle Chapman,
HR Associate,
Pittsburgh West, USA



Americas

17

Production sites

£487.0m

Revenue
(2016: £415.3m)

®77.2% Steel
@22.8%Foundry

5

R&D centres

EMEA

30

Production sites

£735.2m

Revenue

(2016: £585.6m)

®657.5% Steel
®32.5% Foundry

10

R&D centres

Asia-Pacific

19

Production sites

£461./m

Revenue
(2016: £400.5m)

®59.9% Steel
9401% Foundry

2

R&D centres

5183

Emplayeess

The map shows cur
production, R&D
and commercial
sites worldwide

Steel Flow Contral Operating

Review @ Seep36

27

Salas offices

4472

Employees

Advanced Refractories
Operating Review @ See pa0

34

Sules offices

Digital Services Operating
Review @5Seep44

3,355

Employees

53

Sales offices

Foundry Operating Review
O Seepdb
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Steel Division

QOverview

Our customers are steel producers,
manufacturers of steel preduction
equipment and other high-temperature
industries. Vesuvius is a world leader in the
supply of refractory products, systems and
solutions. These help our customers increase
their efficiency and productivity, enhance
qudlity, improve safety and reduce their
costs and their environmentalimpact.

O See Steel Flow Confrol, Advanced Refractories and
Digital Services Operating Reviews on p36-45

The Steel
Manvufacturing
Process

Steel manufacturingisa
highly demanding process [>
for which consistent quality
and efficient productionis
essential. Qur products,
systems and solutions
enable this through every
partof the process.

Revenue

£1148.7m

20176:£942.0m

Business Units

M Steel Flow Control

Specialised parts used to protect and

control the flow of melten metal

M Advanced Refractories
Specialised materials for lining
vessels for steel making {furnaces,
ladies and tundishes) and cther
high temperatureindustries

M Digital Services

Digital products focus onthe
capture, inferpretation ond use
of key manufacturing datafor
process management

Trading profit

£100.4m

2016:£79.2m

Return onsales

8.7%

2016:8.4%

Key Strengths

Scale: One of the world’s largest
manufacturersinour market

Technology: Leading products and
services

Integration: Deep knowledge of
customers’ processes allows usto offer
bespoke systems

Innovation: Capability to develop new
value-adding solutions

Proximity: Effective and efficient supply
tocustomers

Technical services

Our Technical Services
offering spans
ali of our businesses.

Formere on Technical
services, @ See p44-45




Foundry Division

Overview

Our primary customers are ferrous and
nen-ferrous foundries serving various end
markets, from large bespoke castings to
high-volume automotive pieces. Trading as
Foseco, we are a world leader in products
and services that serve the global foundry
industry, improving casting quality and
foundry efficiancy.

© See Foundry Division Operating Review on p46-49

Digital Services—Cur
business unit dedicated to
data capture technologies

Flow Contral, Advanced
Refractories and Foundry ’
-Providing services and
solutions complementary to

orindependent of the sale
of consumables

Revenue

£535.2m

2016: £459.4m

Key Strengths

Product offering: Full range of high
quality products and services

Trading profit

£65.1m

2016:£541m

Innovation: Industry-leading
technologies with a focus on
confinuous innovation

Integration: Detailed knowledge of
customers’ processes allows us to provide
customised solutions

Technical support: Access to Foseco's
extensive application engineering
resgurces

Proximity: Globa! presence

Returnonsales

12.2%

2016:11.8%

The Foundry Process

The foundry process is highly
sequential and consistency

of quality and productivity is
essential. The conditioning of
molten metal, the nature of
the mould, and the way metal
flows inthe mould affects both
the gquality of the finished
causting and the effort, energy
and metal usage.

ssaLISNg INQ I
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Our Markets

Steel

Steel Division
end markets

Customers of the Steel Division
are principally steel producers
and manufacturers of steel
production equipment.

Steel production volumes

are the critical driver of
demand as the Steel

Division primarily sells products

thot are consumed during
the steel making process.
This is particularly frue inthe
production of higher-guolity
steels where our highly
technical products deliver
the most value.

The Advanced Refractories
business also supplies

other high-temperature
industries such as primary
aluminium, copper, cement,
petrochemical and energy
from waste. Around 7% of
revenues in the Steel Division
arise from non-steel releated
process industrigs.

Steel quality as a driver for demand

Steel manufacturersare
increasingly searching for
productsthat cansupportthe
production of higher grades of
steel. The flat’steel usedin
‘latercycle’ consumer goods,
e.g. carsand fridges, requires
significantly higher uniformity
thanthe long’ steel usedin
‘eqrly cycle’ construction
andinfrastructure. Inthe
developed market of NAFTA,
the production raticis
currently 65:35% (flat:long).
Asdevelopingcountries move
freminfrastructure-based
economies to consumer-based
economies, the ratic of flat
tolong steel consumption
alsotransitions. According fo
the Chinese Iron and Steel

Association, thistrend has
beenseenin Chinaover the
past few years and is expected
to continue. The quality
demands are even higher

for production of speciality
and high-strengthsteels.

Qur highly technical, innovative
refractory productsare
designed to preserve the
quality of moltensteel during
the steel making process.
Vesuvius engineered
refractories prevent the build-
up of impuritiesinthe steel,
protectthe molten metal from
oxidisation, moderateits flow,
and manage its fluid dynamics
to harmonise consistency and

reduce the pick-up of inclusions.

Todothisourpreducts needto
be highly resistonttoerosion,
corrosionand thermal shock
toensurethatthey donot
themselves contaminate
the steel during casting.

The capabilities of Vesuvius’
products—particularly when
used as atotal solution - are
much more indemand for
higher quality steel grades
where the consistency ofthe
finished steel is paramount.

Steel production

Accarding to the World Steel
Association {WSA), the
worldwide steelindustry saw
growth of 5.3%in 2017 with
1,691.2 million tonneas ('mt’}
produced globally.

For many years, China has
beenthe world's largest
producer of steel. In2017,

the WSA reportedthat
China's crude steel production
increased by 5.7% 10 832mt
and accovnted for 49% of

the world's steel production.

Productionin Jopanwas
mostlyflatat 7105mtin 2017,
whitstIndia’s steel production
increased by 6.2% 1o 107Tmt,
and South Korea's increased
by3.7%tc 7Tmt.

Growth in crude steel preduction (2017 vs. 2016) vs. 2017 steel production volume

(Top-15 producers and ELI28)

Chinese reported steel production growth was 5.7% however,
duetotheclosure of induction furnaces previously not reported
in statistics, Vesuvius estimates China's actual steel production
growthin 2017 was between 0% and 2%



Foundry

Foundry Division end markets

The vehicle sector, comprising
light vehicles {passenger cars
and light trucks) and heavy
trucks, isthe largestend
merket for worldwide costings.
Other end markets for foundry
castingsinclude machinery for
the agricultural, construction

and mining industries,
petrochemicals, power
generation equipment, railroad
and general engineering
sectors. Our customers include
the world's major automotive
OEMs, truck producers and
equipment manufacturers.

Casting quality as a driver for demand

Whilst Foseco products
typically represent lessthan 5%
of afoundry's production cost,
they contribute significantly
toimproving product

quality and manufacturing
efficiency, whilst reducing

the environmental impact

of the casting process

and improving the ratio of
finished castings to the
amount of metal poured—

a key parameter for foundry

efficiency. As castings become
increasingly complicated
{driveninthe case of
automotive casting by the need
for lightness), they demand
cleaner metal, better flowinto
the mould, and maore consistent
solidification. This supports
the computer modelling,

flow simulation and casting
methoding capabilities that
are central tothe services
provided by Foseco.

Demand drivers for castings

Light vehicle demand is largely
driven by consumer confidence
and, incommercicl purchasing,
the age of the overall fleet.
Demand inthe majority of

the remaining casting
end-markets is driven by the
cost of capital and the level

of current profitability in the
givensector. Certain sectors

are consumption-driven, such
as construction, mining,
agriculture and heavy truck,
where usage drives demand
forreplacement parts

(e.g. bulldozer blades, digger
teeth, trock pods and bowls,
etc.} based on actual wear.

Technology changes and
environmental drivers

New technologies, such as

3D printing, are expected
tocontinue to influence

the metal casting industry,
allowing for faster protatyping
and production of smaller
volume parts. Environmental
regulations, driven by the
desire foreduce volatile
organic compound emissions

and the use of silicawithinthe
industry, are olso expected o
continue to tighten. This will
drive the trend to find
processes and consumable
products which support
production efficiency and
reduce a foundry’'s impact
onthe environment.

fron casting

Iron casting is split between
grey and ductile iron with
greyiron representing the
majority of metal being cast.
This is o cost-efficient and
robust processto produce
componentsthat do not need
to tolerate extrerne meachanical
stress. Alliron casting requires
filters and coatingsbut grey
ironis not as reliant on feeding

systemutilisationdueto

its lower shrinkage on
solidification. Conversely,
ductile iron production requires
more sophisticated productsto
cope with the high shrinkages
of metal whilst solidifying.

Steel casting

Steelis used in casting for
manufacturing components
with very high mechanical
performance. Steel casting is
the most demanding casting
process due to higher melting
temperatures and greater
tendency for shrinkage,

thus the greater demand

for products and technical
expertisein this segment.

Aluminiuvm/
Non-ferrous casting

Aluminium casting is the
segrment of the foundry
market growing the fastest.
It hos captured a significant
share of the light vehicle
market. Being molten below
700°C aluminium can be
castiniron moulds which
canthenbe reused. Foseco
concentrates on supplying
fluxes, filters and machines
thatrefine the composition
and cleanliness of the matal.

ssauIsngIney I
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Our Strategy

Strategic
Obijectives

Vesuvius focuses on the following strategic
objectives, which we measure and monitor

through our Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Deliver growth

Generate sustainable profitability
and create shareholder value

Maintain strong cash generation
and an efficient capital structure

Provide a safe working environment
for our people

Execution
Priorities

Reinforce our
technology leadership

O Seep32-35

Be at the forefront of innovation

Run top-quality, cost-efficient
and sustainable operations

Increase penetration of
value-creating solutions

O S5eeplb-48

Capture growthin
developing markets

Foster talent, skill and motivation
in our people

O Seeour Key performance indicaters on p20-21

Improve cost leadership
and margins

Develop our Technical
Services offering

O Seepdd-45
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Vesuvius has articulated five key execution pricrities. These will enable
us to achieve our core strategic objectives of delivering long-term

sustainable and profitable growth.

Description

Progressin 2017

Vesuvius was built and grew on technology breakthroughs.
These enabled the steel continuous casting and foundry
industries to improve their efficiency and quality substantially.
Focusing on technology leadership continues to drive our unigue
value proposition and underpins our ability to deliver ongeing
value enhancement to our customers.

The percentage of revenue accounted for by 'New Products’, thatis
products launched within the last five years, grew from 8% in 2014
tonearly 15%in 2017. Our objectiveis forthisto reach 20%. The new
R&D centre for Advanced Refractories at Visakhapatnam, Indio,
was inaugurated in November 2017. Our spend on R&D increased
year-an-yearto £ 33.2m, being 2.0% of our total revenue, and we
increased the efficiency of our R&D by focusing our effortson o
reduced number of patentially high-impact R&D projects. We also
moved the R&D function closer to our customers, embedding R&D
within the business units which wili ensure a closer link between R&D
activities and the return we recelve on cur investment.

Our technology has been widely adopted by the most sophisticated
producersinthe most developed markets. However, marked
differences remain in the penetration of our solutions within the
industry. Consequently, there is a wider audience of customerswhom
we believe can benefitfrom them. As steel and foundry marketsin
developing markets becorme more quality focused, we have the
apportunity ta significantly increase our penetration of these
markets through offering value creating solutions.

Our outperformance in the majority of end markets across bath

our Steel and Foundry Divisions is evidence of the penetration

gains we are achieving dueto increased customer inferest in our
value-creating solutions. For our Steel Division, this outperformance
isreflected in our underlying 2017 revenue growth of 14.1% versus
5.3% growth in global steel production velumes. Far our Foundry
Division, underlying 2017 revenue growth of 8.3% s further
evidence of this outperformance.

Building on our long-standing presence in all markets, we can

leverage the high growth enjoyed by our customers’ industries

in emerging markets which ore large consumers of steel goods
and foundry castings.

Our growth in developing markets is especially encouraging

and we delivered outperformance relative to end markets, dueto
greaterinterest in our high value-added solutions. Our 2017
revenue growth rates for our key developing markets were os
follows: China +9.2%; India +6.2%; South America +17.5%; Mexico
+7.1%; EMEA excl. EU28 +37.0%. The acceleration of our revenue
growthin Ching is also especially notable and we are benefiting
from several favourable market trends which are driving a shift
towards our higher quality consumables and services.

In 2015, we initiated a restructuring programme throughout the
Groupto adapt our business and our cost base to the changing
fradingenvironment. Thisiscore to our effortsto improve profitability.
Furthermore, we have embedded the principles of Lean manufacturing
acrass allour sites, continuously focusing on quality and productivity
to enable us to maintain cur margins. Qur global presence allows us
o benefir from economies of scale and deliver excellent service from
local sites.

We continued to make good progress with our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainly focused on the Flow Control
business, delivering savings of £16.2min 2017, which was chead of
expectations. As a result, the total sovings delivered since iaunching
the programmein 2015 are now £43.2m. This progroamme is now
expected to deliver £60m of savings at atotal cost of £75m. We also
commenced a completely new restructuring programme targeting
the Foundry Division in Europe and NAFTA, the Advanced
Refractories business unitin Europe, ond Group corporate functions,
from which we expect £15m of recurring savings by 2020.

Qur customers' processes require increasing levels of engineering
services to reach the demanding levels of safety, accuracy and
consistency required by their end-customers' quality specifications.
The key elements of Vesuvius' Technical Services strategy are, firstly,
the Digital Services business unit, which is focused on incubating our
data capture technoiogies, and secondly, the business units which
playa eritical role inintegrating these products into cur broader
consumables of fering aswell as ensuring customer access. Inthis
way, our Technical Services strategy is progressively penetrating all
activities of both our Steel and Foundry Divisions.

We saw good progress of our global Technical Services offering,
which is now embedded in the operations of all our business units.
Global Technical Services turnaver across all business units

reached £88m in 2017, growing by 14% year-on-year. Inlate 2017,
we made a strategic investment in Sapotech Oy, a Finnish technology
company cffering optical measurement services for the continuous
casting pracess. The Sapatech business will be managed by our

Flow Centrol business unit.

SS3USNG IO I
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Business Model

A profitable, flexible, cash-generative
model focused on growth
We develop and manufaciure high-technaology

products and solutions for supply to the steel and
casting industries, operating a profirable, flexible,

cash-generative and growth-building business model.

Over many years we have built the brand equity of
our Vesuwvius and Foseco products threugh reliability,
technology and service.

The feundation of our business model is the supply of
specialised and consumable praducts from a global
presence. Our industry experts are embedded at
many customer locations and are therefore ideally
placed to collaborate with customers to identify

their needs, and potential service and process
improvemenits. This also enables us to grow our
solutions and service portfalio.

Our model s resilient to end-market veolatility due
to the flexibility of our diversified manufacturing
footprint and adjustable variable cost base.

Our model is prafitable by allowing value pricing
for bespoke products and services. It generates
growth as we enlarge our morket with additional
innovative products and solutions.

Global Presence

Using our global spread of expertise toidentify
and create market opportunities

Vesuvius is present on six continents, supporting the
development of global steel and foundry manufacturing
processes with new technologies. We have manufacturing
capability in all the main steel and foundry markets and hire
and train local engineers. They are progressively integrated
within the Vesuvius network of experts, and offered
international careers. Qur local manufacturing, local
expertise and global knowledge of our customers’ processes
give us a special relationship with our customers, helping
them to optimise Their process and product performance.
All aver the warld, new plants use Vesuvius and Foseco
products to create the best possible conditions for success.

Key Resources

Financial cagital We use the cash generated
by our businessto invest ininnovation, people,
operating assets, technology and sales to
generate further growth.

Manufacturing capital We have a global footprint,
with 66 production sites based on six continents,
giving us close proximity to our customers.

Intellectual capital We have 17 R&D centres and
over 300 R&D staff worldwide, generating
innovative products and solutions for our customers.

Human capital We invest in developing our skilted
and motivated workforce of approx. 11,000 people
and provide them with ¢ safe enviranment in which
to work.

Sacial capital We champion our Values and our
ethical conduct. We maintain strong relationships
with customers and our wider stakeholder group.

Natural capital We utilise high-quality raw
materials, secured through reliable and
well-developed supply chains.

Optimised Manufacturing

Low-cost Lean manufacturing, close to customers,
provides reliable, ‘just-in-time’ products

Our successfully tested products can be monufactured at
ashort distance from our customers’ plants, guaranteeing
cost-competitive and time-efficient delivery. We optimise
our cost competitiveness by investing in the lowest cost
production site in the area and have established
manufacturing facilities in emerging markets from the
beginning of their industrialisation. This, together with the
high volume of pieces we are able to produce, provides
our customers with the best balance between value,

cost and service for our high-technology solutions.

@ See mare about cur global presence orp4-5

@ See more about sustainability on p64-66
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R&D centres

200+

technical experts
across six continents

Advanced Technology
Knowledge

Ourtechnology centres develop value-adding solutions
involving engineered systems and high-value consumables

Cur continuing investment in the Company's R&D centres
isreflected in all areas of our offering. We have knowledge
of the mast advanced ceramic and metallurgical technigues
using state-of-the-art equipment and the most advanced
technologies of flow simulation and finite element analysis.
We are therefore able to provide our custarmers with
sophisticated, innovative, custom-designed solutions, with
the highast level of confidence in their suitability, creating
value and helping them differentiate from their competition.
We enhance this expertise with our growing capabilities in
data capture and interpretation to deliver expert process
management imprevements to our customers,

66

manufacturing sites
in 26 countries

100+

R&D PhDs
and engineers

Key Outputs

Value to shareholders Qur efficient use of capital
generates annual profits, giving returns to our
shareholders and underpinning sustainable growth.

High-quality praducts We deliver bespoke,
high-quality refractory and consumable products
and systems to industry-leading customers around
the world,

Customervalue Ourinvestment ininnovation
creates cutting-edge products and solutions,
delivering enhancedvolue for cur customers and
differentiating us from our competitors.

Expert delivery We embed technical experts with our
customers, giving us @ fundamental understanding
of their needs and delivering them access 1o our
global network of highly skilled individuals.

Sustainable business Our commitment to ethical
business delivers strong, long-term, sustainable
commercial relationships.

Enviranrmental benefits We develop praducts
that deliver efficiency and energy savings to our
customers. We focus on sustainability in our own
business through the efficient use of energy and
natural resources.

Service and Consistency

Serving our customers reliably, competitively and consistently
with consumables critical for their manufacturing processes

Alongside developing our globaol presence, we ensure o

local service to cur customers, from inventory management
to high-quality techrical support af their sites and the obility
ta swiftly modify production and supply to reflect changes
in customer requirements. Our knowledge of end-market
pracesses, specifications and techniques around the world
gives our experts an unparalleled ability to suppert our
customers. This unique level of service relies on ourtechnicians’
permanent presence at our customers’ sites, and their ability
o leverage the worldwide expertise accumulated across the
Vesuvius network.

© Read more about innovation on p32-35

& Read more about quality and reliability on p36-48

13
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Chairman’s Statement

John McDonough CBE Chairman

O Seethe Chief Executive's Strategic
Review on p18-19

Q See more about our Markets on p8-9

O Seeour Financial Review on p26-31

© Seemare about our Governance inthe
Governance Section on p74-121

“We have outperformed
the market and delivered
a strong set of results”

Overview

2017 was avyear of good progress for
the Group as we saw improvements

in our trading environment following
the challenging market conditions
experiencedin 2015 and 2016. We also
completed a successful transition of
Chief Executive, with the appointment
of Patrick Andrétothe role as part of

a planned succession process. Global
steel production growth exceeded our
expectations and pleasingly cur overall
sales growth outperformed the global
steel market. We also experienced
positive momentum inthe majority of
foundry end markets. Overall, despite
experiencing headwinds relating to
significant raw material price increases
and some temporary increased
infer-company sourcing costs, the Group
saw a 24.2% increase in reported trading
profit (16.1% on an underlying basis),
and a 20.2% increase in reported
revenue {12.5% on an underlying basis),
with cash generation strengthening
further. The Group continued to make
good progress with the restructuring
programme and we remainad focused
onthe delivery of our strategy and its
execution priorities. Finally, in December,
we strengthened our batance sheet,
repaying existing borrowing with the
issuance of debtin the US Private
Placement market.

New Chief Executive

The appaintment of our new Chief
Executive, Patrick André, was a key event
for Vesuvius this year. It was the result of
arigorous process, during which both
internal and external candidates were
considered. We are delighted that the
best fit for the role came from within

our own ranks. | would like to take this
opportunity ro thank Patrick's predecessor,
Frangois Wanecq, for his many years of
dedicated service to the business and his
diligencein ensuring a smooth transition.
We [ook forward 1o the years ahead
under Patrick's executive leadership.

Market Dynamics and Strategy

During the year, we saw global steel
production increase by 5.3% with
productionin the majority of major steel
countries up year-on-year. In our Foundry
Division the overall frading environment
ond demand for our products was
positive across the majority of ourkey
end markets.

Throughout the year we faced notable
inflationary pressures from significant
price increases in several key raw
materials. These initially impacted cur
Advanced Refractories business, but
subsequently price rises were also
experienced inthe Steel Flow Control
and Foundry businesses. We responded
proactively 1o the pressure placed on
our business making good progress in
recovering costinflation through higher
selling prices by year-end.



Against this bockdrop, we continued to
focus on the execution of our strategy
and made good progress on our five

key execution priorities (see page 10).

We remain confident that these will
enable usto create value and deliver
sustainable profitebility for qur
sharehclders. We continue to recognise
the fundamentalimportance to the
Group of the capabilities of aur people.
Ovur highly talented leadership teams and
operctional staff ensure that we are able
ta drive our strategy forward, with quality
underpinning not only the premium
promise of our products, services and
solutions, but also our overall appreach
to business excellence.

Performance and Dividend

In 2017, reported sales were £1,683.9m,
anincrease from 2016 of 20.2%.

Our margins improved to 9.8%, delivering
reported trading profit of £165.5m.
Whilst we experienced some headwinds
throughout the second half, over the year
we outperformed our markets in terms of
growth. These results serve to emphasise
the strength of our mancgementteam
and their ability to operate effectively
against the backdrop of a volatile
market. Vesuvius remains anintrinsically
cash-generative business and we saw
strong cash generation throughout 2017,
ending the year with a stronger balance
sheetthanin previous years.

The Group continued to make goed
progress in delivering the previously
announced restructuring proagramme
which focused mainly on cur Flow
Control business. We also cammenced
acompletely new programme focusing
on the Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
business unitin Europe, and Group
corporate functions.

Our Headline PBT was £152.9m, 27.6%
higher than last year ona reported basis.
Including amortisation of £19.5m and
restructuring costs of £36.3m, our PBT
of £97.1m was 22.3% higher than 2016.
Statutory EPS is 14.71p.

Our dividend policy aims to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided
thisis supported by cash flow and
underlying earnings, and is justified in
the context of our capital expenditure
requirements and the prevailing market
outlook. With this in mind, the Board
has recommended afinal dividend of
12.5 pence per share for the year ended

31 December 2017 (2016: 11.4 pence),
which would result in a total dividend
forthe year of 18.0 pence per share
{2016:16.55 pence), an increase of
8.8%. If approved at the Annual General
Meeting, this fincl dividend will be paid
on 25 May 2018 to shareholders on the
register at 13 April 2018.

Board and Governance

In April 2017, we appointed Holly
Koeppel as a Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Connors, who resigned
fromthe Boardin late 2076. Holly has
more than 35 years' industry and
financicl experience, and has warked
with businesses in Australia, China, the
UK and the US. We are delighted to
have her significant experience around
the Board table.

The Board continues to place great
importance on furthering our
understanding of the Vesuvius business
by visiting key operations and engaging
with as many of our people as possible.
This year, the full Board visited our
Foundry operations and customers in
Brazil, meeting management from all
business lines and geining a broader
understanding of the overall South
American business. As Chairman,

| personally visited our operations in
Chinain May and, during the year,
other Non-executive Directors visited
operations in Skawinain Poland,
Clevelond and Pittsburghin the US,
and Borken in Germany. The Board will
continue fo visit sites across the Group,
increasing individuaf knowledge and
ensuring that we remain connected
with our operations, managerment
teams and people around the world.

The 2017 externally facilitated Board
evaluation confirmed that the Board
continues to function effectively.

We believe it remains well bolanced,
setting the right tone from the top, with
a strong mix of relevant experience
and skills, ensuring that a collaborative
yet challenging culture is embedded
throughout the Group.

Our People

In 2016, | noted that to secure the
current and future performance of

the Group, the Board had widened its
focus on succession planning issues,
additionally reviewing the management
level immadiately below the Board.

This confinues to be o critical orea

17

for Board attention, with the Board
fully recognising the importance of
developing talent and maintaining

a cadre of diverse and highly capable
people throughout the business.

The need for greater diversity
throughout the business is a goal upon
which the Board remains focused.

Asever, | continueto beimpressed by
the way in which our leadership tearns
and our people go the ‘exfra mile’to
exceed our own, and our custcmers’
expecrations, as evidenced by our 2017
results. On behalf of the Board, thank
themall.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be
held on 10 May 2018. The Notice

of Meeting and explanatory notes
containing details of the resolutions to
be put to the meeting accompany this
Annual Report and Accounts and are
available on cur website (www.vesuvius.
com). | and all my Board colleagues plan
to attend the Annual General Meeting
and we look forward o the opportunity
to meet with as many shareholders as
possible on the day.

John McDonough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review

Patrick André Chief Executive

Introduction

Itis an honour to have been selected to
lead Vesuvius and | am grateful o our
Chairman, John McDonough, and the
Board of Directors for their trust.

Il would also like to thank Frangois
Wanecq for his exceptional commitment
in leading Vesuvius over the post 12 years,
Thanks te his achievements and the
efforts of all our teams, the foundations
of the Group are strong ond sound.

Cur main objective is now te build on
these foundations and to generate

and accelerate the Group's profitable
growth over the coming years.

The strong performance of the Group
in 2017 is an important first step in the
implementation of this growth strategy.

Strong Performance

Inaglobally favourable economic
environment, both our Steel and Foundry
Divisions succeeded in outperforming
the general market growth. This was
particularly the case in China.

Thankstothis performance, Vesuvius'
globalsalesin 2017 reached £1,683.9m,
anincrease of 20.2% over 2016 ona
reported basis. At constant currency,

and adjusted for the effect of acquisitions,
underlying revenue wasup 12.5% as
compared with 2016.

Qur trading profitin 2017 reached
£165.5m, anincrease of 24.2% over 2016
onareported basisand 16.1% cn an
underlying basis. Our return on sales
improved from 9.5% to 9.8%. After the
inclusion of amortisation of acquired

"Our main objectiveisto
accelerate the implementation
of our profitable growth
strategy over the coming years”

infangibles and restructuring costs,
operating profit was £109.7m, 18.1%
chead of prior year on a reported basis.

Qur financial performance would,
however, have been even stronger in
2017 if we had not been impacted by
two temporary headwinds.

Some of the key raw materials used

by our Steel and Foundry Divisions
experienced significant price increases in
2017, particularly during the second half
of the year. The speed of these increases
was such thot it was not possible to fully
recover the increased costs through the
sales price of our finished products, aswe
were bound by contractual obligations
with some customers. This situation
improved towards the end of 2017 due
to prices stabilising for several key raw
materials and major progress being
made in recovering cost inflation through
higher selling prices. Whilst the price of
magnesite, the largest contributor to

raw material price inflation in 2017,

has now stabilised, the price of other

raw materials such as bauxite, silicon
carbide and zirconia are stillan an
upwardtrend. As aresult, the process

of price adjustment will continue into
2018, until realised cost increases have
beenfully recovered.

Additicnally, the very strong growth

of our Flow Control salesin EMEA
ternporarily exceeded the capacity of
our manufacturing plantsin the region,
requiring the import of products from our
facilities in Asia and NAFTA, incurring
additional freight, export duty and
overtime costs. Measures were
immediately takento increase the

capacity of the Flow Control EMEA
plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plants.

Improved Financial Position

Drespite the strong growth in our turnover
and increased capital investment of
£44.3min 2017 versus £35.2min 2016,
our cash conversion raticincreased to
104%in 2017 due to our focus on efficient
working capital management. Our trade
working capital to sales ratio decreased
10 24.9% from 26.6% in 2016.

This strong cash flow generation
reduced our net debtto £274.3m at

31 December 2017 versus £320.3m

at 31 December 2076. We olso partly
refinanced our debtin December 2017
with the issuance of a €100m US Private
Placement, resulting in a significant
decrease of our financing costs

going forward.

Strategic Progress

Qur strategy remains cenfred around
five key execution priorities, designed

to ensure the achievement of our core
strategic objectives of delivering long-term,
sustainable and profitable growth.

Each of these execution priorities saw
significant progress in 2017:

> Reinforce our technelogy leadership:
With a global R&D spend of £33.2min
2017 (2016:£28.6m), representing
2.0% of revenue, Vesuvius continues to
lead the industry with a significantly
larger R&D spend to sales ratiothan
most of our competitors. In 2017,
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we continued to focus our R&D efforts
on a reduced number of potentially
high-impact R&D progremmes.

The new Advanced Refractary R&D
Centre in Visakhapatnam, Indig, was
inaugurated in November, reinforcing
our presence in this key market for our
future growth, strengthening links with
customers and enabling us to better
tapinfto the growing talent pool of
engineers and scientists inthe country.
The decision was also made to
reorganise the Flow Confrol R&D
network around three main R&D
centres; inthe US (Pittsburgh), Europe
{Ghlin/Feignies} and China (Suzhou),
operating under a common leadership.
This structure will be fully operationai
in 2020 and will enable ustoincrease
the efficiency of aurresearch further,
by reinforcing our proximity with
customers and accessing awider

nool of worldwide scientific talents.

Increase penetration of our value-
creating solutions: The growth of sales
in our Steel and Foundry Divisions
outperformed underlying market
growth in most areas, confirming the
mounting interest of customers in our
advanced solutions, enabling them to
improve their manufacturing efficiency
whilst at the same time raising the
quality of their finished products.

We were particularly pleased with

our progress in Ching, where Steel
Division sales increased by 7% and
Foundry Division sales increased by
13% on an underlying basis.

Capture growth in developing
markets: Steel Division sales grew
fasterthan the market in the key
developing regions of Ching, India
and the Middie East. However, sales
growth in Latin America, while positive,
was slightly below general steel
market growth. Foundry sales also
outperformed marketsin most
developing countries, with the
exception of India where priority was
given to the management of working
capital and customer credit risk.

Improve cost leadership and margins:
Qur previcusly announced Lean and
self-help programme to improve the
cost competitiveness and efficiency of
our manufacturing network contfinued
o develop in 2017, extending from
Flow Control Europe to Flow Centrol
NAFTA operations. £16.2m of savings
were deliveredin 2017, bringing the
total savings delivered since launching
the programmeto £43.2m. This
programme is expected to deliver

£60m of savings ot a total cost of
£75m. A completely new restructuring
programme focused onthe Foundry
Divisionin Europe and NAFTA, the
Advanced Refractories business unitin
Europe and global corporate functions
was launched at the end of 2017, with
expected recurring savings of £15m by
2020. In paroliel to these restructuring
programmes, Vesuvius is reinforcing
its focus on operational excellence
and centinuous improvement inits
manufacturing operations.

v

Develop our Technical Services
offering: Our Technical Services
offering has continued to develop

in 2017, not only within our Digital
Services business unit but also within
Flow Control, Foundry and Advanced
Refractories. Late in 2017, we made a
strategic investment in Sapotech Gy,
a Finnish technology company
developing optical defect detection
services inthe steel continuous casting
process. Thisinvestment will reinforce
the Flow Control business unit.

Attracting, Develeping and
Retaining Talent

The success of our strategy ultimately
relies onthe quality and metivation of
our people. In 2017, we continued our
efforts to attract, develop and retain the
besttalents worldwide. This will intensify
in2078.

We believe in diversity of talents and
origins and in the importance of an
entrepreneurial and decentralised
culture, with empowered, accountable,
innovative and results-oriented
managers, operating close to our
markets and our customers.

| will strongly support the reinforcement
of this culture within the Group going
forward.

Stable Safety Performance
in 2017

With a lost time injury frequency rate of
1.63 per million hours in 2017, cur safety
performance improved slightly over
2016 (1.72).

The Group'sinjury severity rate improved
more markedly in 2017 with a severity
rate of 62.8 days lost per million hours
worked versus 74.6 days lost per million
hours worked in 2076, highlighting the
success of the Group's efforts 1o address
the most dangerous sifuations in our
manufacturing plants,

Ovur objective isto improve this
performance further year-on-year.

A new safety management organisation,
updating responsibility and accountability
for the management of safety across

the Group, was established at the end

of 2017 and will be fully operaticnal in

the first half of 2018.

Sustainability

Vesuvius R&D reinforced its effortsin
2017 to develop preducts and services
helping cur Steel and Foundry customers
to reduce their energy consumption and
carbon footprint through the improved
service life of our preducts and reduction
of waste in their manufacturing processes.
At the same time, we continued our
effortsto reduce waste and energy
consumption in our own manufacturing
processes.

Outlock

Cur main Steel and Foundry markers
remain positively oriented atthe
beginning of 2018. However, we expect
alower growth rate of steel production
outside Chinain 2018 compared tc 2017,
asthe significant decrease in Chinese
steel exports which occurredin 2017 may
notrepeatin 2018. Our self-help and
manufacturing optirmisation programme
will continue to develop and expand in
2018. The temporary raw material and
product supply headwinds that impacted
our 2017 results have now been mostly
mitigated and will substantially unwind
during the year, subject to any further
raw material costincreases. We remain
confident in our ability to further improve
working capital management and
generate strong operating cosh flow.

For these reasons, the Board is confident
that in comparison to 2017, further strong
progress will be made in 2018.

Patrick André Chief Executive
28 February 2018
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Key Performance
Indicators

The Board and management
reqularly monitor both financial
and non-financial performance
indicatorsto measure

performance against objectives.

The Board reviews these KPIs as
part of its governance and risk
management processes.

Strategic Alignment

Deliver growth

Generate
sustainable
profitability
and create
shareholder
value

Maintain strong
cash generation
and an efficient
capital structure

KPI

Underlying
revenue growth

Trading profit and
return on sales

Purpose

Pravides animpartant indicator of organic
(like-for-like) growth of Group businesses
between reporfing periods. This measure
eliminates the impact of exchange rates,
acquisitions, dispesals and significant
business closures

Used to assess the trading performance
of Group businesses

Headline profit
before tax

Used to assess the financiol performance
of the Group as a whole

Headline earnings
pershare

Used to assess the underlying earnings
performance of the Group as o whole

Returnon net
assets

Free cashflow

Average working
capitatto sales
ratio

Used to assess the financiol performance
and asset management of the Group

Used to assess the underlying cash generation
of the Group, One of the factors driving the
generation of free cash flow is the average
waorking capital to sales ratie, whichindicates
the level of working capital usedin the business

Interest cover
ratio

Ratio of net debt
tc EBITDA

Non-~financial KPIs

Strategic Alignment

Provide a safe
working
environment
for our people

Be atthe
forefront of
innovation

KPI

Losttimeinjury
frequency rate

R&D spend

Both ratios are used to assess the financial
position of the Group and its ability to fund
future growth

Performance



Performance

Link to remunetation

Delivery of value to shareholdersis linked to
remuneration through the Vesuvius Share Flon
('VSP"), which measures the vesting of awards
agoinst total shareholder return

©VSP-Read more about this on pl111-113

EPS islinked to remuneration as a measure
used inthe Annual Incentive plan (AIPY and
the V5P

© AIP and VSP - Read more about themin the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on p%6-116

In 2017, working capital performance was
linked to remuneration through the use of
the Group's ‘cash conversien ratic’ as one of
the measures used inthe AIP

@ AIP- Read mare about this an p10%-111

*Work-related illness or injuries which resulted
in an employee being absent for atleast ane
day-measured per million hours worked

© Read more about Safety on pé0-63

** Constant 2017 currency

Strategic Alignment

Run top quality,
cost efficient
and sustainable
operations

consumption

Performance

O Read more about Sustainability on pé4-66

Note: The performance measure for this KPl has been amendedthisyear. The Company
believes that the mew perfarmance measure using normalised’ consumption gives a more
helpfulindication of the Group's performance inthis area.
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Risk

The Board continually monitors the internal and

external risks which could significantly impact

the long-term performance of the Group

Risk Management in 2017

The Board is responsible for setting the
Group's risk appetite and ensuring that
appropriate risk management systems
arein place. The Group undertakes a
continuous process of risk identification
and review, which includes both a
top-down and bottom-up process,
independently gathering views on risk
from each business unit, and from
operational, functional and senior
executive management, and the Board
of Directors. Building onthe process
conductedin 2016, where @ clean sheet
review of the Group's principal risks was
undertaken, the Group's @ssessment of
principal risks has been reviewed and
considered against a further group

of emerging risks and uncertainties
identified through our 2017 Board
process.

Changes to Risk in 2017

The Board believes that there has been
no material change to the Group's
principal risks and uncertainties during
the year. However, the Board reflected
on the implicotions of certain emerging
‘macre’trends during the year. These
included the increase in automation

in manufacturing as a competitive
disruption and the potential for negative
implications for the business from the
Brexit process, the outcome of which
remains unclear, butwhichis not
expected to be materialin the context of
the Group. The Board also discussed the
risks that could arise from afailure by
the Group to foster the correct culture
for success. In addition to these wider
trends, the Board focused on identified
risks where issuas had arisen during the
year —the interruption of supply of quality
raw materials, the related challenges of
instigating price increases as input costs
go up, the more protectionist approach
beingimplementedin some major
markets, and the potential for financial
instability and warldwide recession.

Finally, the Board continued its oversight
of cyberissues as an emarging risk. The
Board's view on each of these issues was
integrated info management discussions
an risk and factored into the approach
the Group takes to successful mitigation,

Risk Mitigation

The risks identified are actively managed
in order to mitigate expasure. Senior
management ‘owners are identified
foreach principal risk to manage the
mitigations of that specific risk and
contribute to the analysis of its likelihoad
and materiglity. Thisis reported to the
Board. Therisks are analysed inthe
context of our business structure which
gives protection against a number of
principal risks we face with diversified
currencies, a widespread customer base,
local production matching the diversity of

Todd Steele,
Technical Specialist,
ME&T - Ferrous,
Foundry USA



our markets and intensive training of
our employees. Additionally, we seek
to mitigate risk through contractual
measures, Where cost-effective, the risk
is fransferred to insurers.

Board Monitoring

The Bourd defines the Group's risk
appetite, considering the nature and
extent of the principal risks that the
Group should toke, [ he Board's
oversight of principal risks also involves
a Board review of the processes by
which the Group manages those risks,
establishing a clear understanding at
Board level of the individuals and groups
in the business formally responsible for
the management of specific risks.

© See more in Governance on pages/4-121

Principal Risks

Therisks identified on pages 24 and 25
are those the Board considers fo be the
maostrelevant to the Groug inrelaticn to
their patential impoct on the achievement
of its strategic objectives. All of the risks
set out on pages 24 and 25 could materially
affect the Group, its businesses, future
operafions and financial condition and
could cause actual results to differ
materially from expected or historical
results. Thesa risks are not the only ones
thatthe Group will face. Some risks are
not yet known and some currently not
deemed te be material could become so.

Viability Process

Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over o
three year period to 31 December 2020,
taking into account the Group's current
position and the potential impact of the
principal risks and uncertainties.

The Directors have determined that a
three year period is an appropriate
period aver which to provide the Viability
Statement because thisis the pericd thar
the strategic business plan focuses on
and is sufficiently funded by financing
facilities with averoge maturity terms of
approximately six years.

In making this statement, the Directorg
have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks that may threaten the
business model, future performance,
solvency and liquidity of the Group.

This is embodied in the annual review
of a three year bottom-up business

plan process which includes a review

of sensitivity to ‘business as usual' risks,
such as profit growth and working capita
varignces, severe but plausible events
andthe impact on the central debt and
headroom profile analysis. The results
take account of the availability and likely
effectiveness of the mitigating actions
that could be taken to avoid or reduce
theimpact or occurrence of the
underlying risks.

23

Whilst the review has considered all the
principal risks identified by the Group,
the following were selected for enhanced
stress tesfing: an unplanned dropin
customer demand, debt recovery risk
due to customer default, raw material
price inflation, reductionin earnings
fromincreased interest charges and the
impact of volatility in foreign currency
earnings. The Group's prudent halance
sheet management, flexible cost base to
react quickly to end market conditions,
occess to long-term capital at acceptable
financing costs and well diversified
international businesses in different
currency earning profiles leaves it well
placed to manage these principal risks.

In performing the stress testing, certain
assumptions were made including that:
customer failures result in write-offs of
the full value of the receivables with no
fost revenue replacement; and partial
cash flow mitigation is possible from
working capital releases, restricted
capital expenditure and operating cost
reductions. Underthe enhanced stress
testing described above, o potential
breach of a covenant would only occur
in the event of an unforeseen reduction
in revenue greater than 35%.

Accordingly, the Directors confirm that
they have a reasonable expectation
that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as
they falt due over the three year period
to 31 December 2020.

Identify

Assass

Model

Report

Viability time horizon and risk
analysis framework

Principal risks
andstress scenarios

Viability against risk
SCenarios, examining

O See Viability Statement
above

probabilities and impacts

BDUDWIOLIAY IO I



24 Vesuvius plc
Annual Reportand Accounts 2017

Risk continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk and Context

Demand volatility

Vesuvius' expectations of
future trading are based upon
an assessment of end-market
conditigns, which gre subject
to some uncertainty. Vesuvius’
end-markets are histoncally
somewhat cychcalin nature.

Srrotegic
alignment

Protectionism
and globalisation

Local, national or regional political
requirements conflict with the
quality and efficiency delivered

by scale ond standardisation.

Strategic
alignment

Financial uncertainty

Fluctuations inthe value of
currencies, interest rates or rates
of inflation may adversely impact
the Group's financial position or
results of operations. Availability
of sufficient capitalis critical

o allow Vesuvius to deliver its
business plan

Strategw
alignment

Complex and changing
regulatory environment

Vesuvius is subject to worldwide
legal and regulatory regimes,
some of whichimpose extra-
jurisdictional sbligations on
companies and are continually
updated.

Stroteqic
alignment

Potentialtmpact

Unplanned drop in demand and/or
revenue due to reduced production

Margin reduction

Mitigation

Gaographic diversification of revenues

Product innovation and service offerings securing long-term
revenue streams and maintaining performance differential

Customer failure leading to increased
har debts

Increase in service and praduct lines by the development of the
Tachnicat Services offering

Loss of market share to competition

R&D includes assessmeant of emerging technologies

Cost prassures at customers leading
touse of cheaper solutions

Restricted access to market dveto
enforced preference of local suppliers

Manufacruring copacity rationalisation and flexible cost base

Diversified customer base' no customer is greater than 10%
of revenue

Robust credit and working capital controbto mitigate the nisk
of defoult by counterparties

Highly diversified monufocturing faotprint with manufacturing
siteslocated in 26 countries

Increased barriersto entry for new
businesses or expansien

Strong locol management with delegated autharity to runtheir
business and manage customer relationships

Increased costs fromimport duties
or taxation

Loss of market share

Customerond other counterparty
deafault

Restricted access to capital hampering
ability te fund growth

Reductionin earnings fromincreased
interest charges

Reduced market liquidity and
increased cost of capital

Revenue reduction fram reduced end-
muarket access

Cost flexibility

Tax risk management and control framewark together with
astrong control of inter-companytrading

Capital allocation discipline

Caprtal structuring, including fixed rate borrowing and matching
of debtto cash flow earnings currency

Alignment of cost structure with revenue where possitle

Effective planning of the debt refinancing profile to aveid exposure
ta short-term rarket disruptions

Globally dissermninated Code of Canduct highlightirg ethical
approach to business

Disruption of supply chain and route
to market

Worldwide confidenticl Speak-up procedure

Compliance programmes and training across the Group

Increased internal cantrol processe:

Increased frequency of regulatary
investigations

Reputationaldamaoge

Independent Internal Audit function

Experienced Internal Legal functian



Strategic
Alignment

Deliver growth

O See more about Our Strategy on p10-11

Risk and Context

Business interruption

The Group is subject to cperational
risks including natural catastrophe,
terrorist action, fire/explosion,
environmental regulation,
ndustriul e livn, supply Ciuin
issues and cyber risk.

Straregic
aligrmert

Failure to secure innovation

Not maintaining and/or
developing the necessary
sustainable differentiction in
products, systems and services
by driving innovative salutions.
Competitive cdvantage derived
fram proprietary intellectual
property is lost through
inadequate pretection.

Sategic
alignment

Attracting talent and
performance management

Failure to attract sufficient

new talent to the Group based
onindustry perceptionand
competition. Failure to maintain
and develop atclent pipeline
and internal succession

options for middle and senior
management positions,

Strategic
alignment

Quality, health and safety

Vesuvius worksin highly
challenging manufacturing
environments, providing products,
systerns and services that are
mission ¢ritical and for which
reliability is paramount.

Srraregic
afignment

Genergte susteinable  Maintain strong
profitability and
create shareholder
value

cash generation
and an efficient
capital structure

Potential Impact

Loss of a major plant temperarily
or permanently impairing our ability
to serve our customers

Provide o safe
waorking environment ofinnovation
for our people

Damage te or restrictienin ability
to use assets

Denial of azcazato eritical systems
or control processes

Be atthe forefront Run top-quality, Fostertalent,
cost-efficient
and sustainable

operations

inour people

Mitigation

Diversified manufacturing footprint

skill and motivation

Disaster recovery planning

Business continuity plonning with strategic maintenance of
excess capacity

Physical and IT control systems security, access and training

Cyber risks integratedinto wider risk-management structure

Disruption of manufacturing
processes

Inakility to source critical
raw materials

Product substitution by customers

Increased competitive pressure
through lack of differentiation of
Vesuvius offering

Well-estoblished global insuronce programme

Group-wide safety monogement programmes

Dualsourcing strategy and development of substitutes

Enduring and significant investment in R&D, with market-
leading research

A shared strategy forinnovation throughout the Graup,
degployed viaour R&D centres

Commoaditisotion of product portfolio
throvgh lack of develepment

Stage gate process from innovation to commercialisation fo
foster innavation and increase alignment with strategy

Lack of response ta changing
customer needs

Loss of intellectual property
protection

Organisatienal culture of high
performance is not achieved

Staff turnover in growing economies
and regions

Programme of Manufactuning and Process Excellence

Quality programme, focused on quality and consistency

Stringent intellectual praperty registration and defence

Internal focus on talent development and traiming, with
tailered career-stage programmes and clear performance
management strategies

Contacts with universities te identify and develop talent

Stagnation of ideas and development
opportunities

Career path planning and global spportunities for high-
potential staff

Loss of expertise and critical
business knowledge

Internal pragrarmmes for the structurad transfer of rechnical
and otherknowledge

Reduced management pipeline
for succession to senior positions

Injury to staff and contracters

Product or application failures lead
to adversefinoncial impact or loss of
reputation as technology leader

Clearly elucidated valuesto underpin business culture

Active safety programmes, with engoing wide-ranging monitaring

and safety training

Quality management programmes including stringent quality
contral standards, monitoring and reporting

Health and safety breach,
manufacturing downtime ar
damage to infrastructure from
incident at custamer plant

Customer claims from product
quality issues

Experienced technical staff knowledgeable in the application of

our products and technalogy

Targeted globalinsurance programme

Experienced Internol Legal function controlling third-party
contracting
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Financial Review

“Significant progress has been made
inimprovingthe strength of our
balance sheetthrough afocus on
working capital and cash generation
during a period of revenue growth”

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer

£1,683.9m

Revenue
Reported Underlying'
+20.2% +12.5%

£165.5m

Trading profit?

Reported

+24.2%

141p

Statutory EPS

Underlying'

+16.1%

Reported

-33.2%

9.8%

Return on sales?

Reported

+30bps

Underlying'

+30bps

axcludes separarely reported itemns ond the
impact of aequistions and disposals.

2. For definitions of alternative performance
measures, refer ta Note 4 of the Group
Financiol Staternants.

7. Underlying basis is at constart currency and

Basis of Preparation

All references in this financial review
are toheadline performonce unless
stated otherwise. See Note 4 to the
Group Financial Statements on
page 138.

Introduction

We have made good progress towards
our previously stated aim to enable the
business toimprove shareholder returns
and sustain growth, whilst optimising
aperating costs and maintaining an
appropriate level of control and
compliance. The key components of our
strategy to achieve this were successfully
launchedin 2017, including structural and
people changestothe Finance team, the
building of a European shared service
centre and improved performance
reporting and measurement. Whilst there
remains a lot still to do before all of our
improvermnent plans are implemented,
the pleasing progress to date is thanks

to the dedication and professionalism of
aur finance personnel across the Group.

2017 Performance Overview

In contrastto 2016, end-markets were
stronger during 2017 ond our revenve
benefited from the improved demand for
our praducts in both Steel and Foundry
as aresult, as well as business gains in
many of our key markets, principally
EMEA and NAFTA. Reported revenue
increased by £282 5m over the prior year
and by £186.4m an an underlying basis.
The restructuring programme continued
to deliver ahead of plan during 2017 with
atatal of £16.2m of incremental benefits
reported, The increased revenue and
restructuring benefits drove the higher
reported trading profit of £165.5m, which
was 24.2% higher than prior year. Return
onsales for 2017 on @ reported basis af
9.8% was higher thanthe prior year by
30bps despite a number of higher costs
inthe period. The higher costs related

to price increases on several key raw
materials, as well os temporary costs
associated with importing productinto
Europe from other facilities in the Group
to satisfy the higher demand. Ina

vear of strong sales growth, our cash
management performance was strong,
achieving o 104% cash conversion,

due largely to better working capital
management. As aresult, we have
decreased our net debt position and
improved our leverage ratio of net
debtto £BITDA to 1.3xfrom 1.8x at
December 2016,



Underlying revenue growth %

12.5%

Return on sales* %

9.8% 3%

R&D spend* £m

£33_2m+161%

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final
dividend of 12.50 pence per share to be
paid on 25 May 2018 to shareholders
on the register at 13 April 2018. When
added to the 2017 interim dividend

of 5.50 pence per share paid on

22 September 2017, this represents
afull-year dividend of 18.0 pence
pershare.

It remains the Board's intention to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided this
is supported by underlying earnings, cash
flows, capital expenditure requirements
and the prevailing market outlook.

Key Performance Indicators

We have identified a number of KPls
against which wa have consistently
reported since demerger. Details of the
KPls are previded on pages 20 and 21. As
with prior years, we measure our results
on anunderlying basis, where we adjust
foensure appropriate comparability
between periods, irrespective of
currency fluctugtions and any

business acquisitions and disposals.

Thisis done by:

> Restating the previous pericd's results
atthe sarme foreign exchange (FX)
rates used in the current period

> Removing the results of disposed
businesses in both the current and
prior years

* At constant 2017 currency

> Remowing the results of businesses
acquired in both the current year
and prior years

Therefore, for 2017, we have:

> Retranslated 2016 results atthe
FXratesused in calculating the
2017 results

> Removed the results of our mould
and tundish flux businessin Brazil,
Mastercedi, which was acquired
in 2016

Objective: Deliver growth over
thelongterm

KPi: Underlying revenue growth

Reported revenue for 2016 was £1,401.4m,
which after FX translation effects and
removing the impact of acquired
businesses, equatesto £1,492.0m on an
underlying basis. The reported revenue
in 2017 of £1,683.9m, when adjusted for
acquisitions made, is £1,678. 4mon an
underlying basis, whichis an increase

of 12.5% year-on-year. The growth has
been as a result of stronger end-market
demand and business gains during the

period, particularly in EMEA and NAFTA.

KPl: R&D spend

We believe that our market-leading
product technology and services deliver
fundamental value to our customers and
that the primary mechanism to deliver
that value is to invest significantly in

* At constent 2017 currency

research and development. In 2017,
we spent £33.2m (2016: £28.6m) on
R&D activities, which represents 2.0%
of our revenue {2016: 2.0%).

Objective: Deliver attractive
profitability

KPI: Trading profit and return on sales
We continue to measure underlying
trading profit of the Group aswell as
trading profit as a percentage of sales,
which we refer to as our return on sates
or RoS.

Trading profit of £165.5mincreased by
16.1% on on underlying basis versus last
year whilst RoS on a constant currency
basis was 9.8%, a 30bps improvernent
over 2016. The improved trading profitis
duein parttothe higher revenue, along
with the ongoing delivery of benefits
from the restructuring programme.

The Steel Divisicn recorded RoS of
8.7% this yecr, anincrease from 8.4%

in 2016, despite the additional costs
incurred inimporting non-European
based product into EMEA as well as the
substantial increases in raw material
costs experienced in Advanced
Refractories. Foundry reported a 12.2%
RoS, anotherimprovement over the
prior year {2016: 11.8%) with production
efficiency gains and operating expense
reductions offsefting raw material cost
increases that started to impact results
inthe second half.

Revenue
2017 Revenue 2016 Revenue % change
Acquisitions/ Acquisitions/
£m Asreported Disposals  Underlying Asreported Currency Disposzals  Underlying Reported  Underlying
Steel 1,148.7 (5.5} 1,143.2 942.0 860.2 - 1,002.2 21.9% 14.1%
Foundry 535.2 - 535.2 459.4 304 - 4898 16.5% 9.3%
Total Group 1,683.9 (5.5) 1,678.4 1,401.4 50.6 - 1,492.0 20.2% 12.5%
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Operating profit £m

£109.7 ¥81%

Headline earnings per share pence

40.7p '33%

Statutory earnings per share pence

‘i4‘| p -33.2%

KPI: Headline PBT and headline EPS
Headline profit before tax {PBT) ond
headline earnings per share (EPS)
are used to measure the underlying
financial performance of the Group.
The main difference between trading
profit and PBT is net finonce costs.

Net finance costsin 2017 of £13.9m
were £0.6m below 2016. The reduction
infinance costs was largely due to
lower net debrt levels that triggered a
more favourable interest cost on the
Company's revolving credit facility.
During the year this facility was
successfully extended for a further

two years o 2022 and $110m of the US
Private Placement programme ((USPP’)
was redeemed and replaced by a
Euro-denocminated USPP of the same
value but on moere favourable terms.

Our headline PBT was £152.9m, 27.6%

higher than last year on a reported basis.

Inchuding amertisation (£19.5m) and the
restructuring charges (£36.3m), our PBT
af £97.1m was 22.3% higherthan 2016.
Headline EPS at 40.7 pis 33.9% higher
than 2016,

Trading profit

Obijective: Ensure capital is
deployed efficiently

KPI: Free cash flow and working capital
Fundamental to ensuring that we

have adequate capital to execute our
corporate strategy is converting cur
profitsinta cash, partly through strict
managerment of our working capital.
Free cash flow from continuing
operations was £33.1mforthe year,
whichis allthe more pleasing against
abackdrop of revenue growth that
inevitakly requires some cash investment
inworking capital. Free cash flow from
continuing operations in 2017 wos
£31.7m higher than last yearon a
reported basis because of the bettar
working capital performance partially
offset by higher cash restructuring costs.
Our cash conversionin 2017 improved
1o 104% (2016: 94%%).

We measure working capital both in
terms of actual cash flow movements,
ond as a percentage of sales revenue.
Trade working capital as a percentage of
salesin 2017 was 24.9% (2016: 26.6%),
measured on a 12-month moving
average basis. In absolute termsona
constant currency basis, frade working
capital increased by £12.2m, well

below the increase in sales and with
an improved inventory and creditor
position leading to animprovement
asa percentage of sales.

KP): Return on net assets (RONA)

RONA is our principal measure of capital
efficiency. We do not exclude the results
of businesses acquired and disposed
from this calculation, as capital efficiency
is animportant consideration in our
portfolio decisions. Itis calculated by
dividing treding profit plus our share of
profits from joint ventures by our average
aperating assets (property, plant and
equipment, and frade working capital).

Aswith most of our KPls, we measure
this on a 12-month moving average
basis at constant currency to ensure
that we focus on sustainable underlying
improvements. Our RONA for 2017
was 24.2% (2016: 21.1%,).

2017 Trading profit 2016 Trading profit % change
Acquisitions/ Acquisitians/
f£m Asreported Disposals  Underlying Asreported Currency Disposals  Underlying Reported  Underlying
Steel 100.4 (0.2) 100.2 79.2 51 - 843 26 8% 18.9%
Foundry 65.1 - 65.1 54.1 4.0 - 581 20.3% 12.0%
Total Group 165.5 (0.2) 165.3 133.3 Al - 142.4 24.2% 16.1%




RONA moving average* %

24.2%

Net debt* £m

£274.3m

Unutifised committed debt focilities £m

£153.7m

* For definitigns of alternative performance measures, refer to Nore 4 of the Group Firanciol Stotements

Operating cash flow and cash conversion

2017 2016

£m 3m

Cashgenerated from continuing operations 176.56 130.2
Add: Outflows reloting to restructuring charges 27.3 16.8
Add: Net retirement benefit cbligations 4.8 77
Less: Capital expenditure (39.0) (31.3)
Add: Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 1.6
Operating cash flow 171.5 125.0
Trading profit 165.5 133.3
Cash conversion 104% 4%

Objective: Maintain a strong
financial position

KPI: Interest cover and net deht

As at 31 December 2017, the Group

had committed borrowing facilities of
£563.4m (2016: £576.5m), of which
£153.7m was undrawn {(2076: £158.3m).
The revolving credit facility term was
extended to 2022 and $110m of the
USPP was redeermed and replaced witha
Euro-denominated USPP ot better rates,

Net debt at 31 December 2017 was
£274.3m, a £46.0m decrease from 2016,
as aresult of our good cash generation.
The main drivers of the decrease were
the impact of strong cash conversion
partially offset by higher restructuring
costs and tax payments.

The Group's debt facilities have two
financial covenants: the ratios of net debr
ta EBITDA {maximum three times limit}
and EBITDA to interest {minimum four
tirnes limit). These ratios are monitored
regularly to ensure that the Group has
sufficient financing available to run

the business and fund future growth.

Atthe end of 2017, the net debtta
EBITDA ratio was 1.3x, an improvement
overlast year (2016: 1.8x) and EBITDA
to interest was 15.8x (2016; 13.4x).

Further information onour finance
costs can be foundin Note 9 to the Group
Financial Statements on page 143,

Financial Risk Factors

The Group undertakes regular risk
reviews and, as a minimum, a full risk
assessment process twice a year. Asin
previous years thisincluded input from
the Boord in both the assessment of risk
and the proposed mitigation. As referred
tointhe Principal Risks and Uncertainties
and Viability Statement on poges 23,24
and 25, we consider the main financial
risks foced by the Group as being
demand volatility and the impact of
financial uncertainty, leading to reduced
revenue and profit as well as potential
custamer default, and alack of liquidity,
brought on by market volatility.
Important but lesser risk exists in interest
rate movements and cost inflation but

neither is expected fo have a material
impact on the business after considering
the controls we have in place.

Qur key mitigation of demand volatility
is to manage the Group's exposure
through balancing our portfolio of
business geographically and by end-
market and tainvest in product
innovation. We do so through targeted
capitalinvestrment in new and growing
businesses and a combination of capital
and human resource in emerging
markets. The second main financial
risk of alack of liquidity is mitigated by
financing using both the bank and
private placement markets. The Group
also seeks to avoid a concentration of
debt maturities in any one period to
spread its refinancing risk. The Group's
undrawn committed banrk faciiities at
31 December 2017 were £153.7m.
Counterparty risk and customer
default are mitigated by our relatively
widespread customer base —with no
customer being greater than 10% of
revenue —and credit control procedures.
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Other Relevant Financial
Information

Restructuring

We continued to make good progress in
implementing our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainly in Flow
Control, with £16.2m savings delivered in
2017, which was ahead of expectatians.
The totat savings delivered since
launching the programme are now
£43.2m. In 2017, we reported £36.3m

of restructuring costs (2016: £28.5m)
that were predominantly made up of
redundancy and plant closure costs,
along with related consutting fees. These
costsincluded the final costs related to
the previously announced restructuring
plan aswell as £4.8m of costs related to
acompletely new restructuring plan
launched at the end of 2017, targeting
the Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
Business Unitin Europe, and Group
corporate functions. The cash costs

in 2017 were £27.3m (2016: £16.8m).

We are carrying arestructuring
provision forward into 2018 of £22.9m.

Taxation

Akey measure of tax performance s

the effective tax rate, which the Group
calculates on the income tax associated
with headline performance, divided by
the headline profit before tax and before
the Graup's share of post-tax profit of
joint ventures (2017: £157.6m, 2016:
£118.8m). The Group's effective tax rate,

based on the income tax costs associated
with headline performance of £36.4m
(2074: £31.4m), was 24.0%in 2017

{2016 26.4%). This was lower than
expected due largely to better profit
performance in countries where we had
tax losses, the impact of the weakening
of the pesc on our Mexicon tax position
and the release of provisions due to
favourable tox litigation outcomes,

The Group's effective tax rate is sensitive
tochanges in the geographic mix of
profits and level of profits, and reflects

a combination of higher rates in certain
jurisdictionssuch as India, Mexico,
Germany and Belgium, nil effective rates
inthe UK and US due to the availability
of unutilised tax lasses, and rates that lie
somewhere in between.

Other key factorsimpacting the
sustainability of the Group's effective
tax rate areset cutin Note 10.6 to the
Group Financial Statements.

The income tax charge on separately
reported items of £18.0m (2016: £5.0m
credit) comprises £6.0m non-cash
deferred fax movements relating to the
amortisation of a deferred tax liability
arising from the 2008 acquisition of
Foseco plc (2016: £3.7m), £4.3mtax
credits relating to restructuring charges
(2016: £3.8m), and anet reduction inthe
deferred tax asset previously recognised
inrespect of US tax losses and certain
other tfemporary differences of £28.3m
(2016: £2.1m) largely caused by US tax

reform enacted in late December 2017 in
the form of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
{TCJAN. Acombination of the reduction
inthe US Federal tax rate from 35% fo
21%, the repatrictiontolling charge

and other provisions of TCJA caused a
£25 7m reduction in our US deferred tax
asset which, together with other normal
movements and foreign exchange
revaluation, reduced from £65 9m at the
endof 201610 £32.6marthe end of 2017.
However, this write-down did not impact
our Headline earnings after tax, asthe
change inthe asset was reflected through
separately reported items.

Based on our initial interpretation, the
Base Erosion and Anti-Abuse Tax
provisions introduced by the Act may
increase the Group's effective tax rate
by approximately 0.7%in 2018 and 1.2%
in2019.

We expect the Group's effactive taxrate
from 20718 onwards to be between 27%
and 28%, including the expected adverse
impact of US tax reform, reflecting the
fax benefit of initiatives being taken,

The net income tax charge recognised
directlyin the Group Staterment of
Comprehensive income of £3.1m

(2016: £0.7m) comprises a £2.4m charge
(2016: £0.7m charge) in respect of
deferred tax on pension obligations and
£0.7m (2016: £nil) UK taxin respect of
foreign exchange differences arising on
hedged positions.



Net defined benefit pension deficit £m

£16.5m 439%

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure in 2017 of £44.3m
(2016: £35.2m) comprised £34.0min
the Steel Division (2074: £23.7m) and
£70.3minthe Foundry Division

{2016: £11.5m). Capital expenditure

on revenue-generating customer
installation assets, primarily in Steel, has
beenincreased to £10.7m {2016: £6.5m).

Pensions

The Group has a limited number of
historical defined benefit plans mainly
inthe UK, US, Germany and Belgium.
The main plansinthe UK and US are
largely closed to further benefit accruals
and 56.5% of the liabilities in the UK have
already been insured. The total net deficit
attributed to these defined benefit
obligations at the end of December 2017
was £16.5m (2016: £29.4m), representing
animprovement of £12.9m. The key
movements giving rise fo this were
increases of £1.8mto the deficit arising
out of changes to octuarial assumptions
{attributable to increasing discount
rates; updated mortality assumptions
and pension membership data) and
additional accrual and administrative
expenditure paid for the year (£6.8m);
offset by reductians to the deficit of
£10.2m from asset returns and cash
contributions of £17.6m.

The majority of the ongoing pension
plans are defined contribution plans,
where our only abligation is to make
contributions, with na further
commitments on the level of post-
refirement benefits. During 2017, cash
contributions of £12.6m (2016: £10.8m)
were made into the defined contribution
plans and charged to trading profit.

Corporate Activity

Late in 2017, we made a strategic
investment in Sapatech Oy, a Finnish
technology company with which we will
be jointly develaping predictive analytical
service offerings to Steel customers.
Acquisition opportunities remain part of
our growth strategy and are evaluated
on an ongoing basis.

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
28 February 2018
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Innovation

“We engage the creativity of
our people across the entire

organisationto drive innovation”

Alan Charnock Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

£33.2m

Spendon R&D
2016: £28.6m

2.0%

% of Revenue
2016:2.0%

14.5%

% of new product sales’
2016:14.2%

1. Soles of products launched within the last 5 years
as o % of total revenue

Vesuvius' R&D organisation has been
amajor factor in maintaining our
technology leadership position. We are
now three years into our initiative fo
engage the creativity of people across
the whole organisation, and to drive
innovation across the entire Group.

Like all our other major Group initiatives
—safety, quolity and excellence -
embedding a culture of innovation
requires focus on leadership, structure,

process, tools, fraining and incentivisation.

The structures are in place with the
necessary process and focls, which
are constantly being streamlined
and improved.

Digital Transformation

Digital Transformationis a key theme
for companies targeting significant
growth, strategic regeneration or
market disruption with breakthrough
technologies. For Vesuvius, this has
been manifested by our Digital Services
business unit. This also engages each

of the Group's other business units

in adopting a business model
complementary to and independent of
their existing consumables business.
Vesuvius is extremely well positioned to
harness the digital fransformation trend
by creating this new market offering built
on the reputation of over 100 years as
aleader ofinnovation giving techmical

supporttothe Steel and Foundry
industries. Qur customers already
recognise our expertise in developing
engineering solutions using our
understanding of our own technology
platforms and our customers' processes.
This is borne out of our long-term daily
presence at customer plants, working
in partnership with themto improve
the performance of our products,

and providing the continuous
processimprovement that our
customers demand te maintain

their own competitiveness.

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
and the application of cur products,
knowing what to look for end then
understanding what we see, arethe

first essential ingredients of the creative
process of ideation. Ideation links
experience and knowledge with the
situation in front of you, generating

new ways to make improverments.
Occasionally this can lead o
breakthrough ideas giving a step change
in performance or a disruptive new
technology platform. Itis this presence
at, and interaction with, the customer
that is at the heart of the Vesuvius
business model. Itis alsoillustrated in our
Technical Services strategy: developing
senscrs, software tools and technigues to



Katarzyna Szafraniec, Quality Engineer, Poland

‘As a Quality Engineer | continue to draw
on my R&D experience.”

Having studied Chemical
Technology at univarsity,
ljoined Vesuviusin 2011,
beginning as a R&D Assistant
at the Vesuvius site in Skawing,
Poland working on refractory
material. Inthis role,

| colloborated with engineers
Across NUMerous projects,
conducting physicaland
chemical analysis. Using X-ray
diffraction, Thermogravimetric
Analysers and Scanning
Electron Microscopy, | was
ableto gain athorough
understanding of Vesuvius'
products and their structure.

Two years later, | was promoted
to the position of R&D Engineer
at Skawina where part of my
role was to conduct on-site
product analysis for customers,
solving produstionissiies for
them. | was also responsible
for the development of

new products such as the
industrialisation of cur
spinel-forming self-flow
castable. During this time,

| also participated in
Vesuvius'in-house technical
‘HeaTt training.

In 2016, | was selected tojoin
Skawing's new Casting &
Precast Departmentas a
Quclity Engineer, where |
continue fo draw onmy R&D
evperience to monitor and
further improve production
processes. My career at
Vesuvius has enabled meto
develop my technical expertise,
as well asunderstand
production processes,
develop training prograrmmes
and manage a team of
motivared collecgues.
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Innovation continuved

constantly monitar customer processes
and our products in use, interpreting the
data obtained, reacting with process
adjustmentsin real time cnd allowing fer
new process and product developments.
This model can create new services,

add value to our existing product
offering and aecelerate our traditional
ideation process.

Innovation is the creative process of
converting ideas into value-creating
technologies or creating value by doing
things differently. But o be effective we
need toidentify and prioritise the right
ideas, and have the courage to put the
other ones aside.

QOur new product introduction (NPI)
process has been in place for three years,
enabling us toidentify and focus on

the ideas and projects which are most
aligned with our strategic plans, injecting
greafer rigour into decision-making

with a stage gafte approach. Today, we
have no shortage of ideas, but actively
work on a much smaller number of
prioritised projects than we worked on
four years ago. We operate a continuous
portfolio review process fo ensure
thatthe R&D technology rcadmaps
emphasise both current needs and the
essential longer-term programmes.

In 2017, we launched an Ideation
Platform where new ideas are reviewed
and refined, with viable and voluable
ideas funnelled into the NPI pipeline.
The Ideation Platform is presently
targeted only at new products and
manufacturing processes, but our
intention is to broaden its scope to
include ideas on all topics for alll
functions, each with their own

review process.

R&D Performance

During 2017, our new product sales
growth rate {for productslaunched within
the last 5 years) slowed slightly after an
initial two years of very healthy growth.
By the end of 2017, we reached c. 15%
from our starting position of 8% in 2074,
We launched a total of 26 new products
in 2017, with more than 30 new products
planned for 2018 launch.

The R&D resource allocationto
technology projects has steadily
increased in all business units. The
maturity of our NPl process means we
can now monitor additional KPls to
provide a deeper level of analysis on
ourinnovation performance sc we can
confinue foimprove and ensure that

we achieve the targets we set ourselves.
In 2018, we will introduce newinputand
output indicators for innovation to
monitor our pipeline of breakthrough
projects, how efficiently we move
projects through the NPl process, and
how effective we are at achieving

our forecasted project targets. We spend
2.0% of revenue on R&D, a significantly
larger proportion of sales than most of
our competition and expect to deliver
significant benefits from this investment.

New Product Development

Enabling Technologies, our fundamental
research group, confinues to pursue o
range of new technology platforms.

The team menitors technology frends
across a broad range of industries,

both inside and outside our own
markets. The feam looks for previously
unimagined or uncenventional ways to
use materials and processes, filtering
these concepts through cur front-end
innovation process and incubating them
until they become new technology
platforms. These canthen be used by
R&D departments across our business
to foster new product or process
development projects. Cur NPl projects
wsually start from anidentified customer
need but this front-end innovation
process starts with no specific product
or marketin mind, meaning thatthe

new technology platforms may have
applications across multiple business
units, and be integrated into many
different products, multiplying the value
of the technclogy. Technology platforms
that come from these unorthodox
beginnings are more likely to lead to
breckthrough and disruptive innovations.
We hove several such new technology
plotforms that are ready to move info
the NPI process and therefore lock
forward to exciting prospects for these
in the years ahead.

Another important group in Vesuvius'
drive forinnovation is the Solutions
Group. This group's activities have
become a differentiator for Vesuviusin
our Steel market and an essential driver
for the development of cur Technical
Services strategy. Theteam translates
what we see in customer processes, either
directly or through data analysis, inte
new solutions ranging from new designs
for existing products, to new products
and process control functionalities.

More fundamentally, it looks at the entire
customer process and all the products

in use rather than just a single element,
enabling the root cause of a problem

to be identified, rather than tackling
individual symptoms.

The Solutions Group, combining its
process application, modeliing and
metallurgical expertise, is in high
demand from both the Vesuvius
regionol organisations and our
customers because of the positive
results it has demonstrated in solving
complex problems.

IP portfolio

The protection of our IP is as important ¢s
its generation. In 2017, we tested, and are
now ready to roll out, an enhanced audit
process to measure the security of our [P
across the Group starting with R&D and
manufacturing locations in 2018, Our IP
portfolic was reviewed in 2015 and 2016,
and we continued with a stable level of
filings in 2017 to maintain our portfalio
at 156 families, 1,569 granted patents
and 518 applications pending.



Training

During 2017, we extended our

training effortsto the broader Vesuvius
community. To date, our project
management training programme has
included over 300 people, giving each
an understanding of the fullinnovation
process—covering not only their role in
the process, but also providing them
with the skills to Tunction more effectively
inthe cross-functional teams required
to deliver new product introduction.
The training provided interactions with
their future collaborators, identifying
the good practices and operating

skills necassary to drive our NPl prejects
fo greater successes.

Training will continue with a new
programme called 'Quality in the NPI
process, specifically focusing on;

> Project definition: to ensure that
projects going into the NP process all
have clear success criteria, converting
the customer need/voice of the
customer into SMART objectives

> Design Failure Mode and Effect
Analysis (FMEA) and design of
experiments: to accelerate the R&D
stage of the NPl process, reducing
the risk that the solutions developed
and tested inthe laboratery do not
perform as expected in the field,
causing recycled developments and
project delays

Process FMEA: to ensure that our
industrialisation process is effective
and the product we ultimarely
manufacture consistently achieves
the desired performance objectives
as detoiled in the project definition

v

Joining Up Innovation

Vesuvius consists of two divisions and
four business units. Whilst this creates an
opportunity to cross-fertilise products,
services, processes and technologies,
the divisional structure does not naturally
facilitate the sharing of knowledge.

In 2017, we launched a Technology
Bridge Initiative, taking experts from the
R&D department of each division, our
fundamental research group and cur
central process development group.

The'bridges’ are structured arcund
various technology themes related to
materials, processes and the new
technology platforms with the goal of:

> Promoting... new ideas and
applicaticns for technology

> Measuring... the evolution of
technologies that are key to our
industries

> Building... Technology Maps that
will include internal and external
information

> Constructing... a knowledge network

We launched the initiative with ten areas
of focus and will gradually add new
themes over time. All generated data

is collated and stored in our R&D
collaboration platform - TechConnect -
making the sharing of information

as simple as possible and avoiding
duplication. The learning generated by
these community practice groups will be
converted info tuterial presentations to
allow for dissemination throughout

the technical community of Vesuvius.
The ‘community of practice groups’
became the go to experts for these

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
and the application of our products, knowing
what to look for and then understanding
what we see are the first essential ingredients
of the creative process of ideation. o

Global Research & Development centres

Barlborough UK
Bettsville USA
Enschede Netherlands
Feignies France

Ghlin Belgium
Pittsburgh LISA
Suzhou China
Visakhapatnam India

specific topics ensuring that the resources
with the most knowledge and experience
in any field are referenced, making for
more efficient progress of our projects.

Excellence

Qur innovation activities are supported
by the Group Excellence programme,
which allows for self-assessment against
designated benchmarks. Within the
R&D community, progress has already
been made on the various Excellence
roadmaps, not only in Innovation, but
also with respect 1o other initiatives such
as standardising the career ladder for
R&D staff, developing standard job
descriptions across all divisions,
enhancing performance assessment,
and supporting the career and personal
development of our staff. Making steady
progress along all the roads of the
Excelfence road map will ensure that the
Innovation pillar of the Vesuvius strategy
will continue to strengthen, maintaining a
solid foundation on which we continue to
build forthe future.

Alan Charnock Vice President
and Chief Technology Officer

35

F3UDWIOLE D I



36 Vesuvius pic
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Operating Review
Steel Flow Control

Steel Flow Controlrevenue £m

£605.9m

Steel Flow Control supplies the
stoppers and tubes used fo channel
and control the flow of molten

steel from ladle to tundish and
from tundish to mould; slide gate
refractories for ladles and tundishes;
slide gate systems; tundish and
mould fluxes; and control devices
to manitor and regulate steel flow
into the mould. These products
have been designed to resist
extreme thermomechanical stress
and corrosive environments.

The majority of these products

are consumed during the process
of making steel and, conseguently,
demand is primarily linked to steel
proeduction volumes. Continuing
innovation allows us to offer enriched
solutions that create additional
valuein our customers’ processes.

‘In 2017, Steel Flow Control
sales growth continuedto
outperform growth inthe
global steel market”

Roelvan der Sluis President, Steel Flow Control

Vesuvius' Flow Control business unit,
supplies the global steel industry with
consumable ceramic products used to
contain and control the flow of maolten
steel inthe continuous casting process.
This process enables steel manufactured
in a blast furnace or electric arc furnace
to be cast without interruption, whilst
protecting it from the atmosphere.
Avoiding atmospheric contactis crucial
asit significantly reduces contamination
and oxidation levels inthe steel.

The products Vesuvius suppliesinto the
continuous casting process have a short
sarvice life (often a martter of a few hours)
duetothe significant wear caused by the
extremely demanding environmentin
whichthey are used. These praducts
must withstand extreme temperature
changes, whilst resisting liquid steel

and slag corrosion. In addition, the
ceramic parts in contact with the liquid
steel must not in any way centaminate it
The quality, reliability and consistency

of the products and process control
equipment are therefore critical

to the quality of the finished metal

being produced and the productivity,
profitability and safety of our customers’
Processes.

Steel Flow Control products supplied by
Vesuvius include:

> Viso™ isostatically pressed alumina
graphite and VAPEX® extruded clay
graphite products These include ladle
shrouds, stopper rods, submerged
entry nozzles and shrouds, which
channel and control the flow of malten
steel from ladle to tundish and from
tundish to mould

v

Slide-gate refractories These include
nozzles, plates and speciality shopes
used infurnace, ladle and tundish slide
gaote systems

> Temperature measurement and
RADAR™ These provide opfical
temperature meosurement and slog
detection

v

Gaskets These create an girtight seal
between refractory components to
minimise the risk of airingress and
steel oxidisation

v

Fluxes These are powders, spread
onthe surface of the molten steel
which provide thermal and chemical
insulation and remove inclusions



> Purgingsystems These are used to stir
steelinthe ladle

> Control devices These are used to
monitor and regulate steel flow into
the mould

2017 Performance

Steel Flow Control sales growth has
continued to outperform growth in the
global steel market. In 2077, we reported
revenues of £605.9m, anincrease of
11.8% on an underlying basis compared
with 2076. All regions outperformed
underlying steel volume growth and
EMEA was our fastest growing region.

Steal productionin EMEA increased 4.9%
in 2017, and Vesuvius outperformed the
morket with underlying revenue up

17.5% to £240.1m, reflecting market
share gains.

During 2017, we experienced very strong
growth of our Flow Control salesin
EMEA, which temporarily exceeded the
capacity of sur manufacturing plants

in the region, reqguiring the import of
products from our facilities in Asia

and NAFTA, incurring additional

freight, export duty and overfime costs,
Measures wereimmediately taken to
increase the capacity of the Flow Control
EMEA plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plarnits.

Inthe Americas, Steel Flow Control's
underlying revenuesincreased 8.8%
10 £201.7min 2017, against 0 5.9%
increase in steel production volumes.
Our autperformance relative to steal
production was due to market share
gainsin North America. Inthe USin
particular, our market shareis
continuing to recover fromthe low
point of the second half of 2015
when we were impacted by custamer
closures and volume losses due to
market pricing pressure.

"Our teams worked together
to provide a solution for the
customer utilising the first
worldwide application of new
patented sealing technology”

Andrew Morrisonand Linna Sun, heads of NAFTA

and Asia VISO Development teams

The Challenge

Alarge integrated steel producerin
NAFTA resclved to convert most of
their preduction to Vesuvius' Flex
Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud , which
channels the flow of steelinto the
final mould for salidification.

The cold-start technology eliminates
the need for preheat, increasing the
safety of the tube changing process,
and reducing energy consumption.
However, as cold start tubes require
additional time to expand after
preduction starts to form an airfight
seal ot the |oint of the tundish and the
tube to prevent air contamination, a
preheat would still have been reguired
for some specific automative steel
grades to improve sealing times.

Our Solution
Dale Bower, leading the local NAFTA
sales team, challenged the VISO

Global Development team to pravide
asolution. Andrew Morrisonand
Linna Sun, the heads of the NAFTA
and Asia VISO Development teams
respectively, collaboratedin the
development of an innovation bom

in our R&D centre in Suzhou, Ching:
the combination of anintumescent
coating and an integral groove sealant
which provides o quicker gas tight seal
by expanding many multiples of its
original thickness on commencement,
and for the duration, of service.

The Benefits

This combination of the cooting and
groove sealant allows the customer

to reliably use the cold start piece for
higher sieel grades. The new patented
technology creates a tight seal within
one minute of service commencement,
resulting inimmediate reduction in
steel re-oxidation, reduced steel
finishing, and overall improved

steel quality.
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Operating Review continued

Steel Flow Control

Underlying revenue increased by 7.8%
in Asia-Pacificin 2017 to £164.7m,
compared taa 5.7% increase in steel
production volumeinthe region.
Revenuesincreased faster than the
steel market inthe key regional markets
of Ching, India and South Korea.

The benelits of the restructuring
programme implemented during 2016
and 2017 started to deliver a positive
impact on the financial performance
of the business unit.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

Following the success of the
manufocturing rationalisation
programmme in EMEA, asimilarinitiative
was launched for the NAFTA region,
where through a combination of
impraving efficiency and adapting
production velumes between plants,
improvementsin cost base have been
made. We will continue to pursue this
effortin 2018 in order to deliver
further benefits.

We are now franslating this methodelogy
to newterritories, through which

we expect o drive further cost
improvements. The additional projects
identified include a focus on industrial
efficiencies in Brozil and India.

In addition to these wider initiatives, we
targeted process improvements gimed
atincreasing the output in specific
areas, such as in our mix plantin China.
Optimisation work performed here has
allowed us to simplify our supply chain,
make it more cost-afficient and create
capacity 1o absorb growth.

Over the last few years, Vesuvius has
invested in developing robotics solutions
which improve the safety and consistency
of our customers’ operations while
supporting our sales. Our unigue value
propasition is the result of the integration
of specific refractory, system and robotic
design - three core competencies inside
Vesuvius. Severalsteel makers have been
pioneers in adopting this technology,

An SEM 3085 tube changer,
for the robotictube
changing process

The glowing VISO sub-entry
nozzle channels malten
steel info the mould ()

delivering process efficiency and
removing personnel from the harsh
environment arcund the caster. In 2017,
we saw an increase in demand for
robotics solutions and received orders
to convert steel plants in South Korea,
South America and Europe. This
positions Vesuvius wellto support our
custamersin facing the future challenges
of automation and a greater focus
onquality.

In 2017, we also further developed our
capabilttiesin data capture and
confinuous temperature measurement,
Qurinvestment in, and exclusive
distribution agreement with Sapotech
Oy, a Finnish technology company
offering optical defect detection services
and real-time data on steel surface
quality, now places us well to address the
requirements for data management at
our customers. From the start of 2018,
this business is being managed within
the Steel Flow Control business unit.

Qur R&D efforts also delivered new
preducts to suppart the growth in the
ladle stide-gate business with the
infroduction of our next generation
slide-gate mechanism, which is robot-
ready and uses optimised refractory
plates creating value for our customers
in terms of ergonomics, safety and
retiability while reducing their operating
cost. In addition, we launched ocur new
Flex Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud, which
allows customers to operate their casters
with more flexibility in terms of sequence
length and daily operation aswelias

reducing their waste and cost. As shown
in the case study on page 37, we have
also developed complementary
technology to allow far the use of this
product in higher grade steel production.

We continued to develop our service
offering helping our customers to
understand better their mould flow
pattern. Thisis a key element in the
casting process, as it is the last step
between liquid and solid steel. This qudit
service is carried out by our process
experts using specifically designed tools
and software to measure flow pattern
through monitoring temperature, mould
level and meniscus velocity. We canthen
compare this with the data generated
from our Computational Fluid Dynamic
simulation capabilities. Comparing the
data cllows us fo recommend improved
solutions to our customers. More details
onthe work of our Solutiens Group are
contained inthe Innovation Section on
pages 32 to 35.

Looking Ahead

Itis our expectation that, despite the
relatively high growth achieved in 2017
and a broadiy positive outlock for 2018,
steel production in the mature economies
of Europe and North Americo will not
exhibit materiol growth in the medium/
long term, given thatthe nature of
economic growth requires less steel than
inthe past. Thisis a key driver behind the
efforts to adapt our manufacturing
footprint and overhead structure inthe
mature markets.



Chinais the world's largest producer of
steel, accounting for approximately 50%
of global production. The adjustment of
the Chinese steel industry from producing
long' steel for infrastructure to producing
flat' steel, typically used for consurmer
products and automatives, is highly
beneficial for Vesuvius. Flat steel typically
uses three fimes as much Vesuvius
products by value and as a result we
believe tha accessible market far Vesuvius’
Flow Control business in China could grow
significantly inthe long term.

Furthermore, China's Government is
focused on a comprehensive upgrade
of Chinese manufacturing, making it
innovation-driven, emphasising quality
over guantity and achieving green’
development though 'Made in China
2025 This trend towards higher quality
industrial manufacturing is beneficiol to
Vesuvius' steel division. Our current strong
position in this market will help usto
benefit from these trends.

India is another key growth market and
one where we enjoy high penetrction
rates. It was ane of the fastest growing
steel marketsin 2017 and closely tied to
the Government’s economic development
plansis the target to increase steel
capacity fo 300 million tonnes per annum
by 2030, versus a production level in

2017 of 107 million tennes. As aresult,
Vesuvius also considers that this market
presents an opportunity for Vesuvius to
grow sales by a factor of approximately
three fimes in the long ferm.

We also remain optimistic about the
outlook for future steel production growth
in countries such as Brazil, Mexico, Turkey,
the Middle East, Russia and Vietnam.

Roelvander Sluis
President, Steel Flow Control

Efficient technology
transfer improves customer
oroduction reliability and

reduces cost

Joe Gu, Production Manager of Slide Gate Refractories and Purge

Plugs, North Asia

The Challenge

The Costrip® processis a recent
technology developed to directly cast
steelin o thinstrip. This enables the
production of steel coils with less
energy consumption and a reduced
production cost compared with the
conventional process which requires
hot relling after castingto reduce
slab thickness.

Forthis technelogy, Vesuvius has
developed specifictechnology for
core refractory materials and designs,
aswellas associated know-how on
operational best practices from our
experience at sites running this
rechnologyin NAFTA. Recently,
Castrip® machines were installed

at a Chinese steel producer, who
requiredlocal refractory sourcing.

Ouvr Solution

A Transfer of Technology team was
formed inside Vesuvius before the
first Castrip® machine commenced
production in China. Jloe Gu was
oppointed asthe Chinese team leader
for this project, which drew experts
from the product fines of Advanced
Refractories, VISO and Systems, the

design and manufacturing teams, and

thelocal sales team. He and hisfeam
identified o solid benchmark based
on Vesuvius experience in NAFTA,

visiting Vesuvius R&D sites and
manufacturing plants, and also steef
producers using the technology.

Once sufficient information had been
gathered, the Chinese teams were
trained on how to support the new
Chinese customers, covering refractory
design and manufacturing, and on-site
operational support

The Benefits

With local production and support
capabilities, we secured animportant
contract, offering the first Chinese user
ofthe Castrip® process the shortest
delivery time at the best price, while
maintaining the original preduct
guality developedin NAFTA. The
Chinese and NAFTAteams continue
to share the expertise gained on this
process to ollow for a confinuous
improvement of the refractory parts.
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Operating Review
Advanced Refractories

“Our outperformance of

steel production volume growth
was supported by increased
customer interestin our
value-creating solutions”

Tanmay Ganguly President, Advanced Refractories

Advanced Refractories revenue £m

£4990m

Advanced Refractories produces
spedialised refractory materials

for lining steelmaking vessels such
as blast furnaces, ladles and
tundishes, which are subjectto
extreme temperatures, corrosion
and abrasion. These materials are
in the form of powder mixes, which
are spray-cpplied or cast ontothe
vessel to be lined 'monclithics’) and
refractory shapes {e.g. bricks, pads
and dems). Vesuvius is one of the
world's largest manufacturers of
monolithic refractory linings.
Advanced Refractories delivers
installation technologies, products
adapted to it customers' specific
processes and plants, and effective
and efficient logistics services,
These factors are combined with
significant R&D, a deep knowledge
of customers’ processes and project
management capability to deliver
market-leading solutions for

our customers.

Customers of Advanced Refractories
are principally steel producers and
manufacturers of steel production
equipment. Qur products accompany
the steel-making process from the
early steps of the process all the way
downstream to the finishing end in the
rolling mill. This array of heat-intensive
production processes and physical
transformation of the iron ore into
semi-finished products, accounts

for two thirds of the revenue of the
business unit. In addition, Vesuvius'
Advanced Refractories business services
other high-temperature industries such
as primary alurninium, copper, cement,
petrochemicals and energy from waste.
These refractory lining materials are
supplied in the form of powder mixes,
which are spray-applied or cast onto the
vessels to be lined {monolithics’), orin
pre-cast shapes and bricks.

Anintegral part of our success depends
upon the level of cellaboration with our
customers. Our experts' presence at
our custemers’ facilities allows us a
fundamental understanding of their
needs. The level of trust our business
model creates maokes it more resilient to
market cycles enabling us to generate
growth by adding new products and
services throughout the business cycle.

The service life of the products Advanced
Refractories supplies into the steel
making process can vary {some a matter
of hours and others for o period of years)
based uponthe type of refractory

and the level of wear caused by the
demanding environment in which they
are used.

Advanced Refractories key products are:

> Blast furnace casthouse applications
These are special refractories used to
line the blast furmnace and @ network of
runners to transfer molten iron from
torpedo ladles to the melt shop for
further processing into steel

> Blastfurnace tap hole clay Thisis
arefractory mass used toplugthe
tapping hole in a blast furnace.
When molten ircn is ready to be
exfracted from the blast furnace,
a drilling machine perforates a hole
through the solidified clay to start
the tapping process

v

Steel ladle applications These are
refractories (rypically bricks) used to
line a steel vessel which contains the
melten metal and transports it from
the furnace to a casting machine



“Vesuvius has supported and
rewarded my professional
development”

Andy Toner, Director of Marketing and Technology for Ironand Steel, NAFTA

My career at Vesuvius began
in 2008, when Hoined as

a Service Technician,
responsible for the
preparation of tundishes at
Gerdau's steel manufacturing
plant at Midlothian, Texas, in
the United States. As a result
of my work there, | was offered
the opportunity to become the
Application Specialist for
Brick Products, based at our
site at Pittsburgh, Uniied
States, but also working in
steel manufacturing plants
across America. | then moved
ontowork as an Application
Specialist for Ladles, with
afocus on ladle bottoms,
working with customers in
their steel mills to ensure

that they were deriving the
maximum benefit from

our products.

Twa years after that, | was
promoted to Produd
Manager for the Ladle
Program and in 2014, | moved
to become the Marketing
Manager for cur Advanced
Refractory business not only
for ladles, but also for the
basic oxygen furnaces and
electric arc furnaces operated
by our steel manufacturing
customers. In 2014, | became
Regional Manager for the
East Region USA in Steel
Applications and finally in
2017, | was named Director of
Marketing and Technalogy for
Iron and Steel, NAFTA. Inthis
role, | am responsible for the
expansion of our product
portfolio and the technical
product developmentto
support this growth across
the entire NAFTA region.

At Vesuvius | have been
supported, challenged ond
rewarded in the development
of my professicnal and
technical expertise. T have
been given the opportunity to
work in different areas of the
business thereby broadening
my experience and my career
opportunities.
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Advanced Refractories

Intfegrated m
supply, robot

nued

aterial
IC

installation equipment

and laser sca

nning for

Electric Arc Furnace
Mmaintenance

TheChallenge

Vesuvius hos o historically well-
estoblished business in Electric Arc
Furnace maintenance, using enfirely
manual application techniques.
Anongoing diclogue with the custamer
identified some key impravement
opportunities. These improvements
were centred around three main
drivers: (1) the application of the
material; {2) the accurate assessment
of the condition of the active lining

in service; and (3) safety for the
operation and application teams.

Qur Solution

Working with estaklished partner
companies and cress-functional
expertise, the Vesuvius team
developed an aptimised design for
a Robotic Application unit for the
customer's furnoces. These units

were specifically constructed to suit
the individual plant configuration.
Using thelatest [oser scanner devices
from our subsidiary Process Metrix
toidentify the areas of the furnace
lining thot required repair, we
achieved accurate, targeted and
safe material placement.

The Benefits

The ability to safely repair refractory
lining in a hot and difficult environment
was @ key demand. Therobot arm and
laser scanner significantly improve the
safe working conditions for the plant
operations. The integration of the
robot and laser equipment also
enables mere accurate gunning of
refractory materialin the areas where
it is most required. This delivers better
performance andimproved moterial
consumption rates for the customer.

> Steel tundish monolithics These are
powder-mix refractories used to fine
the tundish, which receives molten steel
fromtheladle then acts as a reservoir
to contral the flow of the liquid metal
and feed the continuous casting
machine at the required rate

> Aluminium applications These
products are used for secondary
aluminium production, and are mostly
usedinfurnacelining

v

Cement apglications Monalithic
technology used inthe pre-heater
stage before materials cre transferred
into the rotary kiln during the
continuous calcingtion process for
cement making

2017 Performance

Advanced Refractories reported
revenues of £49%.1min 2017, anincrease
of 25.2% compared to 2016. Onan
underlying basis, the year-on-year
increase was 17.4%. This outperformance
relative to steel volume growth was
supported by increased customer interest
inour value-creating solutions and the
successful launch of new products such
as our Supergard™ Tundish refractory
line, which s a patented fundish lining
product for improving steel quality.

We alse benefited from customers
seeking to diversify their supplier base

in response to recent consolidation.

We achieved aftfractive underlying
revenue growthin each of our key regions
in 2017, with the Americas up 8.6%,
EMEA up 28.4% and Asia-Pacificup
9.4%. The particularly high growth level
in EMEA was due to significant progress
regaining market share in Europe despite
competitive market conditions.

Some of the key raw materials used by
Advanced Refractories experienced
significant price increasesin 2017,
particularly during the second half of
the year. The speed of these increases
was such that there was a time lagin
recovering the increased costs through
the sales price of our finished products,



Precast Monaolithic Steel Ladle Bottom

Manufacturedin Chicago Heights, USA -]

as we were bound by contractual
obligations with some customers.

We have made major progressin
recovering this cost inflation through
higher selling prices. This process of price
adjustment will continue inta 2018, until
realised costincreases have been fully
recoverad. This confirms our ability to
recover raw material cost inflation
through price rises over time.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

The addition of new customersin Europe
inthe melting and refining segment was
asignificant contributor to our growth

in 2017. This was also boosted by a
positive volume growth in the steel
industry in Europe.

An increased focus onvalue-added
solutions In niche segmenis like steel
finishing also allowed us to achieve

good momentum during the period.

We continuously review and seek to
imprave our manufacturing efficiency,
with targeted capital investment
delivering significant benefits in process
flow, inventory management and labour
ond energy efficiency. In Brazil, we
rationalised our manufacturing footprint
and maximised capacity utilisation by
relocating our Brazilian manufacturing
facilities to Rio de Janeiro from Sao Paulo
in 2017,

We also commenced o cost efficiency
study in Europe Yo review our
manufacturing footprint as part of our
wider focus on cost efficiency. We are
initiating a similar exercise in 2018 at
our facilities in the NAFTA region.

Qur business modelis underpinned by
our focus on value-creating solutions and
maintaining tachnological leadership
frominvestment in R&D. We improved
our R&D footprintin 2017 with the
inauguration of our newest R&D facility
in Visakhapatnam, India. The addition
of this state-of-the- art facility will allow
us to complement our existing rechnical
capabilities and tackle specific problems
inthelocal market. Curinvestment in this
new facility is proof of our commitment
to staying at the forefront of new
technology. Qur existing R&D centres
are well positionad to support our
existing markets whilst this new facility

is the next building block to suppert our
future growth in developing markets.

Looking Ahead

As 70% of Advanced Refractories’
revenue comes fromthe steel making
industry, steel production is a key driver
forthe business. In mature economies,
it is our expectation that thesa regions
will not exhibit material growthinthe
medium/ long term, given that the nature
of econemic growth requires less steel
thanin the past. However, as growth

in emerging markets moves forward
ond our business in mature markets
continues to evolve, we are constantly
developing our resource base to align
with activity fevels.

In the developed markets of Europe and
Narth America, we are experiencing

a greater demand for higher quality
refractories. In response to recent
consolidation, we are also seeing
increased interest in certain segments,
such as bricks, as customersin these
regions seek to diversify their supplier
base as well as market evolution towards
other technolegies like monolithic
refractories. We expectthis to continue
going forward.

Improving the profitability of Advanced
Refractoriesis akey area of focus.
Market share, whilstimportant, is not

the main driver of our strategy as there

is significant fragmentatien both on a
global and regional basis in our area of
the refractory supply business. Achieving
consolidation ot the expense of margins
wilt not meet our goals for value creation.
Inthe developing markets of India, China
and Brazil, our focusis ta capture or
exceed the growth rate of the industry.

Quriong-standing presence and local
manufacturing capabilities position us
welltotake advantage of future growth
opportunities in India. Solidifying our
presence with the installation of our
newest R&D fadility in Indiais o strong
step forward. Asthe country continues
demanding more technology with the
evolution of the market, we are well
positioned to maintain our leadership
position in the segments we currently
operate in, whilst af the same time,
lock at new avenues for growth.

Tanmay Ganguly
President, Advanced Refractories
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Operating Review

Digital Services

Digital Services revenue £m

£43.7m

Digital Services offers digitalised
solutions to our customers to make
their underlying processes more
efficient and reliable. Digital
Services complements existing
product lines by providing new
services 1o our existing customers.
Digital Services focuses on the
capture and interpretation

of key manufacturing datg,
complementing Vesuvius' strong
presence and expertise in molten
metal engineering to create
newfechnologies and integrate
them into expert process
maonagement systems.

“We are creating new
offeringsto participate
inthe digitalisation of our
customers’ processes”

Alexander Lavgier-Werth President, Digital 5ervices

There are two key elements of Vesuvius'
Technical Services strategy: firstly, the
Digital Services business unit, which
focuses anincubating cur data capture
technologies, and, secondly, the other
business units which play a critical role in
infegrating these products into our
broader consumables offering as well as
ensuring customer access. Inthis way, our
Technical Services strateqy is embedded
in the activities of both our Steel and
Foundry divisions which can work both
with and independently of our Digital
Services business.

Our digital services products assist our
customers to meet the increasing end
product consistency and quality
requirements - enabling them te capture
and analyse large quantities of
production data and harness themto
deliver reliable and auditable process
and product improvements.

Key Products

Our business focuses on providing
solutions that enhance the control and
monitoring of our customers’ production
processes. During 2017, the business unit
comprised four key productlines:

> Disposable sensors and probes These
measure a variety of liquid metal
characteristics, which are mastly
used in the primary and secondary
steel-making stages.Current solutions
include temperature, oxygen,
hydrogen, iron oxide and aluminium
measurements as well as metal
saompling at all production stages
of steelmaoking and casting

> Laser technology Technology used for
measuring the wear of refractory
materials in furnaces and ladles.
Thisis animportant area of focus as
the market moves towards the use of
ladle fleets

v

Continuous temperafure measurement
This provides real-time continuaus
temperature data inthe tundish.

This allows customers 1o better
understand ternperature correlations
with steel guality, reduce energy
costs and optimise caster speed.
Current solutions include Accuoptix ™,
Accucone ™ and the Accumetrix®
continuous temperature
measurement systems

> Mould levei sensors and control
systerns These are critical to ensure
the stable, controlled flow of metal
during the casting process and have
asignificontimpact on slab quality.
In addition, mould audit services,
using our unique XMAT™ device, in
combination with computerised
flow modelling, provide our Steel
custamers with an ‘expert eye’inside
the mould, allowing them to gain an
intimate understanding of liquid
behaviour as steel is cast

By using each of these technologies,
customers can focus on critical
parameters within their processes,
enabling themto refine their production
methods to improve quality, lower
praduction costs and maximise
efficiency. The information derived from
these measurements can beincluded as
a consulting service and used as support
forimprovernentsinrefractory solutions.



Shaping of a thermocouple quartz tube o

2017 Performance

Digital Services generated revenues

of £43.7m in 2017, anincrease of

18.4% year-on-year on a reported basis,
On an underlying basis, revenues
increased 8.9%. Thisreflected market
share gains in North America and

India, and the significant success we
experienced in South Americaas a
result of increased penetration of our
sensors and probes business.

In our Process Metrix lasers business, we
had a record year of sales with shipments
up over 50% versus 2016, Avemis, our
mould level sensors and continuous
femperature measurermeant products,
also had a strong year with revenues

up ¢.30%.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

In December 2017, we finalised a
strategic investmentin Sapotech Oy, o
Finnish technology company developing
optical defect detection services inthe
steel continuous casting process. This
investment will be managed by the Flow
Control business unit.

We continued toinfegrate the Digital
Services companies, ECIL Met Tec and
Sidermes into the existing Group sales
networks. This enabled the businessesto
access the wider footprint of the Vesuvius
customer base, As aresult, we made
significant product performance
improvements in key lines such as probes
for measuring hydrogen and oxygen.

We also initiated restructuring actions
to optimise our cost base and
manufacturing footprint, andto
reduce operating costs.

We introduced a number of new features
inlaser technology in 2017 through
completely revamped software ond the
Two Colour Pyrometer, which combines
dimensional measurements with our
most accurate surface temperature
measurementsto dote.

Our focus onincreasing sales in the
continuous temperature measurement
space began to drive sales volumes and
profits in this orea and we expect thisto
confinue inthe years ahead.

Looking ahead

The development of a digital of fering

for our custemers, complementary to

our consumables offering, remains a
fundomental priority of our Group
stroteqy. To ensure that we continue to
maximise the opportunities toleverage
our existing customer relationships to
expand this area of business, the

ongoing support of our Flow Controf

and Advanced Refractories business
units is critical. Flow Control's involverment
is focused on developing value-added
services around the fundish and the
mould inthe continuous casting part of
the steel process. SERT, Avemis and the
new investment in Sapotech Oy are key to
these efforts. For Advanced Refractories,
laser tachnotogy business Process Metrix
has a key role fo play in the development
of its technical services of fering.

Going forward we are optimising our
manufacturing footprint for sensars and
probes with the closure of asite in France
and in Germany. To reduce operating
costs further, we have initicted an
investment programme fo automate

the manufacturing process.

We will continue to review acguisition
opportunities for additional technological
solutions to complement our existing
customer offerings, focused on data
gathering and information analysis to
provide customers with the information

they nead to deliver processimprovements.

The amount of data generated by
sensors is growing exponentially, so allied
with this approach, we intend to focus on
salutions for converting this datainto
valuable decision support information,
maxirmising the value our various sensor
rechnologies bring to customers.

Alexander Lougier-Werth
President, Digital Services
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Operating Review
Foundry

"Our growthin 2017 was achieved
through developing our business
in China, gains in our established

markets and new product

launches”

Glenn Cowie President, Foundry

Foundry revenue £m

£535.2m

Vesuvius' Foundry Division, trading
as Foseco, is a world leader inthe
supply of consumable products,
solutions and associated services
related to the foundry industry. The
foundry processis highly sequential
andis critically dependenton
consistency of product quality
and productivity opfimisation.
The Foundry Division's products,
solutions and use of advanced
computer simulation techniques
allow foundries to reduce defects
and hence reduce labour intensive
fettling and machining, minimise
metal usage requirements,
influence the metal solidification
process and automate moulding
and casting, thus reducing cost,
energy usage and mould size.

The conditioning of molten metal,
the noture of the mould used and,
especially, the design of the way
metal flows intothe mould are
key parametersina foundry,
determining both the quality of
the finished castings and the
labour, energy and metal usage
efficiency of the foundry.
Vesuvius products and
associated services to foundries
improve these parameters.

The Foundry Division supplies ceramic
consumables, such as filters and feeding
systems, and chemical cootings and
binders to foundries which use these
products inthe production of metal
castings. Working olongside customers
at their sites, our engineers provide
on-site technical expertise in addition to
simulation software to develop the best
individualised sclutions. Each of cur
products typically represents a small
element of the averall cost of the foundry
processes but contributes significantly to
product quality and yield.

We support our customer offering with
the 'Foseco University’, anenlinelibrary
of expertise in foundry practice which
demonstrates our expertise and provides
technical support fo our engineers and
customers acrossthe globe.

Key Products
Foseco's key products are:

> Binders These are used to prepare the
sand moulds and cores, the quality of
which improves the precision and
surface finish of the final casting

> Coatings These are designed to
protect both sand and permanent
moulds from the effects of being filled
with liquid metal. This is especially
important on cores, where liquid metaol
may cover up to three sides of the sand

v

v

Filtration Our filtration products
remove impurities from the liquid metal
before it enters the mould and reduce
turbulence during pouring

Feeding Systems Our specifically-
shaped insulating and exothermic
feeding systems allow for the efficient
supply of molten metal to key areas
of complex or large castings, and
prevent liquid shrinkage defectsinthe
finished casting, improving yields and
productivity by reducing the amount
of molten metal required per casting.
Our exothermic feeding aids also
provide a secondary heat source
which can also control metal cooling,
minimising the adverse effects of
shrinkage during solidification

Crucibles These are used in awide
range of melting and holding
applications for non-ferrous alloys,
particularly aluminium, copper and
zinc. Each of these applications
requires o crucible with specific
properties to maximise productivity
and minimise energy casts

Other products These include
innoculants used for ferrous and
non-ferrous castings; flux degassing
equipment for removing unwanted gas
in liquid aluminium; and refractory
marterials used for the transportation
of liquid metal



Netherlands

production costs.

2017 Performance

There was positive momentumin the
majority of Foundry end markets
during 2017, with particular strength in
heavy trucks and arecoveryin mining
equipment as well as construction and
agricultural equipment after several
years of weakness.

Revenue in the Foundry Division
increased 16.5%to £535.2min 2017 ona
reported basis, whilst underlying revenue
increased by 9.3%. Trading profit
improved by 12.0% on anunderlying
basis. Our 2017 performance benefited
materially from our commitment to
technological leadership through
investrent in R&D, which resulted in

13 new product launches during the year,
the highest onrecord. These mew product
launches supported double-digit revenue
growth across Foundry's highest margin
product lines - feeding systems, filters
and coatings. Trading profit also
benefited from the ongoing organisational
restructuring in North America, which
commencedin 20716 and is focused on
developing @ flatter, leaner structure.

In the Americas, underlying revenue
increased 11.2% despite wecknessin
the light vehicle ond rail sectors in North
America andthe closure of a number
of customer plants in the steel foundry
sector. This was offset by growthin
heavy trucks as well asincreases iniron
casting output related to construction
and agricultural equipment. We were
successful in gaining marketshareasa
result of new product intraductions and
we experienced significant success in

Our R&Dfacility in Enschede,

Foseco offers awide range of foundry
products and services tomeet the
requirements of iron, steel and non ferrous
foundries to help them to reduce defects,
improve casting quality and optimise

Brazil growing our feeding systems,
filters and non-ferrous metal treatment
revenues.

Underlying revenue in EMEA increased
8.8% year-on-year as aresult of growth
across the majority of foundry end
markets with particular strengthin
heavy frucks as well as high growthin
the non-ferrcus market. We were also
successful in gaining market share as

a result of new product introductions.

In Asia-Pacific, underlying revenue
increased by 8.8%, with salesincreasing
in all major markets. Our revenues in
China were up c13%, due tobooming
demand in heavy truck production
aswell as ourtangible progress in
developing a strong local sales force
and marketing organisation. In India,
our revenues were up ¢.5%, benefiting
from growth in light vehicle production
as well as strength in construction and
agricultural equipment, and mining
equipment. Qur revenue growth in India
could potentially have been higher,

haod it not been for high raw material
costsand supply issues as well as an
increased focus by Foseco on custormer
payment ferms.

Strategic Highlights from the Year

The organisational restructuring in North
Armerica, which commenced in 2016,
conmtinued through the year with afocus
on developing a flatter, feaner structure.
We also focused onimproved succession
planning with several key new employees
joining during the year. Each of these
initiatives saw a focus onimproving

organisational culture and accountability,
which has allowed us o move decision-
making closer fo the customer and
improve our speed of doing business.
We continued our efforts to rationalise
our manufacturing footprint and
maximise capacity utilisation with the
closure of the Cleveland filter plant and
Conneaut shank production. We also
continued to focus on the implementation
of Lean principles and improvement
inour support and planning systems

for operations.

In addition, we have initiated a cost
efficiency study ot our facilities in Borken
and Grossalmerode in Germany as part
of our wider focus on cost efficiency.

Theinvestmentin our world-class R&D
facility in Enschede, The Nethertands,
confinues to generate new products. In
2017, New Product sales as a percentage
of Foundry sales reached 10%.

To drive penetration into Japanese
foundries in ASEAN, we appointed

a Japanese business development
manager in Thailand and clso refocused
our efforts on our business in Vietnam.

A newfilter production line was lounched
in India and is expected to be completed
by Q3 2018. The availability of a local
filter saurce willimprove customer
service levels and support increased
market panefration.

In Ching, the focus remains on further
developing the local sales and marketing
organisation and growing market share
in our major product segments, mainly
coatings, filters and feeding systems.
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Operating Review continued

Foundry

Looking Ahead

The potential revenue per customer
and per tonne of casfings produced s
strongly influenced by the technical
sophistication of the customer, the
end-market for the casting, and the
processes used in its production. These
factors tend to correlate with the level of
industrial development within a given
market. Therefore, we see significant
growth potential in markets where
industrial development continuesto
gather momentum, particularly certain
partsof Eastern Eurcpe and Asia.

To position Foseco to benefit from this
trend we are expanding our network of
technical sales staff and application
engineers within developing markets,
ensuring that customers there have
local access o the same high levels

of expertise and technical supportin

all markets.

In Europe, we expect modest growth in
the Foundry market for the next few
years, with an improving outlook for
growthinthe steel foundry segment
mainly due to growth in the construction
and mining industries. Consolidation of
the Foundry industry continues, reducing
the gap between capacity onuller und
real demand. We anticipate that plant
closures and mergers and acquisitions
will continue in the industry, as will the
trend to transfer production from
western countries to Eastern Europe
and Turkey. Cheaper labour and energy
costs, together with the avaitability of
technical skills, remain key for the future
development of the industrial footprint
in these developing markets. Inthe
automotive industry, the trend o
develop lighter vehicles is pushing
further growth of aluminium castings,
increasing volurnes in the non-ferrous
foundry segment.

The foundry market in Mexico continues
to see rapid growth, with foreign
investment from Asig, Eurcpe, and the
USin new foundry facilities and the
ongoing expansion of existing facilities.
We are positioning ourselves to

benefit from this growth with o new
manufacturing site in Monterrey. The
market recovery in mining, agriculture
and construction that startedin 2017 is
expected to accelerate in 2018 for both
NAFTA end South America.

Further growth is also anticipated in Indic
and South East Asia, with increasing
quality requirements expected to drive
increased penetration of Foseco's
feeding systems, filtration, coatings,

and non-ferrous product lines.

Glenn Cowie
President, Foundry

Consistent application of coatings
through automated density control

The Challenge

When manufacturing a casting,
applying the correct thickness of
mould ceating is critical in providing a
protective barrier between the liquid
metal and the core or mould surface.
Achallenge for all foundries is to ansure
that coating 1s applied correctly. Ina
recent review we identified one major
problem - the coating is often diluted
manually and its density is checked
only pericdically during a shift.
Inevitably, this can lead to variations
in performance, as coating thatistoo
thick can compromise dimensional
accuracy and gas permeability and
coohng thatis too thin can fail to
prevent steel penetration into the
mould sand and can resultin surface
defects on the casting

Our Solution

The development team investigated
potential salutions, but realised that
available technology would either
adversely affact the mixing of the
coating or used delicate pipes and
pumps that were impractical requiring
extra clecning and maintenance

{and therefore potential preduction
downtime). Working with athird-party
engineering unit we developed a new
design that did not impact the mixing
process and provides very accurate
continuous density and level
measurement with no moving parts.

The Benefits

The Intelligent Coating Unit {|CU) helps
our customers achieve better and mare
consistent casting results, by ensuring
that atall points inthe preduction cycle,

coating products are diluted to their
optimum application density ona
continuous besis. This significantly
reduces the risk of defectsin1he
finished casting, reduces scrapped
casting and lowers cleaning costs.
The ICU also continuously records the
appiication density data providing
an audit trail for use in process
optimisation and quality reviews.



“Vesuvius has invested in my future”

Kerstin Berndt, Product Manager, Germany

Istarted working in the Foundry
Division of Vesuvius GmbH in
20086, following an apprenticeship
as a chemical-technical assistant.
| spent my first two and a half
yearsworking in the SGI
Orguanisation, covering
interncticnol projects, Including
the development of data for the
Coveral ® MTS 1582, which is now
aleading product in the field of
Non-Ferrous Metal Treatment.

{was then moved to the R&D
department, during which time
lobtained two degrees:as a
state-certified technician and

as atraining supervisor through
the German Chamber of Industry
and Commerce.

Since 2015, | have worked asa
Local Preduct Manager for
non-ferrous metal freatment
and am the customer contact for
our Foundry Dhvision’s chemical
production lines in Germany,
Austriq, Switzerland and the
Netherlands.

My time at Vesuvius has enabled
me te gainimportant academic
and professional qualifications,
whilst at the same time receiving
critical on-the-job technical
experience. Whilst doing this,
Ihave developed a considerable
international network, working
on adaily basis with Vesuvius
colleagues in different countries.

O See more about Vesuvius careers
in People and Community on
pages67-73
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Board of Directors

John McBDonough CBE Chairman
Appainted 31 October 2072

Career experience: Johnwas appointed as a Director and Chairman
of the Company on 31 October 2012, John was group Chief Executive
Officer of Carillion pic, the support services and construction firm,

for 11 years untilhe retired in 2011, Priorto joining Carillion he spent
nine years in the automotive systerns division at Johnson Controls

Inc., in‘\ﬂﬂ“y inthe UK, before moving to become Vice President of the
division’s European operations and ultimately moving to Singapore

to develop the business in Asia-Pacific. He returned o the UK as Vice
President of the integrated facilities management division for EMEA.
He served as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of Tomkins
ple from 2007 to 2010, John has a strong engineering background and
considerableinternational commercial and listed company experience,
which enable him ably to lecd the Vesuvius Board. John was awarded
aCBEin 2011 for servicesto industry and is a British citizen.

Otherappointments: Johnis Chairman of The Vitec Group ple. He is
also Chairman of Carnerstone Property Assets Limited and Sunbird
Business Services Limited, and a Trustee of Team Rubicon UK.

Patrick André Chief Executive
Appointed: 1 September 2017

Career experience: Patrick was appointed as a Director and Chief
Executive of the Company on 1 September 2017 having joined the
Group as President of the Steel Flow Control business unitin February
2016. Patrick has had along global career inthe steel industry and, prior
ta |eining the Group, served with Lhoist company, the world leader in
lime production, where he held the positions of Executive Vice President
Strategic Growth, CEQ Eurape and CEQ for Asia, (1S and Africa Prior
ta this he worked at ERAMET group, a global manufacturer of nickel
and special clloys, where he was CEQ of the Nickel division then CEO

of the Manganese division. Patrick showed significant drive and energy
in strengthening the Flow Control business and he brings to the Board
this commitment, together with his industry experience, strategic vision,
constant customer focus and proven record of delivery that will enable
him talead the Group in the next stages of its development, Patrickisa
French citizen.

Q00
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Hock Goh Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 2 April 2015

Career experience: Hock wos appeinted as a Director of the Company
on 2 April 2015. Hock has more than 30 years' experience in the oil and
gasindustry, having spent 25 years with Schlumberger, the leading
global oilfield services provider. His roles included President of Network
and Infrastructure Selutions in Loendan, President of Asic Pacfic, and
Vice President and General Manager of China, From 2005 to 2012,
Hock was a Partrner of Baird Capital Partriers Asia, the private equity
arm of the US investment bank Robert W Baird & Co. Based in Ching,
he focused on the industrial, business services and heolthcare sectors.
Hock strengthens the Board through his extensive experience of the
global services industry and his understanding of Asian markets.

Hock is a Singaporean citizen.

Otherappointments: Hock is Chairman of MEC Resources Ltd
and Advent Energy Ltd, andis a Non-executive Directar of AB SKF,
Sontos Ltd, Harbour Energy Ltd and Stora Enso Oyj.

Changesto the Board during the year

Jane Hinkley Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 December 2012

Career experience: Jane was appointed as a Directer of the Company
on 3 December 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
in June 2013. Jane spent a large part of her executive career working at
Gatoos-Larsen Shipping Corparation, the liquefied natural gas shipping
specialistwhich was listed on both the London Stock Exchange and
NASDAQ. She served as Chief Financiol Officer from 1988 t¢ 1992,
and as Managing Director until 1997. In 1998, Jane wes oppointed
Managing Director of Navien Shipping AS, a company majority owned
by Statoll, the Norwegian mullinaticnal ofl and gas company, @ pesition
she held until 2007, She previously wos ¢ Non-executive Director

of Revus Energy ASA, a Narwegian oil exploration and preduction
company. Janeis a Chartered Accountant and hos strong experience
goined in the shipping industry of working with highly international
teams. Janeis a British citizen.

Other appointments: Janeis Chairman of Teekay GP LLC and @
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of Premier Qil ple.

As disc|osed above, Holly Koeppel and Potrick André were appeinted tathe Board on 3 April 2017 and 1 September 2017, respectively.

Frangois Wanecq retired from the Board on 31 August 2017,
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Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
Appointed: 1 November 2075

Career experience: Guy was appointad as a Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on T November 2015, Prior ta jaining
the Group, from January 2011 to October 2015, he served as Chief
Financial Officer of Tarmac and latterty Lafarge Tarmac, the British
building materials company. Guy held a number of senior finoncicl

and business development positions at Angle American ple from 1997
to 2010, including the position of CFO of Scaw Metals Group, the South
African steel products manufacturer. Guy is qualified with the Sauth
African Institute of Chartered Accountants and brings tothe Board a
wealth of financial and aperational insight gained through his extensive
international experience in the mining and industrial sectors. Guyisa
British and South African citizen.

Christer Gardell Non-executive Director
Appointed: 31 October 2012

Career experience: Christer was appointed os a Director of the
Company on 31 October 2012, having previously joined the board of
Cackson Group plcin June 2012. Christer co-founded Cewvian Capitalin
2002, and serves as Managing Partner. Cevion Capital is a shareholder
ofthe Company and, at 28 February 2018, held 21.11% of Vesuvius’
issued ordinary share capital. From 1996 ta 2007, Christer wosthe
Chief Executive Officer of AB Custos, the Swedish investment cormpany.
Priortajoining AB Custos he had been a partner of Nordic Copital and
McKinsey & Company. He served as a Non-executive Director of AB
Lindex until December 2007 and of Tieto Corporation untit March 2012,
Christer brings a wealth of commercial acumen to the Board thraugh his
extensive business management experience and the ability to focus and
drive change. Christer is a Swedish citizen.

Other appointments: Christer is Managing Partner of Cevian Capital,
and Vice Chairman of the global Finnish technology and services
company Metso Corporation

2000
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Douglas Hurt Senior Independent Director
Appointed: 2 April 2015

Career experience: Douglas was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 2 April 2015, and as Senior Independent Director ond
Cheirman of the Audit Committee at the close of the 2015 Annual
General Meeting. Douglas has significant financial experience,
having served cs Finance Director of IMI ple, the global engineering
group, from 2006 ta 2015. Prior o this, he held a number of senior
finance and general managerment positions ot GlaxoSmirhKline ple,
which he joined in 1983, previcusly having worked at Price Waterhouse.
His career has included several years warking inthe US and significant
experience in European businesses as Chief Financial Officerand as
Operctional Managing Director. Douglos is a Chartered Accountant
and a highly knowledgeable corporate and operational finance
professional bringing significant US and Eurapean experience as

well as general management and financial leadership experience.
Douglas s a British citizen.

Other appointments: Douglasis Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Tate & Lyle ple, Senior Independent
Director and Chairman of the Audit Cormmittee of Countryside Properties
PLC, and a Nan-executive Director of the British Standards Institution.

Holly Koeppel Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 April 2017

Career experience: Holly was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 3 April 2017 Holly has more than 35 years' global industry and
financial experience, having spent the early part of her career at
Columbia Gas Distribution Company and Consolidoted Natural Gas
Corporation in avariety of management roles which included four years
based in Australia. She joined the American Electric Power Company,
Inc.in 2000 and in 2006 was appointed Chief Financial Officer. In 2010,
Holly joined Citi Infrastructure Investars as Co-Head, a $3.4bn fund

set up to capitalise on the growing need for infrastructure around the
world. In 2015, the fund was renamed Gateway and transitioned to
Corsair Infrastructure Managemeant, LP (CIM), part of Corsair Capital.
Holly retired as Head of CiM in January 2017 and continued asa
Senior Advisor and a Non-executive Director on CiM's four portfolio
companies until June 2017, From 2012 16 2015, Holly was a Director of
Integrys Energy Group, Inc., and a Director of Reynalds American Inc.
from 200810 2017 Holly brings extensive global industry, financial and
rmanagemaent experience tothe Board. Holly is an American citizen.

Otherappointments: Holly currently serves asa Non-executive Director
of The AES Carporatian and British American Tabaccop.l.c.
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1 Henry Knowles General Counsel

Group
- & Company Secrefar
EXECUTIVe Appoinpred;eptembei 2013

4 years with Group

Com m ITTee Based inLondon, UK and 15 ¢ British citizen

Glenn Cowie President, Foundry
Appointed November 2014
3&vyearswith Group

Based in Cleveland, US and 1sa South
African ond British citizen

)

w

Tanmay Ganguly President,
Advanced Refractories

Appointed November 2014

10 years with Group

Based in Barlbareugh, VK andisan
Indian citizen

4 Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
Appointed Novemnber 2015
2 years with Group
Based in London, UK and is a South African
and British citizen

Roel van der Sluis President, Flow Control
Appointed Ccrober 2017

27 years with Group

Basedin Ghlin, Belgiumandisa

Dutch citizen

v
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Patrick Bikard President, Operations

Appointed February 2014

% years with Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgium ondisa
French citizen

Alexander Laugier-Werth President,
Digital Services

Appointed July 2016

9 years with Group

Based in Ghiirn, Belgium ondis a French
and US citizen

Alan Charnock Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer

Appointed April 2015

33 yearswithGroup

Bosed in Ghlin, Belgium and is a British citizen

5 Patrick André Chief Executive

Appointed September 2017
2yearswith Group
Based in London, LUK andis o French citizen

10 Ryan van der Aa Chief Human
Resaurces Officer

Appointed May 2013

18 years with Group
Based in London, UK and is @ Dutch citizen

The date appointed isthe date the
individual was appointed to their
current role.
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Our Principles

Working together as a community with
shared values makes Vesuvius stronger.

Vesuvius is o geographically and

. . Qur Valves
culturally diverse group, employing
more than 11,000 people in 37 countries, Creativity Integrity
This geographical diversity places us Our commitment to tachnelogy and quality is the Atthe heart of our promise lies the trustworthiness
close to our customers across the globe, basis for our competitive advantage. Creativity of all Vesuvius employees in their acts and words.
but alsc highlights the importance of cllows us to develop innovative products ond Integrity, honesty and transparency are essential
A - . solutions and the continuous improvements inallour exchanges.
maintaining and applying strong and that generate value through performance
consistent ethical values in our worldwide enhancement. Employees are actively Embracing Diversity

encouraged to be innovative and to register their

ideos in our newly developed [deation database. Vesuviusis aglobal company built upen

ctrue respect for local customs and experience.
We recognise and embrace the patential that

approach to business. Our employees’
engagement with our values and culture

is vn.mlfo Our success c’md the sustainable Coopermlqn _ comes from the coexistence of so many different
delivery of the Group's strategy. Encouraging internal ond external cooperation cultures and of diversity in its broadest sense.
enables us to create vmque solutions with our
. partners. Through cooperation, each Vesuvius Excellence
Vesuvius' Values employee s committed to the success of their

This new value, introduced in 2017, represents

commumity of colleagues and customers and h - -
The behaviours we champicon in our vty gv ouraim to deliver optimised performonce to our
P that of the wider Group. customers and stakeholders, eliminating waste
employees are represented by the six ranof i > g
. . Reliabilit andstriving for continuous improvement.
Vesuvius Values. They are an expression eliability Excellence 15 our attitude as we engage with our
of the common culture of the GI’OUp, Our solutions involve us in critical aspects of collecgues, our customers and our communities.

" . 4 + I our customers’ manufacturing processes.
premoting ourimage 1o e)_< er.'no Our commitment to deliver consistent products
sta keholders, and underpmnlng the and services gives them the level of confidence

commercial promise we provide to our they require.
customners. The Values are displayed in
all our facilities and in Vesuvius offices

- Vesuvius’ Framework for Business Integrity
ot customer sites.

Vesuvius has established a framework for explaining and delivering the culture

During 207/, we continued to engage and principles we consider ta be fundamental to our sustained success:

our employees onthe impertance of the

Vesuvius Values through the addition of a 1 9 3 ] 5
new value of '‘Excellence’. Our approach
to our customers and business operations Conduct Procedures and Evaluation
has always been to strive for Excellence,
and the addition of this sixth Value
reinforces our objective to integrate
continuous improvement into our
business approach.

Vesuvius' Values ) Code of Policies and Meanitoring

Our Values are celebrated annually
through the Group's Living the Values
Awards (LTVA). In 2017, we came
together 1o celebrate the outstanding
individual contributions fo the
implementation of Vesuvius Values
by 74 employees from 11 countries
wha were nominated by their peers.

O See more about the Living the Values
Awards in cur People and Community
sectiononp6/-73



Evaristo Beltran Saenz
Process Engineer, Slide Gate, Monterrey )

Code of Conduct principles

Health, safety and the environment

Trading, customers, products
and services

Anti-bribery and corruption

Employees and human rights

Disclosure and investors

Government, scciety and local
communities

Conflicts of interest

Competitors

The Code of Conduct is available in
2% languoges af www.vesuvius.com

Code of Conduct

Cur Code of Cenduct sets out the
standards of conduct expected, without
exception, of everyone who works

for Vesuvius in any of its worldwide
operations. The Code emphasises cur
commitmentto ethics and compliance
with the low, and covers every aspect

of our approach to business, from the
way that we engage with customers,
employees, the markets, and each of
our other stakehoiders, to the safety

of our employees and workplaces.
Everyone within Vesuvius is individually
accountable for upholding its
requirements. We recognise that lasting
business success is measured notonly in
aurfinancial performance, but in the
wary in which we deal with our customers,
business associates, employees, investors
ond local communities. The Code of
Conduct is published in our 29 major
functional languages.

Policies and Procedures

We continue to enhance the policies that
underpin the principles set cutinthe Code
of Conduct. These assist employeesto
comply with cur ethical standards and the
legalrequirements of the jurisdictions in
which we conduct our business. They also
give practical guidance on howthis canbe
achieved. Amongst these policies are:
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Speak Up

The foundation of our compliance
programme isthe ability to speak up
without fear of retaliation, either to
Vesuvius management orindependent
of them. A third party-operated
confidential Employee Concern Helpline
(Speak Up] is available for employees
wishing to raise concerns anonymously
or in situations where they feel unable

to reportinternally. Thisindependent
helpline provides the ability fo make
reports online through a web portal, by
phone or by voicemail. Ensuring global
accessibility, employees can now speak
with operaters in any of our 29 functional
languages. Noindividualis ever
penalised or disodvantaged for reporting
alegitimate concern in good faith.

Aupqisuodsay 1N I

Reports received via Speak Up are
managed by the General Counsel,
assisted by senior managers from the
Legal Department and HR. Allreports
are investigated following a protocol for
review, action, closure and feedback.
For complexissues, formal investigation
plons are drawn up, and support from
external experts is engaged where
necessary. Feedback is recognised as
animportant element of the Speak Up
process and we aim te provide anupdate
onall reports within 28 days of receipt.
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Our Principles continued

Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Working With Third Parties

Vesuvius engages with various third-
party representatives and intermediaries
which can present anincreased anti-
brivery and corrugtion risk. Cur
procedure onworking with third parties
clearly outlines our zero-tolerance
approachto bribery and provides
practical guidance for our employees in
identifying concerns and howtoreport
them. Vesuvius engages with third-party
soles agents, many of whom operate

in countries where we do not have a
physical presence. Qur employees’
interaction with sales agentsis supported
by an ongoing training programme for
those who have specific responsibility

for these relationships.

DataProtection

Our data protection policy requires a
uniform approach in the handling of
personal data to manage the privacy
obligations of the Group. Everyone has
rightsin respect of how their personal
datais handled. Our policy recognises
that the lawfulend correct treatrment of
personal data is vital to cur continued
successin anincreasingly regulated
global marketplace. During the course of
our activities we may collect, store and
process personal data about our staff,
customers, suppliers and other third
parties. We are committed to treating
this datainan appropriate manner.

Human Rights

The Group human rights policy reflects
the principles contained within the
United Nations Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, the International
Labour Organisation’s Fundamental
Conventions on Labour Standards and
the United Nations Global Compact.
The policy applieste all Group
employees. it sets out the principles for
our actions and behaviour in conducting
our business and provides guidance

to those werking for us on how we
approach humanrightsissues. The
Group commits not to discriminate in
any of our employment practices and
to of fer equal opportunities to all.

The Group respectsthe principles of
freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right to collective
bargaining and opposes the use of,
and will not use, forced, compulsory

or child labour. These principles have
been integrated info the work of our
procurement teams as we assess our
suppliers and their business practices.

Training

During the year we continued fo operate
our training programme on the principles
confained in the Vesuvius Code of
Conduct and associated anti-bribery,
corruption and other compliance policies
and procedures. Training gives our
employees a clearer understanding of
the scope of risks that exist as we conduct
our business, and gives context 1o how
the Group expects each one of usto
respond to those risks. In 2077, our
training processes have developed

to include anintegrated learning
management system which allows us

to deliver Vesuvius-specific e-learning
modules to employees ontopics
relevant to their role through an

online interactive platform.

Training provided during 2017 included:

> E-learning modules for modern
slavery, data protection and trade
sanctions

> Webex and videc conference
workshops on data protection

> Face-to-face training by the Legal
and Compliance team to staff at
several sites covering anti-bribery
and corruption, gifts, hospitality and
entertainment and trade sanctions

Our e-learning plotform supplements
the face-to-face training provided to
employees by the Legal and Compliance
team, enchiing us to reach more
employees, more quickly andin o more
targeted way. in 2018, we will continue

to develop our training processas and
modules available inthe e-learning
plotformto help our staff understand the
Vesuvius policies and procedures relating
to our Code of Conduct and regulatory
compliance requirements.

Monitoring and Evaluation

Alongside our training programme, we
assist employees with the implementation
and interpretation of the Group's policies,
and their application through a process
of monitoring and evaluation. Part of this
process involves performing ongoing and
targeted due diligence to understand

the background to policy design and
application. This forms part of our
compliance framework 1o ensure that our
ethical and legal approach remains fit for
purpose and is understood throughout
the business.



Operations meeting Skowina, Poland @

Speak Up

The Group continues to monitor the
volume, geographic distribution and
range of reports made toits Speak Up
facility to ascertain not only whether
there are significant regional compliance
concerns, but also whether there are
countries where access to this facility

is less welt understood or publicised.

The Audit Committee continuesto
monitor and cversee the Group's
procedures for reporting allegotions of
improper behaviour, and throughout
2017 the Audit Committee received
updates on the volume of reports
received from the confidential Speak

Up Helpline, key themes emerging from
these reports and the results of any
investigations undertaken. In 2017,

we received 76 reports through the
Speak Up facility, @ number of which
related to the same set of facts. Each one
of these was investigated. A substantial
majority of reports received in 2017 were
human resource issues which indicated
no compliance concerns, nor serioys
breaches of the Code of Conduct. In
relation to the repetitive reports, even
though these did not identify compliance
concerns, steps were taken to ensure
that changes were implemented locally,
including in certoin cases entity-wide
management fraining, recommunication
of policies and reinforcement of our
business culture, supported by senior
management oversight. Of the small
number of reports received that
contained allegations in breach of

our Code of Conduct, thorough
investigations were performed and,
where appropriate, disciplinary action
taken, including one termination.

Prevention of Slavery and Human
Trafficking

During 2017 we published our second
transparency statement outlining the
Group's approach to the prevention of
slavery and human trafficking in our
business and supply chain. You can

find a copy of our latest statement on
our home page at www.vesuvius.com.
Since the publication of our first
statement we have conducted a
Group-wide risk assessment as well as
developing cur internal policies and
enhancing our supplier assessment
programme, To ensure effective
communication of our Human Rights
Policy we have provided training to our
key purchasing staff and introduced an
online e-learning module to upgrade the
training given to all supplier-facing staff,
which provides key guidance on the red
flags associated with modern slavery to
assist them in identifying these during
supplier visits and accreditation.

Working with Third Parties

During 2017 the Group continued the
review of our third-party representatives
and infermediaries. Thisincluded
detailed review of our due diligence
activities for active sales agents across
the Group. This process covers
reputation, public information searches,
regulatory searches and ultimate
beneficial ownership, and has been
applied to each one of our active sales
agents. The review of our due diligence
processes will continue to be extended
on a risk-based approach during 2018
and beyond.

Data Protection

In 2017, we spent considerable time
reviewing our approach to data
protection, in anticipation ofthe
implementation of the EU General
Data Protection Regulationin May.
We formally identified a Data
Protection Otficer {DPOY in July 2017
whose role includes setting Group policy,
implementing procedures, monitoring
complionce with dota protection
provisions and champicning Vesuvius'
approach tothe protection of personal
data. Qur review involved Group-wide
duediligenceto clarify the dato we
contral and process, the methods by
which we do this, the security of the
systems that hold our data and the
assignment of responsibilities for
responding to this.

The DPQ s also responsible for raising
awareness of data protection issues
across the Group and training staff
who undertake roles that involve the
processing of dota.

Other Due Diligence

The Group continues to undertake
focused, country- and function-specific
risk assessments, reviewing financial
records and the quality ofimplementation
of our policies and procedures, often
engaging the assistance of external
advisers. The outputs of these
assessments ore used to identify activities
that require further improvement, ensure
that our Group policies and procedures
for the management of anti-bribery and
corruption risk continue to be appropriate
for the business, and ensure that within
our business there is the necessary
awareness and understanding to be
able to manage risks appropriately.
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Health and Safety

Vesuvius remains fundamentally committed to
protecting the health and safety of employees,
contractors, visitors, customers and any other
persons affected by our activities.

Qur approach to health and safety is based on the following beliefs

Working safely
is a condition of

Good health and safety
is good business

Safetyis everybody's
responsibility

Health and safety is one of Vesuvius' core
principles, and our commitment 1o health
and safety is embedded throughout the
organisatien. The Vesuvius ethosisto
identify, eliminate, reduce or control all
workplace risks and an ongoing system
of troining, assessment and improvement
is in place to focus on achieving this.

Safety Leadership

Sofety performance remains the first
itern on the agenda at all our Group
Executive Committee ond management
meetings, and safety performance is
reportedto the Board by the Chief
Executive as a matter of priority at each
Board meeting. Any site expariencing

a serious dangerous occurrence or
medically treated injury is required to
carry out a full 8D investigation and
incorporate the findings into their site
improvement plan. The Group Executive
Committee reviews the more serious
incidents and the responses from the
sites. The Group remains fully committed
to continuing safety improvement with a
Group health andsafety policy stating
aclear goal of:

No lost time injuries
No repeat injuries

No harmto our people or contractors

employment

This goalis pursued through a range of
policies, standards and procedures,
which are reviewed and updated on an
ongoing basis. In 2017, the accident and
incident reporting, personal protective
equipment, road vehicle and machine
safety standards were all reviewed and
updated to maintain their relevance to
the current Vesuvius risk profile.

Heaith and Safety

Health and satety is regarded as a core
management responsibility, with
executives and line managers directly
responsible for health and safety matters
in the operations under their control.

This tone from the top is demonstrared
by the requirement for all senior
managers to perform executive safety
fours, report on their findings to local
operations management and follow

up on improvement requirements.
Management is accountable for health
and safety performance against
objectives and all employees understand
that they have a responsibility to take
care of themselves and others whilst at
work. We expect everyone to participate
positively in the task of preserving
workplace health and safety.

All work-related
injuries and work-
related ill-heaith
are preventable

Every business facility has an appointed
health and safety manager, who works
with management and all employees
to review site health and safety, assess
training needs and develop and
implement site safety improvement
plans. These local health and safety
managers are assisted by a central
team of experts who not only identify
adverse trends andrespond o thern,
butalso enable the sharing of best
practice across Vesuvius.

In 2017, athorough review was
undertaken of the operation of the health
and safety function in Vesuvius. Following
this review, the function was restructured
with the creation of a new paosition of
Group Vice President Quality, Health and
Safety and the restructuring of centrai
functions. The Vice President QHSE will
be responsible for setting the Group's
policies for quality and safery and
controlling their application, with the
business units taking full responsibility for
theirimplementation and accountability
for performance agoinst them. A new
safety auditing team wili be established,
to develop and maintain policies and
standards, improving them in the light

of external and internal changes on a



consistent Group-wide basis. In addition,
this team will systematically audit Group
locations worldwide, including customer
focations, against these policies and
standards, providing recommendations
on improvements and assisting the
locations with their implementation.

Health and Safety Palicy

All employees are expected to adhere
tothe Group's health and safety policy.
A copy of the policy signed by all
members of the Group Executive
Committee is translated into local
languages and displayed prominently
in all locations.

Safety Breakthrough

Safety Breakthrough is Vesuvius' global
initiative to reduce the number of
accidents, fires and lost fime injuries, and
toincrease safety awareness thraugh
greater employee engagement. Our aim
is to raise health and safety performance
to best-in-class levels throughout the
Vesuvius business. Safety Breakthrough
sets a goal of attaining the lowest level

of accidents within our industry sector
with the ultimare goal of reaching zero
accidents throughout Vesuvius, as
identified in cur safety goals. The specific
focus on employees based at customer
locations continues to yield results not
only for the safety of our employees but
also our customers’ employees ~ helping
to support the strong relationships built
between customers and Vesuvius.

Turbo S

The current phase of the Safety Breakthrough
initiotive - Turbo § - builds on the foundation of
Safety Breakthrough and includes astrong
focus onthe stondardisation of oil cur repetitive
activities. Turbo S also integrates good
management practices in the workplace, with a
strong emphasis onthe need toimplement an
organisation which enables everybody to work 1o
the same high standards in safety performance.
As part of the cortinuing Turbo Sinitiative:

> Senior executives regularly lead safety tours
atalllocations

> Severeaccidentsare formally reviewed by the
Group Executive Committee

Training Employees to Work Safely

Turbo S training pulls together all
Vesuvius' good safety management
practices that are aimed at enabling all
Vesuvius employees to work in ¢ safe
environment. Using a frain-the-trainer
approach, Turbo S training sessions are
tailored to the audience and their activities.
For example, there is a special training
course developed for customer locations
that focuses specifically on the risks faced
by our employees at our customers’
premises and how best to manage therm.
Vesuvius conducts Permit to Werk
training in all Group facilities, including
customer locations and extends
recognised best practices throughout the
Group. This ensures that all non-standard
work conducted in our facilities, whether
by Vesuvius employees or contractors,

is the subject of a pre-commencement
risk assessment and a formal permission
to commence activity, setting out the
safety requirements.

Aaron Gonzalez,
Quality Engineer,
Flow Contraol,
Monterrey, Mexico

v

Employees are routinely engaged in safety
audits

> Weinvestsignificantly in safety training for
allemployees, irrespective of their roles and
functions within our business

v

Allemployees areexpected to routinely
raise and implemant safety improvement
oppartunities; we focus on the number of
implemented ideas

v

Sotety standards are continually updated,
transiated and deployed throughout Vesuvius

= Allinjuries and dangerous occurrences are
analysed locally, with o formal presentation of
findings, root causes and improvement actions
cascaded through management.

Vesuvius has developed machinery
safety training with an outside industry
leader, Pilz GmbH & Co, a company
specialising in safe automation
technology. We are now extending
recognised best practices throughout
the Group through a series of machinery
assessments and training prograrnmes.

Working Safely

The executive safety tours carried out by
senior managers provide visible safety
leadership onthe shop floor in Vesuvius'
sites and in customer locations. These,
along with our daily safety audits are
apillar of our Safety Breakthrough
initiative. In 2017, 111 Executive Safety
Tours, of which 12 were in customer
locations, were carried out by the
members of the Executive Committee
and their direct reports across all
territories where Vesuvius operates.
Inour plants, mere than 76% of our
working population performed routine
safety cudits, generating an average
of nine improvement opportunities per
person, resulting in animprovement in
worker safety. The audit programme
involves employees at all levels—from
the Group Executive Committee and
safety specialists through to local site

management, employees and contractors.
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Health and Safety continued

Health and Safety highlights

As partof the customer's Steel Zone Safety
Month (December 2017} at our JSW customer
location in India, thrae of ouremployess recevad
awards from the Customer:
> MrChandrokantfor Best Essay on Steel

Plant Safety

Mr Venu Jayo Prakash for Best Drawing
competition on Steel Plant Safety

Mr Srinath and Vishnu Arat for Hozard
Identification in the werking orea

v

v

Vasuvius Chesterfield in the UK gained national
recagnition for its efforts 1o improve the working
environment by reducing the amount of airborne
dust. The Pilot dust reduction and awareness
training course was awarded a certificate

of achrevement by the Health and Safety
Executive-endorsed awarding body ot the
annual Ceramic Industry H&S Pledge Awards.
Furthermore, the training initiative hos since
been developed inte the Group Global Dust

and Vibration initiative which wos deployed
throughout 2017,

In ArcelorMittal Galati, Vesuvius took on

six fitters from their previous company and
trained them in all Vesuvius policies witha 55
implemented workshop as part of the renewed
contract covering additional activities in the
customer's pfant,

In 2017, Vesuvius Ibérica Refractarios was
awarded with an "honourable mention’ in
the National and International Prevention
Awards as a recognition of thework done in
the prevention of accidents.

Training activities undertaken in 2017 include:

In Polend a Road Safety Champion was
established and a Road Safety training plan
developed. Inaddition, work was undertakenon
machinery safety. Four presses were assessed by
Pilz. They identified safety improvement actions
anda planwas putin place 1o complete these.
One piece of equipment which could not be made
compliant, a friction press, was dismantled.

Inthe Netherlands, Turbo S training was
completed for 24 participants and 10 employees
were trained in machinery safety by Pilz

InGermany, dust contrel, Turbo 5, permit
towork and 55 Lean training were all completed.,

Inthe USA, 11 production employees and
19 NAFTA HSE professionals were trained
anmachinery safety, by Pilz. In addition a Road

OQur Take 2 initiative ensures that
employees think again before
performing any unusual or non-standard
activity. Simply stated, the employees
rake 2 minutes to discuss the task, any
hazards and how to prevent accidents
before any work is started.

For new contracts in customer locations,
Vesuvius uses a formal risk assessment
which aims to identify significant risks

to our employees and contractors.

This enables appropriate control
measures to be agreed and implemented
with the support of our customersin
advance of work commencing.

Safety Champion and a Road Safety Committee
were appointed. The team developed a

road sofety action plan, sofe driving palicy,
traiming for specific categories of drivers and
updeted car pool process. These programmes/
policies were shared and adopted by Canada
and Mexico.

The sofe driving policy was sent to ail drivers, who
signed and returped it to their manager. Monthly
general awareness topics were created and sent
out, and the basic level of traiming was completed
for all categories of drivers. Skid centrol training
was completed for high-risk drivers im Canada
and Mexico. Inaddition, Turbo S, permitto work,
dust and vibration and furfurol training were
undertaken.

Safety Performance in 2017

We continue to work hard to reduce
incident severity and develop robust
policies, standards and practices aimed
atimproving the safety and health of
our peopleinalithat they do and to
develop actionable insight from the
performance indicators. The lost time
injuries frequency chart shows how
injuries have been reduced and how
that reduction has been maintained
through a combination of a behavicur-
based approach to safety and the
implementation of physical safeguards.



In 2018, the business units will continue
1o build on the embedded behaviour-
based safety approach takento date
to drive continual improvement in
safety performance.

Working in Tidy Plants

The continuing use of 55, the workplace
organisation method, throughout

the Group has driven significant
improvements in our workplace
environment. Employees are encouraged
to develop ownership of their working
areas, and take pride in their cleanliness
and organisation, The added support of
Vesuvius Lean specialists has been key
to improving plant safety by removing
hazards for employees and offering

a clear, bright and safe working
environment. Daily 55 gudits led by team
leaders ensure continuous improvernent
of werking conditions and promote a
safer workplace.

Accident and Incident Reporting
and Analysis

Asignificant investment in time and
resources has been made over recent
years to develop robust, comprehensive
and timely reporting of incidents
{including allfires, explosions and any
rnaijor spill or other chemical releases).
Inits internal standards, Vesuvius
confinues to use more stringent
definitions for lost time injuries (LTls}

and ‘severe accidents’ than the definitions
used by local regulatory bodies.

This extends investigation to all medically
treated injuries and serious dangerous
occurrences. Vesuvius has implemented
a fullinvestigation based onthe 8D
Practical Problem Solving (8D} toolto
identify the true root causes to prevent
repeat incidents with a formal
presentation of findings, BD-based

root causes and improvement actions

cascaded through management. As part
of management reperting, the Board
receives a monthly update on alt lost
fime injuries.

Involving Accountable Management for
Safety Performance

Site safety improvement plans are now
in place for all production sites with
deployment being the direct responsibility
of lecal managers. Any site experiencing
o dangerous occurrence or severs injury
is required to investigate using 80 and o
share their incident investigation and
action plans across the Group. In 2017,
there were no severe injuries, but 407
dangerous occurrences. Vesuvius
encourages the reporting of all
dangerous occurrences and injuries

as only through o sound root cause
analysis and preventative action plan
implementation can future occurrences
be prevented.
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Sustainability

Our solutions improve the quality
of our customers’ products

and reduce the environmental
footprint of their processes.

Sustainability Highlights

Vesuvius France installed o water network
separation and rain water collection system
linked to an on-site frrefighting water lagoon,

InKoreg, 4,897 square metres of osbestos
containing roofing was safely replaced with
steel cladding to improve the health, safety
and environmental risk profile of the site.

Process Metrix shipped a record number
of laser systems in 2017 with the new
Hyperien™ software.

Process Metrix also released their new
Two-Color Pyrometer for surface temperature
measurementin conjunchion with limng rhickness
measurement. The systems typically increase
ladle refractory lifetime by 10-30% with a
concormitant reduction inwaste with less brick
consumed over the [ifetime of theladle.

Vesuvius and its Processes

The Board recognises that good
environmental management is aligned
with our focus on cost optimisation and
operational excellence. Whilst Vesuvius'
products do vary significantly inthe
energy intensity of their manufacture, the
majority of our manufacturing processes
are nof energy intensive, nor do they
produce large quentities of waste and
ernissions. Vesuvius tfotal energy costs
are less than 3% of revenue, with only
1.8% of the total energy requirements
across the Group consumed inthe UK.

Total Energy Consumption

Qverall gas use increased by 6.4%

in 2017 and electricity use by 11.9%,
primarily as a result of the increased
preduction of energy-intensive bricks
and of cur South African production of
Slagdel, an energy-intensive product
used in converters. Inthis way, changes
in product mix can have a positive

or negative effect on our energy
performance, such that they can
outweigh ary underlying changes.

The underlying data for 2017 does
indicate improvements in energy
consumption in some areas. This detailed
analysis of normalised data is used by

Vesuvius' senior engineers to drive
improvements across the business.

Environmental Monitoring

Allour factory emissions are proactively
managed in accordance with local
regulations. Regular analysis enables us
1o take aetion to reduce our emissions
where possible and to operate more
efficiently. The Group monitors its energy
consumption, worldwide CO,e emissicns
and usage of water. Vesuvius proactively
seeksto reduce waste in production

and to reuse and to recycle materials
where practical.

In 2017, Vesuvius recorded nine minor
environmental incidents. These included
items such as encroachment of waste
warter from a neighbouring property,
complaints about o factory odour and
contained spillages. Allofthe incidents
were contained via Vesuvius'site
environmental response plans and
reported through the Vesuvius incident
reporting system. Two of these incidents
in China were reported to the local
environmental regulators. No action
was taken by the authorities after
Vesuvius made process changes.

In all cases we complied with our

local reporting requirements.



Greenhouse Gas Reporting

Inline with our total energy consumption,
both total emissions and normalised
emissionsincreased in 2017, driven
predominantly by the issue mentioned
above - the increased production of
Slagdol which generated high precess
CC, emissions, and increase in
production of our brick plants, although
we also undertook a switch from coal to
a cleaner gas fuel during the yearin our
Chinese brick plant. In 2017, Vesuvius also
included the emission from our newly
acquired flux plantin Brazl. If these
products are excluded, then therais an
underlying downward year-on-year
trend in normalised emissions of CO,e

of 7.7% and of normalised energy
consumption of 7.3%.

Inreporting greenhouse gas (GHG')
emissions, we have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition}
methodclogy to identify our GHG
inventory of Scope 1 {direct) and Scope 2
{indirect) CO,e. We reportinkg of CO,
equivalent (CO,e').

The Group alsc meets all of its obligations
inrelation to the Carbon Reduction
Commitment {CRC") Energy Efficiency
Scheme, the Producer Responsibility
Packaging Waste regulations and the
Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme

by which the UK has implemented the
EU Energy Efficiency Directive.

Energy Conservation Plan

The Vesuvius Energy Conservation Plan
was launched in 2017 with the objective
of reducing our normalised energy
consumption by 10% over the following
three years. In June 2015, we reset our
focus and set the objective of a 10%
improvement (using 2074 as our base
year} by 2018. Against that 2014 base,
a 4.2% improvement has been realised
towards this target (moking a 7.1%
improvement since 2010). Managing
our energy intensity not only has an
environmental benefit butis also part
of our long-term strategy to enhance
our cost competitiveness.

Global GHG emissions (kg of CO,e)

2017 2016

Emissions source
Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 396m 340m
Flectricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 120m 98m
Total GHG emissions 516m 438m

+17.9%
Veasuvius’ chosen intensity measurement
Emissions reported above, normalised to pertonne 526.4 511.0
of product output +3.0%

Methodology We have reported to the extert reasonably practicable on alt the emissior sources required
under Part 7 of the Accounting Regulatons which fall within aur consolidated financial statements.

Scope 1 covers emissions from fuels used in our factories and affices.

Scope 2 relates to the indirect emissions resulting from the ganeration of electricity, heat, steam and
hot water we purchase to supply our offices and factaries. We hove used data gathered 1o fulfil our
requirernents under the CRC Energy Efficiency scheme and erissian foctors from UK Government's
and the |[EA GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2016 inthe calculation of ou- GHG.

New Insural® furnace lining
system increases productivity
and casting quality

The Challenge

The need toimprove productivity,
commercial competitiveness and
environmental impactisincreasingly
driving the adaption of energy efficient
furnaces in aluminium foundries.
However, the efficiency of these furnaces
is often undermined by the choice of the
refractory lining.

Our Solution

Foseco has developed a new, multi-part
and highly insulating lining made of Insural
material. The lining is delivered ready to
tnstall, and combines energy saving
potential withlong service life and
resistance to oxide build-up.

The Benefits

As most of thelining system is made of
pre-cast Insural shapes, the installation
can be completed in under three days
unlike traditional linings which require
several weeks to fully stabilise. In addition,
no sintering is necessary. The furnace just
needs to be pre-heated and maintained at
working temperature for 48 hours and is
then ready for service,

The Insural furnace lining system is
completely water free. Consequently,
hydrogen pick-up from the new lining
system is negligible and 1he luminium
melt density index specification can

be achieved immediately following
installation. Furnace downtimeiis
dramatically reduced and the risk of
increased rejects associated with re-lining
work is avoided.

With conventionallinings, the external
furnace body temperature often runsin
excess of 100° C, while with Insural
furnace lining systems installed an
external furnoce bedy temperature of only
64°C can be achieved, Thissignificantly
improves the foundry working
environment and reduces energy loss.

Qur tests show that Insural lining runs on
33% less energy than a tradional lining.

The Insural furnace lining system offers
the foundry a reduction in cost, increased
productivity and security in casting quality.
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Water Conservation

Whilst water is not a scarce resource in
the places where Vesuvius operates,
Vesuvius works fo reduce the consumption
of water inits manufacturing processes
by recycling and improving processes

to reduce consumption. Normalised
consumption of water does vary with
product mix; however, there is an overall
downward trend for both absolute water
consumption, and normalised water
consumption —thatis water use per fonne
of product manufactured.

Our Customers and Their
Processes

Under the Vesuvius and Feseco brands,
we deliver a wide range of solutions
that help our customers improve the
productivity of their operations.

These solutions also improve the
quality of our customers’ products

ond reduce the environmental footprint
of their processes.

Thermal optimisation and reject
reduction are key factors inthe processes
for which we supply solutions. We
contribute to the reduction of our
customers’ energy usage and subsequent
CO, emissions through insulating
materials, metal flow management,
facilitating extended manufacturing
sequences (meaning less reheating)

and reduced downtime.

Theiron and steel industry accounts for
approximately 6.7% of total world CO,
emissions and 18% of industric! CO,
emissions, with, on cverage, 1.8 tonnes
of CO, being emitted for every tonne of
steel produced. With around 10 kg of
refractory material required per tonne
of steel produced, careful selection

of energy-saving refractories can
beneficially impact on the net emission
of CO,.

Inthe foundry process, the amount of
metal melted versus the amount sold

is critical to @ foundry's profitability.
Foseco continuously works with its
customers to increase the ratio of metal
soldto metal melted. Sometimes thisis
aslow os 40% and we work with them
toincreaseitto 70%.

How Does Vesuvius Contribute?

Since 2011 we have used a CO, impact
stamp to highlight the most energy-
efficient solutions in our portfolio of
products and services and to support
the depioyment of energy-efficient and
sustainable solutions engineered by
our technology departments.

Vesuvius products and services facilitate
environmental benefits by:

> Enabling lighter, thinner and stronger
components, leading to lighter vehicles
and less energy consumption

> Improving customer processes through
the supply of innovative consumables
to reduce energy intensity and the
COyeintensity ratio

v

Reducing customers' refractory
usage pertonne of steel produced
through higher-quality, longer
service-life products

> Increasing the level of sound castings
produced per tonne of metal melted
through improved mould design and
the application of molten metai
filtration and feeding systems



People and Community

Our people are unigue and imporfant to us.
We are unequivocally committed to helping
themto be the best they can at what they do.

Qur gim at Vesuvius is to foster a working
environment that is inclusive and diverse,
where people can be themselves

without fear of harassment, bullying or
discrimination. We recognise that the
dedication and professionalism of our
people, their capacity for owning their
roles and their drive for results, are the
maost significant contributors 1o Veesuvius'
success. In order fo getthe bestfrom

our people, we emphasise that one of
the mostimportant tasks of being a
manager in Vasuvius is the development
of their direct reports. We recognise that
we attain our goals through our people.

Line and functional managers are guided
in managing and developing their pecple
by a central HR function, head-quartered
in London delivering support through

its experfise in Reward, Talent
Management, and Global Mobility, and
backed up by modern HR information
systems. Managementinthe business
units and regional and local HR staff
draw upon this expertise and cascade

it to their respective business units and
locol organisations. Much care is taken

to ensure that Corporate HR initiatives
are properly communicated and
implemented atlocal level, with the
cooperation of identified employee
representafives.

The main area of attention for the central
HR function is identifying and fostering
talent across the organisation and
making sure that those individuals
identified as having high potential are
seen as a company-wide resource, with
appropriate development plans putin
placea. In recruiting telent, whether it

be recent graduates or seasoned
professionals, we are locking for
individuals who embedy an entrepreneurial
mindset and an international outlook.
Special attention is paid in addressing
mafters such as gender balance and the
employment of adiverse workforce.

For 2018, a strengthening of both the
Talent Management and Reward
functions is planned, to equip them better
for the ever-increasing battle for talentin
the marketplace.

Talent Management

Strengthening the leadership pipeline
and facilitating people development
throughout the organisation remain

key areas of focus for Vesuvius. We work
hard to ensure that across all operational
and functional areas of the business, ata

Qur Training Programmes

ADVANCE

Thisis ¢ first generation manogement
development programme aimed ot developing
individual contributars who are likely to occupy o
line managament role in the short to medium term
and managers who have no direct reports but
needto be familiar with a bread range of people
management skills to use in one-off projects.

Ieits first vear, the programme is designed ta

take place over 12 months, and includes o blended
learning approach of online learning, face-to-face
workshops and individual projects. Participants
are supported by line management and

HR busmass partaers throughout the duration of
the programme and thereafter where additional
supportis needed. The programme includes a
360° assessment of each participant fo enable
them to compile a personal development plan
forthe next stage of their career.

WINGS

This is the Vesuvius middle management
development programme aimed at those

who manage other managers Wings, now
inits eighth year, is heldin Spring each year

at Vlerick University in Belgium. In 2017,

26 employees successfully completed the course.
The programme entailsan infroductionto
general management theory ond practice and,
like the ADVANCE programme, includes a 360°
assessment of eachparticipant.

ASCENT

This s the Vesuvius high potential and senior
leadership development programme, which
Vesuvius offersin partnership with Insead. [t1s
aimed af accelerating the developrmant of top
talentwithinthe organisation. The programme

senior managerial level, there is the
appropriate level of alignment in
strategic outlook and performance
goals. Thisincreases accountability and
drivesresults. We encourage ond rewaord
high performance, foster talent and aim
to create an envirenrment where all can
realise their individual potential. To meet
the demands of the business and add
rigour to our employee value propesition,
we have launched anumber of
programmes to assist our employeesin
growing their careers through utilising
world-class learning opportunities.

ishighly structured ond tokes place cvera
nine-month peried, involving initicl online
modules, face-to-face workshops and indiwdual
and group projects, inwhich particpants ore
assessed individually and alse againsteach other.
Participants aresupported by senior executives
and senior HR management for the duration of
the programme and thereafter. Participantson
this pragrarnme are those identified as being
potential future senior manogement of the Group.

HeaTt

These courses form part of the Vesuvius Technicat
University aimed at the continuous technical
development of Vesuvius personnel. Courses
range from entry to expert levels, and are
continuausly updoted to keep pace with
developing technology, thereby guaranteeing
that Vesuvius staff are at the forefront of
technical innovation.

HR4HR

During 2016/17, under the Vesuvius HRAHR
project, 30 HR professionals underwent
accredited professional fraining in psychometric
assessment and evaluation, and simulation of key
ralent management processes, each achieving
"Expert' status. These HR4HR groduates wilact
now as catalysts for implementing innavative
recruitment and talent identification techniques
across the business. The project will be progressed
in2018.

67

Afigisuodsay Jno I



68 Vasuvius plc

AnnualReportand Accounts 2017

People and Community continued

SuccessFactors

Vesuvius has invested heavily in a new
people platform and key digital
products. The SuccessFactors HRIS
project waslaunched globelly in January
2077, It provides greater fransparency
across the business, facilitating better
performance management and focused
talentidentification and development,
and has keenimplemented across all our
businesses and geographies.

Reward

Vesuvius' reward systems are designed
to creacte a market competitive and fair
pay environment for all of aur employees

and te reinforce the vision, strategy and
expectations set by the Board.

We have adopted the Willis Towers
Watson job grading model, which
enables us to compare roles and deploy
astructured assessment methodology
across countries and specialisms to
ensure that roles are rewarded

consistently throughout the organisation.

Employees can also visualise their
potential career paths within Vesuvius on
the grade map. Vesuvius is commifted

to creating reward systems which are
transparent and objective, where
employees receive equal pay for work

of equal value, regardless of their age,

race, disability, sexual orientation,
gender, marital, civil partnership or
parantal starus, religion or beliefs.

The Corporate Annual Incentive Plan for
managers ensures that our people are
motivated to achieve their objectives,
with awards linked to business
performance. The Mid-Term Incentive
Plan for managers and senior managers
acts as arelention tool for key talent,
reducingemployee turnover and
diversifying our pay methods. The
Vesuvius Share Plan for Executive
Directors and Group Executive
Committee members encourages
decisions based on long-term goals
rather than short-term gains and works
toalign the interests of participants

and shareholders.

“My firstinternational posting
was to Suzhou, China”

Bill Cousineau, Vice President Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

Following anearly careerin
construction ond refractory

In 2013, | moved back to
Canadatotake over the Generol

manufacturing, | joined Vesuvius
Canodo os ¢ Sales Account
Managerin 2000. | was gradually
promoted to the roles of District
Manager and Steel Sales
Manager, before becoming
General Manager of the Canadian
business in 2005, My first
interncticnal posting was to
Suzhou, China where | become
Vice President Advanced
Refractories, Asia Pacific, There
loversaw all of our Advanced
Refractones operations for the
Asia Pacific region, covering
Koreq, Japan, Taiwan and China,
including cur Chinese joint venture
with Angang Steel. My next move
was to Australiq, where | became
the General Manager, overseeing
the opening of the new Port
Kembla manufacturing site and
the sale of some of our non-core
businesses.

Manager role once again and,
inNevember 2015, became the
Operations Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, responsible
for managing our preduction sites
inthe US, Canada and Mexico
Finally, in May 2017, | moved to
Pittsburgh o take onthe position
of Vice Prasident of Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, leading the
business in this region. Vesuvius
has given me the chance to work
overseas gaining internatienal and
intercultural experience enabling
metotake on senior managerment
roles around the world.



Glebal Mobility

Although Vesuvius is active worldwide,
we keep the number of international
assignments as low as possible as we

Global mobility at Vesuvius

> Providing Vesuvius companies with skills that are
not locally available and that are required at
shartnotice. This typically occursin countries
where we are establishing g new presence
The number of expotriates working onthis basis
diminishes over time as the organisation
matures and we recruit and trainlocal talent
totake over

Vesuvius expatriates do not come from
one ortwo countries alone, we have o
truly international mix of nationalities in
our expatriate population. Individuals
meove not only within a region, but

alsa between regions, with existing
assignments including Malaysiato
Ching, China te Germany, Poland to the
USA and Brazil te China. Our mokility

Employee Diversity

believe thatlocal Vesuvius companies
should be managed and staffed by local
personnel. International assignments are

> Career development. We believe that
the personal development plan of any emplayee
being developed for a senior management, or
senior expert position should include & posting
outside their home country. This encourages
themto develup 1 ie skills necessary 1o function
successfullyin aninternational erwironment.
These postings are tailored to the needs of the
orgonisation and the needs of the individual

programme shows that our expotriate
population is as diverse as our Group.

Vesuvius operates a number of
international assignment policies to
provide for the different circumstances
of these assignments — whether they
beshortterm, longer term, or require
extended commuting. These policies are
supplemented with clearly identified

therefore limited intime, usually tothree
years. Currently 29 employees are on
long-term assignments.

> Enhancingdiversity. Monogementteams
benefit fram having a mix of genderand
cultures. in specific cases we use international
assignments to achieve this goal

benefits, delivering support appropriate
to the nature of the assignment.

By accessing this broad range of policies,
we can manage our internationol
assignments with greater flexibility, thus
catering for changing expectations and
demands from employees, whilst at the
some fime meeting the demands of

the business.

Vesuvius believes that the diversity of its employees is one of the core strengths of the Group. Having @ balance of cultures,
ethnicities and genders helps to promote the innovation end creativity that is key to our success. We recognise that, in line with other
engineering companies of our size and nature, we have an unbalanced gender representation. We are seeking to address this as

part of our wider commitrmentto diversity.

Female Male Total Female Male
Group Executive Committee member 0 10 10 0% 100%
Seniormanagement’ 9 94 103 9% 91%
Middle management 41 305 346 12% 88%
Directors of subsidiariesinciudedin consolidation? 35 447 482 7% 93%
All otheremployees 1,368 9,183 10,551 13% 87%
Grand total 1,418 9,592 11,010 13% 87%

1. Of these 103 senior managers, 42 directly report to members of the Group Executive Committee, and of these, three are worren.

2. 482 individuals in the Group are Directors of Group subsidiaries, Of these 7% are women. This disclosure is made to comply with regulatory requirements.
It includes Directors of dormant comr panies and those with multiple directorships.
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People and Community continued

Employee Consultationand
Industrial Relations

In most of the countries in which we
operate we discuss matters concarning
the Vesuvius business with local works
councils and trade unions. These
processes and procedures are regulated
by local low and we find that the
constructive dialogue that takes place
between employee representatives and
management provides benefitto our
business. In addition to local emplovee
representation we operate a European
Works Council CEWC) that contains
representatives from each of the EU
countries where Vesuvius has employees.
European management ondthe EWC
meet formally once ayear. At this
meeting management provides an
update on the performance of the
business, with a particular focus on
developments likely to impact European
employees. Additional ‘Special Event
Meetings' are held when the Group is
required to consult with the EWC about
particular matters, including proposed
restructurings in the European
organisation. One such meeting was
held in 2017. The EWC Select Committee
also meets twice a yearto receive
additional updctes, and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of Vesuvius
joins part of these meetings. Al EWC
representatives receive four dedicated
training days per year, to ensure they
are appropriately equipped to fulfil
their duties.

In addition to formal discussion and
consultaticn mechanisms, in many
countries our operations hold ‘town hall’
meetings on a regular basis. These
provide an opportunity for local
management to meet with staffand
provide an update on corporate
developments and matters moterial to
the business.

Valuing our Employees

Vesuvius operates a number of awards
and initiatives aimed at recognising the
contribution of particularindividuals and
disseminating best practice throughout
the Group. Examples of these include the
Living the Values Awards and the EMEA
8D PPS Awards.

Cur Living the Values Awards
programme is central to maintaining
our Group's collective facus on Vesuvius'
Values. On 14 December 2017,

we gathered for our fifth awards
ceremony to celebrate and acknowledge
the efforts of 74 employees. Awards
were presented to 14 individucls and

13 teams from 11 different countries,

all of whom, nominated by their peers,
were credited with embodying Vesuvius'
Vaolues. They were rewarded witha
specially designed trophy, with Vesuvius
making a financial contribution te each
winner's chosen charity.

The EMEA 8D PPS Awards 2017 took
place in Pavig, Italy, in October. These
awards showcase the berefits of the

8 Disciplines approach to practical
problem-solving. They were launched to
reinforce the messages of our intensive
fraining courses, to promote the use of
practical problem-sclving in the business

and to recognise excellence in quality.
During a two-day programme, Vesuvius
employees were invited to present case
studies evidencing the application of the
8D methodology to offer to customers
sustainable business solutions. A panel,
chaired by Vesuvius' Chief Executive,
judged the presentations, selecting the
winning team from Qlifantsfontein,
South Africa. This tearm demonstrated
outstanding capabilities in pushing the
boundaries in hightemperature
solutions. Their case study demonstrated
the use of 8D in a joint effort between
the customer and our field service
engineers, to develop a unigue solution
forthe customer's teamto increase
operational efficiency, and to develop
new business for Vesuvius.

Vesuvius in the Lacal Community

Qur social responsibility activities
complement our valuesin driving our
culture. Qur operating sites engage with
their local communities through various
social action projects.

In Germany, Vesuvius GmbH opened

its doors to junior researchers from
Borken kindergortens. About 30 children
interested in research, accompanied by
their nursery school teachers, turned

the Vesuvius canteen inte an exciting
research island. At ten research stations
the boys and girls experimented with
colours, sowed herbs, and built noise
protectors and boats.



8D Awards 2017

The Awards champion unique solutions
designedto address customers’
requirements o

Inthe Netherlands, Foseco Nederland
BV operates an employee charity
donation competition. Employees write
on essay explaining why the charity
organisation with which they have a
connection, should win the donation.

In June 2017, Marloes Georhuis won

the award for her contribution to an
organisation named MeeReizen.
MeeReizen organises holidays for
mentally disabled people, providing the
participants with an exciting adventure
and their carers with some respite at
home. Marloes has been o velunteer on
these holidays for years. The trip is paid
for by the participants themselves, so
thereis a very limited budget. Additional
donations are used to provide additionci
experiences such as a visit to the zoo,
atheme park or a museum.

In France, colleagues from Vesuvius
France SAtrained a futsal (a special form
of football team), to participate inon
inter-company competition organised

by the local association. This annual
competition is organised to support

the charity UEnfant Bleu which fights
against the maltreatment of children

Our employees

Employees by employment type

A.Soaried 3,983
B. Hourly 5,897
C. Temps 1,130

In addition, Vesuvius France SA again
worked with Feignies'local fire brigades,
this fime conducting four major exercises
1o learn meore abeut managing chemical
risk at high temperatures. We helped
them explore how best tc assess
situgtions without prior knowledge,

how to evaluate circumstantial and
environmental facters under pressure,

cs well os how to communicate effectively
with teams when facing specific chemicat
flow hazards,

In Ching, Vesuvius Suzhou sponsors
primary school pupils from lower income
families so that they canjoinin with
extracurricular activities. Now inits
seventh year, our Vesuvius Youth Team
project at the China-Singapore Suzhou
Industrial Park Youth and Children Centre
originally began with three teams:
unicycle, aerobics and chorus. Since then,
the project has grown to include jump
rope and music teams, with 30-40
childrenin each team.

Employees by region

A.Chinc 1,884
B.Europe 4,472
C.India 838
D.NAFTA 2174

E. North Asia 337
F South Americo 1,009
Q. South Asia 296

Vesuvius International
Scholarship Pregramme

The Vesuvius International Scholarship
Programme is set up to assist qualified
dependent children of Vesuvius
emplayees in helping ta finance under-
graduate and graduate education at
accredited institutions. Awards are
granted globally without regard to
race, colour, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, age, gender, disability or
national origin. Vesuvius has been
involved in this programme for 22 years,
during which period Vesuvius has
assisted 902 students to achieve their
higher education goals at a cost of
%1.08m. Individual scholarships have
been awarded to employees children
living in: Belgium, Brazil, Ching, the
Czech Republic, France, india, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Netherlands, Poland,
Romania, South Africa, Spain, UAE
and the UK.

Employees by business unit

A, Flow Control 4,302
B. Foundry 2,836
C. Advanced Ref 2,474

D. Digital Services 526
E.Head Office 49
F Others 823
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Developing talent in our facilities in Brazil
and Chinais crifical to the success of our
strategic priority to capture growth in
developing markets

"My work is exciting, we are building the future together”

Site: Piedade, Brazil Manuel Delfino, Sales & Marketing Director, Digital Services,
South America

Joining Vesuvius a year after 2002: Joined Vesuvius as VISO
graduating, Manuel learned quickly Specialist, Andean region
and was open to new challenges, 2008: Salesmanager, Steel

He initially joined the VISO team
as aproduct specialist, putting
his technical skills to good use

2012: Generaland Country
Manager, Steel, Andean

developing innovative solutions Regicn

forcustomers. Showing strong 2017: South America Director
lecdership capabilities, Manuel Scle; & Marketing, Digital
moved into a managerial role, Services

and now heads Seuth America’s

growing Digital Services team
from the Sac Paulo office.

“Vesuvius gave me the opportunity fo manage
worldwide projects and work with global teams”

Site: Piedade, Brazil Rafael Lorenzo Jacob, Global Produet Manager Hydragen Systems,
Hardware and Instruments, Digital Services

Following his graduation from 2013: Joined ECILMet Tecas
university, Rafaelhas enjoyed a Technical Salesman
successful five year engineering 2014: Avemisproduct specialist

career at Vesyvius. Inthis time

2016 Worldwide product

he hasbeen able te develop manager, Hydrogen

his technical and commercial

knowledge across anumber of Systems & Probes

roles, and he is currently using 2017: Global Preduct Manager,
his experience as aworldwide Hydrogen Systems,
product manager. Hardware & Instruments

“Vesuvius has really welcomed me and my company info the
infernational group”

Site: Resende, Brazil Carclina Campello Bezerra Campos, Managing Director, Vesuvius Fluxes

Carolina's career began at Following its acquisition by 1992: Jeined CarbooxResende
Corboox 25 years ago, whereshe  Vesuvius, Caroling became Quimica, Brazil
defivered R&D successwithnew  Managing Director, and has 2016: Carboox acquired by
casting flux products and been instrumental in enabling Vesuvius

initiatives to assist customers_As  asmooth transition, working
Vice President, she ployed a key hardtcintegrate the Vesuvius
role in establishing the company  culture and achieve strong
asa leader across Brazitand financial results.

Mexico.

2017; Promotedto Managing
Director, Vesuvius Fluxes,
Brazil




“My family and I had a great experience working in Germany”

Site: Suzhou, China Jerry Huang, IT Director-Asia Pacific

Jerry joined Vesuvius on an After growing his remit across

internship, learning cbout the value  Europecn operaticns, leadinga

of {T toevery partofthe company.  number of projectsin Eurcpe, Jerry

Alwaoys seeking to understand the became Director of IT Asia Pacific,

needs of other functions, he socn managing a leyal team that he

built astrong culture around him. ensures have access to many
overseas opportunities.

Foundry

2002: Graduated andjoined
Vesuvius asintern

2004: IT Specialist

2006: IT Manager

2013: IT Manoger, Borken,
Germany

Z015: |T Director-Asia Pacific

“lam proudto be able to share
my technical expertise with my
colleagues around the world”

Site:Kobe, Japan Shigery Takii, Marketing Manager,

Foundry business”

Site: ChangShu, China Benny Yang, BU Manager, Foundry China

Shigeru built up astrong track
record after beginning his career
as partof Japan'ssolesream.

He was promoted to Manager of
Filter Products following nine years
atthe company, where he was
successful despite inheritinga
challenging market, Last year he
became Marketing Manager of
Steel and Non-Ferrous Products,
where he has grown a global
network acrass the company and
continuesto deliver strong results.

19%96: Salesteam, Foseco, Japon

2004: Application Engineer, Kabe,
Japan

2007: Manager, Filter Products

207C: Mancger, Metal Treatment
Praducts

2017: Marketing Manager, Steel
and Non Ferrous Products

"l can use the knowledge | acquired in the Steel division to benefit the

Fouryears after university, fostered a successful

Benny joined Vesuvius asa partnership, improved product
Sales Engineer, applying his quality and grew market share.
technical expertise to enhance  Most recently, as Manager of
product excellence for the Foundry team, he oversaw
customers across China. A a good set of financial results
series of promotions enabled last year.

Benny to grow his commercial
responsibility, where he

1999: Joined Vesuviusas Sales
Engineer

2001: Slide Gate Refractories
{SGR/Purging Plugs (PP}
Product Specialist

2006: SGR/PP Technical Director

2012: General Manager, WG

2016: Foundry Manager, China
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“| moved from Mexico to Brussels to
jointhe Corporate HR team.”

Carlos Bersoza, Human Resources Director, Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

ljoined Vesuvius in 2006, taking
therole of HR Ceordinater at
Monterrey, Mexico whilst Vesuvius
was expanding the production
lines at its Mexico facility.
Following the inouguration of the
new Pre-Cast production line, |
was offered the opportunity to join
the Corporate HRteam, andin
2008 I moved to Brussels to work
asthe HR Project Coordinator for
the head officetearn. Whilst there,
Ihelped to orgarnise the Group's
expatriation processes, develop
internal training modules and
worked on the HRSAP
implementation project.

Following the completion of this
5-year assignmentin Brussels, 1
returned to Mexicoin 2013 as
Operations HR Business Partner,
supporting the deployment

and training of standardised
working teams across the facility.

I continued totravelinternationally
to deliver workshopsand train
company leaders in Ching, Brazil,
Poland and the US on the basis of
my experience in Mexico.

Two yearsloter, | was promoted to
HR Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, movingto
Pittsburgh. In this role, as well as

my responsibilities for HR acress
the US, Canada and Mexice, | also
support the Digital Services
business unit, as their HR contact.

Moving arcund the world hos
given me an international mindset,
enabling meto support and guide

Vesuvius colleagues in HR matiers.

© See more about Vesuvius careers People and community on p67-73
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Chairman’s Governance
Letter

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Board | am delighted to present the 2017
Corporate Governance Report. As a Board, we remain
committed to applying the highest standards of corporate
governance, recognising that rebust governance and culture
underpin business success. This year the Company is reporting
againstthe 2016 UK Cerporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’).
This version of the Code includes minor changes following the
implementation of the European Union's Audit Regulation and
Directive. | am pleased to report that the Company is fully
compliant with the Code.

There was much debate in 2017 about the future direction

of corporate governance, withthe publication in April of

the Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) Select
Committee’s report on corporate governance, and the
Government’s publication of its response to the Green Paper
on Corporate Governance Reform in August. During the

year, institutions and voting agencies also issued guidance

on governance and voting issues, and the FRC produced
commentaries on key governance issues and responded to the
Government’s announcements. This culminatedin December
with the FRC's publication of its consultation on a new draft of
the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Board monitored
each of these developments, and remains focused on ensuring
that the Company continues to comply with all its governance
obligations, including full compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

Board Composition

2017 has been a year of significant development for the Board,
with two new Board appointrments.

In April, the Board was strengthened by the appointment of
Holly Koeppel as an independent Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Connors, who resigned from the Board in
20716, Having spent 35 years working in global utility, power
and infrastructure businesses, Holly brings with her extensive
international experience.

In September, we welcomed Patrick André to the Board as
Chief Executive, replacing Frangois Wanecq whe retired from
the Board on 31 August 2017 Patrick was appeinted as part of
a planned succession proceass, which involved a comprehensive
review of external and internal candidates. Patrick joined the
Group in early 2016, and has displayed significant drive and
energy since then, strengthening the Flow Control business,
and exhibiting streng leadership skills and a constant customer
facus. The Board believes that Patrick is the ideal candidate to
lead the Group inthe next stages of its development.

Following a period of transition, Frangois Wanecq retired from
the Group on 31 December 2017. Frangois led the business
through a period of significant challenges and change. He
worked firelessly to strengthen Vesuvius’ business and to

champion safety and quality throughout the Group. We thank
him for his dedication, leadership and stewardship of the Group.

Prior to undertaking these new appointments, the Nomination
Committee spent time reflecting on the balance of skills and
experience of the existing Board members, and censidering
these against the future needs of the business. Balancing
independence with the skills, knowledge and experience
required on the Board, and on the Committees which support
it, is crucial fo the Group's success. With the appointments of
Holly and Patrick we are confident that the Board hasthe
appropriate composition fo ensure the confinued loeng-term
success of the business. Consequently, | encourage all
shareholders to support the election and re-election of cur
incumbent Directors atthe 2078 Annual General Meeting.

Further details about the recruitment processes for Patrick
and Holly can be found in the Nomination Committee Report.

Culture and Diversity

Corporate culture continues to be animportant focus for

our organisation. Following the recruitment of a new Chief
Executive, the Board looks to himto continue the work of his
predecessor in ensuring thot appropriate values and a robust
ethical stance are reflected consistently in our behaviour as we
conduct our business. Cne of the key strengths of Vesuvius has
always been in the diversity of our employees. With a wide
geographic spread and local hiring of the clear majority of
staff, the Group encompasses individuals from a multitude

of different nationalities and ethnicities. At a Board level

we recognise the significant benefits of diversity in our
business, and understend its importance in supporting

candid and constructive boardroom debate. During 2017,

the Board reflected further on this theme, monitoring the
recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander, Parker and
McGregor-Smith Reviews on gender and ethnic diversity, and
approving a Board diversity policy. This policy sets out our
commitment to diversity and explains the actions we willtake
to affirmthis going forward. Whilst recognising that the
Hampton-Alexander Review has set atarget of 33% female
representation on FTSE 350 Boards by 2020, the Board
considers its diversity, size and composition to be appropriate
for the requirements of the business, ond does not believe that
at this fime it needs to accelerate the usual rotation of Directors
to meet this target. However, the Board will continue to consider
the acknowledged benefits of greater diversity in all future
Director recruitment decisions. With respect to the Group as
awhale, we recagnise that cur commitment to diversity is not
currently reflected inthe gender diversity of our employees.
Like many other industrial engineering companies, we know
that our organisation must work harder to attract, develop
and retain talented women.

A copy of the Board Diversity Policy can be found in the
Governance Report.



Board Evaluation and Training

This year the Board's formal evaluation process was again
externally facilitated by the corporate advisory firm, Lintstock.
It utilised a fresh approach, with the key element constituting
one-on-one interviews with each Director conducted by
Lintstock, aimed at gaining @ deeper insight into Directors’
responses. Overall, the evaluation concluded that the Board
rernained of a high calibre and was functioning well, with

open and challenging debate and rransparent information
flow. The Nomination Committee was felt to have dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, identifying
an accomplished candidate to replace Frangois Wanecq

as Chief Executive and securing an excellent new Non-executive
Director. Similarly, the Audit Committee continued to deliver
robust challenge to management on financial matters and had
overseen a smooth fransition of external auditor. Finally, the
Remuneration Committee had prepared and recommended
on updated Remuneration Policy for 2017

The evaluation highlighted a number of Board priorities for
20718 including the need to integrate the new Chief Executive,
an ongoing emphasis on strategy and its delivery, and the

need for the Board to continue to setthe right tone from the

top and monitor the culture of the Group. The development of
senior management level talent, and succession plans for them,
was again noted as being o key area for focus in 2018, with
newtraining programmes implemented, and continuing
inftiatives in place to ensure greater Board accessto these
high-potential individuals.

As Chairman, | recognise that | am responsible for ensuring
that the Board continues to operate effectively, and that part
of this roleis to ensure that cli Directors attain an appropriate
understanding of the business, and continue to refresh their
skills and knowledge. During the year, both new Directors
undertook atailored induction programme to ensure that they
quickly gained o good understanding of the Group and their
responsibilities and obligations. As well as receiving briefings
and updates on key financial, legal and governance issues
impacting the organisation, the Directors furthered their
knowledge by undertaking visits to various operations during
the year. The Board visited Group operations and a customer's
facilities in Brazil, | visited cur operations in China and other
Non-executive Directors visited operations in Poland, the US
and Germany. During 2018, the Non-executive Directors will
continue to broaden their understanding of the Group through
individual site visits as well as scheduled Board visits.

77

Financial Reporting and Risk

In 2016, the Audit Committee conducted a competitive
tender for the external audit which led to the appointment

of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ({PwC'} as the Company's
new auditor in 2017, PwC formulated a detailed transition
plan, working with people across the business to build on their
understanding of the Group and refine the plonned approach
to the audit. During the yeor PwC provided regular updates
tothe Audit Committee on the status and pregress of the
audifor transition plan, along with valuable insights into the
Group's audit environment. Further details about the fransition
process are contained in the Audit Committee Report.

The Board continually assesses the Group's key risks, and the
methods by which we manage our risks. The impacts of the
risks are also reviewed and tested as part of our ongoing risk
management approach. This process continued in 2017.

A number of emerging risks were raised and discussed,
reflecting developing ‘'macro’ trends and identified risks
where issues had arisen during the year. Whilst none of these
was considered significant enough te change the overall
characterisation of the Group's risks and uncertainties, the
Board's view on each of these issues was infegrated into
management discussions on risk and factored into the
approach the Group takes to mitigation, The Board continues
to monitor all perceived risks and the methods by which these
are managed.

Yours sincerely
John McDonough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018

Also see:
ORiskon p22
O PrinciplesonpSé

In this section:

©Board effectivenesson p80

©Board accountability onp83

© AuditCommittee Report
onp85

©NominationCommittee Report
onp93

ODirectors' Remuneration
Reportonp%6
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Governance Report

The Board of Vesuvius pic (the 'Company’} is responsible for the
Group's system of corporate governance and is committed to
mairtaining high standards of governance and to developing
them to reflect progressionin best practice. This report
describes the Company's corporate governance structure

and exglains how, during the year ended 31 December 2017,
Vesuvius applied the Main Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016 issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (the "Code’). Throughout the year and up unitil the

date of this report, Vesuvius was in full compliance with

the requirements of the Code. The Board has noted the
consultation that has commenced regarding a new revised UK
Corperate Governance Code, and has begun to consider the
changes that the Company would need to make toits existing
practices and procedures to ensure continuing full compliance
inthe future. Anumber of the proposed new requirements are
already reflected in the Company's approach to governance.

A copy of the current Code can be found on the FRC website at:
hitps://frc org.uk/directors/corporate-governance-and-
stewardship/uk-corporate-governance-code

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

Ultimate responsibility for the management of the Group rests
with the Board of Directors.

The Board focuses prirmarily upon strategic and pelicy issues
andis responsible for the Group's long-term success. It sets the
Group's strategy, oversees the allocation of resources and

monitors the performance of the Group. Itis responsible for
effective risk assessment and management.

The Board

The Board has a formal schedule of mattersreserved to it and
delegates certain matters to its Committees, It is anticipated
that the Board will convene on seven cccasions during 2018,
holding ad hoc meetings to consider non-scheduled business
if required.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive is set out in writing. This was reviewed during
the year on the appointment of our new Chief Executive,
aswell as being part of the Company's annual corporate
governance review. No amendments were considered
necessary. | he interactions in the governance process are
shown in the schematic below.

Board Committees

The principal governance Committees of the Board are the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Each Committee
has written terms of reference, which were reviewed during the
vear. No amendments were considered to be required. These are
available to view on the Company's website www.vesuvius.com.

For biographical details see Board of Directors on pages 50
and 51,

Board

Governance Committees

Administrative Committees

Chairman:
Douglas Hurt

Audit Committee

To monitor theintegrity of financial
reporting ond to assistthe Boardin
its review of the effectiveness of the
Group'sinternal controls and risk

Membership:
Allindependert

rnanagerment systerns Non-executive Directors
Remuneration Committee Chairman:

To determine the appropriote JoneHinkley
remuneration packages for the Group's

Chairman, Executive Directors Membership:

Allindependent
Non-executive Frectors

and Company Secretary, andto
recommend and monitor the level and

In addition, the Board delegates certoin responsibilities or an ad hoc basis
toa Finance Committee and Share Scherme Committee, which operate in
accordance with the delegated authority agreed by the Board

Finance Committee Chairman:
Toopprove specific funding and John McDeonough,
Treasury-related mattersin Chairman
accordance with the Group's

delegated authoritiesor as Membership:

Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Finoncial Officer and

delegated by tha Board

structyre of remuneration for other Group Head of Corporate
senior management Finance

Nomingtion Commiftee Chairman: Share Scheme Committee Chairman:
Toadvisethe Board onappomtments, John McDonough, Tofacilitate the administration of Any Board member
retirements and resignations from Chairman theCompany'sshareschemes

the Boord and its Committees and
o review successton plonning and
talent development forthe Board
and senior management

(exceptwhen corsidering
his own succession, inwhich
casethe Committee s
chaired by anoppropriate
Non-executive Director}

Membership:

Chairmanand any three
Non-executive Directors

Group Executive Committee

Membership:
Anytwo Directors or
a Directorandthe
Company Secretary

The Group also operates a Group Executive Committee (GEC), which is convened and chaired by the Chief Executive and assists him in discharging his
responsibilities. The GEC comprises the Chie? Executive, Chief Fincncial Officer, the four Business Unit Presidents, the Chief Human Resources Cfficer,

the Chief Technolagy Officer, the President Operations, and the Genercl Counsel and Company Secretary. The GEC met sixtimesduring 2017 ond s scheduled
tomaet seven times during 20718 Its meetings are generally held at major operational sites orin the London head off ce Havingreviewed the rale of the GEC,

the new Chief Executive haschosenta maintainits operationinitscurrent form.



Governance Structure
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TheBoord

Res

suecession and policy issues. Setsthetone, valuesand

ponsible for Group strategy, risk management,

culture for the Group. Momitors the Group's progress against
the targets set

Chairman

Provides leadership and guidance for the Board,
promoting o high standard of cerporate
governance. Setsthe Board agenda andmanages
meetings. Independent on appointment, he s
thelink between the Executive and

Nen-executive Directors

SeniorIindependent Director

Acts asasoundingboord forthe Chatrman,
analternative contact for shareholders and
anintermediary for other Non-executive
Directors. Leads the annual evaluation of
the Chairman and recruitment process for
his/her replacement, when required

Board and Committee Attendance

Chief Executive

Developsstrategy forreview and approval of the
Board. Directs, momitors and maintains the
operational performance of the Campany.
Responsible forthe application of Group policies,
implementation of Group strategy and the resources

fortheirdelivery. Accountable to the Board for

Group perfermance

Non-executive Directors

Exercise a strong, independent voice, challenging
and supporting Executive Directars. Scrutinise
performance against objectives and monitar
financ’al reporting. Monitor and oversee risks
andcontrals, determine Executive Director
remunerotion and manage Board succession
throughtherr Committee responsibilities

Company Secretary

Advises the Chairman ongovernance,
rogether with updates on regulatory and
campliance matters. Supportsthe Board
agendawith clear nformation flow. Actsase
link between the Board and its Commitiees
and between Non-executive Directorsand
seniormanagement

The attendance of Directors ot the Board meetings and at meetings of the principal Committees of which they are members held
during 2017 is shown in the table below. The maximum number of meetings in the period during which the individual was a Beard

or Committee member is shown in brackets.

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committea Committee Committee
Chairman
John McDonough CBE 8(9) — - 6 (6)
Executive Directors
Patrick André (appointed 1 September 2017) 3(3) - - -
Guy Young 9 (%) - - -
Francois Wanecq {retired 31 August 2017) 6(6) — - -
Non-Executive Directors
Christer Gardell 99 - - 5(6)
Hock Goh 8(9) 4(5) 3(5) 5(6)
Jane Hinkley 2(9) 5(5) 5(5) 6 (6)
Douglas Hurt 8(9) 5 (5} 4{5) 6(6)
Holly Koeppel (appeinted 3 April 2017) 7(7) 2(3) 44 4{4)

John McDonough was absent from a Baard meeting due to a family emergency. The meeting was chaired in his absence by the
Senior Independent Director {'SID"), Douglas Hurt. Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt were unable to make additional Board and
Remuneration Committee meetings, scheduled at short natice, due to prior engagements.

To the extent that Directors are unable to attend scheduled meetings, or additional meetings called on shortnotice, they receive the
papers in advance and relay their comments to the Chairman for communication at the meeting. The Chairman follows up after
the meeting in relation to the decisions taken. In 2017, the Chairman saught Hock Goh and Douglaos Hurt's views on the matters fo
be discussed at the Board meeting they were due fo miss, in each cose prior to the meeting, and provided feedback tothem on

the outcome of discussions. The Committee Chairmen likewise contacted those Directors who were unable to attend Committee
meetings in advance of those meetings, to canvass their views and understand any issues they wished to raise in respect of the
subject matters being discussed. The SID maintained contact with the Chairman regarding his priorities for the meeting he was
unable to attend, together with the discussions undertaken and the action points that stemmed from that meeting.

3JUDUIBACE I
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Governance Report continued

Board Effectiveness

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight Directors — the Non-executive
Chairman, John McDonough CBE; the Chief Executive,
Patrick André; the Chief Financial Officer, Guy Young; and
five Non-executive Directors. Patrick André joined the Board
as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, replacing Frangois
Wanecq wha retired from the Board on 31 August 2017 as
part of a planned succession process. Holly Koeppel joined
the Board as on independent Non-executive Director on

3 April 2017. Douglas Hurtis the Senior Independent Director.
Henry Knowles is the Company Secretary.

The Board focuses on ensuring that both it, and its Committees,
have the appropriate range of diversity, skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the Company, and the
markets in which it operates, to enable it to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively. The Board continues to look

at diversity inits broadest sense - reflected in the range of
backgrounds and experience of our Board members who are
drawn from different nationalities and have managed a variety
of complex global businesses. During the year, the Board
reflected on the recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander,
Parker and McGregor-Smith reviews on gender and ethnic
diversity and formalised its approach to diversity with the
approval of a Board Diversity Policy. The policy sets out the
Board's objectives with regard to diversity to ensure that the
Company maintains the optimum Board and Committee
composition, underpinning the fundamental requirement

to maintain the right balance of independence, skills and
knowledge in the boardroom. Details of the Nomination
Committee's activities in compliance with the policy during

the year are included in the Nomination Committee Report.

Board Diversity Policy

Purpose

This policy sets out the approach ro diversity inrespectof the Board of
Diractors of Vesuvius ple. The policy is ntended o assist the Board, through
the work of the Nomination Committee, in creating and maintaining
optimum Board and Committee composition.

The brood principles of diversity contamed inthis poficy apply to all
employees of the Vesuvius Group. The Vesuvius Code of Conduct reflects
Vesuvius' commitment ta diversity and respect for its employees,

Policy Statement

Vesuvius ple recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforceand s
committed to creating and maintatning an inclusive ond collaborative
workplace culturethatwill provide sustainability for the organisationinte
thefuture.

Policy Objectives

The Nomination Committee will focus on ensuring that if, the Board and the
Board's other Carnmittees have the oppropriate range of diversty, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge of the Company to enable them
to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively.

The Nomination Committee willensure that all appointments tathe Board
ore based en mentwith each candidate ossessed against objective criteria
focused onthe skills, experience and knowledge required of the position,
and with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will engage with executive search firmsina
mannerwhich ensures that oppertunities are taken foradiverse range of
candidatas tobe conaidered for appointment. This willinclude ensuring that
the Committee only uses search firms thot are signed up to the Voluntary
Codeof Conducrfar Executive Search Firms.

The Nomination Committee supports serior managament efferts toincrease
diversity in the senior management pipeline to facllitate succession planning
towords executive Board positions.,

Withrespectto the representation of women on the Board, highlighted by
the Davies and Hampton-Alexander Reviews, the Boord is supportive of the
initictive toincrease the proportion of women on the boards of FTSE 350
companies. Vesuvius, which af the date of this policy has a Board comprising
25%famale membership, will continue toensure that the Board of Vesuvius
plcreflects thislevel, or greater levels of gender diversity, as are appropricte
foritssize ond dynamics, to enable it ta continue to delfiver on the
reguiremnants of the Vesuvius business.

Monitoring and Reporting
This pelicy and progress against its objectives will be reviewed annually.

The Naminahon Committee s responsible for the implermentation of this
policy and for monitoring progress towards the achievement of its objectives,

The Board's overcll skills and experience, aswell as Non-
executive Director independence, were reviewed during the
year as part of the process of recruiting the two new Directors.
The Board's composition also formed part of the Board
evaluation process. Two of the eight Directors (25%) are women
and four (50%) are non-UK citizens. The Board alsc contains
individuals from a range of ethnic backgrounds. The Board
consequently considers its diversity, size and composition to

be appropriate for the requirements of the business, and in

line with its adopted policy. The Board recognises that the
Hampton-Alexander Review has set ¢ target of 33% female
representation on FTSE 350 Boards by 2020. Whilst the Board
does not belfieve that it is appropriate to accelerate its planned
rotation of Directors purely to meet this target, it will continue to
consider the benefits of greater diversity in all future Director
recruitment decisions.



Committee composition is set out in the relevant Committee
repcrts. No one, other than the Committee Chairman and
members of the Committee, is entitled to participate in meetings
of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
However, as defailed in the Committee reports, where the
agenda permits, other Directors and senicr management
regularly attend by invitation, supporting the operation of
each of the Committees in an open and consensual monner.

The Board considers that, for the purposes of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, four Non-executive Directors (excluding the
Non-executive Chairman), namely Hock Goh, Jane Hirkley,
Douglos Hurt and Holly Koeppel, are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship
which could affect the exercise of their independent judgement.
Christer Gardellis Managing Partrer of Cevian Capital which
halds 21.11% of Vesuvius'issued ordinary share capital and is not
considered ta be independent. He brings a wealth of commercial
acumentothe Boord. The Chairman satisfied the independence
criteric on his appointment to the Board. Biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 50 and 51.

Appointment to the Board

Recommendations for appointments to the Board are made
by the Nemingaticn Committee. Further information is set out
in the Nomination Commiftee report on pages 93 t¢ 95.

Time Commitment of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors each have a letter
of appoeintment which sets out the ferms and conditions of their
directorship. Anindication of the anticipated fime commitment
is provided in any recruitment role specification, and each
Non-executive Director'sletter of appointment provides details
of the meetings that they are expected to attend, along with the
need to accommodate travelling time. Non-axecutive Directors
are reguired o set aside sufficient time to prepare far meetings,
and regularly to refresh and update their skills and knowledge.
All Non-executive Directors have agreed to commit sufficient
time for the proper performance of their responsibilities,
acknowledging that this will vary froem year to year depending
onthe Group's activities, and will involve visiting manufacturing
and customer sites arcund the Group. The Chairman in
particular dedicates a significant amount of time to Vesuvius

in discharging his duties. The Board notes that the Chairman
holds chairmanships other than Vesuvius, but that only one of
these is for a listed company. The other two chairmanships

are for much smaller private companies where the time
commitment is limited.

All Directors are expected o attend all scheduled Board and
Committee meetings and any additional meetings as required.
Each Director's other significant commitments are disclosed to
the Board during the process for their appointment and they are
required to notify the Board of any subseguent changes. The
Company has reviewed the availability of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors and considers thateach of them can,
and in practice does, devote the necessary amount of time to
the Company's business,

At the time of her appoiniment, Holly Koeppel served ona
number of Boards and was in the process of adjusting her
poartfolic and retiring fram her executive positions. During 2017,
she stepped down from all but one of her board appointments,
and now only serves as a Non-executive Director on two other
boards, having taken on a new Non-executive position at
British American Tobacco plcin July 2017,

The Board notes that Hock Geh helds a number of othar
directorships, but that these other commitments fypically only
require a total of 25 days'work per year. MEC Resources Ltd

is the listed parent company of Advent Energy L1d, an
investrment company that is not currently operational. As a
result, Hok Goh's commitments as Chairman of these
companies are currently minimal and heis only required to
attend two Board meetings a year. His other directorships
require attendance at a small number of Board meetings each
year. Having reviewed this, the Board believes that Hock's
additional commitments do not prevent him from properly
fulfilling his duties as a Non-executive Director of Vesuvius ple.

Information and Support

The Board ensures that it receives, in a timely manner,
information of an appropriate quality to enable it adequately
to dischargeits responsibilities. Papers are provided to the
Directors in advance of the relevant Board or Cemmittee
meeting to enable them to make further enquiries cbout any
matters prier to the meeting should they so wish. This also
allows Directors who are unable to attend to submit views in
advance of the meeting.

In addition to the farmal Board processes, the Chief Executive
provides written updates onimportant Company business
issues between meetings, and the Board is provided with

a comprehensive monthly report of key financial and
management informartion. Regular updates onshareholder
issues are provided to the Directors, who clso receive capies of
analysts' notesissued anthe Company. For the distribution of
allinformation, Directors have access to a secure online portal,
which contains areference section containing background
information on the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. There is also an agreed procedure in place
for Non-executive Directors, in the furtherance of their duties,
to take independent legal advice at the Company's expense.

Induction and Training

A comprehensive induction proegramme is available to new
Directors. The core of the induction pragramme is designed in
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, and is
tailored to meet the requirements of the individual appointee
and the dynamics of the Group. This process was undertaken
twice during the year, onthe appointment of Holly Koeppel as
a Non executive Director and the appointment of Patrick André
as Chief Executive.

The Chairman, through the Company Secretary, continues to
ensure that there is an ongoing process to review training and
development needs. Directors are provided with details of
seminars and training courses relevant to their role, and are
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Governance Report continued

encouraged and supported by the Company in attending them.
In 2017, regulatory updates were provided as a standing item

at each Board meeting in a Secretary's Report. External input
onlegal and requlatory developments impacting the business
was also given, with specialist advisers invited to the Board

and its Committees to provide briefings on overall market

and economic developments including Brexit, forthcoming
accounting changes, legal developments in data protection and
tax matters, and other general corporate governance issues.

In addition, in 2017 the full Boerd visited our operations and
customers in Brazil, gaining a broader understanding of the
South American business. The Chairman visited our operations
in Chinain May, and ather Non-executive Directors visited
aperations in Poland, the US and Germany during the year.

In 2018, the Non-executive Directors will continue to broaden
their understanding of the Group through further site visits.

Governance in Action - Chief Executive Induction

1. Foliowing his appointment as Chief Executive, the Board requested that
the Company Secretary arrange a comprehensiva induction programme
for Potrick André This reeagnised his prioremployment withthe Group
as President, Flow Control and was therefore tailored to focusonthe
corparate aspects of his new role and the work of the other business units.

ro

. Reference materials were provided, including information about the
Board, its Committees, procedures for dealing in the Company's shares
and other regulatory and governance matters. All ospects of risk ond
its management through insurance, compliance and relevant corporate
policies and proceaures were covered, Patrick wos advised of his legal
and other duties, and ohligations asa Director of alisted company.
These matters were discussed in detailin a series of meetings conducted
by mtarnal management ond externcl advisers.

o]

. Patrick hald one-to-one meetings with all other Board members, and
conducted meetings withkey executives throughout the Group, incfuding
reqular meeatings and joint site ond custormer visits with the cutgoing
Chief Executive. He also held a week of of f-site meetings with the Group
Executive Commuttee tostrengthen the relationship with his new team and
focus onthe organisational structure of the key functions of the Group.

4. Since his appointment Patrick hasbeen undertaking o comprehensive

programme of site visits, with a view tovisiting alt the Group's key R&D

and manufacturing facilities.

w

. Patrick has metwiththe Group's principol advisers, the Company’s brokers
and investor community, using this asan opportunity tounderstand their
roles and the corparate governance environment in greater detail,

&. The Board monitored theinduction process, and asked the Campany
Secretaryte provideupdateson it progress

Performance Evaluation

The Board carries out an evaluation of its performance and that
of its Committees every year. In 2017, this evaluation took place
inthe fourth quarter and was again externally focilitated by

the corporate advisory firm, Lintstock. The Group subscribes

to access Lintstock's Insider database, but has no other
connection with the organisation. This year's evaluation utilised
afresh approach. Rather than canducting the evaluation via

a series of questionnaires, this year Lintstock issued a short
questionnaire and then conducted a series of in-depth interviews
with each Director and the Company Secretary aimed at
analysing and gaining further insight into their responses,
Aswith previous vears, the evaluation not only covered the
performance of the Boord but alse that of its Committees,
along with individual reviews of each Director and analysis of
the performance of the Chairman. A narrative report, broken
down into thematic areas, was then presented to the Board.

The 2016 evaluation had highlighted several priorities for 2017,
including strategy and Board succession, and had also
identified areas for ongoing improvement, including greater
effortsto suppert the development of staff members below
senior management level. As part of the 2017 evaluation, the
Board assessed that the Nomination Committee had dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, securing
an excellent new Non-executive Director, and identifying an
accomplished candidate to replace Frangois Wanecq as Chief
Exacutive. Overall, the Board felt that the transition of Chief
Executive had been effectively managed. The development
of staff members below senior management level continued
during 2017 and remains a focus for 2018, with new training
programmes implemented, and continuing initiatives in place
to ensure greater Board access to these individuals.

Regarding priorities for 2018, the evaluation highlighted the
need to continue to support the integration of the new Chief
Executive, to ensure he establishes effective working relationships
with members of the Board and senior management, and is
supported in formulating and implementing his objectives

for the Group. The Board noted there would be an ongoing
emphasis on strategy, and recognising the increasing corporate
governance focus on stakeholder communication, the Board
would need fo continue to develop plans to interact with
stakeholders and oversee the culture of the Group. The evaluation
also identified a consistent theme regarding personal
development plans. It was agreed that the Board would focus
on this during its oversight of senior management. In respect of
its own activities, individual Nen-executive Directors would be
encouraged to continue undertaking site visits to operations
throughout the Group.

On more practical matters, there was a continuing need to
improve Board processes, with the refinement of Board packs,
and the promotion of consistency in Board presentations.
Asin previous years, a set of action points was compiled from
the output of the evaluation to ensure that its findings are
implemented into the Board's activities. This is supervised by
the Chairman and reviewed throughout the year.

The Chairman noted that, overall, the evaluation had concluded
that the Board remained of a high calibre and was functioning
well, with apen debate and good information flow. The individual
assessment of Directors concluded that all continued to contribute
effectively, devoting adeguate fime to their duties and being
engoged and proactive in debate at all meetings. Each of the
Committees was considered to have operated effactively during
the year, with recognition that the Remuneration Commitftee
had overseen the successful implementation of the new
Remuneration Policy, the Audit Committee had oversaen the
smooth transition in external auditor, and the Nomination
Committee had undertaken two productive rounds of recruirment.

Appointment and Replacement of Directors

Board membership should not be fewer than five nor more
than 15 Directors, save that the Company may, by ordinary
resolution, from time to time, vary this minimum and/or
maximum number of Directors. Directors may be appointed
by ordinary resclution or by the Board. A Director appointed by
the Board must retire from office at the first Annual General



Meeting {AGM’) ofter his/her appointment. A Director who
retires in this way is then eligible for reappointment. The Board
may appoint one ar more Directors to any executive office,

on such terms and for such peried as it thinks fit, and it can also
terminate or vary such an appointment at any time. The Articles
specify that, at every AGM, any Director who has been appointed
by the Vesuvius Board since the last AGM and any Director who
held office atthe fime of the two preceding AGMs and whe did
not retire af either of them, shall retire from office. Hawever, in
accordance with the requirements of the Code, all the Directors
will offer themselves for election or re-election at this year's
AGM. The biographical details of the Directors of fering
themselves for election and re-election, including details of
their other directorships and relevant skills and experience,

will be sef out in the 2018 Natice of AGM. The biographical
details of the Directors are also set out on pages 50 and 51.

The Board believes that each of the current Directors is
effective and demonstrates commitment to his or her respective
role. Accordingly, the Board recommends that shareholders
approve the resolutions to be proposed at the 2018 AGM
relating to the re-election of clithe Directars then standing.

Directors’ Conflicts of Interest

The Board has established a formal system to authorise
situations where a Director has an intarest that cenflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company (situational
canflicts). Directors declare situational conflicts so that they can
be considered for authorisation by the non-conflicted Directors.
In considering a situational conflict, these Directors act in the
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way they consider would be most likely to promote the success
of the Company, and may impose limits or conditions when
giving authorisation or subsequently if they think this is
appropriate. The Company Secretary records the consideration
of any conflict and records any autherisations granted.

The Beard believes that the approach it has in place for
reporting situational conflicts continues to cperate effectively.
No situational conflicts were brought to the Board for
authorisation during the year under review.

Board Accountability

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overali responsibility for establishing and
maintaining a system of risk management and internal control,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. This system is designed to
rmanage, rather than eliminate, the risks facing the Group and
safequard its assets. No system of internal control can provide
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group's system is designed to pravide the Directors with
reasonable assurance that problems are identified on a timely
basis and are dealt with appropriately.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's systermn of interna! control,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and
risk management systems. The key features of the Group's
system of internal control are set out in the fable below.

Risk Management and Internal Control - Key Features

Strategy and >

financialreporting > Annualbudgetapproved by the Board

Comprehensive strotegic planning and forecasting process

> Monthly operating financialinformation reported against budget

> Keytrendsandvariancesanalysed ond actiontoken os appropriate

Vesuvius GAAP >

Accounting policies and procedures formulated and disserminated to all Group operations

> {oversthe application of occounting stondards, the maintenance of accaunhng records and key financial control precedures

Operational controls >
business environment

Operating compaenies and corporate offices maintain internal controls and procedures approprate to their structure and

s2ubwisAcn I

Risk assessment
andmanagement

v

Compliance with Group policies on items such as authorisation of rapital expenditure, treasury transachions, the management of
intellectual property andlegal/regulatory issues

Useof commanaccaunting policies and procedures and financial reporting software usedin financial reporting ond consolidation
Significont financing and investment decisions reserved to the Board

Monitoring of policy and control mechanisms for managing trreasury risk by the Board

Continuous pracessfaridentifying, evaluating and managing any sigrificant risks

Risk management process designed to identify the key risksfacing each business

Reports made to the Board on how those risks are monoged

Each major Group business unit produces a risk mop toidentify key risks, assess the likelihood of risks occurring, theirimpact and
mitigating actions

Top-down risk identification undertaken at Group Executive Committee and Board meetings

Board review ofinsurance and other measures used in managing risks across the Group

The Board s notified of majorissues and makes an annual assessment of how risks have changed

QOngeing assuronce processes by the Legal funchonandinternal Auartincluding the ornual certification process

Externally supported Speak Up*whistleblowing line
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Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control

Theinternal control system covers the Group as a whole, and
is monitored and supported by the Group's Internal Audit
function, which conducts reviews of Vesuvius businesses and
reparts objectively both on the adequacy and effectiveness
of thasyster ofinternal control and onthose businesses’
compliance with Group policies and procedures. The Audit
Committee receives reports from the Group Head of Internal
Audit and reports to the Board on the results of its review.

As part of the Board's process for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal control, it delegates certain matters
to the Audit Committee.

Following the Audit Committee's review of internal financial
controls and of the processes covering other controls, the Board
annuaily evaluates the results of the internal control and risk
management procedures conducted by senior management.
This includes a self-certification exercise by which senior
financial, operational and functional management certify

the compliance throughout the year of the areas under their
responsibility with the Group's policies and procedures and

highlight any material issues that have occurred during the year.

Since the date of this review, there have been no significant
changes in internal controls or other mattersidentified which
could significantly affect them.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Directors
confirmthat they have carried out a rebust assessment of
the principal risks facing the Company, including those that
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity. They have also reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal control and confirm that the
necessary actions have been taken to remedy any control
weaknesses identified during the year.

The Group's principal risks and how they are being managed
or mitigated are detailed on pages 24 and 25, and the Viability
Statement which considers the Group's future prospects’s
detailed on page 23. Risk management and internal control

is discussed in greater detail in the Audit Committee report.

The Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are set cutr on page 85.
The Audit Committee report which describes the Audit
Committee’s work in discharging ifs responsibilities, is set

out onpages 8510 92.

Executive Compensation and Risk

Allof the independent Non-executive Directors serve on

both the Audit and Remuneration Committeas. They therefare
bring their experience and knowledge of the activities of

each Committee to bear when considering critical areas of
judgement. This means that, for example, the Directors are
able o consider carefully the impact of incentive arrangemenits
onthe Group's risk profile and to ensure that the Group's
Remuneration Policy and programme are structured to align
with the long-term objectives and risk appetite of the Company.

Share Capital and Voting

Disclosure of the information regarding share capital, the
authorisation received by Directors at the AGM regarding the
issue of shares andthe authorityto purchase own shares, is
contained on page 118 within the Directors' Report. There are
no restrictions on voting contained in the Company’s Articles of
Association. Further details are set out in the Directors' Report
onpage 119.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board is committed to communicating with shareholders
and other stakeholdersin a clear and open manner, and seeks
fo ensure effective engagement through the Company's
reqular communications, the AGM and otherinvestor relations
activities. The Company undertakes an engoing programme
of meetings with investors, whichis managed by the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer. The majority of
meetings with investors are led by them. Following the
announcement of his appointment as Chief Executive, Patrick
André accompanied Guy Young and Frangois Wanecg onthe
investor roadshows conducted to communicate the half-year
results. Since formally taking up his Chief Executive position,
Patrick has been continuing to meet with investors, attending
investor conferences and meeting with market analysts.

In advance of the 2017 AGM, we wrote to our largest
shareholders inviting discussion on any questions they might
like to raise and making the Chairmen of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee available to
meet shareholders should they so wish, In 2017, other than
one institutional shareholder, no requests for discussions were
received from shareholders following this communication.
The Chairman, Senior Indepandent Director and Committee
Chairmen remain available for discussion with shareholders
throughout the year on matters under their areas of
responsibility, either through contacting the Company
Secretary or directly at the AGM.

The Company reports its financial results to shareholders twice
a year, with the publication of its annual and half-year financial
reports. In addition, to maintain fransparency in performance,
it also issued two scheduled trading updates during 2017
Cnewas published immediately priorto the 2017 AGM on

10 May 2017, ond the second was published on 14 November
2077 In conjunction with these announcements, presentations
or teleconference calls were held by the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer with institutional investars and analysts.

All Directors are expected to attend the Company's AGM,
providing shareholders with the opporfunity to question them
about issues relating to the Group, either during the meeting or
informally afterwards.



Audit Committee

Dear shareholder,

Qn behalf of the Audit Committee, | am pleased fo present the
Audit Committee Report for 2017. The Committee works largely
to arecurring and structured programme of activities which
are defined in an annual rolling Audit Committee timetable.
Additional items are then added and the Committee agenda is
modified as the year progresses, to accommodate new topics
and pricrities. Significant non-standard items that required
Committee focus during the year were the appointment of

the new external auditor and updating of the Internal Audit
reporting process. The Committee also continued itsreview of
"deep dive' topics during the year, covering defined benefit
pension schemes and cyber security.

Following the completicn of the formal cudittender in 2016,
and the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ('PwC’)
in May 2017, the Committee oversaw the seamless transition of
the external qudit from KPMG LLP to Pw( during the year. Pw(C
followed a detailed transition plan, focused on gaining a good
understanding of the Group and establishing contact with key
management and local personnel. The Comrmnittee received
regular updates on progress against this plan and benefited
from PwC's insights into the Group's risk control framework as
they conducted their initial meetings and reviews.

During the year, the approach to internal audit was updated to
allow for clearer focus at the Audit Committee on key control
issues, albeit that the overall scope and coverage of the onnual
Internal Audit plan remained s broad as in previous years.
Internal cudits are now identified by separcte designations —
Compliance & Control (‘(C&C", or Effectiveness & Efficiency
{'E&E"). C&C audit activities focus entirely on internal financial
control and key Board compliance issues, with the E&E audits
examining a brocder constituency of business performance
issues. The Audit Committee receives detailed feedback on
ony issues identified in C&C cudit activity, and mare general
oversight of the results of E&E audit activity. The latter highlight
broader performance issues identified by the Internal Audit
team for management response and remediation.

The Audit Committee Report describes the work of the
Committee during the year including its role in monitoring

the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the
effectiveness of the internal and external audit processes.

It provides an overview of the significant issues the Cammittee
has considered during the year and its material judgements.

It also describes howthe Committee fulfilied its responsibilities
to assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management systems.

Yourssincerely

Douglas Hurt Chairman, Audit Committee

Committee Members

Douglas Hurt (Committee Chairman)
Hock Goh

Jane Hinkley

Holly Keeppel {appointed on 3 April 2017)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee camprises all the independeant Non-
exacutive Directors of the Company, who bring a wide range
of financial and commercial expertise to the Committee's
decision-making and evaluation processes. Douglas Hurt is
the Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, having been appointed to these roles by the Board
following the 2015 AGM. He was the Finance Director of IM| ple
for nine years pricr to that and has worked in various financial
roles throughout his career. Douglas is alse Chairman of the
Audit Committees of Countryside Properties PLC and Tate &
Lyle ple, and a Chartered Accountant. This background
provides himwith the ‘recent and relevant financial experience’
required under the Code. The Company Secretaryis Secretary
to the Committee.

The Code and Financial Conduct Authority Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules alsa contain requirements
for the Audit Committee as a whole to have competence
relevant to the sector in which the Company operates.
Vesuvius Non-executive Directors have significant breadth
of experience and depth of knowledge on matters related to
Vesuvius operations, both from their previous roles and from
their induction and other activities since joining the Board of
Vesuvius. The Directors’ biographies on pages 50 and 51 outline
their range of multinational business-to-business experience
and expertise in fields including engineering, manufacturing,
services and logistics as well as financial and commercial
acumen. The Board therefore considers that the Audit
Committee as a whole has competence relevant to Vesuvius'
business sector.

Meetings

The Committee met five times during 2017. The Committee has
also met twice since the end of the financial year and prior to
the signing of this Annual Report. The Board Chairman, the
nen-independent Non-executive Director, the Chief Executive,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Financial Controller, the
Head of Internal Audit and the external auditor were allinvited
to each meeting. Cther management staff were alse invited to
attend as appropriate. In preparation for their tenure as the
new external auditer, PwC attended Audit Committee meetings
prior to their formal appointment by sharehclders at the

2017 AGM.

In February 2017, the Audit Committee heid a preliminary
meeting on year-end issues in advance of the finalisation of
the financial statements in early March. This approach was
judgedto be effective and has been integrated info the Audit
Committee schedule going forward.
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Audit Committee continued

Audit Committee meetings are conducted to promote an open
debate, to challenge constructively significant accounting

judgements, to provide guidance and oversight fo management

to ensure that the business maintains an appropriately robust
control environment and o provide informed advice to the
Board enfinancial matters. The Chairman of the Audit
Cormmittee encourages open dialogue between the external
auditors, the management team and the Head of Internal Audit
between Audit Committee meetings to ensure that emerging
issues are addressed in a timely manner.

During the year, as is the Audit Committee’s established
practice, the Committee members met and discussed business
and control matters with senior management during site visits,
informal meetings and Board presentations. The Committee
also met privately with the Head of Internal Audit, and the
externol guditor without any executives present.

The outcomes of Audit Committee meetings were reported to
the Board and all members of the Board received the agenda,
papers and minutes of the Committee.

Role and Responsibilities

The main role and responsibilities of the Committee confinue fo
beto:

> Monitor the integrity of the financial staternents of the
Company andthe Group, and any formal announcements
relatingtothe Group's financial performance, infarming the
Board of the outcome of the audit

> Monitor and review the effectivenass of the Group's internal
financial controls and the Group'sinternal contral and risk
management systems

v

Establish and review procedures for detecting fraud, systems
and controls for the prevention of bribery and oversee the
Company's arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible wrongdoing infinancial reperting or other
matters

v

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company's
Internal Audit function

> Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external cuditor

> Monitor and review the external auditor'sindependence,
objectivity and effectiveness, taking inte consideration any
non-audit services provided, and the relevant UK
professional and regulatory requirements

> Take account of the findings and conclusions of any FRC
auditinspection undertaken, when monitoring the
performance of the audit

The Committee operates under formalterms of reference
opproved by the Board, which were reviewed during the year.
They are available in the Investors/Corporate Governance
section of the Company's website, www.vesuvius.com.

Within these ferms, the Committee and its individual members
are empowered 1o obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice atthe cost of the Company. These powers
were not utilised during the year. The Committee may also
secure the attendance ot its meetings of any employee or other
parties with relevant experience and expertise should it be
considered necessary.

Activitiesin 2017

1. The Committee’s agenda coveredthe usual stonding items —the review
of financialresults, the effectiveness of the Group's imternolfinoncial
controls, andthe review of the internal control end risk management
systems—as well asnon-standard items, including aversight of the
transition of the external audit from KPMG to PwC.

The Audit Committee continued to devote time to ensure thatinitiatives
to mitigate potenticl risks and financial exposure remained robust and
appropriate. The Committee challenged the odequocy of inventory and
receivables provisions, the ossumed growth rates and discount rates used
for assetimpairment assessments, as well as the accounting for and
presentation of the Group-wide restructuring programme undertaken

in responsetothe chollenging conditions within our end-markets

I

3. The Committee considered the Company's going concern statement and
chollenged the nature, quantumand assessment of the significant risks
to the business model, future performance, solvency and kquidity of the
Groupthatwere modelled os part of the scenarios and stress testing
undertaken to supportthe Viability Statement made by the Companyin
the 2016 Accounts. The 2017 Viability Statement, which was alse criticolly
reviewed, iscantained within the Strategic Reportand can befound on
page 23.

4. The Committee monitored the resourcing and delivery of the 2017 Internai
Audit plon and approvedthe 2018 Internal Audit plan. The Committee
monitored both the respanses from ond follow-up by mancgement ro
Internal Audit recommendations arising during the year and, where
necessary, the Committee rasked management to verify their successful
closure within definedtimesceles.

5. The Committee examined specific auditissues such astaxmattars,
ncluding the judgements inherent inthe partial recognitron of deferred
tax assets for UStaxlosses and undertook 'deep dive'reviews of cyber
sacurity and the Group's defined benefit pension arrangements,

6. The Committee considered the impact of new accounting standards
including IFRS 9 Finoncial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers—and reviewed the implementation plan for
theseinthe 2018 financial year. Based onan assessment of these
standards, the Group does notbelieve there willbe a significant impact
onits Group Financiol Statements,

The Committee members believe that they received sufficient,
relevant and reliable infermation throughout the year frem
management and the external auditor to enable the Committee
o fully discharge its responsibilities. The work of the Audit
Committee is further elaborated inthe paragraphs below.

Statement of compliance with the Competiticn and
Markets Authority ({CMA") Order

The Committee considers that the Company has complied with
The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibkilities) Order 2074 (Article 7.1},
published by the CMA on 26 September 2014, including with
respect to the Audit Committee’s responsibilities for agreeing
the audit scope and fees and authorising non-audit services.



Financicl Reporting

The Commirtee fulfilled its primary respansibility to review

the integrity of the 2017 half-year and 2017 annual financial
statements and recommended their approval to the Board.
The Committee also reviewed the two trading updates released
during the year.

in forming its views, the Committee assessed:

> The quality, acceptability and consistency of the accounting
policies and practices

v

The clarity and consistency of the disclosures, including
compliance with relevant financial reporting standards and
other reporting requirements

4

Significant issues where management judgements and/or
estimates had been made that were material to the reporiing
or where discussions had taken place with the external
auditor in arriving at the judgement or estimate

> Inrelation to the overall Annual Report, whether the Annual
Report and Accounts taken as a whole was fair, balanced and
understandable, taking into consideration all the information
available tothe Committee

> The application of the FRC's guidance on clear and concise
reporting

v

The disclosure and presentation of alternative performance
measures, inview of the new guidance from the European
Securities and Markets Association

The Committee actively deliberated and challengad reports
from the Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial Controller.
These were well prepared and, for areas of judgement and/or
estimation, set out the rationale for the accounting treatment
and disclosures, and the pertinent ossumptions and the
sensitivities of the estimotes to changes in the assumptions.

PwC also delivered memoranda for the half-year and year-and,
stating their views on the freatment of significant issues, PwC
provided asummary for eachissue, including its assessment

of the prudence of management’s judgements or estimates.
The Committee considered the overall level of prudence applied
this year, compared this with the prior year and concluded thot it
remained unchanged.

Significant Issues and Material Judgements

The Committee considered the following significantissuesin
the camtext of the 2017 financial statements. It considered
these areas to be significant taking into account the level

of materiality and the degree of judgement exercised by
management. The Committee resolved thatthe judgements
and estimates made on each of the significant issues detailed
below were appropriate and acceprable.

Income Tax

Incomne tax remains a complex area where significant
judgements arerequired to estimarte both uncertain tax
liabilities and the value of deferred tax assets.

The Committee challenged the assumptions used to arrive at
the £34.3m (2016: 34.9m) provided for income tax payable
whichincludes £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) for uncertain tax
provisions as set outin Note 10.5. After discussions with internal
tax experts and considering the results of recent tax audits and
the views of the external auditors, the Committee concurred
with managerment’s judgement.

Arthe end of 2017, the Group recognised a US deferred tax
assetof £32.6m (2016: £65.9m). The Group has significant
additional tax losses and other temporary differences inthe

US end elsewhere which have not been recognised, which are
kept under review. The recognition of deferred tax assets for
tax losses and other temporary differencesis a highly technical
area and the Committee has drawn on internal experts te
understand the freatment. The future prospects for US
profitability were carefully modelled by management and
challenged by the Committee, as was the impact of the
significant tox reform announced in late December 2017 in the
US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJAY). The Committee particularly
noted that this reform had a material impact on the Group's
deferred tax position, and of itself coused awrite-down in
Vesuvius' US deferred tax asset of £25.7m which, in additionto
other normal movements in the year and exchange revaluation,
resulted in the significant decreasein the value of this assetin
2017. The Committee also noted that, asthere is uncertainty in
how some of the provisions of TCJA will operate, subsequent
guidance issued by US Treasury may impact Vesuvius reported
tax position. The Committee reviewed the Group's projections
for trading in the US which had impraved in 2017, and
concurred with management that the US forecasr profits are
considered sufficient to sustain the deferred tax asset in the

US atthe end of 2017.

Other Provisions

The Committee has been made aware of o number of potential
exposures and claims arising from ongoing litigation, product
quality issues, employee disputes, restructuring, environmental
matters, cnerous leases, indirect tax disputes and indemnities
or warranties outstanding fer disposed businesses. Due to

the long gestation period before seftlement can be reached,
provisioning for these items requires careful judgement in

order to establish a reasonable estimate of future liabilities.
The Committee alsc assessed the strength of any insurance
coverage for certain of these liabilities and challenged the
accounting freatment for any amounts deemed to be
recoverable frominsurers. Subsequent to this challenge, certain
insured liabilities have been represented in the balance sheet
on agross basis. After due consideration and challenge, with
expert advice sought in certain areas, the Committee is satisfied
thatthere are appropriate levels of provisions set aside to settle
third-party claims and disputes (Note 32) and that adequate
disclosure has been made under International Accounting
Standards (IAS) 1 (paragraph 129) in respect of estimation
uncertainties that might impact the accounts in the following
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financial year. Where the cutcome of an existing issue s
uncertain, or where no reliable estimate of the potential liability
canbe made, no provision has been made and appropriate
disclesure is included under contingent liabilities (Note 34).

Restructuring Charges

The Group restructuring programme centinued in 2017 in
response o the structural changesin the end-markets that we
serve. The Committee critically reviewed the treatment of the
restructuring costs disclosed as separately reported items in
2017 ond concluded that these have been freated consistently
with the accounting palicy. This ensures that only significant
restructuring programmes that have a defined scope and are
materialin nature are reported separately, which enables the
reader more clearly to understand the underlying results of
the Group.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

The year-end carrying value of goodwill of £643 . 2m was tested
against the current and planned performance of the Steel
and Foundry cash-generating units {CGUs). The Committee
challenged both the determination of the relevant CGUSs, the
planned and terminal growth assumptions as well as the
discount rates used in the assessments and the relevant
sensitivities that were evaluated. The detailed assumptions,
providedin Note 17, reflect both o reductionin global risk-free
rates offset by the impact of the increasing contribution from
the Group's operations in emerging markets.

The Committee considered the Board-cpproved medium-term
business plans, the range of industry longer-term projections
and expert views on discount rates. Given that the models
indicated that there remains significant headroom between the
value inuse and the carrying value, the Committee concurred
that no goodwillimpairment charges were required.

Working Capital Provisions

The Committee challenged the level of provisions held against
both receivables and inventories (Notes 18 and 19) and,

ofter reviewing ageing analyses, regional analyses and
specific customer accounts, concluded that the provisions
held were oppropriate.

Pensions

Determining the current value of the Group's future pension
obligations requires a number of assumptions, The
appropriateness of assumptions used {(described in Note 28)
was questioned by the Committee, as small changes in the
assumptions could have material effects and bond yields in
particular have been volatile. The essumptions made by
management for each of the major schemes were compared
by PwC with other similar schemes. The Committee agreed
the reasenableness of the assumptions.

Fair, Balanced and Understandable Reporting

The Committee considered ail the information available to

it in reviewing the overall content of the Annual Report and
Accounts and the process by which it was compiled and
reviewed, to enable it to provide advice to the Board that the
Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandable. Indoing
so, the Committee ensured that time was again dedicated to
the drafting and review process so thatinternal linkages were
identified and consistency was tested. The Committee
welcomed the aftention that had been paidinthe 2017 Annual
Report to explain further the strategy, markets, execution
priorities and business model of the Group. Drafts of the Annual
Report and Accounts were also reviewed by a senior executive
not directly involved in the year-end process who reported to the
Committee on his impressions of clarity, comprehensiveness,
balance and disclosure inthe decument. On completion of the
process, the Committee was satisfied that it could recommend
tothe Board that the Annual Report and Accounts is fair,
balanced and understandable.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

As highlighted in the reviews of strategy and principal risks in the
Strategic Report, risk management is inherent in management's
thinking and is embedded in the business planning processes of
the Group. The Beoard has overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining a system of risk management and internal
control, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's systermn of internal contral, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
systems. This framewaork is consistent with the Code.

As part of its review of the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties, the Committee supported the Board inits review
of risks in 2017. As in previcus years, a bottom-up mapping of
the risks was constructed and reviewed in each major business
unit, delivering a risk register that was then reviewed by the
Head of Internal Audi, to deliver a coordinated picture of the
key operational risks identified by the business. In conjunction
with this, all the members of the Committee and the Board
contributed their individual views of fop-down strategic risks
facing the Group into this process— drawing on the broad
commercialand financial experience gained bothinside and
cutside the Group. This information was collated by the Head
of Internal Audit into a paper for discussion in the context of
the Group's identified principal risks. This was reviewed and
discussed at the Board, and, taking note of the Board's
commenits, subsequently by the Group Executive Committee.
In menitoring the overall process, Committee members also
fully participated in the Board review of existing risks and
ongoing mitigating actions. The Committee determined that
this approach once again enhanced the Group's process for
identifying and understanding the Group's principal risks

and uncertainties, which are set out on pages 24 and 25.

The Committee continues to consider that this process is robust
and appropriate.



The Committee considered the Company’s going concern
statement and challenged the nature, quantumand
combination of the unlikely but significant risks to the business
model, future performance, solvency and liquidity of the Group
that were modelted as part of the scenarios and stress testing
undertakento support the Viability Statement. As part of this
review, the Committee considered the Group's forecast funding
position over the next three years and analysed the impact of
various scenarios based upon pertinent key risks faced by the
Group and with reference to the Group's debt covenants.

The scenarios considered the impact of muitiple risks occurring
simultaneously and additional mitigoting actions that the
Group could take. The Committee noted that the Group's debt
profile had improved in terms of maturity with the completion of
anew placement of €100m USPP Notes, and that the resultant
debt headroom was sufficient te accommodate the modeiled
stress scenarios. As aresult of their review, the Committee was
satisfied that the going concern and Viakility Statements had
been prepared on an appropriate basis. The 2017 going
concern statermnent is contained in the Directors' Report on
page 117 and the 2017 Viability Statement is contained within
the Strategic Report and can be found on page 23.

The Committee also maintains a programme of in-depth
reviews infa specific financial, operational and regulatory areas
for the business. These reviews allow the Committee fo meet
with the business colleagues responsible for these areas ond
goin greater in-depth understanding about key areas for the
Group. In 2017, the Committee undertock 'deep dive reviews

of pensions and cyber security. The former provided the
Committee with a detailed overview of the Group's principal
liabilities under defined benefit schemes and the steps that were
being takento manage these, noting that de-risking roadmaps
are in place for each of the funds. The cyber review coverad the
assessment of the Group's cyber security risks, the operation of
the Group's Cyber Security Steering Committee and the actions
that were being taken throughout the organisation fo Improve
cybersecurity. It was noted tharimprovements had been seen
in overail cyber awareness following two successful training
campaigns and that plans were in place to allocate additional
resources to cyber security during 2018,

In addition, the Committee reviewed the draft UK Tax Strategy
disclosure, noting that this had been prepared for publication
onthe Group's website in line with statutory requirements,
andrecommended that it be approved by the Board.

The key features of the Group's internal control system,

which provides assurance onthe accuracy and reliabifity of

the Groug's financial reporting are detaifed in the Governance
Report on page 83. During 2017, the Committee considered
the process by which management evaluates infernal controls
across the Group. The Head of Internal Audit provided the
Committee with a summary overview of the assurance provided
by the Group's control framework and the testing of these
controls. PwC also reviewed controlsin the businesses within the
scope of its audit. This review indicated an appropriate control
environment, with identified improvement actions under careful
management by the Group.
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The Group is made up of several large operating units, but
also many small units in geographically diverse locations.
Consequently, segregation of duties, overlapping access
controls on systems and remote management oversight can
give rise to control vulnerabilities and fraud opportunities.
The Group has not adopted a common Enterprise Resource
Planning system as a Group-wide standard. Cver time,
management intends to move to more sharing of services,
enabled by process and systems standardisation between
businesses. Thisis likely 1o improve the overall internal controls
in the smaller operating units.

The Group undertakes a range of activities to mitigate the risk
of fraud. This framework s regularly reviewed o determine
areags for improvement. In assessing the effectiveness of the
Group's internal contrels, the Committee considered the following
initiatives which had been implemented over the past two years:

> The publication of a revised Group authority matrix fo
emphasise a clear assignment of responsibifities
and authorities

> A continued focus by regional finance directors and the
central fingnce team on balance sheet reconciliations;

> The ongoing review by Internal Audit of the separation of
duties and access rights at operating entities, to ensure that ne
one person is in sole control of all aspects of any transaction,
to mitigate the risk of fraud

> Anupdated employee vetting process for prospective senior
employees in higher-risk countries

> Ongoing internal communications on the heightened risk
of social-engineering fraud, coupled with increased cyber
security fraoining o raise awareness of the use of malware

» The formartion of a cyber security working group, to focus
on enhancing the Group's resilience te cyber risks

Eliminating the risk of fraud remains one of the key areas of
focus for Internal Audit, forming o fundamental part of full
scope’ and financial audits. These assess the quality of the
bolance sheet reconciliation, review key judgement matters,
consider ERP access rights, review tenders and quotations,
review the entity’s controls over master data changes, and
controls over payments and assecioted applications.

During 2017 the Group continued its review of third-party
representatives and intermediaries. This included detailed due
diligence for active sales agents and, where required, updates
to the contractual basis on which these agents are engoged.
The review will be extended to other third-party representatives
and intfermediaries during 2018. The Committee continued its
assessment of the Group's potential exposure to bribery and
corruption risks, noting the ongoing work conducted by the
Group inthis context, such as face-to-face visits 1o operations,
providing focused, country-specific training and reviewing
financial records, sometimes with the assistance of external
advisers. The output of these processes and previous risk
assessments continue to be used to develop Group policies and
procedures forthe management of anti-bribery and corruption
risk, reflecting an appropriate level of control far the business.
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Audit Committee continued

The Committee continues to monitor and oversee procedures
regarding allegations of improper behaviour and employee
complaints. Further details of the operation of the Group's
Speak-Up policy and helpline can be found inthe 'Cur
Principles’ section. Throughout the year the Audit Committee
received updates on the volume of reports, key themes emerging
fromthese reports and the results of investigations undertaken.

Each year the senior financial, operational and functional
management of the businesses self-certify complionce with
Group policies and procedures for the areas of the business
under their responsibility and confirm the existence of adequate
internal control systems throughout the year. The Committee
reviews any exceptions noted in this bottom-up exercise.

After considering these varicus inputs, the Committee was
able to provide assurance to the Board on the effectiveness
of internat financial control within the Group, and on the
adequacy of the Group's broader internal control systems.

Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit function operates on a global basis
through professionally qualified and experienced individual
members located around the world, including an auditor with
specialistIT knowledge. They report to the Head of Internal
Audit, based in London, who inturn reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Duringthe yearthe approach to internal audit was updated,
with audit activities subdivided into two different categories:
Compliance & Control (C&C'), and Effectiveness & Ffficiency
(E&E". C&C audit activities focus entirely on internal financial
control and key Board compliance issues, whereas the E&E
audit activities examine a broader constituency of business
performance issues. Charocterising the audit process in this way
enables the Audit Committee to concentrate more specifically
on key control issues for resolution, with reporting focused on
C&C audit activity, and more general commentary provided
onthe autcome of E&E audit activities. The detailed outcomes
of E&E audits are then ysed to engage managerment onthe
broader performance issues identified by the Infernat Audit
team. During the year, the frequency of meetings between the
Head of Internal Audit and the Business Unit Presidents was
also increased, to ensure that engagement on the resolution
of issues is clearly understood at dll levels of the business and
responsibility for remediation taken aecordingly-

The Committee received, considered and approved the 2017
Internal Audit plan which was constructed using a risk-based
approach to cover the Group's control environment. The plan
was based on the premise that all operating units are internally
audited ot least once in every three-year pericd, whilst
maintaining a focus on smaller operating units. A third of
operating units are now subject to infernal audit twice in every
three-yeor period, and Internal Audit annually audits each

of thelarge operating entities located in Germany, the US,
China, Mexico and Brazil. During the year the Committee also

considered and approved changes to the Internal Auditplan as
required. These changes meant that the Internal Audit coverage
was greater than in previous years and audits were carried out
with more in-depth analysis across legal entities and operating
units. In addition, in 2017 many project-based reviews were

also undertaken.

In 2077, atotal of 56 audit assignments, including three
unplanned audits, were undertaken by Internal Audit, covering
65% of the Group's revenue and 60% of the Group's profit
before tax. The Committee received o 'dashboard’ from the
Head of Internal Audit at each of its meetings, detailing
pregress against the agreed plan and identifying key trends
and findings from Internal Audit reports, along with progress on
the resolution of actions agreed. Common themes emerging
from Internal Audit reports were discussed and these
discussions have informed the compilation of the 2018 Internal
Audit plan. When necessary Internat Audit uses external
outsourced auditors to supplement internal Audit on an ad-hoc
basis. The outsourcing process provides valuable learning
opportunities and we expect to continue to use outsourcing

in specialist areas and geographies in the future. Where control
issues or ather problems are flagged by the fieldwork, they are
recorded in a live web-based database into which management
and operational entities are required to report progress
against audit exceptions. Inthis way, Internal Audit monitors
the progress and adequacy of the remediation steps taken.
Additionally, regular meetings are held with each business unit
President to discuss the progress against high-priority issues.
Conseguently, the Committee has oversight of appropriate and
timely actions faken by the responsible management. The Audit
Committee alsc involved senicr management as necessary o
provide an update against high-pricrity actions and Internal
Audit provided follow-up reviews as required, to ensure that
there was clarity on the responsibility for delivery of solutions to
the audit findings. In situations where auditfindings required
longer-term solutions, the Committee oversaw the process for
ensuring that adequate mitigation actions were taken while
permanent solutions are pursued.

During the year, a review was undertaken of the effectiveness
of the Internal Audit function. The review, which canvassed the
views of Non-executive Directors and senior management,
confirmed that the Internal Audit function confinued to operate
to a high standard, with a good understanding of the business
and an appropriate scope. Respondents noted the high degree
of energy, professionalism and independence exhibited by the
function, and welcomed the steps that had been taken to
improve the inferface with the manogement of each of the
business units.

Having considered the work of the Internal Audit function
during 2017, including progress against the 2017 Internal
Audit plan, the quality of reports provided to the Committee,
and the results of the review of the function's effectiveness,
the Committee concluded that the Internal Audit function
operated effectively during 2017.



External Audit

Auditor Appointment

fn 2016, the Committee undertock a tender process to

appoint g new statutory auditor for the financial year ending

31 December 2017. The tender culminated in the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP { PwC') as external auditor
and the appointment of Mazars LLP to cudit the non-material
entities within the Group. As a result, KPMG concluded its tenure
as the Group's external auditor during the year and, further to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the 2077 AGM,
PwC was appointed as the Group's external auditor for the year
ending 31 December 2017. PwC nominated Julian Jenkins as
the audit partner responsible for the Group audit. Inline with the
requlations on auditor rotation, the external audit contract will
be put out to tender at least every ten years. In addition, PwC
will be required to rotate the audit partner every five years.

Auvditor Transition and 2017 Audit Plan

PwC's transition plan focused on exiting the nen-audit services
that PwC provided to the Group, and working with people from
across the business to build ontheir understanding of the Group
and refine the planned approach tathe audit. Key elements of
the transition plan included: meeting with senior management,
local management, key functional heads and wider business
stakeholders to gaininsight inta the business; meeting with
KPMG and performing o detailed review of their working papers;
attending Committee meetings pricr to the formal appointment;
undertaking a risk assessment to identify significant and
elevated audit risks; and formulating and communicating a
detailed audit plan. During the year PwC provided regular
updartes to the Committee on the status and progress of the
auditor transition plan, and valuable insights into the Group's
guditenvironment from the resulis of their review.

In February 2018, the Audit Committee held a preliminary
meeting on year-end issues in advance of the finalisation of

the financial statements in early March. During the year, private
sessions were held with PwC without management being
present, covering reporting and control issues in the context of
the rescurcing of the Group Finance team. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee met on a number of occasions with PwC to
monitor the progress of the audit and discuss questions as they
arose. The strength of the finance teams across the Group was
also considered. Inthese sessions PwC confirmed that its work
had not been constrained in any way and that itwas able to
exercise appropricte professional scepticism and challenge
throughout the oudit process.

The Independent Auditors’ Report provided by PwC on pages
12410129 includes PwC's assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the accounts. These risk areas are discussed

in the significantissues and material judgements comments
above. Thereport also summarises the scope, coverage and
materiality levels applied by PwCinits audit. As part of the audit
planning process and based on a detailed risk assessment, the
Committee agreed ¢ materiality figure of £7.6m for Group
financial reporting purposes which is higher thanlast year
{£4.0m) and, in line with similar groups, is set at 5% of headline

profit before tax of £152.9m. Importantly, much lower levels of
materiality are used in the audit fieldwork on the individual
husinesses across the Group and these lower figures drive the
scope and depth of audit work. Any misstatement at or above
£0.4m was reported to the Committee.

There were no significant changes this year to the coverage of
the audit which stood at 68% of the Group's revenue ond 76% of
headline profit before tax. This coverage was considered to be
sufficient by the Committee. The cudit coverage is reflective

of the long tail of smaller businesses within the Group that
individually are not 'matericl to the Group result.

The PwC audit fee approved by the Audit Committee was
£1.3m. This was constructed bottom-up on a local currency
basis ond was assessed in light of the audit work required by the
agreed materiality level and scope. It was agreed as part of the
audit tender process and updated for changes in scope that
were required during the year. The fee approved by Mazars for
the audit of the non-material entities was £0.4m, resultingin a
combined fee with PwC of £1.7m, compared to £2.0m paid to
KPMG LLPin 2016. The reduction in fee follows from the tender
andthe utilisation of twa audit firms. The Committee noted the
ruling by the Securities Exchange Board of India regarding the
prohibition placed on PwC network companies performing
audits of listed entities for two years from 1 January 2018. The
Committee is watching developments on this matter carefully in
tha context of the Groug's two listed Indian subsidicries Foseco
India Limited and Vesuvius India Limited.

Independence and Objectivity

The Committee is responsible for safeguarding the
independence and objectivity of the external cuditorsin
order to ensure the integrity of the external audit process. In
discharging this responsibility during 2017, the Committee:

> Sought regular confirmation from the incumbent externat
ouwditor that it considered itself to be independent of the
Company in its own professional judgement, and within
the context of applicable prefessionol standards

> Evaluated allthe relationships between the external auditor
and the Group, including compliance with the Group's policy
on the employment of former employees of the external
auditer, to determine whether these impaired, or appear to
impair, the auditor's independence

> Reviewed compliance against the policy on the provision of
non-auditservices by the external auditor

> Reviewed details of the non-audit services provided by the
external auditor and associated fees

The Committee noted that, in Sweden, a non-permitted service
had been performed by PwC during the transition process,
being supporting compliance in respect of payroll taxes. Given
the de minimis nature of the fee incurred and balances invelved,
the Committee concluded that the conduct of this work had not
affected PwC's independence.

As a result of its review the Committee conciuded that PwC
remained cppropriately independent.
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Audit Committee continued

Non-audit Services

Vesuvius operates a policy for the approval of non-audit
services, This was revised in 2016, with the new pelicy applying
to the audit of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 and
for financial years thereafter. A copyis available to view on the
‘Investors/Corporate Governance’ section of the Company's
website, www.vesuvius.com. Group companies are not
permitted to use the external quditor for any "prohibited
non-audit services” as specified by the UK Financial Reporting
Council's (FRC's) Revised Ethical Standard 2016, unless subject
to a permitted dercgation. The restrictions broadly prohibit
external auditors'involvement intax services, any services

that involve playing o part in management decision-making,
preparing accounting records, designing or implementing
internal control/risk management services or financial systems,
certain HR services and other legal, investment and share-
decling services. The external auditor can be invited to provide
non-audit services which, in its pasition as external auditor, it
must oris best placed to undertake and which do not impact
auditor objectivity or independence. All audit-related and
permissible non-audit services proposed to be carried out for
any Group company worldwide by the external auditor mustbe
pre-approved by the Chief Financial Officer, who thereafter
will refer matters to be further approved by the Chairman of
the Audit Committee or the full Audit Committee before an
engagement is agreed. Any assignment proposed to be carried
out by the external auditor must alsc have cleared the external
auditor's own internal pre-approval process to confirm the
firm’s ethical ability to do the work.

In practice, the Group did not seek to engage PwC for non-audit
services during 2017 unless there were compelling advantages
to doing so. In 2017, the fees for non-audit services payable to
PwC amounted to £0.7m, similar to the non-audit fees of £0.1m
payableta KPMG LLP lastyear. The 2017 fees represent payment
for assurance services related to the review of the Company’s
half-year financial statements and quarterly reviews and tax
accountsin India (required by regulation). Tax compliance and
other non-audit services were for the previously mentioned
Swedish service, and the fransition of expatricte tax services to
the new outsourced provider.

Effectiveness and Reappointment of PwC for 2018

The Committee and the Boerd are committed to maintaining
the high quality of the external audit process. Throughout the
year the Committee ossessed the performance of the external
auditor, raking into consideration:

> The quality of reports provided to the Committee, and the
quality of issues and challenges raised with the Committee
and with management across the Group

> The level of insight exhibited in the feedback they provided
as part of the fransition process

> Management's assessment of the transition process
> Their definition and completion of the 2017 audit plan

> Their performance during their review of the 2017 half
year results

> The effectiveness of their relationship with the Committee,
with management ond with Internal Audit

> Feedback from the Chief Financial Cfficer and Group
Financial Controller an the quality of local audit teams

The Committee also considered the FRC's Audit Quality
Inspection of PwC publishedin June 2017,

A process to formally assess Pw(’s performance in respect
of the 2017 financial year will be completed following the
completion of their year-end work, taking account of the
guidance for cudit committees prepared by the FRC. As part
of this review, PwC will be asked to identify any issues they
consider could pase arisk to audit quality.

In arinitial assessment of PwC's performance during their first
year of audit, the Committee concluded that PwC had provided
an effective audit for 2017. They had exhibited a goed
understanding of the Group's businesses and internal control
environment (based on a significant process of engagement
with the business as part of audit transition) and hod provided
sound feedback to the Committee on the product of their
transition work. They had estaklished effective working
relationships with the Committee and with management, and
had exbibited an appropriate level of professional scepticism
and robust challenge of management's judgements as
appropriate. The Committee has therefore recommended to
the Boord that PwC be reappointed for 2018, It confirms thatits
recommendation is free from the influence of any third party
and that there are no contractual restrictions on the choice of
auditor. A resolution proposing the reappointment of PwC is
includedin the notice of AGM for 2018.

Audit Committee Evaluation

The Audit Committee’s performance was evaluated as part

of the overall externally facilitated Board ond Committee
performance evaluation, which is described in depth on page
82. The parformance of the Committee was rated highly, with
its oversight seen to be of avery high standard. A number of
areas of focus had been identified by the 2016 evaluation and it
was felt that these had all been managed effectively in 2077,
The transition of the external auditor had progressed smoothly
and the institution by the Audit Committee Chairman of more
regular meetings with management outside formal Committee
meetings had enhanced the flow of information with the
Committee. The 'deep dive' initiative had once again proved
useful in providing the Committee with detailed information

on key topics and would be continued in 2018, and the
implementation of an additional Audit Committee meeting
earlyinthe yeorend cycle had been positively received, and
would be continued.

On behalf of the Audit Committee
Douglas Hurt Chairman, Audit Committee

28 February 2018



Nomination Committee

Dearshareholder,

Cn behalf of the Nomination Committee, | am pleased to
present the Nomination Committee Report for 2017,

The primary responsibility of the Nomination Committee isto
focus on Board succession planning 1o ensure that the Boardis
made up of individuals with the appropriate drive, abilities and
experience to lead the Company in the delivery of its straftegy.
In 2017 the Committee presided over the oppointment of a new
Chief Executive as part of a planned succession process for
Frangois Wanecq, who retired from his role as Chief Executive at
the end of August 2017. We also appointed a new independent
Non-executive Director, Holly Koeppel, in April 2017, who
strengthensthe Board interms of its knowledge, skills ond
experience, replacing Nelda Connors who stepped down
fromthe Boardin late 2076.

The Committee reviews the current and future needs of the
Board and its Committees on an ongoing basis. In line with this,
during 2017, the Commirtee reviewed the tenure of all of the
Directors and discussed future Board rotation.

Inadditon, as part of the annual corporate governonce

review conducted each year, the Cormmittee examines the
independence of the Board and the balance of skills, and
development needs, of Board members. The output from this
process was used to define the recruirment requirements for the
new Directors, with each then having a job specification drawn
uptotargetthe attributes required.

The Committee's succession planning activities do not
exclusively relate to the Board, but also encompass the

senior management levels immediately below the Board.

The Committee is working to support and encourage the
growth of a consistent pool of talent able to step up to the top
roles in future years. The oversight of senior management
succession planning and talent development will be a key area
foremphasisin 2018.

During 2017 the Board formatised its approach to diversity,

and approved a Board Diversity Policy. In line with this, the
Committee continues to consider the mix of skills, experience
and knowledge required on the Board, and to promote diversity
not only onthe Board but also throughout the wider business.

Yourssincerely

JohnMcDonough CBE Chairman

Committee Members

John McDonough CBE (Committee Chairman)
Christer Gardell

Hock Goh

Jane Hinkley

Douglas Hurt

Holly Koeppel (appointed 3 April 2017)

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Cornmittee is made up of myself as Chairman
of the Company and any three of the Non-executive Directors.
During the year | continued as Chairmon of the Committee,
though | would not act as Chairman if the Committee was
considering the appointment of my successor. Inthat case, the
Chairman would be an appropriate Non-executive Director.
The Company Secretary is Secretary to the Committee.
Members' biographies are set out on pages 50 and 51.

Key Activities during the Year

> Completion of Chief Executive recruitment: The Committee
completed the Chief Executive succession process which
culminated in the selection and recommended appointment
of Patrick André as Chief Executive, succeeding Frangois
Wanecq on his retirement from the Company

> Non-executive appointment: The Committee led the search
for a new Non-executive Director resulting in the selection
and recommended appointment of Holly Koeppel

v

Board composition: The Committee reviewedthe skills,
knowledge and experience required forthe Boardto
continue to function effectively, and evaluated the current
Board composition against an assessment of these furure
business needs

> Boord succession: The Committee reviewed the ongoing
requirements for Board rotation to maintain the correct skills,
experience and diversity at Board level

> Directors’ elections: The Committee considered the Directors’
annyal re-glection atthe 2017 AGM

> Committee evaluation: The Committee reviewed ifs
performance and effectiveness during 2017

Role and Responsibilities

The Nemination Committee’s foremost priorities areto ensure
that the Company has the best possible leadership, maintains
aclear plan for orderly Executive and Non-executive Director
succession, and cultivates the appropriate skills, experience and
diversity in the Board's overall composition. Its primary focus is
therefore onthe strength of the Board, for which cppointments
are made on merit, against objective criteriq, selecting the best
candidate for the post. The Nemination Committee advisesthe
Board on appointments, retirements and resignations from the
Board and its Committees.
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Nomination Committee continued

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
which were reviewed and confirmed during the year.

The terms of reference are avoilable onthe Group's website
WWW.VESUVIUS.COM.

The Committes and its members are empowered to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice at the
cost of the Company in relation fo its deliberations. These rights
were not exercised during the year. The Committee may also
secure the attendance atits meetings of any employee or other
parties it considers necessary.

Process for Board Appointments

The Committee follows formal, rigerous and transparent
procedures for the appointment of new Directors. When
considering a Board appointment, the Nomination Committee
draws up a specification for the role, taking into consideration
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of its existing
members, the diversity of the Board, the independence of
continuing Board members, and the ongoing requirements and
onticipated strategic developments of the Group. The search
process is then able to focus on appointing a candidate with
the necessary attributes to enhance the Board's perfarmance.
The Committee uses the services of search firms fo identify
appropriate candidates, ensuring that any selected firmis not
in any way conflicted in the delivery of its role. In addition, the
Committee will only use those firms that have adopted the
Voluntary Code of Cenduct addressing gender diversity and
best practice in search assignments.

During 2017, the Committee oversaw a selection process to
identify a new Chief Executive to succeed Frangeis Wanecq
on his retirement from the Company, and the engoing search
for a new Non-executive Director, following Nelda Connors'
refirement fromthe Board in 20716. The Committes reviewed
the skills and attributes required for each role, and agreed
individual job specifications. The Committee utilised the
services of specialist recruitment agencies to search for suitable
condidates—Korn Ferry to identify prospective candidates
for the Chief Executive role, and Spencer Stuartto search for
anew Non-executive Director. Both agencies have adopted
the Voluntary Code of Cenduct, and neither have any

other connection with the Group other than in respect of
management recruitment work undertaken during normal
trading activities. Each agency was selected for their
assignment following a review of potenticiagencies based
ontheir skills, expertise and price.

Chief Executive

As part of the Group's ongoing senior management succession
planning processes, a detailed independent reviaw of internal
candidates was undertaken, to consider candidates for
succession to the role of Chief Executive, with those individuals
identified as potential candidates fully integrated by Korn Ferry
into the search process. The Nomination Committee also

engaged external assistance to benchmark the skills and
experience required for the Chief Executive role, defining the
issues fundamental to the Vesuvius role, giventhe Group's
business, scale, geographical diversity, performance and
the stage of its development. The search was conducted
globally and a long-list of potential appointees was produced,
including external, internal, international and female
candidates. The Committee reviewed the long-listand a
shortlist of candidates for interview was drawn up for the
role, based upon the objective criteria identified at inception.
The Chairman, and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee interviewed an nitial short-list of candidates,
with a shorter list of candidates then interviewed by the
Senior Independent Director and again by the Chairman.
The two final preferred candidates then met with all the
other Board members. Finally, detailed external references
were taken up and following this the Committee made formal
recommendations to the Board for the appointment of
Patrick André as the new Chief Executive. Patrick André was
supported inundertaking due diligence on the Company

in areas not connected to his previous role as President

Flow Control.

Non-executive Director

The search was conducted globally and o long-list of potential
appeintees was produced by Spencer Stuart. The Committee
reviewed the long-list and a short-list of candidates for interview
was drawn up, based upon the objective criteric identified ot
inception. The Chairman and the Chief Exacutive interviewed
the short listed candidates, and the preferred candidate then
met with all other Board members. Detailed externcl references
were taken up and, following this, the Committee made a
formal recommendationto the Board for the appointment of
Holly Koeppel as a new Non-executive Director. Holly Koeppel
was supported in undertaking her cwn due difigence onthe
Company and meeting with its advisers. She was also required
to demonstrate that she had sufficient time available to devote
to the role and to identify any potential conflicts of interest. No
conflicts wera identified.

Following their appointment, the Committes has continued to
monitor the development and integration onto the Board of the
two new Directors. Holly Koeppel and Patrick André both
undertook a full induction programme and have continued to
gain insight into the business and meet executives throughout
the crganisation.

Board Composition

On an ongoing basis, the Committee reviews the current and
future needs of the Board and its Committees - reflecting on
the balance of skills and experience of current Directors,

and comparing this against the Board's list of key skills.

The Committee also considers existing lengths of tenure and
the prospective rotation and retirement of Board members, so
thatit can plan accordingly. As part of the annual corperate



governance review conducted during the year, the Committee
examined the independence of the Board and the balance of
skills, and development needs of Board members. Based on
this analysis in 2016, the Committee concluded that the Boord
would benefit from the appointment of a new Non-axecutive
Director with expert knowledge of the industrial sector, together
with a high degree of commerciai ccumen and global markets
knowledge. The Non-executive Director searchidentified
above was commenced on this basis. In addition, the
Nomination Committee considered the future needs of the
business, its corporate strategy, culture and direction in
assessing its requirements of a new Chief Executive and used
this analysis to inform the recruitment process. The Committee
recognised that the business needed an individual who had
aproven track record of enhanced strategic thinking and
managing cemplexity, who also excelled at managing and
developing relationships with a cross-section of pecple.

Diversity

All Directors have served at a very senior level in global |
organisctions, have international experience across a variety of
industries, and most have spent a considerable amount of time
resident cutside the UK. The Nomination Committee believes
that diversity underpins the successful operation of the Board.
it recognisesthat thisis a key ingredient in creating a balanced
culture for discussions and minimising ‘group-think’, and
continues with its policy to review the requirements for different
skills, experience, background and gender in respect of the
Board's composition. During the year, the Board formalised its
approachto diversity, and approved a Board Diversity Policy,
details of which are set out on page BC. The Committee will
continue to consider the mix of skills, experience and knowledge
required on the Board, and promote diversity not only onthe
Board but alse throughout the wider business.

Senior Management Succession

During the year, the Committee’s succession planning activities
did not exclusively relate to the Board, but confinued to
encompass the senior monagement levels immediately below
the Board, aiming to support and encourage the growth of a
consistent pool of talent able to step up to the top roles in future
years. Consequently, the Committee continued to monitor the
execution of development plans for the Group Executive
Committee and supported the Board in understanding the
process for the development of high potentials throughout

the business. The Board met key executives throughout the
Group to gain a greater understanding of the breadth and
depth of management talent. This process included a series of
presentations to the Board by business unit, functional and
geographical heads providing the basis for a more informed
approach to executive succession planning and talent
development across the Group. As identified by the Board
evaluation process, the oversight of senicr management
succession planning will be a key area for emphasis in 2018.
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Committee Evaluation

The Committee’s activities were part of the externally facilitated
evizluation of Board effectiveness during the year. The Cormmittee
was considered to have performed effectively over the past
year and the oversight of the Chief Executive successicn process
was commented on favourably. Pricrities for the Committee
going forward include Board rotation overthe longer term,

as well as succession planning and talent development for
senicr management.

On behalf of the Nomination Committee
John McDonough CBE Chairman, Nomination Committee

28February 2018
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Remuneration Overview

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee, | am pleased to
present the Directors' Remuneration Report for 2017, which
sets out details of the pay received by Directorsin 2017 and how
we intend to apply our Remuneration Policy in 2018. This report
will be subject to an advisory shareholder vote ot the 2018
AGM.In 2017, Shareholders approved a new Remuneration
Poticy for the Group. If no changes are made prior to the 2020
AGM, then the Company will next need to formally table a
Remuneration Policy at thot meeting. Al payments received

by Directors in 2017 were in line with our Remuneration Policy.

I have set out details below of the key decisions made by the
Committee during 2017. More details about these are included
in the Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration.

Performancein 2017

Asdescribed inthe Strategic Report, 2017 was a year of

good pregress for the Group with revenue growth of 20.2%
outperforming end markets andthe global steel market.
Despite experiencing headwinds related to rising raw material
prices and inter-company imports required by Flow Control in
Europe, the Group saw a 24.2% increase in reported trading
prafit, with cash generation remaining strong. Throughout the
year, the Group remained focused on its strategic priorities
and made good progress with the restructuring programme
delivering increased annualised savings, strong progress in
developing markets and further investment in R&D.

In 2017, Annual Incentive awards for the Executive Directors
were based 60% on Group headiine earnings per share (EPS),
20% on the Group's cash conversion (defined as operating cash
flow divided by trading profit) and 20% on specified persenal
objectives. In order to further align the interests of our Directors
with those of our shareholders, we infroduced arequirement
inthe 20717 Remuneration Policy for deferral of a proportion
{(normally 33%) of the Annual Incentive into awards over shares
for three years. Given the appointment part way through

the year of a new Chief Executive, both Mr Wanecg's and

Mr André's awards, as Chief Exacutives, were accordingly
pro-rated.

fn 2017, our retranslated headline EPS of 3971p was above the
maximum Annual Incentive target of 35.6p. The Group’s 2017
cash conversion of 104% was between the threshold of 90% and
the target of 105%. This results in awards of 75% and 11.38% of
base salary respectively, being 86.38% in total for the current
Executive Directors, Patrick André and Guy Young, and for
Frangois Wanecq, in respect of the financial performaonce
metrics. In addition, we assessed each Executive Director's
completion of the personal objectives they were set for 2017,
awarding Mr André and Mr Young 19.65% and 15.75%
respectively of their maximum entitlernents of 25%, and

Mr Wanecq 15.00%. As a result, the overall Annual Incentive
payableto Mr André for 2017 is 106.03% of base salary
(pro-rated inrespect of his service as an Executive Director),
Mr Young 102.13% of base salary, and MrWaneca 101.38%
of base salary against maximum benus opportunities of 125%.
In addition, Mr André received an Annual Incentive payout

of 65.04% of his pro-rated base salary for 2017, cutofa
maximum benus opportunity of 80%, in respect of his tenure
as President, Flow Control prior t¢ his appointment os Chief
Executive. MrWanecg received an Annual Incentive payout
of 106.38% of his pro-rated base salary for the period of
service from 1 September 2017 10 31 December 2017, when
he had ceased to be a Director but remained as an employee
of the Group.

The performance period for the awards made under the
Vesuvius Share Plan in 2015 matured at the end of December
2017. Performance was measured equally by reference to Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) relative to the FTSE 250 (excluding
investment trusts) and headline EPS growth above compound
annual GDP growth over the three-year period. Relative TSR
performance was between median and upper quintile; asa
result 27.1% of Performance Share awards will vest under the
TSR element (out of @ maximum 50%). The annual compound
headline EPS growth above GDP for the period was 4.3%.
Asaresult, 16.6% of Performance Share awards will vest under
the EPS performance element {out of a maximum of 50%).
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In confirming the vesting of the Performance Shares, the
Committee reviewed the underlying performance of the
Company to satisfy itself that the outcorme was justified.
Awards will vest in April 20718.

Other Key Decisions made by the Committee
for 2017

Key decisions made by the Committee in 2077 included:

> Review, consideration and approval of anappropriate
remuneration package for Patrick André, our new Chief
Executive. The principal features of his remuneration
package were announced et the time of his appoirtment
and they are included inthe applicable secticns of this year's
Remuneration Report.

> Inconjunction with the transition of Chief Executive, the
Committee also considered the retirement arrangements for
Frangois Wanecq. A summary of these arrangements was
included inthe Section 430(2B) statement published on the
Company's website, and details are also included in this year’s
Remuneration Report.

> The Remuneration Policy approved in 2017 states that, whilst
an individual's performance is reviewed annually, changes to
base salary are normally appraised over a two or three-year
peried. Inline with this policy, the Committee reviewed Guy
Young'ssalaryin 2017, [t was agreed that his salary should be
increased by 7.7%to £350,000 with effectfrom 1 January
2018. Thisis the first increcse in Guy's salary since he joined
Vesuvius in 2015 and reflects the considerable diligence and
dedication he has broughtto the role and his developmentin
it since the time of his appointment.

v

The Committee considered the structure of performance
measures forincentives in 2018. Having reviewed the existing
arrangements, the Committee intends to use the same
framework for performance measures in 20718 that was used
in 2017 for Executive Directors' incentive awards, updating
one of the metrics to reflect more effectively the strategic
demands of the business. Thus, these measures reward:

— Growth: through the EPS measure used in the Annual
Incentive and the Vesuvius Share Plan —as in 2017

- Effective working capital management: through an
updated target of working capital to sales ratic (based
onthe 12-month moving average) to be used in the
Annual Incentive

— Delivery of shareholder value: through the TSR measure
used inthe Vesuvius Share Plan—as in 2017

> In eddition, the Committee also took decisions about the
grant and vesting of Share Plan awards in 2017 and the
Annual Incentive Plan payments made in 2017 in respect
of 2016.

Shareholders’ Views

The Committee encourages dialogue with its major
shareholders, Itis satisfied that the current Remuneration Policy
is designed to promete the long-term success of the Company,
and that the performance-related elements of remuneration,
which are kept under review, are transparent, stretching and
rigorously applied. The Committee was encouraged by the
significant support shown for the new Remuneration Policy
when it was tabled at the 2017 AGM {99% of votes in favour).

| remain keen to hear shareholders' views on remuneration
matters and look forward to an ongeing dialogue with
sharehelders and their continued support for our Directors’
Remuneration Repert resclution at the AGM.

Yourssincerely
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The Company's existing Remuneration Palicy was approved at the AGM held on 10 May 2017. The previous policy applied in its
entirety up until this date and after this date those elements of the previous policy that related to remuneration that remained
exfanton this date (such as outstanding share awards) continued to apply until these commitments cease.

The full pelicy report, as approved by shareholders, can be foundin the 2076 Annual Report {a copy of which is available under the
Reportstabinthe Investors' section of the Group website www.vesuvius.com). For the benefit of shareholders, we have reprinted
the Pclicy below. To ensure that the Policy is relevant to the 2018 financial year, we have made minor textual changes to refer to the
applicable financial year in the following sections: lllustration of the Application of the Remuneration Policy for 2018 {which also
contains, as described, 2017 data); and Consideration of Sharehalder Views. We have amended the 'Service contracts'section to
referto the terms of the current Executive Directors and the ‘Terms of service’ section to refer to the dates of appointment of the
current non-executive directors,

The Remuneration Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration poyments and payments for loss of office (including
exercising any discretions available to it in connection with such payments), notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy
set out here, where the terms of the payment were agreed; (i) before the date the Company's first Remuneration Palicy approved
by shareholders in accordance with section 439A of the Companies Act came into effect; (i) before the policy set out here came
into effect, provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved Remuneration Policy in force
at the time they were agreed; or (i) at a time when the relevant individual was not a Director of the Company and, in the opinion
of the Remuneration Committee, the payment was notin consideration for the individua! becoming o Director of the Company.
For these purposes, ‘payments’includes the Remuneration Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and, inrelation
to an award over shares, the terms of the payrment are ‘'agreed’ at the time the award is granted.

Remuneration Policy Table for Executive Directors

Base salary

Alignment/purpose

Helpsta recruitand retain key employees.
Reflectstheindividual's experience, role
and contribution withinthe Company.

Operation

Theindividual's performance isreviewed
annually, with changes fo base salary
normally cppraised over atwo to three-
year period.

Any change willnormolly be effective
from1 Jonuaryintheyear of theincrease.

Base salary is positioned tobe market
competitive when considered against other
globalindustrial companies, and relevant
internationel and FTSE 250 companies
{exciuding Investment Trusts).

Paidincash, subject to localtax and social
security regulations.

Other benefits

Alignment/purpose
Provides normat market practice benefits.

Operation

Arange of standard benefitsincluding,
but notlimited to: car allowance, private
medical care (including spouse and

Opportunity
Saloryincreases willnormally be inline with
the average increase awarded to other

employeesin the Group over a similar period.

Inconsidering anyincrease inbase salary,
the Committee will also consider:

(i) theroleandvalueof theindividual;
(i} chongesinjob scope or responsibility;

(i) progressionintherole (e.g. for anew
appointee);

(iv) asignificantincrease inthe scale of role
and/or size, value or complexity of the
Group; and

(v) the need to maintain market
competitiveness,

dependent children), life insurance, disability
and health insurance, together with

relocation allowance and expatriate benefits,

insomeinstances grossed up fortax, in
accerdance with the Group's policies, and
participation inany employee share scheme
operated by the Group.

In line with the two to three-year period for
base sclary appraisal, individual increases
when paid are likely to be in excess of those
for the wider population of employees for
that year.

Noabsolute maximurm has been set for
Executive Director base salaries. Current
Executive Directors' salaries are set outinthe
Annual Report onDirectors' Remuneration
section of this Remuneration Report.

Performance

Anyincreasewilltoke into account the
individual's performance, contribution
and increasing experience.

Opportunity

There is no formal maximum as benefit costs
canfluctuate depending on changesin
provider, costand individual circumstances.

Performance
None



Pension

Alignment/purpose
Helpstorecruitand retain key employees.
Ensuresincomein retirement.

Annual Incentive

Alignment/purpose

Incentivises Executive Directors to achieve
key short-term financial and strategic
targets of the Group.

Additional alignment with shareholders’
interests through the operation of
banusdeferral.

Operation

Normally 33% of any Annual Incentive
earned by Executive Directorswiltbe
deferredinto awards over shgresunder

the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan
which normally vest after at least three
years, otherthanin specified cireumstances
outlined elsewherein this Policy. These may
be cash or shore settled.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Alignment/purpose
Flexible umbrella’plan.

Aligns Executive Directors interests with
those of shareholdersthrough the delivery
of shares. Rewords Executive Directors
for achieving the strategic objectives of
grewthin shareholder value and earnings.

Assists retention of Executive Directors
over athree-year performance period.
Operation

Awards may be granted as:

> Performance share awards

» Deferred share bonus awards

> Restricted share awards

= Market-price options

These may be cash or share settled.

Individuals are entitled tc on aggregate
annual maximum amount of awards.

If more than one type of award is granted,
the individual Imitfor all awardsis reduced
to remain within the maximum.

Operation

Anallowanceis given as a percentage of
base salary. This may be used to participate
in Vesuvius pension arrangements, invested
in own pension arrangerments or tokenasa
cash supplement (or any combination of the
above options).

The Committee has the discretion to
determine that actuclincentive payrments
should belower thanievels calculated by
referenceto achievernent againsttargets
itit considers thisto be appropriate.

The Committee has the discretion to
award participants the equivalent value
of dividends accrued during the vesting
period on any shares that vest.

Subject to malus and clawback.

Opportunity
Belowthreshold: 0%.

On-target: 62.5% of base salary.
Maximum: 125% of base salary.

Payments made between threshold
and on-target and between on-target
and maximum are pre-rated

Awards vest three years after their award
date, atherthaninspecified circumstances
outlined elsewhere in this policy, subjectto
the achievement of specified conditions.

The Cormmittee may decide that the sharesin
respect of which an awerd vestsare delivered
to participants at that point or that awards
willthen be subjectto on additional helding
period before participants are entitled to
receive theirshares.

The Committee has the discretion to award
participants the equivalent value of dividends
accrued during the vesting period onany
shares thatvest.

Subjecttomalus and clawback.

Opportunity

Executive Directors are eligible to receive
anannual award with aface value ofup
10 200% of base salary in Performance
share awards.

Vesting at threshold performanceis 25%

rising to vesting of the fulloword at meximum.

Opportunity
Maximum of 30% of base salary.

Performance
None

Performance

Annual Incentive ismeasuredon targets set at
the beginning of each year. The Committee
establishes threshold and maximum
performance rargets for each financial year.
The majority of the Annual lncentive will be
determined by measure(s) of Groupfinancial
performance. Theremainder of the Annual
Incentive will be based an financial, strategic
aroperational measures appropriate fothe
individual Director. Performance is measured
over a one-year period. Actual perfermance
targets will be disclosed after the
performance period has ended. They are

not disclosed in advance due tatheir
commercial sensitivity.

Performance

Vesting of Performance Share awardsis
usually dependent on measures of Group
EPS andrelative TSR with the precise
measures and weighting of the measures
determined by the Committee chead of each
award. These detailsare disclosedinthe
Annual Report on Directors' Remuneration
section of this Remuneration Report.

The Company reserves the rightonlyto
disclose EPS performancetargets afterthe
performance period has ended, due to their
commercial sensitivity.

Prior to any vesting, the Remuneration
Committee also reviews the underlying
financial performance of the Company aver
the performance pernodto ensure the vesting
is justified.
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Malus/Clawback Arrangements

The Executive Directors’ variable remuneration is subject to
malus and clawback provisions. These provide the Committee
with the flexibility, if required, to withhald or recover payments
made to Executive Directors under the Annual Incentive Plan
{including deferred awards) and/or to withhold or recover share
awards granted to Executive Directors under the Vesuvius
Share Plan, including any dividends granted on such awards.
The circumstances in which the Committee could potentially
electto apply malus and clawback provisionsindude: o
material misstatement in the Company’s financial statements;
an error inthe calculation of the extent of payment or vesting of
an incentive; gross misconduct by anindividual; or significant
financial loss or sericus reputational damage to Vesuvius plc
resulting from anindividual's conduct, a material failure of

risk management or a serious breach of health and safety.
These malus and clawhack provisions apply for @ period of

up tothree years after the end of a performance period

{or end of the deferral period in respect of deferred awards).

Performance Measures

inselecting parformance measures for the Annual Incentive,
the Committee seeks to reflect key strategic aims and the
need for a rigorous focus on financial performance. Each year
the Committee agrees challenging targets to ensure that
underperformance is not rewarded. The Company will notbe
disclosing the specific financiol or personal objectives set unti
after the refevant performance period has ended because of
commercial sensitivities. The personal objectives are all
non-financial or job-specificin nature and track perfarmance
againstkey strategic, organisational and operational goals.

In selecting performance measures for the Vesuvius Share
Plan, the Committee seeks to focus Executive Directors on
the execution of long-term strategy and also align their
rewards with value created for shareholders. On this basis,
the performance conditions for the Vesuvius Performance
Share awards will usuclly be dependent on measures based
on TSR and EPS performance.

Within the policy period, the Committee will continually review
the performance measures used, including TSR and the
applicable comparator group, and EPS and other financial
measures, to ensure that awards are made on the basis of
challenging targets that clearly support the achievement of
the Group's strategic aims.

The Committee may vary or waive any performance
condition(s} if circumstances occur which cause it to determine
that the original condition(s) have ceased to be appropriate,
provided that any such variation or waiver is fair, recsonable
and not materially less difficult to satisfy than the original
condition (in its opinion). In the event that the Committee were
to make an adjustment of this sort, a full explanation would be
provided in the next Remuneration Report.

The Committee may: (o) in the event of a variation of the
Company's share capital, demerger, special dividend or any
other corporate event which it reasonably determines justifies
such an adjustment, adjust; and (b) amend the rerms of
awards granted under the share schemes referred to above
in accordance with the rules of the relevant plans.

Share awards may be settled by the issue of new shares or

by the transfer of existing shares. In line with prevailing best
practice at the time this Policy Report was approved, any
issuance of new shares is limited to 5% of share capital over
rolling ten-year period in relotion to discretionary employee
share schemes and 10% of share copital over arolling ten-year
period in relation to all employee share schemes.



Illustration of the Application of the Remuneration
Policy for 2018

The charts below show the fotal remuneration for Executive
Directors for 2018 for minimum, an-target and maximum
performance. The fixed elements of remuneration comprise
base salary, pension and other benefits, using 2018 salary data.
The assumptions on which they are calculated are asfollows:

Minimum: Fixed remuneration only.

On-target: Fixed remuneration plus en-target Annual Incentive
{made at 62.5% of base sclary for Potrick André and

Guy Young} and threshold vesting (i.e. median performance
for TSR and threshold for EPS) for Performance Share awards
(made at 200% of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of
base salary for Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Maximum: Fixed remuneration plus maximum Annual Incentive
{being full achievement of financial and personal targets, made
at 125% of base salary for Patrick André and Guy Young} and
100% vesting for Performance Share awards (made at 200%
of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of base salary for
Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Note: In addihon the Committee retains the discretion to oward dividends
{either shares or their cosh equivalent) on any shares that vest

Service Contracts of Executive Directors

The Committee will periodically review the contractual terms
for new Executive Directors to ensure these reflect best practice.
Service confracts currently operate on arolling basis and are
limTted to a 12-month notice period.

Patrick André is employed as Chief Executive of Vesuvius plc
pursuant 1o the terms of a service agreement made with
Vesuvius plc dated 17 July 2017, Guy Young is employed as
Chief Financial Officer pursuant to the terms of aservice
agreement with Vesuvius plc dated 16 September 2015,

Each Executive Director's appointment is terminable by
Vesuvius on not less than 12 months’ written notice, and by each
Executive Director on not lass than six months’ written notice.

External Appeintments of Executive Directors

The Executive Directors do not currently serve as Non-executive
Directors of any other quoted company. Subject always to
consent being granted by the Company for them to take up such
an appeointment, were they ta so serve, the Company would
allow thern to retain any fees they received for the performance
of their duties.

101

2JUDLIDAGD I



102

Vesuvius plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Remuneration Policy continued

Remuneration Policy for Non-executive Directors

The Company seeks to appoint Non-executive Directors who have relevant professional knowledge, and have gained experience
in arelevant industry and geogrophical sector, to support diversity of expertise at the Board and match the wide gecgraphical
spread of the Company's activities.

Non-executive Directors attend Board, Committee and other meetings, held mainly inthe UK, together with an annual strategy
review fo debate the Company's strategic direction. All Non-executive Directors are expected 1o familiarise themselves with the
scale and scope of the Company's business and to maintain their specific technicai skills and knowledge.

The Board setsthe level of fees paid to the Non-executive Directors after considering the role and responsibilities of each Director
and the practice of other companies of a similar size and international complexity. The Non-executive Directors do not participate
in Board discussions on their own remuneration. No variable remuneration is available to Non-executive Directars, Non-executive
Directors receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee and other ad hoc meetings,
including gross up payments to cover any personal tax owed on such expenses.

Fees
Alignment/purpose The Chairmanis paid a single fee and Base fees paid to Non-executive
Toattract and retain Non-executive Directors  receives administrative support from Directors willin aggregate reman within
ofthe necessoryski\l and experience by the Company. the OggrEgGTEhmJTSTOTEd inour Articles,
offering market-competitive fees. currently being £500,000.

Opportunity
Operation Non-executive Directors and the Chairman Performance
Fees are usually reviewed every other will be poid marker-appropriate fees, with Nane
yearbythe Board. anyincrease reflecting changesinthe market

oradjustments to aspecific Non-executive
Non-executive Directors are paid o base Director'srale.
feeforthe performance of theirrole,
payable incash, plus add itional fees for Naeligibilityfor bonuses, retirement benefits
Committee chairmanship er acting os orto participate inthe Group'semployee
the Senior Independent Director. share plans.
Benefits and expenses
Alignment/purpose Operation Opportunity
To facilitate execution of responsibilities AllNon-executive Directors arereimbursed Non-executive Directors' expenses are
and duties required by the role. for reasonable expenses incurred in carrying paidin accerdance with Vesuvius'

out their duties (including any personal tax expense procedures.

owing on such expenses).

Performance
None

Terms of Service of the Chairman and other Non-executive Directors

The terms of service of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors are cantained in letters of appointment. Each Non-executive
Director is appointed subject to their election at the Company's first Annual General Meeting following their appointment and
re-election at subsequent Annual General Meetings. During the first year of his/her appointment, the Chairman is entitled to

12 months' notice from the Company; thereafter, he/she is entitled to six months' notice from the Company. None of the other
Non-executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at any time. All Non-executive Directors are subject

o retirement, and election or re-election, in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The current policy is for
Non-executive Directors to serve on the Board for a maximum of nine years, with review at the end of three and six vears,

subject always to mutual agreement and annual perfermance evaluation. The Board retains discretion to extend the tenure of
Non-executive Directors beyond this time, subject to the requirements of Boord balance and independence being satisfied.



The table below shows the date of appointment for each of the Nan-executive Directors:

Non-Executive Director

Dateof Appointment
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John Mc Donough CBE 31 October 2012
Christer Gardell 31 October 2012
Hock Goh 2 April 2015

Jane Hinkley 3 December 2012
Douglas Hurt 2 April 2005

Holly Keeppel 3 April 2017

Recruitment Policy

Cn appointment or promotion of a new Executive Director,
the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy in
force atthe time of the Committee's decision to determine
ongoing remuneration.

Base salary levels will generally be set in accordance with the
Remuneration Policy current at the time of the Committee’s
decision, taking info account the experience and calibre of the
appointee. If it is appropriate to appoint an individual on a base
salary initially below what is adjudged to be market positioning,
contingent on individual performance, the Committee retains
the discretion to realign base salary over the onetothree years
following appointment, which may resultin a higher rate of
annualised increase than might otherwise be awarded under
the policy. If the Committee intends to rely on this discretion,

it will be noted in the first Remuneration Report following
anindividual's appointment. Other than in exceptional
circumstances, other elements of annual remuneration will,
typically, be setin line with the Remuneration Policy including a
limit on awards under the Annual Incentive and Vesuvius Share
Plan of 325% of salary in aggregate. The Committee retains
the discretion to make the following further exceptions:

> Inthe event that an internal appointment is made, or where
a Director is appointed as @ result of transfer into the Group
on anacquisition of ancther Company, the Committee
may continue with existing remuneration provisions for this
individual, including pension entitlements, where appropriate

v

If necessary and appropricte to secure the appointment
of a candidate who has to move locations as a result of the
appointment, whether internal or external, the Committee
may make additional payments finked to relocation,
above those outlined inthe policy table, and would
authorise the payment of a relocation allowance and
repatriation, as well as other associcted international
maobility terms. Such benefits would be set at alevel which
the Committee considers appropriate for the role and the
individual's circumstances

> If appropriate the Committee may apply different
performance measures and/or targets to a Director's
firstincentive awards in his/her year of cppointment

Service confracts will be entered into on terms similar to those
for the existing Executive Directors, summarised inthe 'Service
contracts of Executive Directors' section above.

In addition to the ennual remuneration elements noted above,
the Committee may consider buying out terms, incentives and
any other compensation arrangements forfeited on leaving

a previous employer that an individual forfeits in accepting

an appointment with Vesuvius. The Committee will have the
authority to rely on Listing Rufe 9.4.2R{(2) or to apply the
existing limits within the Vesuvius Share Plan to make Restricted
Share awards on recruitment. In making any such awards,

the Committee will review the terms of any forfeited awards,
including, but not limited to, vesting periods, the expected value
of such awards on vesting and the likelihcod of the performance
targets applicable to such awards being met, while retaining
the discretion to make any buy-cut award the Committee
determinesis necessary and appropriate. The Committee moy
also require the appointee to purchase shares in Vesuviusto a
pre-agreed leve! prior to vesting of any such awards. The value
of any buy-out award will be capped, to ensure its maximum
vafue is no higher than the value of the awards that the
individual forfeited on joining Vesuvius. Any such awards will

be subjectto malus and clawback.

With respect to the appointment of a new Chairman or
Non-executive Director, appointment terms will be consistent
with those applicable at the time the appointment is agreed.
Variable pay will not be considered. With respectto
Non-executive Directors, fees will be consistent with the

policy at the time the appointment is agreed. If, in exceptional
circumstances, a Non-executive Director was asked to assume
aninterim executive rale, the Company retains the discretion
to pay them appropriate executive compensation, in line

with the policy.

Exit Payment Policy

Vesuvius has the option to make a payment in lieu of part or all
of the required notice period for Executive Directors. Any such
payment inlieuwill consist of the base salary, pension contributions
and value of benefits to which the Director would have baen
entitled for the duration of the remaining notice period, net of
statutory deductionsin each case. Half of any paymentsin lieu
of notice would be made in a lumgp sum, the remainder in egual
menthly instalments commencing in the month in which the
midpeint of their foregone notice period falls (and are reduced
or extinguished by salary from any role undertaken by the
departing Executive in this fime). Executive Directors are subject
1o certain non-compete covenants for a period of nine months,
and non-solicitation covenants for a period of 12 manths,
following the termination of their employment. Their service
agreements are governed by English law,
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Executive Directors' contracts do not contain any change of
control provisions; they do contain o duty to mitigate should
the Director find an clternative poid occupation in any period
during which the Company must otherwise pay compensation
on early fermination.

The table below summarises how the awards under the
annual bonus and Vesuvius Share Plan are typically tfreated

Event Tirming

indifferent leaver scenarios and on a change of control.
Whilst the Committee retains overall discretion on determining
good leaver status, it typically defines a ‘good leaver’ in
circumstances such as retirement with agreement of the
Company, ill health, disability, death, redundancy, or part of
the business in which the individual is employed or engaged
ceasing to be part of the Group. Final treatment is subject to
the Committee's discreticn.

Caleulation of vesting/paymant

Annuvalincentive Plan

Goodleaver
employees.

Paid at the same time as to continuing

Annual bonus is paid only to the extent

that any performance conditions have been
satisfied and s pro rated for the proportion
of the financial year worked before cessation
of employment.

Badleaver Notapplicable.

Individuals lose the right to their annual bonus.

Change of control
of contrel.

Paid onthe effective date of change

Annual bonusis paid only to the extent that
any performance conditions have been
satisfied and is pro rated for the proportion
of the financial year worked.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Good leaver

On normalvesting date (or earlier ot
the Commiftee's discretion).

Unvested awards vest to the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
and & pro rata reduction applies to the value
ofthe awards totakeinto accounithe
propartion of vesting period not served, unless
the Cormmittee decides thatr thereductionin
the number of vested sharesisinappropriate.

Badleaver Unvested awards lapse.

Unvested awards lapse on cessation
of employment.

Change of cantrof’ Onthedateoftheevent.

Unvested awards vest o the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
and a pro rata reduction applies for the
proportion of the vesting period nof served.

Note:

1. Incertain circumstances, the Committee may determine that unvested awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan will not vast en a charge of control butwill instead be replaced
by an equivalent grant of a new award, as deterrminad by the Commiittee, in the new company

inthe case of the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan if the
individual leaves for any reason {other than dismissal for cause)
orin the event of a change in control, the deferred award will
vestinfull, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Benefits normally cease to be provided on the date employment
ends. However, the Committee has the discretion to allow some
minor benefits (such as health insurance, tax advice and
repatriation expenses) o continue 1o be provided for a period
following cessation where this is considerad fair and reasonable
or appropriate onthe basis of local market practice. In addition,
the Committee retains discretion to fund other expenses for the
Executive Director, for example, payments to meet legal fees
incurred in connection with termination of employment, or to
meet the costs of providing outplacement support, and de
minimis fermination costs up to £5,000 to cover transfer of
mobile phene or other administrative expenses.

The Committee raserves the right to make any other

payments in connection with a Director’s cessation of office or
employment where the payments are madein good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages
for breach of such an obligation) or by way of a compromise or
settlement of any claim arising in cennection with the cessation
of a Director’s office or employment.

In certain circumstances, the Committee may approve new
contractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors
including (but not limited to) serflement, confidentiality,
resfrictive covenants and/or consuitancy arrangements.
These would be used only where the Committee believed it
was in the best interests of the Company to do so.



Comparison of Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors with that for other Employees

The Remuneration Policy for Executive Directarsis designed

in line with the remuneration philosophy set out in this report

- which also underpins remuneration for the wider Group.
Remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors draw on
the same elements as those for other employees - base salary,
fixed benefits and retirement benefits —with performance-
related pay extending down into the monagement cadres and
beyond. Howaver, given that remuneration structures for other
employees need to reflect both seniority and local market
practice, they differ from the policy for Executive Directors.

In particular, Executive Directors receive a higher proportion
of their remuneration in performance-related pay and
share-based payments. Individual percentages of fixed

versus variable remuneration and participation in share-based
structures decline as seniority decreases.

The process for delivering salary increases on a two to
three-year cycle for Executive Directorsis also applied to
other members of the Group Executive Committee and their
direct managerial reperts. Whilst all employees receive an
annual performance appraisal, other employees continue to
receive salary reviews on an annual basis.

As with Executive Directors, middle and senior managers
participate in the Annual Incentive Plan. For members of the
Group Executive Committee and functional employees,

the award is predominantly based on Group performance,
with the remainder awarded against achievement of personal
objectives. For operational employees, any potential award

is based upon achieving three measures relating to Group
performance, business unit performance, and individual
achievemnent of personal objectives.

All members of the Group Executive Committee participate in
the Vesuvius Share Plan and receive awards of Performance
Shares, which vestin accordance with measures and targets set
against EPS and TSR, The level of awards granted 1o members
of the Greup Executive Committee who don't serve an the
Board are lower than those payable to the Executive Directors.

For cerfain senior and middle managers, awords are made
under the Vesuvius Medium Term Plan (MTP"). These managers
participate inthe MTP at varying percentage levels, and
awards are based on the same measures and targets asthe
Annualincentive Plan. Senior managers have their MTP awards
made over Vesuvius shores, whilst middle managers receive
their awards in cash. In each case, awards are granted following
the end of the relevant financial vear. The MTP share awards
vestonthe second anniversary of the date of grant, subjectto
confinuing employment.

Coensideration of Conditions elsewhere in the Group
in Developing Policy

The Company does net consult directly with employees on
Executive Directors' remuneration arrangements. However,
the Remuneration Committee will toke into occount the pay
and employment conditions of other Group employees when
determining Executive Directors' remuneration, particularly
when determining base salary increases, when the Committee
will consider the salary increases for other Group employeesin
the same jurisdiction.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

Vesuvius is committed to open and transparent dialogue with

its shareholders on remuneration as well as other governance
matters. As Chairman of the Committee, Jane Hinkley
welcomes shareholder engogement andis available for any
discussions investors wish to have on remuneration matters.
During 2017, remuneration motters were discussed at o number
of meetings withinvestors. The feedback from such meetingsis
always shared with the Committee and taken into consideration
when decisions are made about future remuneration strategy
and arrangements.

Shareholding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors
to build and hold a shareholding in the Company. The required
hotding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalent in value to at
least 2x salary and that required of other Executive Directors
isto be equivalentinvalueto at least Tx salary.

Compliance with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of
each year for applicationin the following year using the average
of the closing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading
days in that December.

General

The Committee may make minor amendments 1o the policy
sef outin this Policy Report (for regulatory, exchange control,
tax or cdministrative purposes or to take account of a change
in legislation) without obtoining shareholder approval for
that amendment.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration Committee Structure

The current members of the Remuneration Committee are all
the independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee Chairman is Jane Hirkley. Jane Hinkley,

Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt have all served onthe Committee
throughout 2017. Holly Keeppel has served on the Committee
since her appointment to the Board on 3 April 2017, All continue
in office os at the date of this report. The Committee complies
with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
for the compasition of remuneration committees. Each of the
members brings a broad experience of international businesses
and an understanding of their challenges 1o the work of the
Committee. The Company Secretary is Secretary to the
Committee. Members' biographies are on pages 50 and 51.

Meetings

The Committee met five times during the year. The Group's
Chairman, Chief Executive and Chief Human Resources Officer
were invited to each meeting, together with Christer Gardell, our
non-independent Non-executive Director, though none of them
participated in discussions regording their own remuneration.

In addition, a representative from Deloitte, the Remuneration
Committee adviser, attended the majority of meetings and the
Chief Financial Officer ottended where the agenda of the
meeting required it. The attendees supported the work of the
Committee, giving critical insight into the operational demands
of the business and their application fo the overall remuneration
strategy withinthe Group. In receiving views on remuneration
matters from the Executive Directors and senior management,
the Committee recognised the pofential for conflicts of interest
to arise and considered the advice accordingly. The Chairman
of the Committee reported the outcomes of alt meetings to

the Board.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
which were reviewed during the year. The terms of reference
are available on the Group website www.vesuvius com.

The Committee members are permitted to obtain cutside

legal advice at the Company's expense in relation to their
deliberations. These powers were not exercised during the year.
The Committee may also secure the attendance at its meetings
of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Role and Responsibilities
The Committeeis responsible for:

> Determining the overall remuneration policy for the Executive
Directors including the terms of their service agreements,
pension rights and compensation payments

> Setting the appropriate remuneration for the Chairman,
the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary

> Recommending and monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration for senior monagement, being the first loyer
of management below Board level and their direct reports

> Overseeing the operation of the executive share incentive plans

Advice Provided to the Remuneration Committee

Deloitte is appointed directly by the Remuneration Committee
to provide advice on executive remuneration matters, including
remuneration structure and policy, updates on market practice
and trends, and guidance on the implementation and cperation
of share incentive plans. The Committee appointed Delcitte,

a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group Cede of
Conduct in relation to Executive Remuneration Consulting in
the UK, following a formaltender process in 2014. Deloitte also
provides the Remuneration Committee with ongoing calculations
of total shareholder return {TSR) to enable the Committee to
monitor the performance of long-term share incentive plans.

In addition in 2017, within the wider Group, Deloitte was procured
invarious jurisdictions to provide accounting and tax advisory
work. During 2017, Deloitte’s fees for advice to the Remuneration
Committee, charged on a time spent basis, amounted to £71,975.
The Committee conducted a review of the performance of
Deloitte as remuneration adviser during the year and concluded
that Deloitte continued to provide effective, objective and
independent advice to the Committee. No conflict of interest arises
as aresult of other services provided by Deloitte to the Group.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee

The key matters the Remuneration Committee considered
during its five meetings in 2077 included:

> Considering, formuloting and approving the remuneration
arrangements for the new Chief Executive

> Agreeing the retirement arrangements for the outgoing
Chief Executive

> Considering and approving the 2018 salary review proposals
far the Chief Financial Officer and reviewing proposals for
senior managerment, as apprepriate

> Reviewing and opproving achievement against performance
targets for the 20116 onnualincentive arrangements

> Setting perfermance targets and approving the structure of
the 2017 annualincentive arrangements

> Reviewing and assessing the Company's attainment of
performance conditions applicable ro the Vesuvius
Performance Share awards made in 2014

> Setting the performance measures and targets, and
authorising the grant of new awards in 2017 under the
Vesuvius Share Plan and Medium Term Incentive Plan

> Considering the Company's cngoing share sourcing
requirements to meet obligations under the Company’s share
plans, and funding of the ESOP

v

In the light of advice raceived from the externai advisers and
trends in remuneration practice and governance, discussing
the Company's overall approach to executive remuneration
and reviewing whether any changes should be made

> Reviewingthe Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference

> Approving the 2016 Directors' Remuneration Reportand
reviewing the 2017 Directors’ Remuneration Report



Asin previous years, the Committee was the subject of an
externally moderated performance evaluation. The performance
ofthe Remuneration Committee was rated positively averall.
Several items had been identified in the 2016 evaluation, and it
was noted that these had been effectively managed in 2017,
with, in particular, the Committee gaining greater insight info
the remuneration arrangements for employaes below the senior
management tier and global remuneration policies. Going
forward, communication was identified as an area of focus,
withthe Committee expressing the view that the appointment
of the new Chief Executive should be taken as an opportunity to
review the level of diologue between the Committee Chairman,
management and the external advisers. In addition, as with the
Board in general, it was felt that the Remuneration Committee
would benefit from the more concise presentation of datain
Committee papers.

Regulatery Compliance

The Remuneration Pelicy, which is set out on pages 98 to 105
was prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

and the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports} (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

It also meets the requirements of the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules. This Remuneration Report sets out how the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code are applied
by the Company in relation to matters of remuneration. We
have complied for the year under review with these provisions.

Share Usage

Under the rules of the Vesuvius Share Plan, the Company has
the discretion o satisfy awards either by the transfer of Treasury
shares or other existing shares, or by the allotment of newly

Directors’ Remuneration - Audited

issued shares. Awards made under the Deferred Share Bonus
Plan, to satisfy shares awarded to Directors under the Annual
Incentive, and awards made to senior managers by the
Company over shares pursuant ta the Medium Term Incentive
Plan, must be satisfied out of Vesuvius shares held for this
purpose by the Company's employee share ownership plan
trust (ESCP). The decision on how to satisfy awards is taken by
the Remuneration Committee which considers the most prudent
and appropriate sourcing arrangement for the Company.

At 31 December 2017, the Company held 7,271,174 ordinary
shares in Treasury and 877,744 ordinary shares inthe ESOP.
The ESOP can be gifted Treasury shares by the Company, can
purchase shares in the open market or can subscribe for newly
issued shares, as required, fo meet obligations to satisfy options
and awards that vest,

The Vesuvius Share Plan complies with the current Investment
Association guidelines on headroom which provide that overall
dilution under all plans over arolling ten-year period should

not exceed 10% of the Company's issued share capital, with

a further limitation over arolling ten-year peried of 5% for
discretionary share schemes. More than 9.9% of the 10% limit
and more than 4.9% of the 5% limit is available as headroom for
the issue of new shares or the transfer of Treasury shares for the
Company. No Treasury shares have been transferred or newly
issued shares allotted under the Vesuvius Share Plan during the
year under review.

Policy implementation

The following section provides details of how the Company's
Remuneration Policy was implemented during the financial year
2017 and how it will be implemented in the financial year 2018.

The table below sets out the total remuneration received by Executive Directars in the financial year under review:

107

Patrick André! Frangois Wanecq? Guy Young
2m7 2016 2017 2018 2017 2016
(E000) (£000) (£000} (£000) (£000) {£000)
Total salary? 175 - 393 530 325 325
Taxable benefits? 56 - 156 35 18 19
Pension® 44 - 118 177 81 81
Total fixed pay* 275 - 667 802 424 425
Annual Incentive’ 186 - 399 371 332 166
Long-termincentives® - - 609 - - -
Totalvariable pay? 186 - 1,008 577 332 166
Total® 461 — 1,675 1,173 756 591
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Thetable below sets out the fees and taxable benefits received by Non-executive Directors in the financial year under review and
the total remuneration received by both Executive and Non-executive Directors during the yeor under review:

2077 2006
Toxable Taxable

Totaifees? benefits* Totol Totolfees?® benefits? Total

{E000) (£000) {£000} (£000} (FO00) {£000)

John McDonough CBE 185 21 206 185 27 206

Christer Gardell 45 7 52 45 14 59

Hock Goh 45 8 53 45 8 53

Jane Hinkley 60 3 63 60 4 64

Douglas Hurt 65 2 &7 65 2 67

Holly Koeppel 34 7 4 — - -
Total 2017 Non-executive Director remuneration 482
Total 2017 Executive Diractor remuneration 2,892
Total 2017 Director remuneration 3,374

Note:

1. Patrick André joined the Board an 1 September 2017. Figures 'n the toble relate to salary, benefits ond Annual Incentive earned in respect of the periad 1 September

- 31 December 2017,

2. Frgngois Wanecq stepped down from the Board on 37 August 2017, and retired from the Company on 31 December 2017 Figures in the table relate to salary,
benefits and Annual Incentive earned in respect of his employment as Chief Executive pro-rated for the periad from the beginning of the financial year to 31 August
2017 Aise included in the table is the full value of his Vesuvius Share Plan award due to vest in 2018 based on performance over the performance period 2015-2017

(see footnote 8 for more details).

3. Basesalary (or fees, as appropriate) earned in relation to services os o Director during the financial year

4. The UK regulotions require the inclusion of benefis for Directors where these would be toxable inthe UK on the assumphion trot the Direcior is tax resident in the
UK. The figures in the table therefore include expense reimbursement and associated tox relating to trovel, cccommodation and subsistence in connection with
attendance at Board meetngs and other Board business during the year, which are considered by HMRC to be taxable in the UK. Benefits for Executive Directors
include car allowance, private medical care, relocation expenses, tax advice, commuting costs, scheol fees and de minimis amounts for Directors’ spouse’s travel and
administrative expenses, ond benefits incurred in connection with Frangois Weanecq's retirement.

5. Patrick André and Guy Young receive a pension allowance of 25% of base salary. Frangois Waneeq received a pension allowance of 30% of base salary. The figures
i the table represent the value of all cash allowances and contributions received in respect of pension benefits.

6  The sum of totol salary, taxable benefits and pension.

7. This figure includes any Annual Incentive payments made to the Executive Directors in relation to secvices os a Director in the year under review See pages 109 to

111 for more details,

8. Thisrepresents the Performance Share award granted to Frangois Wanecq in 2015 under the Vesuvius Share Plan, that is due to vest in 2078, See Note 6 of the
Vesuvius Performance Shore Awards Allocations toble on page 113. At an average Vesuvius mid-market closing share price (from 1 October 2017-31 December
2017 of 580 pence, the tofal value of the awards rhat are due to vest, along with the cash payment for the dividerd that has accrued on these vested shares was

£609,364.

9. The sum of the value of the Annual Incentive and the long-term incentives where the performance period ended during the financial yeaor.
10. The sum of base salary, benefits, pension, Annual Incentive and long-term incentives where the performance pericd ended during the financial year.

11. Holly Koeppel joined the Board on 3 April 2017,

Additional note:

12. Total 2016 Director remuneration for the Directors who served during 2016 was £2 255m. This included fees of £34k and taxable benefits of £8k paid ta Nelda

Connorsin 2016, Nelda retired from the Board on 30 September 2016.

Remuneration for the Former Chief Executive -
Audited

Francois Wonecq stepped down as an Executive Director and
Chief Exacutive on 31 August 2017 and, to assist the transition of
office to the new Chief Executive, he continued in employment
receiving his salary, benefits and pension allowance, totalling
£477k, until he refired from the Company on 31 December 2017,

Frangois Warecq remained entitled to be considered foran
Annual Incentive inrespect of services rendlered in the calendar
year 2017. itwas agreed thatthe amount payable, if any,

would be calculated and paidin 2018 at the same time as other
Executives, and at a maximum would equal 125% of his base
salaryin 2017. Calculation and payment of the 2017 Annual
Incentive was subject to the Company's achievement of the
financial targets, and his achievement of his personal objectives
for this period (see Annual Incentive section below). The Annual
Incentive earned in relation to the period 1 September -

31 Decemnber 2017 totalled £209k, being 106% of his base
salary for this period.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee exercised its
discretion to treat Francois Wanecq as a good leaver for the
purposes of the Vesuvius Share Plan, retaining his right to the
awards granted in 2015 infull {as he was employed by Vesuvius
for the full performance period) and those granted in 2076 and
2017 ona pro-rated basis. The vesting of all these awardsis
subjectto the achievement of the applicable performance
criterio over the full performance period, the rules of the
Vesuvius Share Plan, and the approval of the Remuneration
Committee. The extent of vesting of the 2076 and 2017 awards
will be determined by the Remuneration Committeein 2019
and 2020. Details of the vesting of Frangeis Wanecq's 2015
award, the extent of which has already been determined by
the Remuneration Committee, are included in the Directors’
Remuneration table and also detailed in the Longer-term Pay
section below.

Under the applicable company relocation policy, Frangois
Wanecq has received one month's sclary as arelocation
allowance. In addition, the Company confirmed inthe Section



430(B) Statement that it would pay his removal costs, the
reasonable costs of any infernational fax advice required in
connection with his retirement from employment and any tax
support to meet his ongoing obligations to correctly report
income received from the Company for a three-year period
following his refirement. In addition, the Statement confirmed
that the Company will also pay de minimis administrative
expenses and benefitsincurred in connection with his
retirement.

No further termination payment will be made to Mr Wanecg.

There were no payments made to any Director for loss of office
during the year ended 31 December 2017, and no payments
were made to any other post Directors of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Base Salary and Fees

Inthe year under review, the Chief Financial Officer received

a base salary of £325,000 per annum. Frangois Wanecq
received a base salary of £590,000 per onnum, and following
his promotion to Chief Executive, Patrick André received a base
salary of £525,000 per annum. The Nan-executive Directors'
feeswere set at £45,000 per annum. Supplementary fees of
£15,000 per annum were paid to the Chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees. A supplementary annual fee
of £5,000 was also paid to the Senior Independent Director.
The Chairman was paid an annual fee of £185,000. Neither the
Chairman nor the other Nen-executive Directors are members
of the Group's pensicn plans, nor do they participate in the
Group'sincentive schemes.

In line with the Group's longer-term approach of reviewing the
salaries of Executive Directors and senior Executives every
two to three years, Guy Young's base salary was reviewed for
application in 2018. This was the first time his base salary
had been reviewed since he joined the Company in 2015 and,
following this review, it was resolved that his salary should be
increased by 7.7%, with effect from 1 January 2018, up to
£350,000 per annum, in recognition of his leadership of the
Group's Finance function over the past three years and his
developmentinthe role. In considering this increase, the
Committee also noted that over the pravious two years the
average salory increase for UK salaried employees had been
3.36%. Following his recent promotion, there is no change to
Patrick André's salary in 2018, but, as announced at the time
of his appointment, the Remuneration Committee has
committed fo review his salary annually for the first three
years of his appointment (January 2019, 2020 ond 2027).

Pension Arrangements ~ Audited

In accordonce with their service agreements, Patrick André
and Guy Young are entitled to pension allowances of 25%
of base salary. (Frangois Wanecq was entfitled to a pension
allowance of 30% of base salary up until the date of his
retirement.) This allowance can be used to participate in
Vesuvius' pension arrangements, be invested in their own
pension arrangements or be taken as a cash supplement
{or any combination of these alternatives).

Annual Incentive

The Executive Directors are eligible to receive an Annual
Incentive calculated as a percentage of base salary, based

on achievement against specified finoncial targets and
personal objectives. Each year the Remuneration Committee
establishes the performance criteria for the forthcoming year.
The financial targets are set by reference to the Company’s
financial budget. The target range is sef to ensure that Annual
Incentives are only paid out at maximum for significantly
exceeding performonce expectations. The Remuneration
Committee considers that the setting and attainment of
these targets isimportant in the context of achievement of
the Company's longer-term strategic goals.

The Annuct Incentive has athreshold level of performance
below which ne award is paid, a target level and a maximum
performance level at which a maximum award is earned.

2017 Annual Incentive

For 2017 the maximum Annual Incentive potential for the
Executive Directors was 125% of base salary and their target
Annual Incentive potential was 62.5% of base salary. Following
his appointment as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it
was agreed that Patrick André would participate in the Annual
Incentive at these incentive levels with effect from that date.
With respect to his service with the Group prior to that date

he remained entitled to receive any payouts due under the
Flow Control business unit Annual Incentive Plan.

Following his retirement as a Director, Frangois Wanecq
remained entitled to be considered for an Annual Incentive in
respect of services rendered in the calendar year 2017. It was
agreed that the amount payakle, if any, would be calculated
and paid in 2018 at the same fime as other Executives.

For the financial year 2017 the Exacutive Directors’ Annual
Incentives were based 60% on Group headline earnings
per share, 20% on the Group's cash conversion (defined as
operating cash flow divided by trading profit} and 20% on
specified persenal objectives.

Financial Targets

The 2017 Vesuvius Group headline earnings per share
performance targets set out below were set atthe December
2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates, being the rates
used for the 2017 budget process:

109

Threshold:
30.4 pence

Maximum:
35.6 pence

On-target:
33.0pence

The 2017 Group's cash conversion targets were set as follows:

Threshold:
0%

Maximum:
120%

On-target:
105%

In assessing the Group's performance against these targets, the
Committee uses a constant currency approach. Thus, the 2017
full-year EPS performance was retranslated ar December

2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates to establish
performance. This is consistent with practice in previous years.
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In 2017, Vesuvius refranslated EPS performance was 39.7 pence,
and cash conversion was 104%. Consequently EPS performance
was above maximum and the cash conversion performance was
between threshold and target. Payments of 75% and 11.38% of
base salary respectively, 86.38% in total were therefore due to
the Executive Directors and Frangois Wanecq under the Anrua!

Personal Objectives

In 2017, a propertion (20%) of the Annual Incentive for
Executive Directors {representing 25% of the maximum 125%
bonus entitlement) was based onthe achievement of personal
objectives. A summary of the objectives set and performance
achieved is set out below.

Incentive in respect of the financial performance metrics.

Patrick André

Summary of objective

Summary cutcome

Drive Group perfermance

> Lounched new incremental restructuring programme with different scope
> Introduced and drove upgraded budget process for 2018

Transitionto Chief Executive
and engage the senior
management team

> Completed tailored induction and handover of key contacts

> Developed relationship with investor community

> Daveloped relationships with senior reamsin the Foundry, Advanced Refractories ond
Digital Services business units

Manoge the succession in Flow
Control business unit leadership

> Selected successor, and continued ro manage the Flow Control business unir until
handover
> Assisted ininduction of new Flow Control President

Review Group arganisation and
implement changes identified

> Reviewed and confirmed business unit leadership and updated organisational
responsibility of business units
> Redefined corporate functional roles, erganisation andleadership with clear communication

In summary, after considering performance as outlined above, the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payout of 19.65% of
base salary, out of the 25%, in respect of the personal objectives of Patrick André for the period of his tenure as Chief Executive.
For the period of his tenure as President Flow Contrel, Mr André was owarded 9.76% of base salary, out of 16%, in respect of his

personal objectives.

Guy Young

Summary of objective

Summary outcome

Develop people andteam

> Developed updated functional strategy and plans, including full team evaluation
> Developed updated succession plans for key finance functions
> Drove performance across the team

improve working copital
management process

> Implemented new supglier finance scheme
> Introduced clearer working capital managementand reperting praocesses, with
demonstrable impact on working capital performance

Mancgethe Implementation of
Shared Service Strategy

> Delivered strategy. Oversaw launch of project and commenced transition with
appropriate performance metrics putin place

Develop Group IR strategy

> Implemented updated strategy and broker performance reviews
> Managed clearinvestor engagement and enhanced share register

Enhance processes for monitoring
corporate activity

> Increased robustness of internal processes
> Enhanced the capabilities for assessment of financial performance for corporate octivity

In surmary, after considering performance as outlined above, the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payout of 15.75% of
base salary out of the 25%, in respect of the personal ebjectives of Guy Young.

Frangois Wanecq

Summary of objective

Summary eutcome

Drive Group performance for 2017

> Maintained clear control of capital expenditure
» Reduced working capital percentage, improvement in cash conversion

Supportthe process for CEQ
sUCCession

> Strong support of succession process with appropriate assistance provided
> Effective transfer of key relationships both within and outside the Greup

Complete implementation of agreed
restructuring plan

> Delivered expected savings from existing plan
> Existing plan perimeter extended to increase savings and return

Implement the Board approved
strategy

> Increased performance focus on key growing markets of China and India
> Continued the development of the Technical Service offering

Target corporate activity
and business growth

> Continued focus on opportunities for corporate development
> Suppertedincremental growth in key areas of strafegic focus




In summary, after considering performance as outlined above,
the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payoutof 15% of
pro-rated base salary, out of the 25%, in respect of the personal
objectives of Francois Wanecg for the period of his tenure as
Chief Executive during the year.

The total Annual Incentive awards payable to Patrick André and
Guy Young in respact of their services as a Director during 2017
are therefore 106% of pro-rated salory and 102% of salary
respectively. The total Annual Incentive award payable to
Frangois Wanecq in respect of 2017 is 101% of salary. Frangois
Wanecq will receive his Annual Incentive paymentin cashin

line withthe Remuneration Policy. 33% of Patrick André and
Guy Young's Annual Incentive payments will be deferred into
awards over shares, to be held for a period of three years.

2018 Annual Incentive

The Remuneration Committee has determined that for 2018
the structure of the Annual Incentive will remain broadly the
same as for 2017: 60% of the Executive Directors’ Annual
Incentives will therefore be based on Group headline earnings
per share, 20% on working capital using an updated objective
of the Group's working capital to sales ratio (based on the
12-month moving average) and 20% on the achievement of
personal objectives. The Company will not be disclosing the
targets set until after the relevant performance period has
ended because of commercial sensitivities. The personal
obiectives for 2018 are all non-financial or job-specific in nature
and track performance against key strategic, organisational
and operational goals. The maximum Annual Incentive
potential for 2018 will be 125% of base salary. 33% of any
Annual Incentive earned will be deferred into awards over
shares, to be held for a period of three years.

Malus/Clawback Arrangementsin 2018

Vesuvius has malus and clawback arrangementsin respect of
Executive Directors’ variable remuneration. The structure of
those arrangements is cutlined in our Remuneration Policy.

Longer-term Pay (“LTIPs") — Audited

Performance Share awards are allocated to the Executive
Directors under the Vesuvius Share Flan (VSP). In accordance
withthe Remuneration Policy and the rules of the VSP, they are
eligible to receive, on an annual basis, a Performance Share
award with a face value of up 1o 200% of salary. Vesting of 50%
of shares awarded is based upon the Company's three-year
TSR performance relative to that of the constituent companies

of the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts), and 50% on
headline EPS growth. The level of compound headline EPS
grawth specifiedin the fargets is set by the Remuneration
Committee each year, taking into account the Group's
prospects and the broader global economic envirenment,

The schedule of EPS targets is designed at the maximum level to
be highly challenging, whilst remaining an effective incentive for
the management team. The EPS and TSR measures operate
independently. The use of these performance measures is
intended to align executive remuneration with shareholders’
interests. UK Executives receive awards in the form of nil-cost
options with a flexible exercise date and non-UK Executives
receive awards which are exercised on the date of vesting.

On 16 March 2017, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received
allocations of Parformance Shares worth 200% and 150% of
their base salaries, respectively. Following his appointment

as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it was agreed that
Patrick André would receive a pro-rated top up of his 2017
Performance Share award. As a result on 1 September 2017,
he was granted an additional Performance Share award of
42,257 shares. This award, in addition fo the Performance
Share award of 60,413 shares awarded to him on 16 March
2017, brought his total award of Perfoermance Sharesin 2017 to
200% of his salary on a pro-rated basis. It reflected the increase
in his Performance Share percentage entitlernent and the
increase in his salary for the final four months of the year.

The Remuneration Committee has determined that Patrick
André will receive a Performance Share awardin 2018
equivalent in value to 200% of his base salary and Guy Young
on award equivalent in value to 150% of his base salary.

The performance period applicable to the awards made in
2015 ended on 31 December 2017. The TSR performance
during this three-year performance period was assessed
against the comparator group and it was determined that the
Company's performance was between median and upper
guintile. As a result, 27.1% of Perfermaence Share owards

will vest under the TSR performance element. The Commitiee
reviewed statistics from various sources which gave ¢ farge
range of outcomes of global GDP growth. The Commirtee
concluded that 214% p.a. was areascnable base against which
to measure the Company’s EPS growth of 6.8% p.a. for the
2015-2017 performance period. As a result the Group's annual
compound headline EPS growth above this GDP measure

for the period was 4.3%. Therefore, 16.6% of Performance
Share awards will vest under the EPS performance element.
These awards will vest in April 2018.

Target for the 2015 Performance Share Awards — Audited

TSRranking relativeto FTSE 250

excludinginvestment trysts Vesting percentage

Annual compound headline

EPS growth above global GEP Vesting percentage

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%

Median 12.50% 3% 12.50%

Between medianand Proratabetween 12.50% Between 3% and 15% Prorata between 12.50%
upper quintile and 50% and 50%

Upper guintile 50% Atorabove 15% 50%

177
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Targets for the 2016, 2017 and 2018 Performance Share Awards - Audited

TSR ranking relative to FTSE 250
excluding investment trusts

Vesting percentage

Annualcompound headiine
EPS growth

Vesting percentage

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%
Median 12.50% 3% 12.50%
Between median and upper Proratabetween 12.50% and  Between 3% and 6% Pro rata between 12.50% and
quintile 50% 25%
Upper guintile 50% £% 25%
Between &% and 15% Prarata between 25% and 50%
Atabove 15% 50%

Vesuvius Performance Share Award Allocations - Audited

The following table sets outthose Performance Share awards that were allocated in 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 under the Vesuvius

Share Plan:
Totalshare Additional Totalshare Morket price of
allocations shares Allocations allocations thesharas on
asat allocated lapsed  Sharesvested asat  thedaoykbefore Performance Earliest

Grantandtype of award 31 Dec 2016 duringtheyear duringtheyear  duringtheyear 31 Dec 2017 award (p) period vesting date
Patrick André
8April 2016 1Jan16—

31 Dec18
Performance Shares §2,746 - - — 92,746 291.7 8Apr2019
16 March 201723 1Jan17-

31 Dec9
Performance Shares - 60,413 - - 60,413 524.5 16 Mar 2020
1September 2017 TJan17-

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 42,257 - - 42,257 578 15ep 2020
Total 92,746 102,670 - - 195,416
Frangois Wanecq
17 March 2014° 1 Jan 14—

31 Decl6
Performance Shares 253,748 - 253,748 - - 4793 -
1April 2015 1Jon15-

31 Dec17
Performance Shares 221,533 - - - 221,533 4917 1 Apr2018
8 April 2016 1 Jan 16—

31 Dec18
Parformance Shares 373,938 - 158,113 - 215,825 2617 8 Apr2019
16 March 20172 1Jan17-

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 225967 166,177 - 59,790 524.5 16 Mar 2020
Total 849 219 225967 578,038 - 497,148
Guy Young
8Aprit2016 TJan16-

31 Dec18
Performance Shares 128,739 - - - 128,739 291.7 8Apr2019
16 March 20172 1 Jan17 -

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 93,355 - — 93,355 5245 16 Mar 2020
Total 128,739 93,355 - - 222,094
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Note:

1. In 2016, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received allocations of Performarce Shares worth 200% and 125% of their base salaries, peing 373,938 shares and
128,739 shares respectively. In addition, prior to his oppointment as Chief Executive, Patrick André received an award of 92,746 shares in respect of his role as
President, Flow Conirol. On the date of his refirement from the Caompany on 31 December 2017, Frangois Wanecg's entitlemest to the shares he was granted in 2016
was reduced pro-rata to reflect his departure part way through the vesting period. As a result, 158,113 shares lapsed on this dare.

2 On 16 Morch 2017, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received cllacations of Performance Shares worth 200% and 150% of their base solaries, being 225,967 shares
and 93,355 shares respectively. Inaddition, prior to his appeintment as Chief Executive, Patrick André received an award of 60,413 shares in respect of his roie os
President, Flow Control. These cliacations were calculated based upon the average closing mid-market price of Vesuvius' shares an the five decling days before the
award was made, being £5 222, The total value of these awards based on this share price on the date of gront was £1,180,000, £487,500 and £315,477 respectively.
On the date of his retirement from the Company on 31 Decermnber 2017, Frangois Wanecq's entitlerent to the shares he was granted in 2017 was reduced pro-rata to
reflect his departure part way through the vesting period As a result, 166,177 shares lapsed on this date.

. Patrick André's March 2017 Performance Share award is subject to Flow Control performance conditions. Under these, 7,552 of the 60,413 shares awarded are
deemed to hove met the performance condition applicable in the first year. The achievement of the performance condition will be reassessed at the end of 2018,
and 2019.

4. Following his promotion to Chief Executive an 1 September 2017, Patrick André received an additional oward of 42,257 Performance Shares in the formof o
conditionol award. This award brought his fotal eward of Performonce Shares in 2017 to 200% of his salory on a pro-rated basis, which is the maximum annual
award for the Chief Executive as determined by the Vesuvius Remunaration Palicy. The allocation was calculated based upon the average closing mid-market price
of Vesuvius' shares on the five dealing days before the award was made, being £5.794 per share. The totat value of the oward based on this share price on the date
of grantwas £244,837.

5. The Performance Shares that were allocated in 2074 had performance conditions to be tested over the finoncial years 2074, 20715 and 2016. As the reguisite
performance was not ochieved, Frangois Warecq's award lapsed on the third anniversary of grant in March 2017,

6. The Perfarmance Shares that were allocated in 2015 had performance conditians to be tested over the financial years 2015,2016 and 20717 The performance
period for the LTIP. In accordance with the Company’s achievement of the specified performance conditions, 43.7% of Frangois Wanecq's Performarice
Shares, 96,809 shares, are due to vast on 1 April 2018, In addition the Remuneration Committes has determined that Mr Wanecq wilt receive a cash payment of
£47,872 which is equivalent to the value of the dividends that would have been paid on the number of shares thot are due to vest in respect of dividend record dates
occurring during the period between the award date and the date of vesting.

w

Additional notes:

7. All of Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young's awards have baen made in the form of nil cost options with no exercise price, Patrick André's award were mode intne form of
conditional owards.

8. If the performance conditions for these awards are not met then these awards will lapse. If the threshold jevel of either of the two performance conditiens applicable
to these awards is met, then 12 50% of the cward will vest

9. The Remuneration Committee also has the discretion to oward cash or shares equivalent in value to the dividend that would hove accrued during the vesting period
an the number of shares that vest.

10. The mid-market closing price of Vesuvius' shares during 2017 ranged between 400 pence and 606 pence per share and on 29 December 2017, the fast dealing day
of the year, was 584 pence per share

Restricted Share Award

On Guy Young's appeintment as Chief Financial Officer in 2015, the Committee resolved that it would partially compensate him for
leng-term incentives that he forfeited as o result of joining Vesuvius by granting a one-off Restricted Share award over 17,115 shares
under the Vesuvius Share Plan. The value of this oward was included in the Directors’ Remuneration table in the 2075 Remuneration
Repert.

Half of this award vestedin 2076, and the remainder vested on 1 November 2077, the second anniversary of the date of his
commencement of employment. Details of the portion of the Restricted Share award that vested during 2017 are given inthe
table below:

Qutstanding Qutstanding

share altecation Sharesvested shareallocation

Date of award 1Jan2017 duringtheyear’ 31 Dec2017
13 May 2016 8,557 8,557 -

Note:

1 8,557 shares vested to Guy Young 01 1 Novermnber 2017, The mid-market closing price of the Company's shares onthe date of vesting was £5.885 per share. The total
velue of shares that he received on the date of vesting was therefore £50,358. In addition, Guy Young received a cash poyment of £2,838.78 to reflect the drvidends
thot would have accrued on the shares between his date of joinirg and the vesting date.
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Statement of Directors’ Shareholding - Audited

Theinterests of Directors and their closely associated persons in ordinary shares as at 31 December 2017, including any interestsin
share options and shares provisionally awarded under the Vesuvius Share Plan are sef out below:

Outstanding
Beneficial incentive
halding awaords'
Executive Directors
Patrick André - 195,416
Francois Wanecg 1,363,930 497148
Guy Young 14,551 222,094
Non-executive Directors
John Mc Donough CBE {Chairman) 100,000 —
Christer Gardell? - -
Hock Goh 5,000 -
Jane Hinkley 12,000 -
Douglas Hurt 18,000 -
Holly Koeppel 7,500 -
Note:

1. Patrick André holds conditisnal awards of 155,416 shares, and Frangois Worecq and Guy Young hold 497,148 and 222,094 nil cost options respectively, granted as
Performance Shares under the Vesuvius Share Plan. These are all subject to performance conditions,

2. Christer Gardell is Managing Portner of, and has a financiol interest 'n, Cevian Copital which held 21.11% of Vesuvius' issued share capital as ot 31 December 2017
and at the date of this report,

Additionai notes:

3. None of the other Directors, nor their spouses, nor their minor children, held non-beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company during the yeor.

4. There were no changes in the interests of the Drectors in the ordinary shares of the Company in the period from 1 January 2018 to the date of tris Repart.

5 All awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan are subject 1o performance conditions and continuad employment until the relevant vesting date as set ouf on pages 112
and 113,

6. Full details of Directors' shareholdings and incentive awards are given 'n the Compaony’s Register of Directors' Interests, which is open ta inspectior ot the Company’s
registered office during normal business hours.

Shareholding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors to build and held a shareholding in the Company. The required
holding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalentin value to af least 2x salary and that required of other Executive Directorsis to

be equivalent in value to at least 1x salary. Te this end, Executive Directors are reguired to retain af least 50% (meosured as the
value after tax) of any shares received through the operation of share schemes; in addition, permission to sell shares held —whether
acqguired through the operation of share schemes or otherwise — will not be given, other than in exceptional circumstances, if,
following the disposal, the shareholding requirements have not been achieved.

Compliance with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of each year for application in the following year using the average
of the closing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading days in that December.

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings - Audited

As at 31 December 2017, the Executive Directors’ sharehaldings against the current shareholding guidelines (using the Company's
share price averaged over the trading days of the period 1 Decemberto 31 December 2017, of 565.97 pence per share) were
as follows:

Actualshare cwnership

asapercentage of solary Policy share ownership
Director at31 Dec2017  asapercentage of salary Policy met?
Patrick André 0% 200% In the build-up period

Guy Young 25% 100% In the build-up period




Annual Changesin Chief Executive Pay vs Employee Pay

The table below shows the percentage change in the remuneration of the Chief Executive —comprising salary, taxable benefits
and Annual Incentive - and comparable data for UK salaried employees. The UK salaried employee workforce was chosen as
a fair representation of a svitable comparator group as both the former Chief Executive Francois Wanecq and the incumbent
Chief Executive Patrick André are based in the UK (albeit with a global role and responsibilities) and levels of pay vary widely
across the Group depending on geography and local market conditions.

UK salaried
employee
workforce

{average
Chief Executive percapita)

207 2016
(£000) {(£000) % change % change
Salary 568 590 (3.73) 1.01
Toxable benefits: 212 35 505 0.89
Annual bonus 585 371 57.68 55.30

Note:
1. Salary, taxable benefits and Annual Incentive amounts in respect of the Chief Executive for 20717 reflect the sum of amounts payable fo Frangoeis Wanecg in respect
of service from 1 January 2017 to 31 August 2017, and amounts payable to Patrick André in respect of service from 1 September 2017 to 31 December 2017.

2. Theincrease in benefits princpolly results from the change in Chief Executive during the year. Further information on the benefits paid to Patrick André and Francois
Wanecq during 2017 can be foundin Note 4 to the Directors” Remuneration table on poge 108.

Annual Spend on Employee Pay vs Shareholders’ Distributions

The charts below show the annual spend an all employees {including Executive Directors) compared with distributions made and
proposed to be made to shareholders for 2016 and 2017:
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(Em) {£m)
2017 2016 Change
Group remuneration ofcon‘rinuing operations (see Note 8) 441.5 384.8 14.73%

Dividends {(based on final proposed dividend) 48.6 447 8.72%
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TSR Performance and Chief Executive Pay

The TSR performance graph compares Vesuvius TSR performance with that of the same investment in the FTSE 250 Index
{excluding investment trusts). This index has been chosen as the comparator index to reflect the size, international scope and
diversity of the Company. TSR is the measure of the returns that a company has provided for its shareholders, reflecting share
price movements and assuming reinvestment of dividends. A spot rate has been used for this graph. The demerger of Vesuvius plc
was effective on 19 December 2012 ond therefore the graph shows the period from 19 December 2012 to 31 December 2017,

Vesuvius’total shareholder return

compared against total shareholder «# Vesuvius plc ~e= FTSE 250 Index (excluding Investment Trusts)
return of the FTSE 250index
{excluding investment trusts) 250

since demerger

200
150
100 .
19/12/12
50
: Frangois Wanecq' 7 © Patrick André?
Chief Executive pay-financial year ending 31120121 3123 317127140 3712018 312716 0 31/12/17 1 31/12/17
Total remuneration (single figure (£000)) £1,227 0 £2,447: £1,519 £752 £1173 ; 1,675 461
Annualvariable pay {% of maximum) 0% : 100% ! 64% 0% - 63% 101% : 106%
Lang-term variable pay (% of maximum) 67% 28% ! 27% 0% ; 0% : 43.7% n/a

Note:
1. Amraunts shown in respect of Frangeis Waonecq for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service as Chief Executive from 1 January 2017 to 31 August 2017 and the

full value of n's Vesuvius Share Plan award inrelation to the performance period 2015-2017.
2. Amounts shown in respect of Patrick André for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service as Chief Executive from 1 September 2017 to 31 December 2017.

Statement on Shareholder Voting

At the last AGM (which was held on 10 May 2017) the resolution concerning the advisory vote on the Remuneration Report
for 2077 received 239,094,321 votes (98.99%) in favour and 2,434,510 vates against (1.01%); 1,432,104 votes were withheld.
The Remuneration Policy received 238,743,173 (98.86%) in favour and 2,762,888 votes (1.14%) against; 1,454,874 votes were
withheld. Atthe AGM 1o be held on 10 May 2018, sharehclders will again be invited to participate in an advisory vote on the
Remuneration Report.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report hos been approved by the Boord and is signed on its behalf by
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018



Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their Annual Report together with the
audited accounts of the Group and of the Company, Vesuvius
plc, registered in England and Wales No. 8217766, for the year
ended 31 December 2017,

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company to provide

a Directors’ Report for Vesuvius ple for the year ended

31 December 2017. The information that fulfils this requirement
and which is incorporated by reference into, and forms part

of, thisreport is included in the following sections of the

Annual Report:

> The Our Responsibility section
> The Governance section

> Financial Instruments: the information on financial risk
management objectives and policies contained in Notes
20 and 27 to the Group Financial Statements

This Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report contained in
pages 1to 73 together represent the management report for
the purpose of compliance with DTR 4.1.8R of the UK Listing
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules. The Company
does not have any overseas branches within the meaning of the
Companies Act 2006.

Going Concern

Information onthe business environment inwhich the Group
operates, including the factors that are likely to impact the
future prospects of the Group, is included in the Strategic
Repaort. The principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
faces throughout its global operations are shown on pages

24 and 25. The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and debt facilities are also described in the
Strategic Report, In addition, the Group's Viability Statement
is set out within the Strategic Report on page 23. Notes 20 and
27 tothe Group Financial Statements set out the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital;
financial risks; financial instruments and hedging activities; and
its expeosures to credit, market (both currency and interest rate
related) and fiquidity risk. Further details of the Group's cash
balances and borrowings are included in Notes 13, 14 and 27
to the Group Financial Statements.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group
for a period in excess of 12 months from the date of approval

of the 2017 financial statements. These forecasts reflect an
assessment of current and future end-market conditions and
their impact on the Greup's future trading performance.

The forecasts show that the Group will be able to cperate within
the current committed debt facilities and show continued
compliance with the Company's financial covenants. On the
basis of the exercise described above and the Group's available
committed debt facilities, the Directors consider that the

Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from
the date of signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue
toadopt a going concern basisin preparing the finandcial
staterments of the Group and the Company.

Research and Development

The Group's investment in research and development

(R&D) during the year under review amounted to £33.2m
{representing approximately 2.0% of Group revenue

{2076: 2.0%). Further details of the Group's R&D activities can
be found in the Innovation section of the Strategic Report.

Dividends

Aninterim dividend of 5.50 pence (20716: 5.15 pence) per
Vesuvius ordinary share was paid on 22 September 2017 10
Vesuvius shareholders. The Board is recommending a finel
dividend inrespect of 2017 of 12.50 pence (2076: 11 .40 pence)
per ordinary share which, if approved, will be paid on 25 May
201810 shareholders onthe register at 13 April 2018.

Accountability and Audit

Aresponsibility staterment of the Directors and a statement by
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities can be found on
pages 121 and 124 to 129 respectively. The Directors fulfil the
responsibilities set out in their statement within the context of an
overall control environment of central strategic direction and
delegated operating responsibility. As atthe date of this report,
sofar as each Director of the Company is aware, thereis no
relevant audit information of which the Company’s cuditor is
unaware and each Director hereby confirms that they have
taken all the steps that they aught to have token as a Director

in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditor is
aware of thatinformation.

Auditor Appointments

A competitive tender process for the appointmentof a
statutory auditor was conducted during 2076. Following

the completion of this the Company recommended that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC} be appointed as external
auditor for Vesuvius plc for the year ended 31 December 2017,
replacing KPMG LLP. Shareholder approval to confirm the
appointment of PwC was given at the 2017 AGM, PwC has
expressed its willingness to continue in office as cuditar of the
Company, and consequently, resclutions for the reappointment
of Pw( as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Directors ta determine its remuneration are to be proposed
atthe AGM.

Directors

The Directors of the Company are Patrick André, Christer
Gardell, Hock Goh, Jane Hinkley, Dauglas Hurt, Holly Koeppel,
John McDonough CBE and Guy Young. Patrick André joined
the Board as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, replacing
Frangois Wanecqwho retired from the Board on 31 August
2017. Holly Koeppel joined the Board as an additional
independent Non-executive Directer on 3 April 2017, Alithe
Directors will retire at the AGM and offer themselves for
election or re-election at the AGM. Biographical information
forthe current Directors is given on pages 50 and 51. Further
informafion on the remuneration of, and contractual

17
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arrangements for, the current Executive and Non-executive
Directorsis given on pages 96 to 116 in the Directors’
Remuneration Report. The Non-executive Directors do not
have service agreements.

Directors’ Indemnities

The Directors hove been granted qualifying third party
indemnity provisions by the Company and the Directors of the
Group's UK Pension Plan Trustee Board {none of whomisa
Director of Vesuvius plc) have been granted qualifying pension
scheme indemnity provisions by Vesuvius Pension Plans Trustees
Ltd. The indemnities for Directors of Vesuvius plc have beenin
force since the date of their appointment. The Pension Trustee
indemnities were in force throughout the last financial year and
remain in force.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held ot
The Lincoln Centre, 18 Lincoln's inn Fields, London WC2A 3ED
on Thursday 10 May 2018 at 11.00 am.

Amendments of Articles of Association

The Company may make amendments tc the Articles by way
of special resolution in accordance with the Companies Act.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Information on our reporting of greenhouse gas emissions, and
the methodology used to record these, is st out on page 65 of
the Strategic Report.

Donations

In accordance with Company policy, no political denations
were made in 2017 (2014: nil).

Change of Control Provisions

Theterms of the Group's committed bank facility and US
Private Placement Loan Notes contain provisions entitling the
counterparties to exercise termination or other rights inthe
event of a change of control on takeover of the Company.
Anumber of the arrangements to which the Company and its
subsidiaries are party, such as other debt arrangements and
share incentive plans, may alse alter or terminate enachange
of controlinthe event of atakeover. In the context of the Group
as a whole, these other arrangements are not considered to

be significant.

Share Capital

As at the date of this report, the Company had an issued share
capital of 278,485,071 ardinary shares of 10 pence each;
7,271,174 of these ordinary shares are held in Treasury.
Therefore, the total number of Vesuvius ple shares with voting
rightsis 271,213,897.

Further information relating to the Company’s issued share
capital can be found in Note 8 to the Company Financial
Statements.

The Company’s Articles specify that, subjectto the authorisation
of an appropriate resolution passed at o General Meeting of
the Company, Directors can allot relevant securities under
Section 5571 of the Companies Act up to the aggregate nominal
amount specified by the relevant resolution. In addition,

the Articles state that the Directors can seek the authority of
shareholders in a General Meeting to allot equity securities for
cash, without first being required to offer such shores 1o existing
ordinary shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings
under Section 561 of the Companies Act, in connection with
rightsissue and in other circumstances up to the aggregate
nominal amount specified by the relevant resclution.

Arthe Annual General Meeting on 10 May 2077, the Directors
were authorised to issue relevant securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £9,040,463, and, in connection with a rights
issue, to issue relevant securities up to o further nominal value
of £9,040,463. In addition, the Directors were empowered to
allotequity securities, or sell Treasury Shares, for cashon @
non pre-emptive basis up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,356,069, and for the purposes of financing {or refinancing,
if the authority is to be used within six months after the original
transaction) a transaction which the Board of the Company
determines to be an acquisition or other capital investment,

to allot equity securities, or sell Treasury Shares, for cashona
non pre-emptive basis up to an additional nominal amount of
£1,356,069. Each of the authorities given in these resalutions
expires at the earlier of the date of the 2018 Annual General
Meeting or 30 June 2018. The resolutions were all tabled in
accordance with the terms of the Pre-Emption Group's
Statement of Principles. The Directors propose torenew these
avthoerities at the 2018 Annual General Meating for a further
year. In the year ahead, other than in respect of Vesuvius’
ability to satisfy rights granted to employees under its various
share-based incentive arrangements, the Directors have no
presentintention of issuing any share capital of Vesuvius plc.

Authority for Purchase of Own Shares

Subject to the provisions of company law and any other
applicable regulations, the Company may purchase its own
shares. At the Annual General Meeting of the Cormnpany held
on 10 May 2017, Vesuvius shareholders gave autharity to the
Company to maoke market purchases of up to 27,121,389
Vesuvius ardinary shares, representing 10% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capital as at the latest practicable day
prior to the publication of the Notice of AGM. This authority
expires on 30 June 2018 or the date of the AGM to be heldin
2018, whichever is the earlier. The Directors wil! seek renewal
of this authority at the forthcoming AGM.

In 2013 the Company acquired 7,271,174 ordinary shares,
representing a nominal value of £727,117 and 2.6% of the entire
called-up share capital of the Company prior to the purchase.



These shares were purchased pursuant to the Board's
commitment to return the majority of the net proceeds of

the disposal of the Precious Metals Processing division to
shareholders. These shares are currently held as Treasury
shares. The Company has not subsequently disposed of any of
the repurchased shares. During the year, the Company did not
make any further acquisitions of shares, any acquisitions by
nominee, nor did it dispose of any shares previously acquired.
The Company does not have a lien over any of its shares.

Share Plans

Vesuvius operates @ number of share-based incentive plans.
Under these plans the Group can satisfy entitlements by the
acquisition of existing shares, the transfer of Treasury shares
or by the issue of new shares. Existing shares are held inan
employee share ownership plan trust {ESOP’). The Trustee of
the ESOP purchases shares inthe open market as required to
enable the Group to meet liabilities for the issue of shares to
satisfy awards that vest. The Trustee does not register votes
inrespect of these shares and hos waived the right to receive
any dividends.

Restrictions on Transfer of Shares and Voting

The Company's Articles of Associotion {Articles’} do not

contain any specific restrictions on the size of a holding oron

the transfer of shares. The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company's shares that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights.

No persen has any special rights with regard to the control of
the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully
paid. Thisis a summary only and the relevant provisions of the
Articles should be consulted if further information is required.

Interests in the Company's Shares

The Company has been notified in accordance with DTR 5 of
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the following interests
of 3%, or mare, of its issued ardinary shares:

Asat Asat

31Dec 2017  28Feb20718

Cevian Capital 2111 2111
Standard Life Aberdeen 5.92 592
Artisan Partners 497 497
Aberforth Partners 492 453
Pelham Caopital Management CfD 458 4.58
Phoenix Asset Management 3.0 310

The interests of Directors and their connected personsin the
ordinary shares of the Company as disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority are as
setout on pages 113 and 114 of the Directors’' Remuneration
Report and details of the Directors' long-term incentive awards
are setouton page 114,

Equal Opportunities Employment

Vesuvius plcis an equal opportunities employer, and decisions
onrecruitment, development, training and promotion, and
other employment-related issues are made solely on the
greunds of individual ability, achievernent, expertise and
conduct. These principles are operated on a noen-discriminatory
basis, withcut regard to race, colour, nationality, culture,

ethnic origin, religion, belief, gender, sexual orientation, age,
disability or any other reason not related 1o job performance

or prohibited by applicable law. In cases where employees are
injured or disabled during employment with the Group, support,
including appropriate training, is provided to those employees
and workplace adjustments are made as appropriate in respect
of their duties and working environment, supporting recovery
and continued employment.

Employee Communications

Vesuvius adopts an open and honest approach to employes
communications, supported by regular updates from senior
management across all businesses and operations withinthe
Group. Regular communications include direct emoil updates
on the financial performance of the Company, the industry
environment in which Vesuvius operates, and other significant
operaticnal developments. The Company operates an
employee intranet which distributes Company news and events,
as well as local initiatives for employee engagement ona
site-by-site basis. The HR department is the primary point

of contact foremployees on employment and workplace
matters, operating with an open-door policy and advising
employees of any local legal, tax, pension or ather empioyment
changes. There are numerous employee-sponsored and

led representative bodies within Vesuvius which differ with
respect to jurisdiction and geography. Senior management,
supported and fadilitated by the HR department, encourages
open diologue and seeks opportunities to consult with these
employee representative bodies as appropriate.

Pensions

In each country in which the Group operates, the pension
arrangements in place are considered to be consistent with
good employment practice in that particular area. Independent
advisers are used to ensure that the plans are operated in
accordance with local legislation and the rules of each plan.
Group policy prohibits direct investment of pension fund assets
inthe Company’s shares. Qutside the UK, the US, Germany and
Belgium, the majority of pension plansin the Group are of a
defined contribution nature.

In 2016 the main German defined benefit plan was closed for
new entrants and existing members were offered a buy-out of
their benefits under this plan. Those who accepted this buy-out
then joined the new defined contribution plan,

The Group's UK defined benefits plan {the UK Plan’ and the
main US defined benefits plans are closed to new entrants and
have ceased providing future benefits accrual, with all eligible
employees instead being provided with benefits through
defined contribution arrangements.
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For the Group's closed UK Plan, a Trustee Board exists
comprising employees, former employees and anindependent
frustee. The Board currently comprises six trustee Directors,

of whomtwo are member-nominated. The cdministration

of the UK Planis outsourced. The Company is mindful of its
obligations under the Pensions Act 2004 and of the needto
comply with the guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator.
Regulor diglogue is maintained between the Company and the
Trustee Board of the UK Plan to ensure that both the Company
and Trustee Board are apprised of the same financial and other
information about the Group and the UK Plan. This is pertinent
to each being able tc contribute to the effective functioning of
the UK Plan.

Vesuvius continues to seek ways to de-risk its existing pension
plans through o combination of asset matching, buy-in
opportunities and, where prudent, voluntary cash contributions.

The Group's worldwide net pension deficit at 31 December
2017 was £16.5m (31 December 2016: £29.4m). The principal
reasons for the £12.9m reduction were increases of £1.8mto
the deficit arising out of changes to actuarial assumptions
{attributable to increasing discount rates; updated mortality
assumptions and pension membership data) and additional
accrual and administrative expenditure paid for the year
(£6.8m}); offest by reductions to the deficit of £10.2m from
asset returns and cash contributions of £11.6m.

The following disclosures are made in compiiance with the Financial Conduct Authority’s Listing Rule 9.8.4C R:

Disclosure reguirement under LR %.8.6R

Reference/Location

(1) interest capitalised by the Group during the year

See Note 9.1 onpage 143

(2) Publication of unaudited financial infermation

Not applicable

(3) the appropriatenass of adopting the going concern basis of Page 117
accounting and the Directors assessment of the prospects of the

Company

{4) Details of any long-term incentive schemes Pages 99 and 100

(5) Diractor waiver of emcluments

Not applicable

(6) Director waiver of future emoluments

Not applicable

(7) Allotment for cash of equity securities made during the year

Not applicable

{8) Allotment for cash of equity securities made by a major
unlisted subsidiary during the year

Not applicable

{9) Details of participation of parent undertaking in any placing
made during the year

Not applicable

(10} Details of relevant contracts in which a Director or
controlling shareholder wos interested during the year

Not applicable

{11) Contracts for the provision of services by a controlling
shareholder during the year

Not applicable

{12) Details of any arrangement under which a shareholder
has waived or agreed 16 waoive any dividends

Wesuvius ple holds 7,271,174 of its £0.10 erdinary shares s
Treasury shares. No dividends are payable onthese shares.
Cookson Investments (Jersey) Limited, the Trustee of the
Company’s ESCP, has agreed to waive, on an engoing basis,
any dividends payable onsharesitholds on trust for use under
the Company’s Employee Share Plans, details of which canbe
foundonpages 167, 118and 119

{13) Details of where ashareholder has agreed to waive
future dividends

Seecbove

(14) Statements relating to controlling shareholders and
ensuring company independence

Notapplicable

The Directors Report has been approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by

Henry Knowles Company Secretary
28 February 2018



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
ondthe financiol statementsin accordonce with applicable low
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
have prepored the Group financial statements in accordernce
with Internatianal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable low). Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unfess
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit of the
Group forthat period. In preparing the financial staterents,
the Directors are required fo:

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

> state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean
Union have beenfollowed for the Group financial statements
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101, have been followed for the Company financial
staternents, subject 1o any materiol departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are
regsonable and prudent; and

v

prepore the financial statements on the going concern basis
unlessitisinappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will confinue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate cccounting
records that are sufficient o show ond explain the Group and
Cornpany's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
atanytime the financial positien of the Group and Company
and enablethem to ensure that the financiol statements and the
Directors' Remuneration Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
regschable steps for the prevention end derection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the Campany's website. Legislation inthe United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group and Company's performance, business model

and strateqgy.

Responsibilities Statement of the Directorsin
respect of the Annual Financial Report

Each of the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

> the Company financial staterments, which have been
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law), give a true and fair
view of the assets, liahilities, financial pasition and loss
of the Company;

> the Group financial statements, which have been preparedin
accordance with I[FRSs as adopted by the European Union,
give atrue andfair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Group; and

> the Directors' Reportincludes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
nasition of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces.

The names and functions of the Directors of Vesuvius plc are
as follows:

Jdohn McDanough CBE Chairman

Patrick André Chief Executive

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
Christer Gardell Non-executive Director
Hock Goh Non-executive Director
Jane Hinkley Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
Non-executive Director, Senior
independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Non-executive Director

Douglas Hurt
Holly Koeppel
On behclf of the Board

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
28February 2018
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“I relocated to the UAE

to help set up our Ras
Al Khaimah facility”

Adam Liszka, Operations Director
Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

My career with Vesuvius began in
Polend in 2001, when | joined the
Skawing Brick Plant as Production
Coordinator. After a series of
promotions, | became Production
Manager for the whele Skawina
Brick Plantin 2009.

Iwas later given the exciting
opportunity to work cverseas,
relocating first to the UAE in 2012
tehelp start operations ot our
brand-new manufacturing facility
in Ras Al Khaimah, and later
moved tothe United States os
Operations Manager at our plant
in Chicago Heights, lllinois. Whilst
there, | worked with our Chicago

Heights team to sef the foundations

for the Yellowstene project,

targeting increased manufacturing

efficiency at our site.

Following this project, ook on my
next challenge, by becoming the
Operations Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, responsible
for the manufacturing operations
of sites across the US, Canadea and
Mexico. My career at Vesuvius
hos brought me professional
advancement, the opportunity
towork across cultures and to
becomeareal citizen of the world.

O See more about Vesuvius careers People and Community on p67-73
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

> Vesuvius ple’s Group financial statements and Company
financial statements {the financial statements’) give atrue
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's
affairs s at 31 December 2017 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended

v

The Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adoptred by the
European Union

> The Company financial staterments have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, cormprising FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framewaork’, and applicakle low)

v

Thefinancial statements have been prepered in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation

We have audited the financia! statements, included within
the Annual Report and Accounts (the ‘Annual Report),
which comprise: the Group and Company Balance Sheets
as ot 31 December 2017; the Group Income Statement and
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement
of Cash Flows, and the Group and Company Statements of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the
Audit Committee,

Basis for Opinion

We cenducted our cuditin accordance with Infernational
Standards on Auditing {UK) (15As {UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) ore further described in the
auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

During the period, we identified that we had provided a
prohibited tax compliance service in respect of payroll taxes
tothe Group in breach of paragraph 5.167R{a)(i) of the FRC's
Ethical Standard. Total fees billed in the period in respect of
the service amaunted to £1,800. Upon identifying the breach,
we immediately ceased providing this prohibited service.

The prohibited service was provided to a companent that did
not form part of cur audit evidence in respect of the audit of
the Group. We confirm that, based on our assessment of this
breach, and the subsequent actions taken, we have not, in our
view, compromised our independenca.

Other than the matter referred to above, andto the best of our
knowledge and belief, we declare that no non-cudit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were provided to the
Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in the Audit Committee's Report,
we have provided no other non-audit services to the Group
orthe Company in the period from 1 Jonuary 2017 1o

31 December 2017.

Our Audit Approach —-Overview

Materiality

> Qverall Greup materiality:
£7.6rn, based on 5% of profit
before tfax and separately
reported items (Headline
profit beforetax)

v

OverallCompany materiality:
£7.6m, based on 1% of total
assets, cappedtothe level of
Group materiality

Audit scope Key audit matters

> Qur audit included full-scope > Provisions for exposures
audits of 20 components
and specified procedures
on certain balances and
transactions for nine >
odditional companenits

> Provisions for income tax
uncertainties

Recognition of deferred tax
assets for taxlosses

» Tokentogether, the
components at which either
full scope audit work or
spacified audit procedures
were performed enabled us
o getcoverage on 68% of
revenue ond 76% of Headline
profit before tax



The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality ond
assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the Directors
made subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are

inherently uncertain.

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatary
framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it
operates, and considered the risk of acts by the Group which
were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including
fraud. We designed oudit procedures at the Group and
significant compenent level to respond to the risk, recognising
that the risk of not detecting @ material misstatement due to
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting ene resulting from
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intenticnal misrepresentations, or through
collusion. We focused on laws and requlations that could give
rise to a material misstatement in the Group and Company
financicl statements, including, but not limited to, the UK
Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, and global tax
compliance matters. Ourtests included, but were not limited
1o, review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supportfing documentation, review of correspondence with
legal advisers, enquiries of management, review of signiticant
companent auditors' work and review of Internal Audit reports
inso far as they related to the financial statements.

Key audit matter
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described
above and the further removed non-compliance with laws
andregulations is from the events and fransactions reflected

in the financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to
irregularities, including fraud. Asin ail of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including testing journals and evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented
arisk of material misstatement dua to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’
professional judgement, were of most significance inthe audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due 1o fraud) identified by the auditors,
including those which had the greatest effect an: the overall
cudit strateqy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters,
and any comments we make onthe results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of aur audit of the
financial statements 6s a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Thisis not a complete list of all risks identified by

our audit,

How ouraudit addressed the key audit matter

Provisions for exposures

The Group holds a number of provisions
for exposures including those resulting
framindirect tax, regulatory, legal

and environmental matters as well
asrestructuring commitments.

Refer to Restructuring Charges (Note 7),
Provisions {Note 32), Accounting Pelicies
and Critical Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Note 3) and Significant lssues
and Material Judgements in the Audit
Committee Report (page 87).

Determining the quantum of provisions
requiresthe Directorsto use judgement
and estimation, and for certain provisions,

We obtained an understanding for the basis of each significant estimate and the key
assumptions used for provisions and, in certain cases, the related insurance assets.

Rastructuring costs related 1o the Group's rationalisation of its operational and
support functions. The costs predominantly included redundancies and severance
payments, professional adviser fees and other impairment charges for obsolete
inventories ond property, plont and equipment.

> We have tested a sample of restructuring costs to determine that these are
directly attributable to the Group's restructuring activities

> For costs which are provided for at the year-end, we have verified for a sample
of transactions that a legal or constructive obligation exists

> From our procedures we concluded that restructuring costs were appropriately
recognised and classified within the financial statements

For provisions for disposal and closure costs, including litigation matters:

cbtain specialistknowledge. > We obtained supporting computations for the estimated costs and tested the

We focused on this area due to the
judgement and estimates involved.

v

mathematical accuracy of these

We discussed obligations arising with in-house and external legal counsel and

inspected supporting evidence of the history of claims arising where these were
used asinputs info client models used to estimate the provisions

> We also inspected evidence of ovailable insurance cover and that this was
appropriately presented gross of the associated provisions {withirs'Other
receivables’) and considered the financial condition of insurance providers

> We found no exceptions in respect of this work
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To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Key audit matter

How our oudit addressed the key audit matter

For all provisions we considered whether there is a range of possible outcomesin
respect of each estimate. Where appropriate, we verified that disclosure isincluded
within the Annual Report of this.

We also considered the impact of the provisions for exposures on the reporting and
disclosure of separately reported items and Alternate Performance Measuresin the
financial statements and verified that appropricte disclosures are made in the
Annual Report.

Provisions forincome tax uncertainties
The Group holds a number of provisions
for income tax exposuras arising from tax
structuring, transfer pricing and local
authority reviews.

Refer taIncome Tax {Note 10), Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimates (Note 3) and
Significant Issues and Material Judgements
inthe Audit Committee Repart {page 87).

Determining the quantum of these
provisions requires the Directors to
make judgements and estimates, and
for certain pravisions, obtain specialist
knowledge.

We utilised our tax specialists to provide a view of material judgements made. Our
audit proceduresincluded:

> Obtaining relevant computations and correspondence in respect of each material
element of the provision forincome tax uncertainty

> Understanding the key assumptions made by management in recognising the
provision and forming anindependent view on the reasanableness of the
assumptions

> Assessing the consistency of approach usedto determine provisions compared
with prier periods, and considering whether such consistency remains appropriate

> Considering the range of possible cutcomes in respect of the estimates and that
the Annual Report discloses the nature of the estimation uncertainty

From our procedures we concluded that the estimates are reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures have been included within the Annucl Report.

Recognition of deferred tax assets fortax
losses

In certain territories such as the US, the
Group has a material quantum of
historical tax losses.

The determination of whether these will
be utilised in the future is judgemental,
particularly asto how much of these could
be reasonably expected to be utilised.

In addition, the impact of US tax changes
enacted in December 2017 requires
reassessment of the calculation of total
tax losses and the lives afttached te these.
Thereis arisk of error and judgement
given these changes are complex and
subject to inferpretation.

Referto Income Tax (Note 10), Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimates (Note 3) and
Significant Issues and Material Judgements
in the Audit Committee Report {(page 87).

We utilised our tax specialists to support with the audit testing of the quantum of
tax losses in the US and that this is accurately determined, taking into account the
year-end US tax reforms. We concluded the tax losses are accurately determined.

In addition to testing the quantum of tax losses:

> We fested management's farecasts supporting the amounts recognised as a
deferred tax asset, and considered the likelihood of farecasts being achieved

W

We also considered a range of pessible outcomes inthe forecast and that an
appropriate midpoint was token in selecting the amount to recognise

v

We considered alternative views and whether afull versus partial recognition
approach was appropricte. We concluded thatthe current approach, which
recognises tax losses as deferred tax assets ta the extent there is profit forecast
against them which will be utilised, remains the most appropriate. We verified
that appropriate disclosure of the amount of deferred tax asset not recognised
is included within the financial statements

From our pracedures we concluded that the estimate is reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures have been included within the Annual Report.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.



How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
encugh work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking intc account the structure of

the Group and the Compeny, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.

Vesuvius has operationsin 37 countries and has 66 production
sites. The Group consclidates financial infermation through
reporting from its components which include divisions and
functions ot these sites.

Our audit scope was determined by considering the
significance of the entity's contribution to revenue and
contributionfo individual financial statement line itemns,
with specific consideration to obtaining sufficient coverage
over areas of high risk and locations and entities where we
identified significant or inherent risks.

We identified one significont component being the Group's
German operations which comprise 14% of the Group's revenue.
Asthe Group's remaining revenue is spread across 74 financial
reporting compaonents there were no other individually
financially significant components. The audit scope, including
Germany, comprised 20 components for which we determined
that full-scope audits would need to be performed and nine
components for which specific audit procedures on certain
balonces and transactions were performed. This collectively
gave us coverage of 68% of the Group's revenue and 76% of
the Group's Headline profit before tax. This, together with the

Group financial statements
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cdditional procedures performed at the Group level, including
testing the consolidation process, gave us the evidence we
needed for our apinion an the financial statermnents as a whote.

In estatlishing the overcll approach to the Group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed to be perfarmed

at the entities by us, as the Group engagement feam, or by
component auditors of other PwC network firms. Where the
work was performed by component auditors, we determined
the level of involvement and oversight we needed to have in

the audit work at those reporting units to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basis for our opinion on the financial statements
as awhole. This was achieved through regular update meetings
with the compenent auditors and visits to 17 of the 20 full-scope
components by senior members of the Group audit team.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by cur application

of materialiry. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual
financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate
onthe financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Company financial statements

Overall materiality £7.6 million

£7 6 million

Howwe determined it

5% of profit beforetax and separately
reported items ("Headline profit before tax’)

1% of total assets, capped to the level of Group
overall matericlity

Rationale for benchmark
applied

We believe that profit before tax and

separately reported items (‘Headline profit before
tox’) provides us with an appropriote basis for
determining our overall Group materiality given
itis a key measure used by users of the financial
statements. Headline profit before taxis an
Alternative Performance Measure presented

We believe thot total ossetsis anappropriate
basis for determining materiality for the Parent
Company, given this entity is an investment
holding company and this is on accepted auditing
benchmark. The materiality was cappedtothe
level of Group overcll materiality. The Company s
notan in-scape component in our Group audit.

and defined in the Annual Report and Accounts.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we
allocated o materiality that is less than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across
components was between £0.1 million and £7.3 million.

Certain components were audited to o local statutory audit
materiality that was alse less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repart

tothem misstatements identified during our audit above

£0.4 million {Group and Company audit) as well as
risstatements below those amauntsthat, in aur view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Goingcencern
In accordance with 1SAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation

Qutcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw attention
tain respect of the Directors’ Statement inthe financial statements about
whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern over a period of at least 12 months

from the date of approval of the financial stctements.

We have nothing matericl to add or to draw
attention to. However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee asto the
Group's and Company’s ability to continue
Qs a going concern.

We are required to report if the Directors’ statement relating to going concern

We have nothing to report.

in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our

knowledge cbtained in the cudit.

Reporting on Other Information

The other information comprises all of the informationin the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
Auditors' Report thereon. The Directers are responsible for the
other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtainedin
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify an apporent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatemant of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this ather
information, we are requiredta report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Straregic Report and Directors' Repart, we
also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Basad on the responsibilities described above and cur work
undertaken in the course of the cudit, the Companies Act 2006,
{CAD6), ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financiol Conduct
Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below {required by 15As {UK) unless
otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken inthe course of
the audit, the information given inthe Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2077 s
consistent with the financial statements ond has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements (CAQ6).

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environment abtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatementsin the
Strategic Report and Directors' Report (CAQ6).

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of
the Group

We have nothing materialto add or draw attention to
regarding:

> The Directors’ confirmation en page 23 of the Annual Report
that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Groupg, including thase that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity

v

The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks
and explain howthey are being managed or mitigated

> The Directors’ explanation on page 23 of the Annual Report
as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider
that period to be appropriate, and their staterment as to
whether they have a reasoncble expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet ifs liabilities as
they foll due over the period of their assessment, including
any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the
Directors’ Statement thot they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and
statemeant in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group.
Our review was substantially less in scope than an audit and
only consisted of making enquiries and considering the
Directors’ process supporting their statements; chacking that
the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code’); and
considering whether the staternents ara consistent with the
knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company
and thair environment obtained in the course of the audit
(Listing Rules).



Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to
report when:

> The statement given by the Directors, on page 121, that
they consider the Annual Report taken as @ whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for the Members to assess the Group's and
Company's position and performance, business model and
strateqy is materially inconsistent with curknowledge of the
Group and Company abtained in the course of performing
ouraudit

> The section of the Annual Report on pages 85t0 92
describing the waork of the Audit Committee does not
approprictely address matters communicated by usto
the Audit Committee

> The Directors’ statement relating to the Company's
compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a
departure from arelevant provision of the Code specified,
under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors

Directors' Remuneration

Inour opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to
be agudited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 (CAD6).

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fullyin the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements setouton page 121, the Directors are responsible
forthe preparation of the financial staterments in accordance
with the applicable framewark and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for
such internal contral as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
respansible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
ablility ta continue as o going concern, disclosing as
applicable, mattersrelated to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative butto do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial staterments as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an cudit conducted in accordance with [1SAs (UK) will
abways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materialif, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected toinfluence the economic decisians of users taken
on the basis of these financial staterents.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Auditors' Report.

Use of this Report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company's Members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for na
other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinicns, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whorn this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
inwriting.

Other Required Reporting
Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requiredto reporito
you if, in our opinion:
> We have not received all the information and explanations

we require for our audir

> Adequatre accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequare for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us

v

Certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by
law are not made

> The Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appecintment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we
were appointed by the Members on 10 May 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
subsequent financial periods. Thisis therefore our first year of
uninterrupted engagement.

Julian Jenkins {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 February 2018
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Group Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
MSeparately FSeparately
“Headline reported MHeadline reported
perfarmance items Total  performance tems Total
Notes Em £m £m fm £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4,5 1,683.9 —  1,6839 1,401.4 14014
Manufacturing costs {1,219.8) —  (1,219.8) (1,018.6) —  {1,018.6)
Administration, selling and distribution costs (298.6) — (298.6) (249.5) — {249.5)
Trading profit 5 165.5 — 165.5 1333 — 133.3
Amortisation of acquired infangible assets 16 — (19.5) (19.5) — (17.1) (7.0
Restructuring charges 7 — (36.3) (36.3) — (28.5) (28.5)
Gain onemployee benefit plan 28 — — — — 5.2 5.2
Qperating profit/{loss) 165.5 (55.8) 109.7 133.3 (40.4) 929
Finance expense (172.5) — (17.5) (17.4) — (17.4}
Finance income 36 — 3.6 2.9 — 29
Netfinance costs 3 (13.9) — (13.9) (14.5) — (14.5)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 5 1.3 — 1.3 1.0 — 1.0
Profit/(loss) before tax 152.9 (55.8) 97.1 119.8 40.4) 79.4
Income tax (charge)/credits 10 (36.4) (18.0) (54.4) (31.4) 5.0 (26.4)
Profit/(loss) frem:
Continuing operations 116.5 (73.8) 42.7 88.4 (25.4) 53.0
Discontinued operations 22 — 1.7 1.7 — 10.2 10.2
Profit/(loss) 116.5 (72.1) 44.4 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 110.1 (72.1) 38.0 821 (25.2) 569
Non-controlling interests 6.4 — 6.4 6.3 — 6.3
Profit/(loss) 116.5 {(72.1) 44.4 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Earnings pershare — pence 1
Continuing operations —basic 13.4 17.3
—diluted 13.4 17.3
Total operations —basic 14.1 211
—diluted 14.0 21.0

" Headline performance 1s defined in Note 4.1 and separately reported items are defined in Note 2.5.



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

2007 206
Notes £m £m

Profit 44.4 63.2
ltems that will not subsequently be reclassified toincome statement
Remeasurement of defined benefitliahilities/assets 28.6 8.4 9.5
Income tax relating to items not reclassified 10.4 (2.4) 0.7
ltems that may subsequently be reclassified toincome statement
Exchange differences on translaticn of the net assets of foreign operaticns (38.3) 207.7
Exchange differences on translation of netinvesrmenthedges 25 9.8 (41.6)
Incometax relating to items that may be reclassified 0.7 -
Other comprehensive {(loss) / income, net ofincome tax {23.2) 1749
Total comprehensiveincome 21.2 238.
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 15.3 226.2
Non-centrolling interests 59 11.9
Total comprehensive income 21.2 2381
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent arises from:
Continuing operations 13.6 216.0
Discontinued operations 1.7 10.2
Totalcomprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 15.3 226.2
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Cashflows from operating activities
Cashgenerated from operations 12 175.8 130.2
interest paid (15.6) {14.5)
Interest received 3.5 2.4
Netinterest paid (12.1) (12.1)
Income taxes paid (38.2) (34.2)
Net cashinflowfrom operating activities 125.5 839
Cash flowsfrominvesting activities
Capital expenditure (39.0) (31.3)
Proceeds from the scle of property, plant and equipment 1.8 1.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of cash acquired 21 — (7.7)
Dividends received from joint ventures 1.7 2.0
Net cash outflow from investing activities (35.5) (35.4)
Net cash inflow before financing activities %0.0 48.5
Cash flowsfrom financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 14 103.5 263
Repayment of borrowings 14 (92.2) (25.5)
Borrowing facility arrangement costs 14 1.0) —
Settlement of forward foreign exchange contracts (10.4) 20.6
Dividends paidto equity shareholders 26 (45.6) (439
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders {2.5) (2.5)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (48.2) (25.0)
Net increasein cash and cash equivalents 14 41.8 235
Cash and cash equivelents ot 1 January 101.0 67.0
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 14 (2.8) 10.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 13 140.0 101.0
Alternative performance measure (non-statutory):
Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing  Discontinued 2016
cperations  operations total operations  opergtions total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Free cash flow (Note 4,10)
Net cashinflow/(outflow) from operating activities 126.3 (0.8) 125.5 83.9 — 839
Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8 — 438 77 — 77
Capital expenditure (3%.0) — (35.0) (31.3) — (31.3)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 — 1.8 1.6 — 1.6
Dividends received from joint ventures 1.7 — 1.7 2.0 — 2.0
Dividends paidto non-cantrolling shareholders {2.5) — (2.5) (2.5) — (2.5)

Free cash flow (Note 4.10) 93.1 (0.8) 92.3 1.4 — 61.4




Group Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2017
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2017 2016

Notes £m fm
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 311.3 3236
Intangible assets 16 743.0 7819
Employee benefits—net surpluses 28 92.4 78.8
Interests in jointventures and associates 35 17.5 18.0
Investments 1.4 2.6
Income tax recoverable 10 0.4 1.0
Deferredtax assets 10 61.0 921
Otherreceivables 32 309 304
Derivative financialinstruments 20 0.2 —
Total non-current assets 1,258.1 1,3284
Cashand short-term deposits 13 161.9 144.4
Inventories 19 222.8 207.7
Trade and other receivables 18 422.2 3941
Incometax recoverable 10 5.2 39
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.1 —
Total current assets 812.2 7501
Total assets 2,070.3 2,078.5
Equity
Issued share capital 23 278 27.8
Retained earnings 24 2,370.3 2,370.0
Otherreserves 25 {1,369.4) (1,341.4)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 1,028.7 1,056.4
Non-controllinginterests 45.4 421
Total equity 1,074.1 1,098.5
Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 272 410.5 330.8
Ermployee benefits—net liabilities 28 108.9 108.2
Other payables 30 17.3 16.5
Provisions 32 34.4 3989
Deferred tax liabilities 10 42.7 48.6
Total non-current liabilities 613.8 5440
Interest-bearing borrowings 272 257 133.9
Trade and other payables 30 292.6 239.7
Income tox payable 10 343 349
Provisions 32 298 26.6
Derivative financial instruments 20 — 0.9
Total current liabilities 382.4 436.0
Totalliabilities 966.2 980.0
Total equity and liabilities 2,070.3 2,078.5

* Restated as a resul* of a change in accounting palicy (Note 10.1) and the recording of o provision for which a related asset exists (Note 32).

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Directors on 28 February 20718 and signed on their

behalf by:

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

SJUBWBIDLS [DISUDLY I



134 Vesuvius ple
3 Annucl Reportand Accounts 2017

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Issued share Other Retained Ownersof confr::l‘ij:g_ Total
capital resarves earnings the parent interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Asat 1 January 2016 27.8  (1,5019) 23465 872.4 327 905.1
Profit — — 569 569 6.3 63.2
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 95 9.5 — 9.5
Income tax relating toitems not reclassified — — (0.7 0.7) — (0.7}
Exchangediffarences on franslation of the net assets
of foreign operations — 2021 —_ 2021 56 2077
Exchange differences ontranslation of net investment hedges — (41.6) — (41.6) — (47.6}
Other comprehensive income, net of income tox — 160.5 8.8 169.3 5.6 1749
Total comprehensive income — 160.5 657 226.2 m9 238.1
Recognition of share-bosed payments -— — 1.7 17 — 1.7
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (43.9} (439} (2.5) (46.4)
Totaltransactions with owners — — (42.2) (42.2) (2.5) (44.7)
Asat1January 2017 278 (1,3414) 23700 1,056.4 421 1,098.5
Profit — — 38.0 38.0 6.4 44.4
Remeasurement of defined benefitliabilities /assets — — 84 B.4 — 8.4
Income tax re|q1'ing toitems not reclassified —_ — (2.4} (2.4) — (2.4)
Exchange differences ontranslation of the net assets
of foreign operations — {(37.8) — (37.8) (0.5) (38.3)
Exchange differences on translation of net investment hedges — 9.8 — 9.8 — 9.8
Income taxrelating toitems that may be reclassified —_ — (0.7) 0.7) — {€.7)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) net of income tax — (28.0) 5.3 (22.7) (0.5) (23.2)
Total comprehensiveincome / {loss) — (28.0) 433 15.3 59 21.2
Recognition of share-based payments — — 2.6 2.6 — 2.6
Dividends poid (Note 26) — — (45.6) (45.6) (26) (48.2)
Total transactions with owners — — (43.0) (43.0) (2.6} (45.6)
Asat 31 December 2017 278 (1,369.4) 2,370.3 1,028.7 45.4 1,074.1
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

General Information

Vesuvius plc ('Vesuvius' or ‘the Company’) is a public company limited by shares. itis incorporated and domiciled in England
and Wales and listed on the London Stock Exchange. The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiary and joint venture companies (‘the Group} is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 73 and its registered
address is shown on page 189.

Basis of Preparation

Basis of accounting

The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in cccordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and with the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reparting under IFRS. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of defined benefit pension
plans, certain provisions, available-for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments.

Basis of conselidation

The Group Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (ifs ‘subsidiaries’). Contfrol exists when the Company has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity that
significantly affect the entity's return se as to have rights to the variable return from its activities. In assessing whether contral
exists, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are taken into account. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the Group Income Statement from the effective date of acquisition or up tothe
effective date of disposal, as apprepriate.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Group Financial Statments are set outin the Notes.
These policies have been consistently cpplied fo all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financiai statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies info line with those detailed
herein to ensure that the Group financicl statements are prepared on a consistent basis. All intra-Group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group'sinterest
therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination
together with the non-controlling interests’ share of profit or loss, each component of other comprehensive income, and
dividends paid since the date of the combination. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controllinginterests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balence,

Geing concern

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group for a periad in excess of 12 months from the date of approval
of the 2017 financial statements. These forecasts reflect an assessment of current and future end-market conditions and
theirimpact on the Group's future trading performance. The forecasts show that the Group will be able to operate within the
current committed debt facilities and show continued compliance with the Company's financial covenants. On the basis of
the exercise described above andthe Group's available committed debt facilities, the Directors consider that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to confinue in aperational existence for a period of at least 12 manths from the date of
signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue to adopt a going concemn basis in preparing the financial statements of
the Group and the Company.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in millions of pound sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company,
and rounded to one decimal place. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin Note 27.1.

Disclosure of ‘'separately reported items’

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements encourages the disclosure of additional line items and the reordering of items
presented on the face of the income statement when appropriate for a proper understanding of the entity’s financial
performance. The Company has adopted a columnar presentation for its Group Income Staterment, to separately identify
headline performance results, as the Directors consider that this gives a better view of the underlying results of the ongoing
business. As part of this presentation format, the Company has adopted a policy of disclosing separately onthe face of its
Group Income Statement, within the column entitlad "Separately reported items’, the effect of any components of financial
performance for which the Directors consider separate disclosure would assist both in a better understanding of the financial
performance achieved and in making projections of future results.

Both materiality and the nature and function of the components of income and expense are considered in deciding upon
such presentation. Such items may include, inter alia, the financial effect of exceptional items which occur infreguently, such
as major restructuring activity, initial recognition and subsequent increase, decrease, utilisation and impact of tax reform on
US deferred tox assets, together with iterns always reported separately, such as amortisation charges relaning to acquired
intangible assets, profits or lasses arising on the disposal of continuing or discontinued operations and the taxation impact
of the aforementioned exceptional items and items reported separately.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

2.5

2.6

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Disclosure of ‘separately reported items’ (continued)

The ameortisation charge inrespect of infangible assets recognised on business combniations is excluded from the trading results
of the Groupsince they are non-cash charges and are not considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group.
Restructuring charges are excluded from the trading results of the Group due to the material nature of these non-recurring
transformational initiatives. In its adoption of this policy, the Company applies an even-handed approach to both gains and
losses and aims 1o be both consistent and clear inits accounting and disclosure of such items.

New and revised IFRS

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2017
reporting pericds and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below. Other new or amended standards or interpretations are not expectedto
have a significant impoct on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS § Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018) addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial instruments, introduces new rules for hedge aecounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. It replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments guidance and comprehensive updates have been made
10 1FRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure and 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The Group willapply IFRS 9 and
the updated IFRS 7 disclosure requirements from their effective date.

The impact assessment performed by the Groupincluded a review of the classification and measurement of financicl
instruments; the impairmant of financial assets and the group hedging policy which resulted in the following conclusions:

> The group reviewed the classification and measurement of each of its financial instruments. Although, the classification
of instfruments is altered under IFRS 9, this does not result in any changes to the measurement approoach apart from the
impairment of trade receivables which is addressed below.

> The new impairment model for financial assets requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under 1AS 39. The Group will apply the simplified
approach toits frade receivobles as per the scope exceptionin IFRS 9 in which all loss allowances far trade receivables will
be measured ot initial recagnition and throughaout its [ife at an amount equalte lifetime ECL. This is consistent with the
nature of the group's trade receivables as they do not include a significant financing component. Based on the assessments
undertaken to date, the group dees not expect a material movement in the loss allowance for trade debtors.

> The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging instruments more closely with the Group's risk
management practices. The Group has confirmed that its current net investment hedge relationship will quelify as a
continuing hedge uponthe adoption of tFRS 9.

Based on our assessment of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group does not believe there will be a material impact onits Group
Financial Statements. From 1 January 2018 onwards, the Group will amend its financial instruments and hedging accounting
palicies to reflect IFRS 9 terminology and prepare the appropriate disclosures regarding the classification end measurement
of financial instruments; impairment of financial assets and hedging.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custorners (effective after 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018) establishes a
comprehensive framewcrk for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognition guidonce, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Leyalty Programmes.
The Group will opply IFRS 15 from its effective date.

The impact assessment performed by the Group included a review of revenue streams and customer confracts to

identify distinct performance obligations and the cppropriate method for allocating the transaction price. Based oncur
assessment of the adeption of IFRS 15, the Group does not believe there will be a material impact onits Group Financiat
Statements. During 2018, the Group will revise the revenue recognition policy to reflect IFRS 15 terminclogy, prepare the
additional disclosures for the Group Financia! Statements and continue to review confracts across all Segments. The Group
will continue to disaggregete revenue over Steel and Foundry in the Segmental Analysis note.



31

3.2

137

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases (effective after 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2019} replaces the existing guidance in IAS 17 Leases. IFRS
16 provides G single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease
termis 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. The present value of the Group's operating lease payments
as defined under the new standard will be shown as lease liabilities on the balance sheet and included in net debt. There are

a number of differences between the two definitions; for example, where there is an option to extend the lease, payments for
the extension period will be included in the IFRS 16 liability if the Group is reasonably certain that it will exercise the option,

but are notincluded as commitments under IAS 17,

The Group is currently assessing the potential impact on its Group Financial Statements resulting from the application of [FRS 16,

IFRIC 23 Uncertaginty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty aver Income Tox Treatments {effective from 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2019, not yet endorsed)
clarifies how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax ossets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over
tax treatment under IAS 12. The Group s currently assessing the potentialimpact on its Group Financial Statements resulting
from the application of IFRIC 23.

IFRIC Interpretation - interest and Penalties on Tax
The impact of the interpretation regarding the accounting treatment of interest and penalties ontax is set out in Note 10.1.

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Determining the carrying amount of some assets and liakilities requires estimation of the effect of uncertain future events.
The major saurces of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are noted below. All other accounting policies are included within the respective Notesto the
financial statements.

Provisions

Vesuvius has exfensive international operations and is subject to various legal and regulatory regimes, including those
covering taxation and environmental matters. Several of the Group's subsidiaries are parties o legal proceedings, certain of
which areinsured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and are aware of a number
of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax authorities. Provisions are made forthe expected amounts
payable inrespect of known or probable costs resulting bath from legal or other regulatory requirements, or from third-party
claims, as described in Note 32. As the settlement of many of the obligations for which provision is made is subject to legal or
other regulatory process, the timing and amount of the associated outflows are subject to some uncertainty. The Directors
use their judgement and experience to make appropriate estimates of provisions in the financial statements for amounts
relating to such matters.

Taxation

{a) Currenttax

Tax benefits are not recognised unless it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the Group. In assessing
the amount of the benefit to be recognised in the financial statements, the Directors exercise their judgement in considering
the effect of negotiations, litigation and any other matters that they consider may impact upen the potential settlement.
The Group operates internationally and is subject to tax in many different jurisdictions. As a consequence, the Group s
routinely subjecttotax cudits and lecal enquiries which, by their very nature, cantake a considerable period of timeto
conclude. Provisions are made for known issues based on oll substantively enacted legislation, the Directors’ interpretation
of country-specific tax law and their assessment of the likely outcome, taking into consideration the Group's experiencein
agreeing tax liabilities with tax authorities and appropriate external advice. Asindicated in Note 10.5, these provisions
amountto £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) at the end of 2017, Further discussion of these provisions is contained in that Note. All
income tax liabilities, provisions and assets are freated as income tax payable and recoverable in accordance with [AS 12

(b) Deferredtax

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences arising in anumber
of the Group's businesses, further details of which are given in Note 10.4. Account has been taken of future forecasts of taxable
profitin arriving at the values ar which these assets are recognised. If these forecast profits do not materialise or change, or
there are changes in tax rates or to the period over which the lasses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value
of deferred tax assets will need to be revised in a future period.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

(b) Deferredtax (continued)

The Group olso has losses and other tfiming differences, also analysedin Naote 10.4, for which na deferred tax assets have

been recognised in these financial statements, relating either to loss-making subsidiaries where the future economic benefit of
the timing difference is not probable or to where the timing difference is of such a nature that its value is dependent on certain
types of profit being earned, such as capital profits. If trading or other appropriate profits are earned in the future in these
companies, these losses and other fiming differences may yield benefitto the Group in the form of a reduced tax charge.

As explained in Note 10.2, the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act {TCJA Y enacted inlate Decermnber 2017 had a material impacton
the Group's deferred tax position. TCJA was introduced very rapidly, and consequently thera is much uncertainty about how
some of the provisions will operate. As explained in Note 10.6, Vesuvius currently understands that the Base Erasion and
Anti-Abuse Tax (BEAT) will impact its tax charge in the US in 2018 and beyond, in relation 1o certain payments made fo
non-US related parties. Further clarification is awaited from US Treasury so the precise impact of BEAT cannot be
determinad with certainty at this point.

Other reasonable estimations have been made in determining how US tax reform willimpact on Vesuvius' US 2017 deferred
tax position in particular in relation to earnings and profits of Vesuvius' non-US investments to be included in the deemed
repatrigtion tolling charge calculations included inits 2017 taxable income.

As guidance s given by the US Treasury Department on how these, and other provisions of TCJA, are to operate, Vesuvius' tax
position may be impacted.

Alternative Performance Measures

The Company uses a nurmnber of alternative perforrmance measures (APMs) in addition to those reported in accordance

with IFRS. The Directors believe that these APMs, listed below, are important when assessing the underlying financial and
operating performance of the Group and its divisions, providing management with key insights and metrics in support of the
ongaing managemertt of the Group's performance and cash flow. A number of these align with KPl's and other key metrics
used in the business and therefare are considered useful to also disclose to the users of the financial statements. The following
APMs do not have standardised meaning prescribed by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with similar
measures presented by other companies.

Headline

Headline performance, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is from continuing operations and
before itemsreported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement.

Underlying revenue, underlying trading profit and underlying return on sales

Underlying revenue, underlying trading profit and underlying return on sales are the headline equivalents of these measures
after adjustments fo exclude the effects of changes in exchange rates, business acquisitions and disposals. Reconciliations of
underlying revenue and underlying trading profit can be found in the Financial Review. Underlying revenue growthis ane of
the Group's key performance indicaters and provides animportant measure of organic growth of Group businesses between
reporting periods, by eliminating the impact of exchange rates, acquisitions, disposals and significant business closures.

Return on sales (ROS)
ROS is calculated as trading profit divided by revenue. Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess
the troding performance of Group businesses. A reconciliation of ROS isincluded in Note 5.3,

Trading profit

Trading profit, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is defined as aperating profit before
separately reporteditemns. It is one of the Group’s key performance indicators and is used to assess the trading performance
of Group businesses. It is also used as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of cartain employees are measurad.

Headline profit before tax

Headline profit before tax, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is calculated os the net total of
trading profit, plus the Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and total net finance costs associated with headline
performance. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the financial performance of the Group
asawhole.

Effectivetax rate (ETR)
The Group's ETR is calculated on the income rax costs associated with headline performance, divided by headline profit
before tax and before the Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures.
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Headline earnings per share

Headline earnings per share is calculated by dividing headline profit before tax less associated income tax costs, attributable
to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue during the year. It is one of the Group's key
performance indicators and is used 1o assess the underlying earnings performance of the Group as a whole. Itis also used

as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of certain employees are measured. Headline earnings per shore is
disclosedin Note 11,

Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow is cash generated from continuing operations before restructuring and net retirement benefit
obligations but after deducting capital expenditure net of asset disposals. It is used in calculating the Group's cash conversion.
A reconciliation of cash generated from operations to operating cash flow can be found in the Financial Review.

Caosh conversion

Cash conversion is calculated as aperating cash flow from continuing operations divided by trading profit. It is useful for
measuring the rate at which cash is generated from trading profit. [t is also used as one of the fargets against which the annual
bonuses of certain employees are measured. The colculation of cash conversion is detailed in the Financial Review.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is defined as net cash flow from operating activities after net outlays for the purchase and sale of property,
plant and equipment, dividends from joint ventures and dividends poid to non-controlling shareholders, but before additional
funding contributions to Group pension plans. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the
underlying cash generation of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capital. A reconciliation

of free cash flowis included underneath the Group Statement of Cash Flows.

Average trade working capital to sales ratio

The average trade working capital to sales ratio is calculated as the percentage of average trade werking capital balances
to the total revenue for the year, at constant currency. Average trade working capital (comprising inventories, tfrade
receivables and frade payables) is colculated as the average of the 12 previous month-end balances. It is one of the Group's
key performance indicators and is useful for measuring the level of working capitel used inthe business ond is one of the
measures used in menitoring the Group's capital.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

EBITDA is calculated asthe total of trading profit before depreciation and amortisation of non-acquired intangible assets.
Itis used in the calculation of the Group's interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios. Areconciliation of EBITDA isincluded
in Note 12.

Net interest

Netinterestis calculated as interest payable on barrowings less interest receivable, excluding any item separately reported.
itis used inthe calculation of the Group's interest cover ratio.

Interest cover

Interest cover is the rafio of EBIT DA to netinterest. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used 1o assess the
financial position of the Group and its ability to fund future growth. This measure is also & component of the Group's covenant
calculations.

Net debt

Net debt comprises the net total of current and non-current interest-bearing borrowings and cash and short-term deposits.
Net debt is @ measure of the Group's net indebtedness to banks and other external financial institutions. A reconciliation of
the movement in net debt is included in Note 14 of the Group Financial Statements.

Net debt to EBITDA

Net debtto EBITDA is the ratio of net debt at the year-end to EBITDA for that year. It is ane of the Group's key performance
indicators and is used to assess the financial position of the Group and its ability to fund future growth andis one of the
measures used in monitoring the Group's capital.

Returnon net assets (RONA)

RONA is calculated as trading profit pius share of post-tax profit of joint ventures, divided by average net operating assets, at
constant currency (being the average over the previous 12 months of property, plant and equipment, frade working capital and
other operating receivables and payables). Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the financial
performance and asset management of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capital.

Constant currency
Figures presented at constant currency represent 2016 amounts retranslated to average 2077 exchange rates.
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5.1

5.2

5.3

Segment Information

The segment information contained in this Note makes reference 1o several alternative performance measures, definitions
ofwhich can be found in Note 4.

Business segments

Operating segments for continuing operations

Operating segments are reporied in a manner cansistent with the internal reporting provided to the Executive Directors of
the Board, who make the key operating decisions and are responsible for allocating resources ond assessing performance
of the operating segments. Reflecting the Group's management and internal reporting structure, segmental information is
presented in respect of the two main business segments: Steel and Foundry. The Steel segment aggregates the Flow Control,
Advanced Refractories and Digital Services divisions which are subject to a similar risk profile and return. The principal
activities of each of these segments are described in the Strategic Report on pages 32 to 49.

Segment revenue represents revenue from external customers (inter-segment revenue is nat material). Trading profitincludes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those temns that can ke cllocated on areasonable basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered to
customers after deducting rebates, discounts and value-added toxes, and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue
from the sale of gooeds is recognised when persucsive evidence exists that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferrad to the customer, recovery of the consideration is prebable, there is no continuing management invalvement
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. A provision for anticipated returnsis made based
primarily on historical return rares. Where a contractual arrangement consists of twe or more separate elements that can

be provided to customers either on a stand-alone basis ar as an extra, such asthe provision of supplementary materials with
equipment, revenue is recognised for each element as if it were an individual contractual arrangement.

Income statement
The cperating segment results from continuing operations for 2017 and 2016 are presented below.

2017

Continuing

Steal Foundry  operations

£m £m £m

Segment revenue 1,148.7 535.2 1,683.9
Segment EBITDA 128.9 80.3 209.2
Segment depreciation (28.5) (15.2) 43.7)
Segment trading profit 100.4 65.1 165.5
Return onscles margin 8.7% 12.2% 9.8%
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (19.5)
Restructuring charges (36.3)
Operating profit 109.7
Net finance costs (13.9)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3
Profit before tax 971

Capital expenditure additions 34.0 10.3 44.3




54

2016
Continuing
Steel Foundry operotions
£m £m £m
Segmentrevenuve 942.0 4594 17,4014
Segment EBITDA 107.0 68.6 175.6
Segment depreciation (27.8) (14.5) (42.3)
Segment trading profit 79.2 54.1 1333
Return on sales margin 8.4% 11.8% 9.5%
Amartisation of acquired intangible assets (17.1}
Restructuring charges {28.5)
Gainonemployee benefit plan 5.2
Operating profit 929
Net finance costs (14.5)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.0
Profit before tax 79.4
Capital expenditure additions 237 11.5 35.2
Geographical analysis
Externalrevenue Non-current assets
2017 206 2017 2016+
£m £m £m £m
us 279.4 2405 288.2 218.5
Germany 2321 1924 101.0 121.5
India 136.5 11%.2 427 39.7
China 127.6 1131 869 $3.2
Brazil 90.5 70.7 65.1 69.2
UK 64.0 594 107.2 119.5
France 55.4 48.0 26.1 201
Spain 49.4 42.5 3.9 277
Restof the world 649.0 515.2 355.6 345.0
Continving operations 1,683.9 1,401.4 1,104.7 11584

* Restated asa result of the recording of a provision for which a related asserexists (Note 32).

External revenue disclosed in the table above is based upon the gecgraphicat location of the aperation. Non-current ossets
exclude employee benefits net surpluses and deferred tax assets. Information relating fo the Group's products and services
is given in the Strategic Report on pages 36 to 49. The Group is not dependent upon any single customer for its revenue and
no single customer, for either of the years presented in the table above, accounts for more than 10% of the Group's total

external revenue.
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6. Amounts Payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their Associates

2017 2016
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors andtheir associates for the audit of the parent Company
and Consolidated Financial Statements 0.4 0.4
Fees payable to the Company's auditers andtheir associates for other services:
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.8 1.5
Audit-related assurance services 01 0.1
Tax compliance and advisery — —
Total auditors’ remuneration 1.3 2.0

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as the Group's external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2077, replacing
KPMGLLP.

Total auditors' remuneration of £1.3min 2017 all related to continuing operations, of which £1.2m related t6 audit fees
and £0.1m of non-audit fees, in respect of the interim review fee (2016: £2.0m, including £1.9m of audit fees and £0.1m of
non-audit fees, the latter comprising £0.1m in respect of the interim review fee and £nil for taxation advice).

Mazars LLP was appointed external auditor of the non-material entities within the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. Total remuneration for the audit of the non-material entities was £0.4m in 2017. This amountis not included inthe
table above.

It is the Group's policy not to use the Group's auditors for non-audit services other than in very limited circumstances and when
they are best placed to do so.

7. Restructuring Charges

The 2017 restructuring charges were £36.3m (2016 £28.5m). The Group-wide restructuring programme initiated in 2015
continued, resulting in charges of £36.3m (2016: £28.5m) reflecting redundancy costs of £22.8m (2016: £21.4m), plant closure
costs of £0.5m {2074: £4.2m), consultancy fees of £6.8m (2016: £2.0m), aninventory/asset write-off of £5.5m (2016: £0.9m)
and travel of £0.7m (2016: £nil). Further details of restructuring programmes are provided in the Financial Review.

The net tax credit attributable to the total restructuring charges was £4.3m (2076: £3.8m).
Cash costs of £27.3m (2016: £16.8m) {Nate 12) were incurred in the year in respect of the restructuring programme, leaving
provisions made but unspent of £22.9m (Note 32) as at 31 December 2017 (2076: £18.5m), of which £2.7m (2016: £2 7m)
relates to future costsin respect of leases expiring between one and six vears.

8. Employees

8,1 Employee benefits expense

2017 2016

£m £m

Waogesandsalaries 3440 3016
Social security costs 52.2 46.7
Redundancy costs 228 214
Other restructuring costs — 0.2
Share-based payments (Note 29) 2.6 1.7
Pensioncosts —defined contribution pension plans (Note 28) 12.5 10.7
—defined benefit pension plans (Note 28) 7.0 2.1

Other post-refirernent benefits (Note 28) 0.4 04
Total employee benefits expense 441.5 384.8

Ofthe total employee benafits expense of £447.5m (2016: £384.8m), £418.1m (2016: £367.1m) was charged in arriving
attrading profit, £nil 2016: £5.2m) was credited from settlement gains relating to employee benefit plans, £0.6m

(2016: £1.3m)was charged within ordinary net finance costs, and £22.8m (2076: £21.6m) was charged to restructuring costs.
Within redundancy costs reported in the table above are £nil (2016: £0.3m) of defined benefit pension plan costs and £0.1m
(2016: £0.1m) of defined contribution pension plan costs.

Al constant rates, the total employee benefits expense for 2016 was £409.6m.



8.2

8.3

9.2

Average number of employees

2017 2016

no. no,

Steel 7,868 7,725
Foundry 3,106 3,101
Continuing operations 10,974 10,826
Discontinued operations — —
Total average number of employees 10,974 10,826

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had 11,010 employees (20716: 10,840).

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management persennel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for
each of the categories specified in |1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of individual
Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 106 1o 116,

2017 2016

£m £

Short-term employee benefits 1.9 1.5
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.3
Share-bosed payments 0.7 0.5
Total remuneration of key management personnel 2.8 2.3

Net Finance Costs

Accounting policy

Borrowing costs that are directly attributatle to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Capitalised borrowing costs for 2017 were £nil (2016: £nil). All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense inthe
Group Income Statement using the effective interest rate method.

Total net finance costs

2017 2016
£m £m

Interest payable on borrowings
Loans, overdrafts and factoring arrangements 15.9 15.1
Obligations under finance leases 0.2 0.2
Amortisation of capitalised arrangement fees 0.6 0.5
Totalinterest poyable on berrowings 16.7 15.8
Interest on net retirement benefit obligations 0.6 1.3
Adjustment to discounts on provisions and other liabilities 0.2 0.2)
Adjustment to discounts on receivables (0.1) 0.3
Financeincome (3.5) (2.7)
Total net finance costs 13.9 14.5
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10.

Income Tax

10.1 Accounting policy

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or foss
excepttothe extent that they relate to items charged or ¢credited inthe Group Statement of Cemprenensive income or Group
Statement of Changes in Equity, in which case the ossociated tox is also recognised in those statemenits.

In arriving at its current tax charge, the Group also makes careful assessment of the likely impact of tax law changes.
In particular, it has considered the impact of US tax reform enacted in December 2017 inthe US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
(TCJA) and other recently announced tax reform, for example in Belgium.

Current tax

Current tax is based on faxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Group
Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxaoble or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

A provision is recognised when the Group considers it has a present tax obligation as the result of a past evert and it is
probable that the Group will ke required fo settle that obligation. Provisions established for such uncertain tax positions are
made using a best estimate of the tax expected to be paid, based on a qudlitative and quantitative assessment of all refevant
information. Such a provision is typically required where the underlying tax issue is subject 1o interpretation and remains ta be
agreed, and therefore is uncertain as to outcome. Principatly the uncertain tax pasitions fer which a provision is made relate
to the interpretation of tax legislation and guidance regarding fransfer pricing arrangements that have been enteredintoin
the normal course of business. In accordance with IAS 12, tax provisions are included as income tax payable an the face of
the Group Balance Sheet, and movements in tax provisions are included within income tax charges or credifsin the Group
Income Statement.

In assessing any appropriate provision requirements for uncertain tax items, the Group considers pregress made in
discussions with the tax authorities, expert advice on the likely autcome and any recent developments in case law. Dueto the
uncertainty associated with such tax items, it is possible that at a future date, on conclusion of the open matters, the final
outcome may vary significantly. Any such variations will affect the financial results in the year in which such a determination
is made.

Deferred tax

Deferredtax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tox bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liakilities are generally recognised for all taxakle femporary differences and deferred tax

assets are recognised fo the exdent that it is probable that taxable profits will ba available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognifion of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in o business combination} of ather assets and liabilitiesina
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is calculated at the fax rates that are
expected to apply inthe period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates and laws that have been
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recagnised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and inferests

in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to confrol the reverscl of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temperary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future. The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that itis ne longer prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and licbilities are of fset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate fo income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Change in accounting policy

Previously, the common understanding and interpretation of IAS 12 allowad a company to include inits tax charges, licbilities
and provisions any associated delayed settlement interest and penalties. Vesuvius followed this approach. The recent
clarification by the IFRS Interpretations Committee {previously the International Financial Reparting Inferpretotions
Committeg, IFRIC), however, is that a company should include in its tax charges, liabilities and provisicns only items meeting
the strict definition of taxes under [AS 12. It confirmed that items not meeting that definition should be reported in accordence
with IAS 37.



10.2

Vesuvius has accordingly changed its accounting policy to include interest and penalties on taxin trade and other payablesin
accordance with |AS 37. This has resulted in a change to its Group Balance Sheetas at 31 December 20746 to reclassify £7.0m
fromits liabilities and provisions previously reported os tax to trade and other payables. The effect of this change on its 2016
performance statements is immaterial and no restatement is therefore required to be made.

Income tax charge
2017 2014
£m £m
Current tax
Overseas taxation 371 38.3
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1.7) (29
Total current tax, continuing operations 35.4 35.4
Deferredtax
Origination and reversal of temporary taxable differences 19.0 (2.0}
Adjustments inrespect of prior years — _
Total deferred tax, continuing operations 19.0 (5.0
Totalincome tax charge 54.4 264
Total income tax charge attributable to:
Continuing operations —headline performance 36.4 31.4
— separateily reported 18.0 (5.0)
Total income tax charge 54.4 26.4

included in the Group's total income tax charge are charges and credits meeting the criteria set outin Note 2.5, to be treated
as separately reported items, as analysed in the following table:

2017 2016
Separately reported items £m £m
Impact of US tax reform 24.5 —
Other utilisation of previcusly recognised US deferred rax asset 4.2 6.2
Additional recognition of US deferred tax asset {0.4) (4.1}
Net movement in US deferred tax asset 28.3 2.1
Restructuring charges 4.3) (3.8)
Gain on employee benefirplan — 0.4
Amaortisation and utilisation of acquired intangibles (6.0) (3.7)
Total tax charge/(credit) separately reported 18.0 {5.0)

The US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) enccted in the US in December 2017 hos had amateriol impact on the value of the
deferred tax asset the Group recognisesin the US. It has reduced the asset by $33.1m {(£25.7m), of which $31.5m (£24.5m)

is charged to the Group Income Statement and $1.6m (£1.2m) is charged to the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income,
asitrelatestothe effect of the change in the US Federal rate of tax on the value of the deferred tax asset on pension deficits
recognised in that statement.

The reduction was principally due to the change in Federal tax rate from 35% to 21%, the deemed repatriation tolling charge
and the impact of other changes when measuring the value of the asset which is recognised in the Group Balonce Sheet.
However, no current tax liability has resulted from these provisions in 2077, due to the availability of tax losses and foreign tax
credits to offset the resultant additional taxable income. The impact of US tax reform, together with narmal changes to the
US deferred tax asset, resulted in the asset reducing from $81.3m {£65.9m) af the end of 2016 to $44.0m (£32.6m) ot the end
of 2017.

In 2017, Belgium reduced its tax rate to 29%in 2018 and 25%in 2020. This has had the impoct of reducing the deferred tax
assetin Belgium by £1.4min 2017 {2016: £nil). Thisimpactisincluded in the total deferred tax charge on continuing operations.
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Income Tax {continued)

Income tax charge (continued)

The nettax charge reflected in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the year amounted to £3.1m (2016: £0.7m),
£2.4m of which related to tax cn net actuarial gains and losses on the employee benefits plan. In addition, £0.7m (2016: £nil)
relatedto UK tax in respect of foreign exchange differances arising on hedged positions.

The Group operates in a number of countriesthat have differing tax rates, laws and practices. Changes in any of these

areas could, adversely or positively, impact the Group's tax charge inthe future. Continuing losses, or insufficiency of taxable
profit to absorb all expenses, in any subsidiary, could have the effect of increasing tax charges in the future as effective tox
relief may net be available for those losses or expenses. Other significant factors affecting the tax charge are described in

Nates 3.2, 10.1 and 10.6.

In 2016, profit from discontinued operations (Note 22) included a tax credit of £9.0m relating to the release of a provision for
possible China taxes arising during the demerger of the Alent business in 2012. After further consultation with advisers, and in
light of the publication in 2015 by the Chinese tax authorities of additional guidance on the applicable taxes, it was decided
this provision was no longer required. No similar credit has arisen in 2017.

Reconciliation of income tax charge to profit before tax

2017 2016
£m fm
Profit before tax 97.1 79.4
Tox atthe UK corporation tax rate of 19.25% (2016: 20%) 18.7 159
Impact of tax rate change on deferred tax asset 19.5 —
Overseastax rate differencas 9.8 27
Withholding taxes 4.4 36
Amortisation of infangibles (0.2 (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.2 1.6
Income taxed in advance 3.6 4.6
Non-taxable income — (1.2)
Deferred tax asset not previously recognised (1.4) (4.1)
Deferredtax assets not recognised 3.5 7.5
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (2.0) (1.0)
Adjustrmentsin respect of prior years 07 {2.9)
Totalincometaxcharge 54.4 26.4
Deferred tax
Other Other
operating Pansion Intangible temporary
Interest losses costs assets  differences Toral
fm £m £m £m fm £m
Asat1 January 2016 241 238 1.3 (30.4} 7.3 261
Exchange adjustments/other 45 25 19 (4.2) 44 91
Chargeto Group Statement of Comprehensive Income — - (0.7 — — 7
Creditto Group tncome Statement 0.2 38 — 5.3 1.8 111
Net {charge)/credit to Group Income Statement US 2m (0.2) — — 0.2 zmn
Asat 1 January 2017 26.7 29.9 2.5 (29.3) 13.7 435
Exchange adjustments/other (1.8) (1.8} — 0.2 {0.4) (3.8)
Impact ef taxrate change:
—inGroup Income Statement (6.8) (8.6) (0.8) — (3.3) {19.5)
—in Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income - - (1.2) — — (1.2)
Other chargeto Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income — — (1.2 — — (.2)
Othercreditto Group Income Statement — 0.6 0.1 6.2 38 10.7
Other net [charge)/creditto Group Income Statement US (8.2) (3.0) 0.6 (0.2) 0.6 (10.2)
Asat3T December201?7 9.9 171 — (23.1) 14.4 18.3
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2017 2016
£m £m
Recognisedin the Group Bolance Sheetas:
Non-current deferred tax assets 61.0 921
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (42.7) (48.6)
Nettotal deferred tax assets 18.3 435

Included in these deferred tax assets and liabilities are amounts to be expected to be utilised in 2018 as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Deferred rax assers 11.3 16.9
Deferred raxliabilities (7.6) {6.7)

As discussed in Note 10.2, US tax reform enacted in TCJA has had a majorimpact on the Group's US deferred tax position.
Note 3.2 outlines the principal judgements and estimates taken in determining the impact of that reform on the valuation of
this asset.

Included in nen-current deferred tax assetsis £32,6m {20716: £65.9m) in respect of the partial recognition of temporary
differences arising in the US computed in accerdance with the policy set outin Note 10.1 above. The Group remains confident
of the recovery of this asset. £69.2m (2016: £100.4m) remains unrecognised.

In view of its material size and nature, any tax credit reflected in the Group Income Statement arising from the recognition of
this asset is presented separately from the tax charge on headline performance, in accordance with the principles outlined in
Note 2.5. Subsequent increase, decrease and utilisation of the resultant deferred tax asset would similarly be expectedto be
presented in this manner, as the Directors consider that the separate idenfification of deferred tax for material temporary
differences would assist both in a better understanding of the financial performance achieved, and in making projections

of future results of the Group.

Tax loss carry-forwards and other temporary differences with o tax value of £1m {2016: £1.4m) were recognised by subsidiaries
reporting a loss. On the basis of approved business plans of these subsidiaries, the Directors consider it probable that the tax
loss carry-forwards and temporary differences can be offset against future taxable profits.

The total deferred tax assets not recognised as at 31 December 2017 were £219.9m (2016: £263.1m), as anclysed below.

In accordance with the accounting policy in Nate 101, these items have not been recognised as deferred tax assets onthe
basis that their future economic benefitis not probable. Intotal, there was a decrease of £43.2m (2016: £6.4m increase) in
net unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year, principally due to the impoct of the change inthe US Federal tax rate
from 35%t0 21%, enacted in TCJA.

2017 2016

£m fm

Operating losses (further described below) 102.3 118.6
Unrelieved US interest (may be carried forward indefinitely) 43.2 66.6
Capital losses available to of fset future UK capital gains {may be carried forward indefinitely) 28.1 28.0
UK ACT credits (may be carried forward indefinitely) 131 137
UStax credits 16.7 9.
Othertemporary differences 16.5 277
Total deferred tax assets not recognised 2159 2631

£5.5m relating e US tax credits has been reclassified from other temporary differences to US tax credits in the 2016 comparative.

The Group has significant net aperating losses with o tax volue of £119.4m (2016: £148.5m), only £17.1m (2076: £29.9m) of
which meef the criteria set outin Note 10.1 to be recognised on the Group Balance Sheet.
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10.
10.4

10.5

Income Tax (continued)
Deferredtax (continued)
Operating  Operating Cperating Operating
losses lossesnot losses lossas nof
recognised  recognised Total recogmised  recognised Total
2m7 2017 2017 2016 20164 2016
£m £m £m £m £m £m
UK (may be carried forward indefinitely) — 73.5 735 — 78.6 78.6
USA (dueto expire 2024 - 2031) 13.3 37 17.0 26.5 49 214
ROW (moybe corried forward indefinitely) 3.5 21.5 25.0 34 23.0 264
ROW {due to expire within 5 years) 0.3 3.6 39 — 121 121
171 102.3 119.4 299 118.6 148.5

The £28.9m (2016: £38.5m) operating losses available to set against future income inthe rest of the world arise in a number of
countries, reflecting the spread of the Group's operations.

As ar 31 December 2017, the Group had unrecognised US tax credits with avalue of £16.7m (2016: £9.1m) os follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

US research and experimentation credits (due to expire 2018-2033) 12.8 49
US fareign tax credits {due to expire 2022-2024) 3.9 4.2
US tax credits 16.7 9.1

There are no temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures for which
deferred tox liabilities have not been recognised. The aggregate temporary ditferences where the exemption not to provide
for the deferred taxation liability has been taken is £197.1m (2016: £175.9m).

UK corporation rax rate reductions to 17% from 1 April 2020 were enacted in 2076, Accordingly, the Group's closing UK
deferred taxliability has been provided using a tax rate of 17% except where the reversals are expected to arise pricr to
1 April 2020,

Income tax payable and recoverable

2017 2016

£m £m

Liabilities for income tax payable 114 10.4
Provisions for uncertain fax provisions 23.2 245
34.3 34.5

Income tax recaverable within ore year 5.2 39
Income tax recoverable after more than one year 0.4 1.0
Totalincome fax recoverable 5.6 4.9
Net liability 28.7 30.0

Provisions for uncertain tax provisions are calculated in accordance with the policy cutlined in Note 10,1, and are treated a3
income tax payable and recoverable in accordance with 1AS 12.

These provisions cover litigated tax matters as well as provisions for other risks where the Group believes it is more likely than
not that there would be a successful challenge by a rax autharity fo positions it has taken in its tax filings. By its nature, irigation
canresultin sharp fluctuations in cash flow, bothin and out, relating to taxes. Currently, management do not expect any
material adjustments to these provisions in 2018.
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10.6 Key factorsimpacting the sustainability of the effective tax rate are as follows:

Material chengesin the geographic mix of profits

The Group's effactive tax rate is sensitive to changes in the geographic mix of profits and level of profits, andreflects a
combination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions such as India, Mexico, Germany and Belgium, nil effective tox ratesin
the UK and the US due to the availability of unutilised taxlosses, and rates that lie somewhere in between.

Changesin fax rates, tax reform and its interpretation

Changesintax rates and laws in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates could have o material effect on the Group's
effective tax rate. As stated in Note 10.1, the Group has faken into account the impact of US and other tax reform enacted
in2017.

One of the new taxes introduced by the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act {TCJA) inthe US in Decermnber 20717 is the Base Erosion and
Anti-Abuse Tax {BEAT) (see also Note 3.2(b)). This is intended to caunter what US tax authorities regard as erosion of the US
tax base of a US company coused by payments, other than for cost of goads sold, te its to non-US offiliates. Inits broadest
sense, this would establish a bose tax of 10% of ¢ US company's nermal taxable income as grossed up by such payments.

The rate of fox applied is 5% in 2018, increasing to 10% from 2019, Whilst this does notimpact Vesuvius in 2017, it is currently
esfimated to resultin a US cash tax cost from 20718 onwards and thus increase the Groug's effective rate of tax on Headline
performance (before its share of joint venture income) going forward by 0.7%in 2018, and 1.2% in 2019. The Group's effective
tax rate for 2018 onwards is expected to be berween 27% and 28%, including the expected adverse impact of US tax reform,
reflecting the benefit of initiatives being taken.

TCJA s amajor new piece of legiskation, introduced very ropidly, consequently there is still much uncertainty abouthow some
of the key provisions will operate. The internaticnal provisions in particular are extremely complex and, with little issued
guidance from the US Treasury, are not yet fully understood by the business or adviser community, Vesuvius has taken advice
an how TCJAis likely to impact on its tax position, butit is to be expected that, es guidance and interpretation clarifies these
new laws, then further changes o its tax charges and balances may need to be made.

Availability of tax advantaged rates

Vesuvius in China qualifies for a tax advantaged rate of 15% {rather than the headline rate of 25%), on part of its profits due
to the high-technelogy nature of its business. Eligibility for this rate is reviewed an a regular basis by the Chinese tax authority,
andwas worth gpproximately £0.9min 2017 (2016 £1.0m). Without that benefit, the Group's effective taxrate on headline
performance would have been 0.6% higher in 2017 (2016: 0.8%).

Resolution of tax judgements

Atany onetime the Group can be subject to a number of challenges by tax autherities in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
The outcome of these challengesis inherently uncertain, potentially resulting in a different tax charge from the amounts
initially provided.

Recognition of tax benefits arising from brought forward losses and other temparary differences inthe US

In accordance with the criteria set out in Note 10,1, movements in Vesuvius' US deferred tax asset are recognised as separately
reported items. Consequently, such movements have no impact on the Group's effective tax rate an headline performance.
Should, however, the 2017 profits ecrred in the US have been fully subject ta US Federcl and State taxes, then the Group's
effective taxrate on headline performance {excluding the Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures) would have been
approximately 4 2% higher {2016: 3.4% higher).

Impact of Brexit on Vesuvius' tax position

How Brexitimpocts on Vesuvius will depend on the terms of Brexit, which are as yet unclear and therefare it is not possiole at
this stage 1o provide precise guidance on how it will impact on the Group. Ifthe EU Parent Subsidiary and Interest and Royalty
directives were nolonger to apply to dividend, interest and other payments to Vesuviusin the UK, additional withholding faxes
would become payable subject to reliefs available under applicable fax treaties.
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1.
1.1

1.2

11.3

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Earnings for EPS

Basic and diluted EPS from continuing operaticns are bosed upon the profit attributable to owners of the parent, asreported
inthe Group Income Statement, of £36.3m (2016: £46.7m), being the profit for the year of £42.7m (2016 £53.0m) less
non-controlling interests of £6.4m (2016: £6.3m); basic and diluted EPS from total operations are based on the profit
attributable to owners of the parent of £38.0m (2016: £56.9m); headline and diluted headline EPS are based upon headline
profit from continuing operations attributable to owners of the parent of £110.1m (2016: £82.1m). The table below reconciles
these different profit measures.

Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing Discontinued 2016
operations  operations total operatians operations torol
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 36.3 1.7 38.0 46.7 10.2 569
Adjustmentsfor separately reported items:
Amartisation of acquired intangible assets 19.5 17.1
Restructuring charges 36.3 285
Gain on employee benefit plan — (5.2)
Incometax charge / {credit) 18.0 (5.0)
Headline profit attributable to owners
ofthe parent 1101 821
Woeighted average number of shares
2017 2016
millions milions
For calculating basic and headline EPS 270.3 2699
Adjustment for potentially dilutive ordinary shares 1.3 0.8
For caleulating diluted and diluted headline EPS 271.6 270.7

For the purposes of calculating diluted and diluted headline EPS, the weighted average number of ordinary shares is adjusted
to include the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares expected to vest, relating to the Company's share-based payment plans. Fotential ordinary shares are only
treated as dilutive when their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease EPS, orincrease loss per share.

Per share amounts
Continuing Discontinued 2017 Cantinuing Discontinued 2016
operotions  operations total operations operahions total
pence pence pence pence pence pence
Earningspershare  —basic 13.4 0.7 14.1 17.3 38 2711
—headline 40.7 30.4
—diluted 13.4 0.6 14.0 17.3 37 21.0

—diluted headline 40.5 20.3




12.

13.

14.

15.
15.1

Cash Generated from Operations

Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing  Discontinued 20186
operaticns  operatiens total operations operations total
£m im £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 109.7 1.7 111.4 929 1.2 947
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of acguired intangible assets (Note 16) 19.5 — 19.5 173 — 171
Restructuring charges 36.3 — 36.3 28.5 — 285
Gainsrelatingto employee benefitplans — — — (5.2) — (5.2)
Depreciation 43.7 — 437 42.3 — 42.3
EBITDA {Noted.12) 209.2 1.7 210.9 175.6 1.2 176.8
Netincrease ininventories (19.4) — (19.4) 89 — 8.9
Netincreaseintrade receivables (36.9) —_ (36.9) {18.6) — (18.6)
Netincreasein frade payables 441 — 441 14.5 — 14.5
Net decrease/(increase) in other working capital 11.7 {2.5) 92 (7.9) (1.2) (G
Outflow related to resfructuring charges (27.3) — (27.3) (16.8) — (16.8)
Net retirement benefit obligations (4.8) — (4.8) (7.7) — (7.7}
Cash generated from operations 176.6 {0.8) 175.8 130.2 — 130.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2016
£m £m

Cash athank andinhand 161.9 144.4
Cosh and shert-term deposits 161.9 144.4
Bank overdrafts {21.9) (42.4)
Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Statement of Cash Flows 140.0 103.0

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as o
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Group Statement of Cash Flows.

Reconciliation of Movement in Net Debt

Foreign Borrowing
Batance asat exchange facility costs Non-cash Balance asat
1Jan2017  adjustments capitalised  movements Cashflow  31Dec2017
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Cashatbank andinhand 144.4 (4.5) — — 220 161.9
Bank overdrafts (43.4) 1.7 — — 19.8 {(21.9)
101.0 (2.8) — — 41.8 140.0
Borrowings, excluding bank overdrafts
Current (91.1) 4.1 — — 82.7 {4.3)
Non-current (331.9) 12.8 — — (93.0) (412.1)
423.0) 16.9 — — (10.3) 416.4)
Capitalised arrangement fees 17 — 1.0 (0.6) — 21
Net debt {320.3) 14.1 1.0 (0.6) 31.5 (274.3)

Net debkt is a meosure of the Group's netindebtedness to banks and other external financial institutions and comprises the
total of cash and short-term deposits and current and non-currentinterest-bearing borrowings.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting policy

Freehold land and constructionin progress are carried af cost less accumulatedimpairment losses. Other items of property,
plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and cccumulated impairment losses. Costs are
capitalised only when it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits flowing to the Group and when they can be
measured reliably. Costs are capitalised to construction in progress where an asset is being developed. This is then transferred
ond depreciated when the asset is ready for use. All other repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to the Group
Income Statement in the period in which they areincurred.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

15.1

15.2

Accounting policy (continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated, as it has aninfinite life. Depreciation on other itemns of property, plant and equipment begins
when the asset is available for yse and is charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis so as to write off the
cost less residual value of the asset over its estirated useful life as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life
Freehold property between tenand S0years
Leasehold property the term of the lease
Plantand equipment — mofor vehicles and information technology equipment betwaen one andfiveyears

— ather

between three and 15 years

The depreciation method used, residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed annually and changed, if appropriate.
Asdescribed in Note 17.1, an asset's carrying amount is immediately written down to its recoverable amount if its carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable ameunt. Gains and losses arising on disposals are determined by comparing
sales proceeds with carrying ameunt and are recegnised in the Group Income Statement.

Movementin net book value

Freehold Leasehold Plantand Corstruction
property property  equipment  inprogress Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Asat 1 January 2016 169.7 2.3 477.2 28.8 678.0
Exchange adjustments 299 0.1 84.8 6.0 120.8
Capital expenditure additiens 1.3 — 183 15.6 35.2
Acquisitions through business combinations _ — 11 _ 11
Disposals (1.6) — (41.9) {0.2) (43.7)
Reclassifications 4.0 — 10.5 {14.5) —
Asat 1 January 2017 203.3 2.4 550.0 35.7 791.4
Exchange adjustments (3.4 (0.1) (10.3) 2.1 (15.9)
Caopitalexpenditure additions 1.4 — 194 23.5 44.3
Disposcls (5.1) — (13.5) — {18.6)
Reclassificotions 5.5 — 98 (15.3) —
Asat 31 December 2017 201.7 2.3 555.4 41.8 801.2
Accumulated depreciation andimpairment losses
Asat 1 January 2076 64.7 1.4 326.6 — 3927
Exchange adjustments 1.9 — 59.5 — 71.4
Depreciation charge 59 0.2 36.2 — 42.3
Impairment charge 0.4 — — — 0.4
Disposals (1.2) — (37.8) — {39.0)
Reclassifications 1.2 — (1.2) — —
Asat1January 2017 829 1.6 3833 — 467.8
Fxchange adjustments 2.0 0.1) 7.7) — (5.8)
Depreciation charge 61 0.3 373 — 43.7
Disposals 1.8) — (10.0) — (11.8)
Reclassifications 0.3 — 0.3) — —
Asat 31 December 2017 85.5 1.8 402.6 — 4899
Netbookvalue asat 31 December 2017 116.2 0.5 152.8 41.8 311.3
Net book value as ot 31 December 2016 120.4 0.8 166.7 35.7 3236
Netbook value as ot 1 January 2016 105.0 0.9 150.6 28.8 285.3
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16.1

16.2
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The net book value of the Group's property, plont and equipment assets held under finance lease contracts was £4.6m
(2076: £4.7my). Capital expenditure on customer-installation assets was £10.7m (2016: £6.5m).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise goodwili and other intangible assets that have been acquired through business combinations.

Accounting policy

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is initially recognised as an asset af cost, measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest acquired
over the net of the acquisition-date fair value cmounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liobilities assumed. When the
excessis neqative, a bargain purchase gainis recognised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwill is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, with impairment testing carried out annually, or more frequently when thereis an
indication that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated may be impaired. On disposal of a business,
the attributable amount of goodwill s included in the calculation of the profit or loss on dispasal.

(b) Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognised on business combirations if they are separable, or if they arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They ore initially measured at cost, which s equal to
the acquisition-date fair value, and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation charges and accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets are subject to impairment testing when there is an indicotion that animpairment
loss may have been incurred and are amortised over their estimated useful lives.

() Research and development costs

The Group's research activity involves long-range, 'blue sky’ investigation, the findings from which may be used in the future
1o develop new or substonticlly improved products. Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Group Income
Staternent as an expense in the year inwhich itis incurred.

Development is the application of research findings for the production of new or substantially improved products, processes
and services before the start of commercial production. Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can
be measured reliably, the preduct or pracess is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Group intends to and has sufficient rescurces to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it

is recognised in the Group Income Statement as an expense inthe year in which itis incurred. Capitalised development
expenditure, where there is any, is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

In determining whether development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset, management considers whether the
strictintangible asset recognition criteria set outin IAS 38, Intangible Assets, have been met af the time the expenditure is
incurred. In making this determination, management recognise that a significant amount of the development expenditure
undertaken by the Group is focused on dealing with local customer technical support issues and incremental developments
to existing products as opposed ta new or substantially improved products, and that at the time the feasibility of the project
is determined a significant proportion of the development expenditure for that project has already been incurred. In 2017
no prejects met the criteria for IAS 38 capitalisation.

Movement in net book value
Other Other
intangible 207 intangible 2016
Gooadwill assets total Goodwill assets tatal
£m £m £m £ £ £m
Cost
Asat1January 662.2 2719 9341 562.1 2507 812.8
Exchange adjustments (19.3) 0.7 (20.0) 970 17.4 114.4
Business combinations (Note 271) 0.3 — 0.3 30 38 6.9
Asat31December 643.2 271.2 914.4 662.2 2719 934
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Asat1 January — 152.2 152.2 — 128.2 128.2
Exchange adjustments — {0.3) (0.3) — 6.9 69
Amorftisation charge for the year — 19.5 19.5 — 17.1 71
Asat 31 December — 171.4 171.4 — 152.2 152.2

Netbook value as at 31 December 643.2 99.8 743.0 662.2 119.7 7819
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16.
16.3

16.4

17.
1741

7.2

Intangible Assets (continued)

Analysis of goodwill by cash-generating unit (CGU)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. For the purposes of impairment testing, the Directors consider that the Group has two CGUs: the Steel
division and the Foundry division. These CGUs represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill s monitored.

2017 2016

£m £m

Steel 426.3 438.7
Foundry 2169 2235
Total goodwill 643.2 662.2

Analysis of other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The assets acquired ond their

remaining useful lives are shaown below.

Netbock
Reraining value asat
usefullife  31Dec2017
years £m
Foseco

—customer relaticnships (useful life: 20 years) 10.3 58.9
—trade name (usefullife: 20 years) 10.3 371
—intellectual property rights (useful life: ten years) 03 2.0

Mould ond tundish business of Carboox
—customer relationships (usefullife: 20 years) 18.9 1.7
—trade name (useful life: two years) 09 01
Total 99.8

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Accounting policy

The Directors regularly review the performance of the business and the external business environment to determine whether
there is any indication thar the Group's tangible and intangible assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication
exists, the higher of the value in use and the fair value less costs to sell of the asset is estimated and compared with the carrying
valuein order to determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where it is not feasible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Directors estimate the recoverable amaount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. In
oddition, gaodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis. Goodwill acquired in a business combinationis allocated to
each of the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and the Directors carry out annual
impairment testing of the carrying value of each CGU, to assess the need for any impairment of the carrying value of the

associated goodwill ind other intangible and rangible assets.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of (i) its fair value less costs
toselland (ji} its value in use. If the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the resulting impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the
CGU prorata an the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Animpairment loss recognised for gocdwillis
not reversed in @ subsequent period. An impairment loss recognised in a prior year for an asset other than gecdwill may

be reversed where there has been o change inthe estimates used 1o measure the asset’s recovercble cmount since the
impairment lass was recognised.

Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in determining value in use are projected cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. Projected
cash flow assumptions are based on histerical financial information, adjusted to factor in the anticipated impact of
restructuring and rationalisation plans already announced at the balance sheet date.
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The value in use calculations of the Group's CGUs are based on three-year business plans and a terminal growth rate of
2.5% (2076: 2.5%). The cash flows are discounted ta their current value using pre-tax discount rates, which represent each
CGU's weighred average cost of capital (WACC). Growth rates are determined with reference to: current market conditions;
external forecasts and historical trends for the Groug's key end-markets of Steel and Foundry; and expected growthin
output within the industries in which each major Group business unit operates. A perpetuity growth rate of 2.5% (2016: 2.5%)
has been applied. The pre-tax discount rateis the WACC calculated for each CGU as at 31 December 2017 based on
industry-specific beta coefficients for the industries in which the CGUs operate, risk-free rates, and equity risk premiums
related to the major countries in which the CGUs are located, selecting countries which contribute ot least 80% of total

CGU revenue. The pre-tax discount rate used for the Steet CGU was 11.0% (2016: 10.9%) and for the Foundry CGU was
11.6% (2016:13.2%). The decrease in Foundry’s pre-tax discount rate is driven by improved global economic performance
which results in reduced market risk, and consequently, lower equity risk premiums; and the Foundry industry has performed
well with limited volatility resulting in a reduced beta. In the Steel CGU, the impuact of this decrease in equity risk premiums
has been more than offser by increasing contributions from emerging markets, providing upward pressure onrisk-free rates
and equity risk premiums.

A sensitivity analysis undertaken in respect of the 20717 impairment testing, assuming a 1.0% increase in each of the CGU
discount rates and a 1.0% perpetuity growth rate, still resulted in headroom remaining in which the recoverable amount of
each CGU exceeded its carrying value. A pre-tax discount rate of 16.0% would result in animpairment of Steel intangible
assets and 22.7% for Foundry.

Goodwill impairment

The Directors use their judgement to determine the extent to which goodwill and other capitalised intengible assets have a
value that will benefit the performance of the Group over future periods. To assist in making this judgement, the Directors
undertake an assessment, ot least annually, of the carrying value of the Group's capitalised goodwill and other intangible
assets. The projection periodis, in the opinion of the Directors, an appropriate period over which to view the future results of
the Group's businesses for this purpose. Changes to the assumptions used in moking these forecasts could significantly alter
the Directors' assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

In assessing goodwill far impairment, management performed its annual test at 31 Cctober 2017 which is consistent with
the prior year. The Directors made use of detailed calculations of the recoverable amount of the Group's CGUs as af

31 October 2017. Those calculations resulted in recoverable amounts significantly higher than the carrying values of the
Group's CGUs and consequently no impairment charges were recognised. A further assessment for triggers of goodwill
impairment was made ot the year end and the calculations were also checked against the carrying values of the Group's
CGUs asat 31 December 2017 No impairment friggers were identified.

Trade and Other Receivables

Accounting policy
Trade and otherreceivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses.

Analysis of trade and other receivables

2017 2016%

Gross  Impairment Net Gross  Impairment Ner

£m £m £m £m £m £

Trade receivables —current 269.0 0.7) 268.3 236.7 1.1) 2356
— 11030 days past due 59.0 {0.8) 58.2 51.3 (0.5) 50.8

—31t060days pastdue 18.4 {0.3) 18.1 19.3 (0.2) 121

—611090days postdue 8.2 (0.5) 7.7 3.5 0.2) 93

—over 90 days past due 43.2 (29.4) 13.8 528 (31.1) 217

Trade receivables 397.8 (31.7) 366.1 369.6 (33.1) 336.5
Otherreceivables 40.8 42.8
Prepayments and accrued income 15.3 14.8
Totaltrade and other receivables 4222 394

*Restated as o result of the recording of a provision for which a related asset exists (Note 32)
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18.

Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

18.2 Analysis of trade and other receivables (continued)

18.3

19.
191

19.2

All the Group's operating companies have policies and procedures in place to assess the creditworthiness of the customers
with whom they do business. Where objective evidence exists that a trade receivable balance may be impaired, provision

is made for the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash that will be recovered.
Evidence of impairment may include such factors as the customer being in breach of contract, or entering bankruptcy or
financial recrganisation proceedings. Impairment provisions are assessed on an individual customer basis for all significant
outstanding balances and collectively for all remaining balances, based upon historical loss experience. Historical experience
has shown that the Group's trade receivable provisions are maintained at levels that are sufficient to absorb actual bad debt
write-offs, without being excessive. The Group cansiders the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired os good.

Movements on impairment provisiens

2017 2016
£m £m
Asat1 January 331 271
Chargeforthe year 3.7 6.6
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (4.8) 4.4)
Exchange adjustments (0.3) 38
Asat31December 31.7 331

The charge for the year shown in the table above is recorded within administration, selling and distribution costs inthe Group
Income Statement.

Inventories

Accounting policy

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost {using the first in, first out method) and net realisable value. Cost comprises
expenditure incurred in purchasing or manufacturing inventories together with all other costs directly incurred in bringing the
inventary to its present location and condition and, where appropriate, attributable production overheads based on normal
activity levels. Net reclisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to
beincurred in marketing, selling and distribution. The aomount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
recognised as an expense in the yearin which the write-down occurs.

Analysis of inventories

2017 2016

£m £m

Raw materials 80.2 751
Work-in-progress 20.2 18.7
Finished goods 122.4 113.9
Totalinventories 222.8 207.7

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in manufacturing costs of continuing cperations in the Group
income Statement during the year was £60%.6m (2016: £499.3m).

The netinventories of £222.8m include a provision for obsolete stock of £13.9m (2016: £14.4m) and inventory write-downs
fromn cost to netrealisable value of £1.7m (2016: £2.4m).



20.
20.1

20.2
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Accounting policy

The Group uses derivative financicl instruments {derivatives’), in the form of forward foreign currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to manage the effects of its exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The way in which derivatives
are used to manage the Group's financial risk is detailed in Note 27,

Derivatives are measured ot fair value. The fair value of forward foreign currency contractsis caleulated using market prices
at the balance sheet date. The fair value of aninterest rate swap is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
to terminate the swap at the bolance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the
Swap counterparty.

The methed of recognising the gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrurment for hedge accounting purposes and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Strict conditions have
to be satisfied in order to qualify for hedge accounting, including a determination both at inception of the hedge and onan
ongoing basis that the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving of fsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging instrument for
hedge accounting purposes is recognised immediately in the Group Income Statement. No derivatives are held for speculative
purposes.

Net investment hedges

The effective part of any gain or loss on a derivative thatis designoted as a hedge of @ net investment in a foreign operationis
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the franslation reserve in equity, and is subsequently recognised
in the Group Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on dispasal of the netinvestment. The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss is recognised immediately within trading profitin the Group Income Statement.

Analysis of derivative financial instruments

2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiltes
£m £m £m £rm
Derivotives not designated for hedge accounting purposes 0.3 — — (0.9)
Total derivative financial instruments 0.3 — — (0.9}

All of the fair values shown in the table above are classified under IFRS 13 os Level 2 measurements which have been
calculated using quoted prices from active markets, where similar contracts are traded and the quotes reflect actual
transactions in similar instruments. All of the derivative assets and liabilities reported in the table above will mature within
a year of the balance sheet date.

SJUBWIZIDIS [DIPUDULY l



158

Vesuviusple
AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

21.

22,

221

22.2

23.
231

23.2

Acquisition of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Net of Cash Acquired

The Group did not acquire any material interestsin any companies during the year ended 31 December 2017

Prior Year Acquisition

On 1 Decernber 2016, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interestin Mastercodi Industrial Ltda, the mould and tundish
flux business of Carboax, for total consideration of £8.0m, of which £0.7m was deferred. The fair value of the net assets
acguired was £4.9m and included identified intangible assets relating to customer relationships and trade names of £3.8m.
The transaction resulted in the recognition of £3.1m of goodwill attributable to the synergies which are expected from
combining the business with the operations of the Group.

During 2017 the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities were finalised and resulted in a £0.3m adjustment to trade
and other receivables, The final fair value of net assets acquired was £5.2m and the total goodwill recognised was £3.4m.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations income during 2017 of £1.7m related to a release of provisions no longer reguired.

Discontinued operations income during 2016 of £10.2m comprised a £9.0m tax credit relating to the release of a provision

for possible China toxes (Note 10.2) and a £1,2m release of provisions no longer reguired.

Results of discontinued operations

2017 2016
£m £m
Otherincome 1.7 10.2
Profit before tax— attributable to owners of the parent 1.7 10.2
Earnings per share—pence
Basic 0.7 38
Diluted 0.6 3.7
Cash flows from dizcontinued operations
2017 2016
£m £m
Net cash outflow from:
— operating activities 0.7) —
Net cash outflow for the year (0.7) -

Issued Share Capital

Accounting policy
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of directissue costs.

Analysis of issued share capital

The issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 278.5 million shares of 10 pence

each (2016: 278.5 million shares of 10 pence each). Further infermation relating to the Company's share capitalis givenin

Naote 8 attached to the Company's financial staternents.



24. Retained Earnings

25.

Reserve Share Other Total
forown option retained reta ned
shares reserve earnings eqrnings
£m £m £m £m
Asar? January 2016 (38.0) 36 23809 23465
Profit forthe year e — 56.9 569
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 8.5 9.5
Recognition of share-based payments — 1.7 — 1.7
Release of share option reserve on exercised and lapsed options 29 (2.4) (0.5) —
Income fax on items recognised in other comprehensive income — — (0.7) (0.7)
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (43.9) (43.9)
Asat1 January 2017 (35.1) 2.9 2,402.2 2,370.0
Profit for the year — — 38.0 38.0
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities /assets — — 8.4 8.4
Recognition of share-based payments — 2.6 — 2.6
Release of share opfion reserve on exercised and lapsed options 09 (0.9) — —
Income tax on items recognised in other comprehensive income —_ e {3.1} {3.1}
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (45.6) {45.6)
Asat31 December2017 (34.2) 4.6 2,399.9 2,370.3
Other Reserves
Other  Translation Total other
reserves reserve reserves
£m £m £m
Asatt January 2016 (1,499.3) 26 05019
Exchange differences an translation of the net assets of foreign aperations — 2027 2021
Exchange translation differences arising on netinvestment hedges — 41.6) {41.6)
Asat1 January 2017 (1,499.3) 1579  (1,341.4)
Exchange differences an transiation of the net assets of foreign operations — (37.8) (37.8)
Exchange translation differences arising on netinvestment hedges — 5.8 9.8
Asat31 December 2017 (1,499.3) 1299 (1,3694)

Within other reserves as at 31 December 2017 is £1,499.0m (2016: £1,459.0m) arising from the demerger of Cooksan Group
plc, being the excess of the Vesuvius plc share capital of £1,777.9m over the total share capital and share premium of Cookson

Group plcas at 14 December 2012 of £278.9m.

The translation reserve in the table above comprises all foreign exchange differences attributable to the cwners of the parent.

These exchange differences arise from the translaticn of the financial statements of fareign operations and from the
franslation of financial instruments that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign operations. In addition to foreign

axchange differences attributable to the owners of the parent, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incomeincludes

foreign exchange differences artributable to non-controlling interests.

159
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26.

27.
271

27.2

Dividends

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £30.8m (2015: £30.0m), equivalent to 11.40 pence (2015: 11125
pence) per ordinary share, was paid in May 2017 (May 2016) and an interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
of £14.8m {2016: £13.9m), equivalent to 5.50 pence (2016: 5.15 pence) per ordinary share, was paid in September 2017
(September 2016).

A proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of £33.8m, equivalentto 12.5 pence per ordinary share,

is subject to approval by sharehoiders ot the Company's Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in
these financial statements. If approved by shareholders, the dividend will be paid on 25 May 2018 to ordinary sharehelders
onthe register at 13 April 2018.

Financicl Risk Management

Accounting policy

{a) Non-derivative financial instruments
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised ot fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition
they are measured ot amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

{b) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are prepared in their functional currency, which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. For the purpose of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
the results and financial position of each entity are translated into pound sterling, which is the presentational currency of
the Group.

Reporting foreign currency transactions in functional currency
Transactions in currencies cther than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each subsequent balance sheet date:

{} Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising on the settlement or retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the Group Income Statement

{i) Non-monetaryitems measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are net retranslatad

Translation from functional currency to presentational currency
When the functional currency of a Group entity is different from the Group's presentational currency {pound sterling), its results
and financial position re translated into the presentational currency as follows:

(i) Assetsandliabilities are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

(i) Income and expense items are transloted at average exchange rates for the year, except where the use of such average
rates does not approximate the exchange rate at the date of a specific fransaction, in which cose the fransaction rate
is used

(i) Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve
in equity and are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation s disposad of

Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of areporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation
are initiclly recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve in equity and reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

Financial risk factors

The Group's Treasury department, acting in accordance with policies opproved by the Board, is principally responsible for
managing the financial risks faced by the Group, The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the most
significant of which are market risk and liquidity risk.

(@) Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that either the fair values or the cash flows of the Group's financial instruments may fluctuatre because
of changes in market prices. The Group is principally exposed to market risk through fluctuations in exchange rates (‘currency
risk Y and interest rates (‘interest rate risk ).
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Currency risk

The Groupisexposed to currency risk on its berrowings and financial assets (being cosh and short-term deposits) thot are
denominated in currencies other than pound sterling. The Group's general policy is proportienclly to match the currency
profile of its core borrowings with the currency profile of its earnings and net assets. This is achieved, where necessary, by the
use of forward fareign exchange contracts {FX swaps'). The currency profile of the Group's borrowings and financial assets,
reflecting the effect of the FX swaps, is shown in the table below.

2017 20146
Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Barrowings

before FX after  Financial Net before FX after Financial Net

FXswaps swaps FXswaps assets* debt FXswaps swaps FXswops assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Sterling 397 88.7 1284 4.5 132.9 325 116.8 149.3 (8.2) 1401
United States dollar 159.9 {88.7) 71.2 (14.7) 56.5 3016  (116.8) 184.8 (40.7) 1442
Euro 235.6 —_ 2356 (45.2) 1904 1271 — 1271 (22.6) 1045
Chinese renminbi — — — (34.5) (34.5) — — — 221 (22.1)
Other 31 — 3.1 (72.0) (68.9) 5.2 — 5.2 {49.9) {447}

Capitalised

arrangement fees 21 — 2.1 — {2.1) 1.7 — a7n —_ a7
Asat31December 436.2 — 436.2 (161.9) 274.3 4647 — 4647 (1444) 3203

* The overdrawn sterling balance of £4.5m above s ncluded in the cash pocling arrangement s and offset by other currency bolances in the pool.

Based upon the currency profile shown in the table above, while notimpacting reported profit, the change in net debt arising
from a 10% strengthening of sterling would increase reported equity by £13.0m (2016: £16.5m) and o corresponding 10%
weakening of sterling would reduce equity by £15.9m (2016: £20.2m).

The tables below show the net unhedged monetary assets and liabilities of Group companies thot are not denominated in
their functional currency and which could give rise to exchange gains and losses in the Group Income Statement.

Netunhedged monetary assets/{liabilities)

Sterling USdollar Euro Renminbi Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Functional currency
Sterling — (2.5) (5.3) 0.1 6.1 {1.6)
United States dollar — — 0.5 — (2.6) {2.1)
Euro {0.5) 7.3 — — —_ 6.8
Chinese renminbi 0.7) 15.0 0.4 — (R )] 14.6
Other 0.7) 14.6 0.7) (0.2) 11.7 24.7
Asat31 December 2017 (1.9 34.4 (5.1} (0.1) 15.1 42.4
Net unhedged monetary assets/{labilities)
Sterling USdollar Euro Renminbi Other Total
£m fm £m fm £m fm
Functional currency
Sterling — {09 1.0 01 1.0 1.2
United States dollar — — 13.5 — (3.6) 99
Euro (0.2} (3.2) — — — (3.4)
Chinese renminbi 07N 54 (0.5) — on 41
Other {0.5) 134 2.2 1.3 180 34.4

Asat 31 December 2016 (.4} 14.7 16.2 1.4 15.3 442
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27. Financial Risk Management (continued)

27.2 Financialrisk factors (continued)

(o) Marketrisk {continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk principally arises in relation to its borrowings. Where borrowings are held ot floating rates of
interest, fluctuations in interest rates expose the Group to variability in the cash flows associated with its interest payments,
and where borrowings are held ot fixed rotes of interest, fluctuations in interest rates expose the Group fo changesin the

fair value of its borrowings. The Group's pelicy is to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings, within certain
parameters agreed from time to time by the Board, in order to optimise interest cost and reduce vaolatility in reported earnings.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had $200.0m and €130.0m (£261.3mintetal} of US Privare Placement Loan Notes
(USPP) outstanding, which carry afixed rate of interest, representing two-thirds of the Group's total borrowings outstanding
at that dare. The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings and net debt is detailed in the tables below.

Financial lfabilities
{gross barrawings)

Fixed Floating Financial Net

rate rate Total assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m

Sterling — 39.7 39.7 4.5 44.2
United States dollar 148.0 11.9 159.9 (14.7) 145.2
Euro 115.4 120.2 235.6 (45.2) 190.4
Chinese renminbi — — — (34.5) (34.5)
Other - 31 31 {(72.0) {68.9)
Capitalised arrangement fees 2.1) -_ 2.1 — (21
Asat31 December 2017 261.3 174.9 436.2 (161.9) 274.3

Financiatlabilities
{gross borrawings)

Fixed Floating Financial Net

rate rate Total assets debt

£m £m fm fm £rm

Sterling — 32.5 325 {9.7) 234
United States dollar 251.3 50.3 301.6 (40.7) 2609
Euro 25.6 101.5 127 (22.6) 104.5
Chinese renminbi —_— — — (221 22.1)
Other -— 5.2 5.2 {49.9) 447
Capitalised arrangement fees .7 — (1.7} — (1.7
Asat 31 December 2016 275.2 189.5 4647 (144.4) 320.3

The floating rate financial liabilities shown in the tables above bear interest at the inter-bank offered rate of the appropriate
currency, plus a margin. The fixed rate financial liabilities of £261.3m (2016: £275.2m) have a weighted average interest rate
of 3.8% (2016: 4.6%) and a weighted average period for which the rate is fixed of 6.9 years (2016: 4.2 years). The financial
assets attract floating rate interest at the inter-bank offered rate of the appropriate currency, less a margin.

Based upon the interest rate profile of the Group's financial ossets and liabilities shown inthe tables cbave, a 1% increase in
market interest rates would increase both the net finance costs charged inthe Group Income Statement and the net interest
paid in the Group Statement of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2076: £0.5m), and a 1% reduction in market interest rates would
decrease hoth the net finance costs charged in the Group Incame Statement and the net interest paid in the Group Staterment
of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2016: £0.3m). Similarly, a 1% increcse in market interest rates would result in a decrease of £159m
(2016: £10.7rm) in the fair value of the Group's net debt and a 1% decrease in market interest rates would resultin anincrease
of £17.2m (2016: £11.4m) in the fair value of the Group's net debt.



(b) Liquidityrisk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group might have difficulties in meeting its financial obligations. The Group manages this risk
by ensuring that it maintains sufficient levels of committed borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents to ensure thart it
can meet its operational cash flow requirements and ony maturing financial liabilities, whilst atalltimes operating within its
financial covenants. The level of operational headroom provided by the Group's committed borrowing facilitiesis reviewed at
least annually as part of the Group's three-year planning process. Where this process indicates a need for additional finance,
this is normally addressed 12 to 18 months in advance by means of either additional committed bank facilities or raising
finance in the capital markets.

In Decermber 2017 the US dollar portion of the US Private Placement (LUSPP') debt of $110m matured. This debt was replaced
with a Eure-denominated USPP comprising two €50m tranches. These were issued with maturity dates of 2027 and 2029
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had committed borrowing facilities of £563.4m (2016: £576.9m), of which £153.7m
{2016: £158.3m) were undrawn. These undrawn facilities are due to expire in June 2022. The Group's borrowing requirements
are met by USPP and a multi-currency committed syndicated bank facility of £300.0m (2016: £300.0m). The USPP facility
was fully drawn as at 31 December 2077 and amounted to £263.4m ($200.0m and £130.0m), of which $140.0m is repayable
in 2020, €15.0min 2021, $30.0min 2023, £15.0min 2025, £€50.0min 2027, $30.0min 2028 and £50.0min 2029. During 2017,
an option was exercised to extend the maturity date of £300m syndicated bank facility from June 2020 to June 2022.

The maturity analysis of the Group's gross borrowings is shown in the tables below.

163

Non-cyrrent Current Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
£m £rm £m fm £m £m
Loans and overdrafts 409.7 3294 24.6 132.7 4343 4621
Obligations under finance leases 2.4 2.6 1.6 1.7 4.0 4.3
Capitalised arrangement fees (1.6) {(1.2) (0.5) {0.5) (2.1) {1.7)
Total interest-bearing borrowings 410.5 230.8 25.7 133.9 436.2 464.7
2017 2016
£m £m
Interest-bearing borrowings repayable
Ondemand orwithin one year 22.4 134.4
Inthe second year 1.4 1.2
Inthe third year 252.8 0.9
Inthe fourthyear 13.4 2557
Inthe fifth year 1.8 12.8
Afterfive years 146.5 61.4
Caopitalised arrangement fees (2.) (1.7)
Total interest-bearing borrowings 436.2 464.7

Capitalised arrangement fees shown in the tables above, which have been recognised os a reduction in borrowings in the
financial statements, amounted to £2.1m as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: £1.7m), of which £1.0m {2076: £0.7m)
related to the USPP and £1.1m (2016: £1.0m) related to the syndicated bank facility.
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27.3

274

28,
28.1

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Capital management

The Company considers its capital to be equal to the sum of its fotal equity and net debt. It monitors its capital using o number
of KPIs, including free cash flow, average werking capital to sales ratios, net debt te EBITDA ratios and RONA (Note 4).

The Group's objectives when managing its capital are:

> Taensure thatthe Group and oll of its businesses are able to operate as going concerns and ensure that the Group operates
within the financial covenants contained within its debt facilities

> To have available the necessary financial resources to allow the Group to invest in areas that may deliver acceptable future
returns fo investors

> Tomaintain sufficient financial rescurces to mitigate against risks and unforeseen events
> Te maximise sharehaolder value through maintaining an apprepriate balance between the Group’s equity and net debt

The Group operated within the requirements of its debt covenants throughout the year and has sufficient liquidity headreom
within its committed debr facilities. Details of the Group's covenant compliance and committed debt facilities can be found

inthe Strategic Report on page 29.

Cash pooling arrangements

The Group entersinto notional cash pooling arrangements as part of its engoing Treasury management activities. Certain
cash pooling arrangements meet the criteria for offsetting as clarified in amendments to IAS 32 Finandial Instruments, as
regards a legally enferceable right of set-of f both in the ordinary course of business and in the event of default. The following
tables set out the amounts of recognised financial assets and liabilities shown as cash and cash borrowings and those
amounts which are subject to these agreements.

Grossamounts of Related omounts
recognised Net amounts of of financiol
financialassets/ financiclassets/ assets/liabilities
Gross amountsof liabilities liabilities not offset
recognised offsetinthe  presentedinthe inthestatements
financiolassets/ staternent of statementof of financicl Net
liabilities financial position financial poesition position amount
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 1729 (11.0) 161.9 (3.5) 152.4
Cash borrowings (32.9) 1.0 (21.9) 9.5 (12.4)
Asat 31 December2017 140.0 — 140.0 — 140.0
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 160.8 {(16.4) 144.4 (30.9) 113.5
Cashborrowings (59.8) 164 (43 4) 309 (12.5)
Asat 31 December 2016 101.0 — 101.0 — 101.0

Employee Benefits

Accounting policy

The net surplus or net liability recognised in the Group Balance Sheet for the Group's defined benefit plansis the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of the plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit methad and by discounting the estimared
future cash flows using interest rates on high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the related pension liakility. Any asset recognised in respect of asurplus arising from this calculation is limited fo the asset
ceiling, where this is the present value of any ecanomic benefits available in the form of refunds or reductions in future
contributionsin respect of the plans.

The expense for the Group's defined benefit plansis recognised in the Group Income Statement as shown in Note 28.8.
Actuarial gains and lesses arising on the assets and fiabilities of the plans are reported within the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income; and gains and losses arising on settlements and curtailments are recognised in the Group Income
Statement in the same line as tha item that gave rise to the settlement or curtailment or, if material, separately reported as
a companent of operating profir,



28.2 Group post-retirement plans

The Group operates a number of pension plans around the world, both of the defined benefit and defined contribution type,
and accounts for them in accordance with 1AS 19

The Group's principal defined benefit pension plans arein the UK and the US, the benefits of which are based upon the final
pensionable salaries of plan members. The assets of these plans are held separately from the Group intrustee-administered
funds. The trustees are required to act in the best inferests of the plans' beneficiories. The principal risks faced by these plans
comprise: (i) the risk that the value of the plan assets is not sufficient to meet all plan liabilities as they foll due; (i) the risk that
plan beneficiaries live longer than envisaged, causing liabilities to exceed the available plan assets; and (i) the risk that the
market-based factors used to value plan fiabilities and assets change materially adversely to increase plan liabilities over the
value of available plan assets. The Group atso has defined benefit pension plans in other ferritories but, with the exception of
thase in Germany, these are not individuclly material in relation to the Group as a whole.

{a) Defined benefit pension plans-UK

The Group's main defined benefit pension plan in the UK (the UK Plan) is closed to new members and to future benefit
accrual. The existing planwas established under atrust deed and is subject to the Pensions Act 2004 and guidence issued
by the UK Pensions Regulator.

Afull actuarial valuation of the UK Plan is carried out every three years by an independent actuary for the UK Plan Trustee in
line with the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004, and the last full valuotion wos carried out as ot 37 December 2015, At that
date, the market value of plan assets was £536.7m and this represented a funding level of 102% of the accrued plan benefits
atthe time of £526.4m. Calculated on a ‘buy-out' basis (Using an estimation of the cost of buying out the UK Plan benefits with
aninsurance company), the fiabilities at that date were £687.5m, representing a funding level of 78%.

Thereis a “long-term scheme-specific funding standard” in Part 3 of the Pensions Act 2004, In terms of Part 3, the UK planis
subject to a requirement (“the statutory funding objective”) that irmust have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover its
technicol provisions. Suchtechnical provisions are determined as part of the triennial valuation. Under the rules of the UK
Plan, the Trustees, after consultation with the company, have the power to set the funding contributions taking into account
the results of the triennial valuation, and the Pension Act 2004 legislation. Notwithstanding the latest funding valuation
surplus, the Company agreed 1o make voluntary contributions of £2.0m in 2017. Thereafter, the Company will fund the
administration cost relating to the management of the UK Plan.

The value of the UK Plan liabilities as o 31 Decemnber 2017 decreased to £490.8m (2016; £527.4m). The decrease inthe
liabilities was driven mainly by benefits paid from the scheme of £46.8m (2016: £28.1m) inline with the trust deed and relevant
legislation requirements. Correspondingly, the UK Plan assets decreased to £580.3m (2016 £601.4m) as assets were
liquidated to fund the benefits paid resulting in decreases in the values of the annuity insurance contract of £13.5mand the
fixed income holdings of £33.1m.

Proposed amendments to IFRIC 14, The Limit on a Defined Benefir Asset, Minimum Funding Reguirements and thelr
interaction, address how the powers of other parties, such as the frustees of the plan, affect an entity’s right of refund of @
surplus from the plan. The Group has assessed the likely impact of the application of the interaction and concluded that it
would notimpact its ability to continue to recognise a pension surplus.

(b) Defined benefit pension plans-US

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension plans in the US, providing retirement benefits based on final salary ora
fixed benefit. The Group's principal US defined benefit pension plans are closed to new members and also to future berefit
accrual for existing members. Actuarial valuations of the US defined benefit pension plans are carried out every year and
the last full valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2016, At that date the market value of the plan assets was £49.2m,
representing a funding level of 66.0% of funded accrued plan benefits at thot date {using the projected unit method of
valuation) of £74.3m. Funding levels for the Group's US defined benefit pension plans are based upon annual valuations
carried out by independent qualified actuaries and are governed by US Government regulations. The value of US plan
liobilites decreased to £82.0m {2016: £86.8m)in 2017, which was mainly attributable to benefits poid of £4.0m in line with
scheme rules and exchange gains of £7.6m due ta US dollar weakness. This significant decrease was partially offset by an
interest accrual of £3.1m and aloss of £3.8m due to the lower discount rate. The loss arising from changes in financial
assumptions is sclely attributable to the decrease in the discount rates to 3.4% (2014: 3.8%).

The Group's US defined benefit pension plans are subject to the minimum contribution requirements of Internal Revenue
Code Sections 412 and 430. Contributions cre determined by trustees, in consultation with the Company, bosed on the annucl
valuations which are submitted to the Internal Revenue Service. For the plan year baeginning 1 January 2017, tha minimum
reguired confribution was £nil as significant company contributions of $6m were made in 2076, However, under these funding
laws and based on the plan deficit, minimum contributions in the period 2018-2020 are likely to be required aond are expected
1o beinthe $3mto $4m range. Voluntary contributians of $4m were made during 2017.

165

SiuawalDig |DISUDULY I



166

Vesuviusplc
Annucl Reportand Accounts 2017

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

28.
28.2

28.3

Employee Benefits {(continued)

Group post-retirement plans (continued}

{c) Defined benefit pension plans—Germany

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension arrangements in Germany which are unfunded, as is common practice
inthat country, The main plan was closed to new entrants on 31 December 2016 and replaced by a defined cantribution plan
for new joiners. The net liahility of the German plans at 31 December 2017 was £49.4rm {2016: £45.3m). The increase was
driven by the decrease in discount rate which resulted in anincrease in the liability of £1.6m (2016: £5.8m); increased current
service costs of £1.5m (2016: £1.2m); and exchange losses incurred of £1.9m (2016: £5.8m) dueto the strengthening of the
euro against the pound.

{d) Defined benefit pension plans —ROW

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension arrangements across the rest of the world, the majority of which are
located in Belgium. The net ligbility of the ROW plans at 31 December 2017 was £17.9m (2016: £16.2m). Theincrease was
mainly attributable to exchange losses of £0.5m (2016 £2.1m) due tothe weakening of the pound post-Brexit and significant
services costs of £2.0m {2016: £2.3m) recognised in respect of the Belgion plons. These losses are offset by the contribution of
£1.5m that was paid out during 2017, thereby decreasing the liability.

(e) Defined contribution pension plans
The fotal expense for the Groug's defined contribution plans inthe Group Income Staterent amounted to £12.6m {2016: £10.8m
continuing eperations) and represents the contributions payable for the year by the Group to the plans.

(f} Multi-employer plans

Due to collective agreements, Vesuvius in the US participates together with other enterprises in union-run multi-employer
pension plans for temporary workers hired on sites. Some of these plans are underfunded and all participating employersare
ultimately liable for any deficit. If a participating employer stops contributing to a plan, itis required to make a withdrawal
paymentto the plan to cover its share of the total deficit in the plan. Na reliable basis exists for allocation of the plans’
obligations and plan assets to individual employer participants. Deficits in the plans may necessitate increased contributions
inthe future but the expectation is thar this will remain relatively consistent based upen historical trends. These are currently
accounted for as defined contribution plans. In 2017 Vesuvius contributed £1.4m (2076: £1.2m} to these plans.

Post-retirement liability valuation

The main assumptions used in calculating the costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension plans, as detailed
below, are set by the Directors after consultation with independent professionally qualified actuaries and include those used
fo determine requlor service costs and the financing elerments related to the plans’ assets and ligbilities. It is the Directors'
responsibility fo set the assumptions used in determining the key elements of the costs of meeting such future obligations.
Whilstthe Directors believe that the assumptions used are appropriate, a change inthe assumptions used could affect the
Group's profit and financial position.

(@) Mortality assumptions

The mortality assumgptions used in the actuarial valuations of the Group's UK, US and German defined benefit pension
liabilities are summarised in the table below and have been selected to reflect the characteristics ond experience of the
membership of those plans.

Far the UK Plan, the assumptions used have been derived from the Self-Administered Pension Schemes (SAPS) Alltable,
with future longevity improvements in line with the ‘core’ mortality improvement tables published in 2016 by the Continuous
Mortality investigation (CMI), with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% per annum. For the Group's US plans, the
assumptions used have been based an the standard RP-2016 fully generational tables with projection scale BB, and the
MP-2017 mortality imprevement scale. The Group's major plans in Germany have been valued using the modified Heubeck
Richttafeln 2005G mortality tables. Inrespect of the life expectancy tables below, current pensioners are assumed to be

65 years old, while future pensioners are assumed ta be 45 years old.

2017 2016
UK US Germany UK US  Germany
Life expectancy of pension plan members years years years years years years
Agetowhich current pensioners are expectedta live —Men 86.3 85.7 843 86.5 85.8 84.1
—Women 88.9 87.7 88.3 89.2 87.8 88.2
Age towhich future pensianers ore expected tolive —Men 877 873 869 87.8 87.4 86.8

—Wamen 90.4 89.2 50.8 50.7 89.4 30.7
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(b) Other mainactuarial valvation assumptions

2017 2016
UK UsS Germany UK Us  Germany
%p.a. %p.a. % p.a. %pa. %pa. %pa
Discount rate 2.50 3.40 1.60 2.70 2.80 1.75
Price inflation —using RPI for UK 3.25 2.25 1.80 3.30 2.25 1.70
—using CPlfor UK 215 nfa nfa 2.20 n/a n/a
Rate of increasein pensionable salaries n/fc nfa 2.55 n/a n/a 2.45
Rate of increase to pensicns in payment 3.10 n/a 1.65 315 n/a 1.55

The discount rate used to determine the fiabilities of the UK Plan for |AS 19 accounting purposes is required to be determined
by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds. The UK discount rate in the abaove table is based on the Aon
Hewitt AA-rated carporate bend yield in conjunction with the most recent projected cash flow data relating to the UK Plan
liabilities; the US discount rate is based on the Citigroup pension discount curve; and the Germany discount rate is based on
the yield on the iBoxx over ten-year euro corpeorates AA index.

The assumptions far UK price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional
government bonds and index-linked bonds, except for CPL, for which no appropriate bonds exist, which is assurmed to be
1.1 pointslower (2016: 1.1 points lower) than RPi-based inflation.

{c) Sensitivity analysis of theimpact of changes in significant IAS 19 actuarial assumptions

The following table analyses, for the Group's main UK, US and Germany pension plans, the theoretical estimated impact
onplan liabilities and assets resulting fram changes to the most significant actuarial assumptions used for IAS 19 valuation
purposes, whilst holding all other assumptions constant.

Following the arrangement of buy-in ogreements for the UK Plan pensioner liabilities in 2012,and the fact that US pensions
are not inflation linked, the rate of increase in pensionable salaries and of pensions in payment is not significant to
the valuation of the Group's overall pension liabilities.

As stated above, during 2012 the UK Plan enfered into pension insurance buy-in agreements which eliminate the inflation,
interest rate, investment and longevity risk in respect of the pensioner liabilities covered by the agreements. The policy and

the associated valuation are updated annually. Please refer to Note 28.7 (a) for further detail. Inrespect of the liabilities so
covered, which currently represent some 56.5% of the total ligbilities of the UK Plan, any changes in the valuation assumptions
which impact on the value of those liabilities, also impact on the associated annuity assets in an equal and apposite way,
thereby fully mitigating the valuation risk. This is also reflected in the following table which includes the sensitivity of the group's
material defined benefit obligations and plon assets, where applicable, to changes in the weighted principal assumptions

as follows:

Agsumption Changeinassumption UK Us Germany

Discount Increase/decrease by 0.1%

rate —impact on plan liabilities Decrease/increase by £8.2m Decrease/increase by £1.0m Decrease/increase by £1.0m
—impactonplanassets  Decrease/increase by £3.0mn/a n/a

Price Increase/decrease by 0.1%

inflation  —impact on planliabilities Increase/decrease by £5.6m n/a Increase/decrease by £0.3m
—impactonplanassets  Increase/decrease by £2.1m n/a n/a

Mortality Increase by one year
—impacton plan lichilities Increase by £21.4m Increaseby £2.9m Increaseby £1.8m
—impacton plan assets Increase by £14.6m n/a n/a
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28. Employee Benefits (continued)

28.4 Defined benefit obligation
The average duration of the obligations to which the liabilities of the Group's principal pension plans relate is 18 years for the
UK, 19 years for Germany and 11.6 years for the US.

Defined benefit pansionplans  Otherpost-

retirement
benefit
UK us Germany ROW Total plans Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Presentvalueasat 1January 2017 5274 86.8 45.3 41.0 700.5 6.9 707.4
Exchange differences — (7.6) 19 1.3 (4.4) 0.1 4.3)
Current service cost — 0.5 1.5 3.2 5.2 0.2 5.4
Pastservice cost — — — 01 0.1 — 0.1
Interest cost 14.0 3.1 0.8 0.7 18.6 0.2 18.8
Settlements — — — — — — —
Remeasurement of liabilities;
—demographic chonges (5.4) 0.7 — 0.1 6.0) — (6.0)
—financial assumptions 11.3 3.8 1.6 0.5 17.2 0.3 17.5
—experience losses/{gains) 9.7 0.1 (0.1) 0.1 (9.6) (0.1} 9.7)
Benefits paid (46.8) (4.0) (1.6) (2.4 (54.8) {1.1) {55.9)
Present value as at 31 December 2017 490.8 82.0 49.4 44.6 666.8 6.5 673.3
Defined benefitpension plans ~ Otherpost-
retirement
benefit
UK us Germany ROW Toral plans Tetal
fm fm £m £m £m £m £m
Presentvalue asat 1 January 2016 4643 1127 363 361 648.8 57 654.5
Exchange differences — 17.6 5.8 6.0 29.4 0.6 30.0
Current service cost — 0.5 1.2 31 4.8 01 49
Past service cost —_ — — 0.2 0.2 01 0.3
Interest cost 17.6 4.6 08 0.8 2329 0.2 241
Settlements — (45.1) {3.5) (1.5) (50.1) — {(501)
Remeasurement of liabilities:
—demegraphic changes (12.3) (1.2) — — {13.5) — (13.5)
—financial assumptions 76.2 4.4 5.8 0.6 87.0 0.4 87.4
—experience losses/{gains) 87 (0.4 0.1 — 9.4 0.5 99
Benefits paid {28.1} (5.7} (1.3) 4.3 (39.4) (0.7) {40.1)

Present value as at 31 December 2016 527.4 B6.8 4573 41.0 700.5 6.9 7074




28.5 Fairvalue of plan assets

28.6

28.7

2017 2016

UK us ROW Total UK us ROW Total

£m £m £m £m fm fm £m £m
Asat? January 604.1 491 24.8 678.0 5220 74.4 228 £19.2
Exchange differences — {4.5) 0.5 (4.0) — 10.8 4.0 14.8
Interestincome 16.1 1.7 0.4 18.2 19.3 31 0.4 228
Settlements — — — — — (41.6) (1.0} (42.6)
Acquisitions — — — — — — — —
Remeasurement of assets 57 2.8 0.7 10.2 897 34 0.2 93.3
Contributions fram employer 2.0 EN| 2.3 74 2.0 4.4 2.4 2.8
Contributions from members — — —_ — — — — —
Administration expenses paid (0.8) (0.5) — (1.3) (0.9) 0.6) — (1.5)
Benefits paid {46.8) (2.9) (2.0) (51.7) (28.0) {4.8) {4.0) (36.8)
Asat 31 December 580.3 49.8 26.7 656.8 604.1 49 24.8 678.0

The Group's pension plans in Germany are unfunded, asis common practice inthat country, and accoardingly there are no
assets associated with these plans.

Remeasurement of definad benefit liabilities/assets
2017 2016
total total
£m £fm
Remeasurement of liabilities:
—demographic changes 6.0 13.5
— financial assumptions (17.5) (87.4)
—experience (losses)/gains o7 (9.9)
Remeasurement of assets 10.2 933
Total movement 8.4 9.5

The remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities and assets of £8.4m (2016: £8.5m) is recognised inthe Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Balance sheet recognition

The amount recognised in the Group Balance Sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit pension plons and other
post-retirement benefit plans is analysed in the following tables, which all relate to continuing cperaticns. All equity securities
and bonds have quoted prices in active markets.

Defined benefit pensionplans

Other post-
retirement
benefit 2017
UK us Germany ROW Total plans total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 68.9 9.7 — 29 81.5 — 81.5
Bonds 191.8 38.5 — 2.0 2323 — 232.3
Annuity insurance contracts 2761 — —_ 17.8 2939 — 2939
Other assets 435 1.6 — 4.0 491 — 491
Fair value of plan assets 580.3 49.8 — 26.7 656.8 — 656.8
Present value of funded ohligations (488.9) (70.4) — (40.0) (599.3) — (599.3)
91.4 (20.6) — (13.3) 575 — 57.5
Present value of unfunded obligations {1.9) {11.6) (49.4) (4.6) (67.5) (6.5) {74.0)
Total net surpluses/(liabilities) 89.5 (32.2) (45.4) (17.9) (10.0) (6.5) {16.5)
Recognisedinthe Group Balance Sheet as:
Net surpluses 91.4 — — 1.0 92.4 — 92.4
Net liabilities (19 (322 {49.4) (189)  (102.4) (6.5 (1089

Total net surpluses/{liabilities) 89.5 (32.2) (49.4) (17.9) (10.0) {6.5) (16.5)
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28. Employee Benefits (continued)

28.7 Balance sheetrecognition (continued)

Based on o detailed assessment performed, none of the IFRIC 14 restrictions are applicable and, therefore, the surplus is
recognised.

Defired benefitpensionplans  Other post-

retirarment

benefit 2016

UK us Germany ROW Total plans roral

£m fm £rm Em £m £m £rm

Equities 73.8 10.0 — 2.6 86.4 — 86.4

Bonds 216.3 359 — 2.0 254.2 — 254.2

Annuityinsurance contracts 28%8.6 — — 16.3 3059 — 3059

Other assets 24.4 32 — 39 315 — 315

Fair vatue of plan assets 6041 497 — 248 678.0 — 678.0

Presentvalue of funded obligations (525.5) (74.3) — {37.3) (637.1) — 637.1)

78.6 (25.2) — {12.5) 409 — 409

Present value of unfunded obligations (1.9) (12.5) (45.3) 3.7) (63.4) (6.9) (70.3)

Total net surpluses/{liabilities) 767 (37.7) (45.3) (16.2) {22.5) 6.9) (29.4)
Recognised in the Group Balance Sheet as:

Netsurpluses 78.6 — — 0.2 78.8 — 78.8

Netliabilities (1.9) (37.7) {45.3) (16.4) {101.3) (6.9) (108.2)

Total net surpluses/(liabilities) 76.7 (27.7) {45.3) {16.2) (22.5) {6.9) (29.4)

(a) UK Plan asset allocation

As at 37 December 2017, of the UK Plan's toral assets, 47.6% were represented by the annuity insurance contracts covering
the UK Plan's pension liabilities; 11.9% were allocated to equities; 33.0% to fixed income securities; 5.1% to cash; and 2.4% to
other assets. The fixed income asset class of the UK Plan includes ¢ ligbility-driven investment portfolio of financial derivative
contracts which reduces the risk that the UK Plan's assets would fall materially, relative to the volue of its economic liabilities.

The UK Plan Trustee has entered inta a pensicn insurance buy-in agreement with the Pension Insurance Corporation (PIC),
whereby the UK Plan Trustee has paid insurance premiums to PIC 1o insure a significant portion of the UK Plan's liakilities.
Under this arrangement, the value of the PIC insurance contract matches the value of the liabilities because the inflation,
interest rate, investrment and longevity risk for Viesuvius in respect of these liabilities are efiminated. As at 31 December 2017,
the 1AS 15 voluation of the PIC insurance contract value associated with the bought-in liakilities was £276. 1m (2016: £289.6m).
The buy-in agreement ensures that the UK pension plan obligations in respect of all its retired members and their approved
dependants are insured. The policy and the associated valuation are updated annually to reflect retirements and mortality.
In the current year, the agreement based on specific membership data covers 56.5% of UK pension plan abligations,
removing all financicl risks associated with this tranche of tha liability.

(b) Defined benefit contributionsin 2018

In 2018, the Group is expected to make contributions into its defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefits
plans of arcund £5.3mwith specific cantributions of approximately £3.0m and £0.8m anticipated for the US Plan and
UK Plan respectively.



28.8 Income statement recognition

29.
29.1

29.2

The expense recognised in the Group Income Statement in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement plans and other
post-retirement benefit plans is shown below.
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2017 2016

Other Other

Dafined post- Defined post-

benefit retirement benefit ratrement

pensien benefit pension benefit
plans plans Total plans plons Total
£m £m £m £m £rm £m
Currentservice cost 5.2 0.2 5.4 4.8 0.1 49
Pastservice cost 01 — 0.1 0.2 [eN| 03
Settlements — — — {5.2) — (5.2
Administration expenses 1.3 — 1.3 1.5 — 1.5
Net interest cost 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 0.2 1.3
Totalnetcharge 7.0 0.4 7.4 2.4 0.4 2.8

No settlement gain arcse in 2017 in contrast to the £5.2m recognised in 2074 in relation to the buy-out of members of the

US Plan and German members moving their existing plans into a new defined contribution plan. These settlements reduced
the Group's defined benefit obligations by £50.1m, effected by utilising £42.6m of pension assets and additionally, in respect
of the unfunded German plan, £2.3m of the Group's cash.

Thetotal net charge of £7.4m (2016: £2.8m) recognised in the Group Income Statement in respect of the Group's defined
benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits plans is recognised in the following table:

2017 2015

£m £m

In arriving attrading profir —within other manufocturing costs 2.4 2.0
— within administration, selling and distribution costs 4.4 4.4

In arriving at profit before tax —within restructuring charges — 03
—gain onemployee benefit plan — (5.2)

—within net finance costs 0.6 1.3

Totalnet charge 7.4 2.8

Share-based Payments

Accounting policy

The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment arrangement for its employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value ot the date of grant. The fair value determined ot the grant date takes account of the
effact of market-based conditions, such as total shareholder return target upon which vesting for some awards s conditional,
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The cumulative expense
recognised is adjusted for the best estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and for the effect of other non-market-based
conditions, such as growth in headline earnings per share, which are notincluded in the fair value determined af the date of
grant. For grants with market-based conditions attached to them, fair value is measured using a form of stochastic option
pricing madel. For all other grants, fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes eption pricing model.

Income statement recognition
The total expense recognised in the Group Income Statement is shown below.

2017 2016

£m £m

Long Term Incentive Plan 1.8 1.0
Otherplans 0.8 0.7
Totalexpense 2.6 1.7

The Group operates a number of different share-based payment plans, the most significant of which isthe Long Term
Incentive Plan {LTIP), details of which can be found on pages 111 10 113 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. The Group's
other share-based payment plans are not considered significant in the context of the Group's results or financial position.
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29.
29.3

294

Share-based Payments (continued)

Detuils of outstanding options

Outstanding awards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat

1Jan217 Granted Exercised lapsed 31 DeczZ®7

no. no. no. no. no.

LTIF 2,398,185 825,653 — (943,745) 2,280,093
Weighted gverage exercise price nil nil nil nil nil
Otherplans 219,479 118,722 (180,104)  (5,660) 152,437
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil

For the options exercised during 2077, the share price at the date of exercise ranged from 402 pence fo 592 pence.

Qutstanding awards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat
1 Jan2016 Grented Exercised lapsed  31Dec2016
no. no. na. ne. no.
LTiP 1,585,838 1,211,928 —  (399,587) 2,398,185
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil
Other plans 743,666 86,867 (607139) (3,915) 219,479
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil
For the options exercised during 2016, the share price at the date of exercise ranged from 287 pence to 347 pence.
Details of market perfarmance conditions are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
2017 2016
Weighted Weighted
Awards average Awards average
exercisable outstonding Rangeof exercisoble  outstanding Range of
asat  contractual exercise asat  contractuat exercise
31Dec 2077 lifeof awards prices 31 Dec2M6 Ifeofowords prices
no. years pence no, years pence
LTIP — 4.8 — 52
Weighted average exercise price — nfa — n/a
Other plans - 1.0 — 0.4
Weighted average exercise price — nfa — n/a
Options granted under the LTIP during the year
2017 {March Grant} 2017 (Sept Grant) 2016
EPS T5R EPS TSR EPS TSR
element element element element element elernent
Fairvalue of options granted (per share) 524.5p  401.0p 578.0p 467.0p 292.0p 112.0p
Share price on date of grant {per share) 524.5p 524.5p 578.0p 578.0p 292.0p 292.0p
Expected volatility n/a 30.9% nfa 33.00% n/a 26.0%
Risk-freeinterest rate n/a D.17% nfa 0.16% n/a 0.4%
Exercise price (per share) nil nil nil nil nil nil
Expectedterm (years) 3 3 3 3 4 4
Expected dividend yield nil nil nil nil nil nil

The fair value of share options with non-market performance conditions has been calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The fair value of options with market-related performance conditions has been measured using the Monte
Carlo model. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the
2.8years (2016: 2.75 yaars) prior to the grant date. The risk-free rate of return was assumed to be the yield to maturity on o UK
fixed gilt with the termto maturity equal to the expected life of the option. At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee,
award holders receive the value of dividends that would hove been paid on their vested shares in the period between grant
and vesting. Accerdingly, there is no discount to the vaiuation for dividends foregone during the vesting period.



30.
30.1

30.2

3.

31.2

Trade and Other Payables

Accounting policy
Trade and other payables are initially recegnised ot fair value and subsequently measured at omortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Analysis of trade and other payables

2017 2016+

£m £m

Nen-current
Accrualsond other payables 14.4 12.6
Deferred purchose and contingent consideration 29 39
Total non-current other payables 17.3 16.5
Current
Trade poyobles 185.9 1397
Other taxes and social security 32.6 323
Deferred purchase and contingent consideration 08 0.8
Accruals and ather poyables 73.3 &7.5
Total current trade and other payables 292.6 239.7

* Restated as a result of o change in accounting palicy (Note 10.1).

Thereis no significant difference between the fair value of the Group's trade and other payables balances and the amount at
which they are reported in the Group Balance Sheet.

Included within trade payables in the table above is £1.8m (2016: £nil) subject to a supplier financing agreement. Under the
terms of this agreement, which the Group entered into as one of a series of measures aimed ot impraving control aver its
working capital, invoices received by the Group from approved suppliers are assigned to athird-party finance company,
which assumes legal responsibility for settling the amount owing directly with the supplier. The Group subsequently settles
the amount owing to the finance company. There is no cost to the Group from this arrangement.

Leases

Accounting policy

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershiptothe lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter info an operating lease are olso spread on a straight-line basis over tha lease term.

Operating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable s follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Not later than cne year 8.3 9.0
Laterthan ane year and not later than five years 13.4 15.8
Laterthan five years 79 7.0
Total operating lease commitments 29.6 31.8

The Group's property, plant and equipment assets are either purchased outright or held under lease contracts. Where the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of the asset to the Group, the asset is capitalised
in the Group Balance Sheet and the correspanding lichility to the lessor is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Where all
tha risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group, the lease is classified as an operating lease and neither
the asset nor the corresponding liability to the lessor is recognised in the Group Balance Sheet. The net book value of the
Group's property, plant and equipment assets held under finance lease contracts at 31 December 2017 was £4.6m

{2016: £4.7m).

The costincurred by the Group in the yeor in respect of assets held under operating leases, all of which was charged within
trading profit, amounted to £18.6m {2016: £17.3m).
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32.
321

32.2

Provisions

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as aresult of o past event and itis probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the expenditure required

to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects both the current market assessment of the time value of money and the
specific risks associated with the obligation. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as afinance cost.

Analysis of provisions
Disposalond Restructuring
closure costs charges Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Asat1January 2017~ 4.1 18.5 6.9 66.5
Exchonge adjustments (2.6) 0.3 (0.4) (2.7)
Charge to Group Income Statement — 36.3 1.7 48.0
Unused amounts released to Group Income Statement (1.7) — — (1.7)
Adjustment to discount 0.1 0.1 — 0.2
Cashspend (1.9 (27.3) (1.9} (41.1)
Transferred to other balance sheet accounts — {5.0) — (5.0
Asat31 December 2017 35.0 229 6.3 64.2

*Restated to more appropriately reflect o provision for which an associated insurance asset exists

Of the total provision balance as at 31 December 2017 of £64.2m (2016: £66.5m), £34.4m (2016: £39.9m) is recognised in the
Group Balance Sheet within non-current liabilities and £29.8m (2016: £26.6m) within current fiabilities.

The provision for disposal and closure costs includes the Directors’ current best estimate of the costs to be incurred both in

the fulfilment of obligations incurred in connection with former Group businesses, resulting from either disposal or closure,
rogether with those relared ro the demalition and clean-up of closed sites. The provision comprises cmounts payable in
respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, or from third-party claims,
including claims relating to product liability. As the settlement of many of the obligations for which provision is made is subsject
tolegal or other regulatery process, the timing of the associoted cash outflows is subject to some uncertainty, but the majority
of the amounts provided are expected to be utilised over the next ten years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly
updated to reflect changed circumstances with regard to individual matters. The opening balance has been restated by
£7.9m to present a provision for which an associated insurance asset exists. There was no materialimpact onthe 2016
performance statements and no restatement is required.

Where insurance cover exists for any of these known or probable costs, a related assert is recognised in the Group Balonce
Sheet only when its value can be reliably measured by management. As at 31 December 2017, £21.6m (2016: £22.8m) was
recorded in receivables in respect of associated insurance reimbursements, of which £20.7m (2016: £21.9m) is non-current.

In assessing the probable costs and realisation certainty of provisions, or related assets, reasonable assumptions are made.
Changesto the assumptions used could significantly alter the Director's assessment of the value, timing or certainty of the
costs or related amounts.

The provision for restructuring charges includes the costs of all of the Group's recognised initiatives to rationalise its operating
activities. The balance of £22.9m s at 31 December 2017 comprises £2.7m in relation to onerous lease provisions in respect
of leases terminating between one and six years, and £20.2m in relation to expenditure on restructuring initiatives that hove
been announced which is expected to be paid out over the next year.

Other provisions comprise amounts payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other
regulatory requirements, workers’ compensation and medical claims, and from third-party claims. As the settflernent of many
of the obligations for which provisionis made is subject to reasonable assumptions, legal or other regulatory process, the
timing of the associated outflows is subject to some uncertainty, but the majority of amounts provided are expectedto be
utilised over the next five years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly updated to reflect changed circumstances
with regard to individual matters. During 2017 the Group recognised net charges of £11.7m (2016: £10.2m) in the Group
Income Statement to provide for various [itigation settlements and other claims.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In compliance with current reporting requirements, cerfain arrangements entered into by the Group in its normal course of
business are not repertedin the Group Balance Sheet. Of such arrangemenis, those considered marterial by the Directors are
future lease payrments in relation to assets used by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases (Note 31},

Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees given by the Group under property leases of operations disposed of amounted to £1.1m (2016: £1.6m). Details
of guarantees given by the Company, on behalf of the Group, are given in Note 10 to the Company Financial Statements.

Vesuvius has extensive international cperations and is subject to various legal and regulatory regimes, including those
covering taxation and environmental matters. Several of Vesuvius' subsidiaries are parties to legaf proceedings, certain of
which are insured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and the Directors are aware
of a number of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax authorities. Provisions are made for the expected
amounts payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, and
fromthird-party claims.

Certain of Vesuvius' subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits, predominantly in the US, relating to a small number of products
confaining asbestos manufactured prior to the acguisition of those subsidiaries by Vesuvius. These suits usually also name
many other product manufacturers. To date, Vesuvius is not aware of there being any liability verdicts against any of these
subsidiaries. A number of lawsuits have been withdrawn, dismissed or settled and the amount paid, including costs, in relation
to this litigation has not had a material adverse effect on Vesuvius' financial position or results of operations.

As the settlement of many of the obligations far which reserve is made is subject to legal or other regulatory process, the
timing and amount of the associoted outflows is subject to some uncertainty {see Note 32 for further information).

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has contrel. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or hos
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and can affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which controlis transferred to the Group.

The subsidiaries , joint ventures and associates of Vesuvius plc and the countries in which they are incorporated are set out
below. With the exception of Vesuvius Holdings Limited, whose ordinary share capital was directly held by Vesuvius ple, the
ordinary capital of the companies listed below was wholly owned by o Vesuvius plc subsidiary as at 31 December 2017,

Company Company
legal name Registered affice address Jurisdiction legalname Registered office address Jurisdiction
Advent Process 333 Prince Charles Drive, Welland, Canoda Flo-Con CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Deloware)
EngineeringInc. Cntario, L3B 5P4, Canada (Ontaric) Holding, Inc. Street, The Corporation Trust
Avemis SAS Saint Symphorien Sur Coise France Company, Wilmington, DE 16801,

(69590)au 2, Hoteld Entreprises, United States

ZIGrange Eglise, Fronce Fle-Con CT Corporation, 208 South LaSalle US{llfinois)
BMIRefractory 600N 2nd Street, Suite 4071, us Systems, LLC Street, Chicago, Cook County,
ServicesInc. Harrisburg, PA171071-1071, {Pennsylvania) linois, IL 60604, United States

United States Foseco (FS) 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Brazil 1 Limired 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,

EC4A2AE, England 543 4XA, England
Cookson Km71/2, Autopista Sanlsidro, Dominican FF’SECO (GB) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Dominicana, SRL Edificic Modelo A, Zona Franca Republic Limited EC4A2AE England

Sanlsidro, Sante Domingo Oeste, Foseco (Jersey) 44 Esplanade, StHelier, Jersey

Dominican Republic Limited JEAOWG, Jersey
Cookson 13 Castle Street, 5t Helier, Jersey Foseco (MRL) 145 Fleet Sireet, London, Englond
Investments JE45UT, Jersey Limited ECAA2AE, England
Uersey) Limited Foseco (RUL) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Cookson Jersey 13 Costle Street, St Helier, Jersey Limited ECAA2AE, England
Limited JEASUT, Jersey Faseco (UK) 165 Fleet Street, Londen, England
EastMoon 36/F Tower Two Times Square, HongKong Limited ECAA 2AE, England
‘”"es*mem 1Matheson Streef, Faseco Canada 181 Bay Street, Suite 1800, Toronto, Canoda
(HK Holding) Cavseway Boy, Limited Ontario, M5 2T9, Canada {Ontario)

ComponyLimited  HongKong

Fosaco 5, Borrio Elizalde, lzurza, Bizkoio,  Spain
Espanola 5A 48213, Spain
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35. Investmentsin Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

351 Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Company Company
legalname Registered office oddress Jurisdiction legal name Registered office address Jurisdiction
Foseco Foundry Room 819, Shekou Zhaoshang China Foseco Steel 165 Fleet Street, England
(China) Limited Building, Nanshan District, {Holdings) London, EC4A 2AE,
Shenzhen, China China Limired England
Foseco 5, BarrioElizalde, lzurzag, Spain Foseco Steel 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Fundicion Holding  Bizkaia, 48213, Spain {UK) Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
{Espanola), S.L. 543 4XA, England
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, London, England Foseco Technology 165 Fleet Street, London, England
{Evrope) Limited EC4A ZAE, England Limited EC4A2AE, England
Foseco Holding 12, Bosworth Street, South Africa Foseco 165 Fleet Street, England
(South Africa) Alrode, Aberton, 1449, Transnational London, EC4A 2AE,
{P1y) Limited South Africa Limited England
Foseco 165 Fleet Street, London, Netherlands Foseco R717.1, Me Linh Point Tower, Vietnarn
Holding BV ECAAZAE, England Vietnam Limired no 2 Nge Duc Ke, Ben Nghe Waord,
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, England Dist 1, Ho ChiMinh, Vietnam
International London, EC4A2AE, HGAC Streer Duquede Caxias, Brazil
Limited Englond Participagdes 563 Room 2, Centro, Baruer,
Fosece Holding 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limitada SP,06401-010, Brazil
Limited EC4AZAE, England ISID Limited Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge Englond
Fosece Industrial Km 15, RodeviaRaposo Tavares,  Braazil Street, Oxford, OX1 ZEP, England
eComercial Lida Butanta Cep, Sdo Paulo, J.H. France CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Deloware)
05577-100, Brazil Refractories Street, The Carporation Trust
Foseco International 170/69, 22nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, Thailand Company Company, W'\!ming‘ron,
Holding (Thoiland)  Ratchadapisek Road, Klangtoey, DE 19801, United States
Lirmited Bargkok, 10110, Thailand John G. Stein T Midland Way, Central Park, England
Foseco 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England &.Cf)mpuny Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
International Barlborough Links, Derbyshire, Lirnited 543 4XA England
Limited 543 4XA, England Mainsaillnsurance  Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,  Bermuda
FosecoJapanlid  9thFlgor, Orix Kobe Sannomiya Japan Company Limited  Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda
Building, 6-1-10, Goka dori, Mascinco Avenida Brasil, 49550 - parte, Brazil
Chuo-ku, Kobe Hyege, Empreendimentos  Distrito Industrial de Palmares—
651-0087, Jopon ¢ Participagdes Campo, Grande -~ Cep: 23065-480,
FosecoKorea 74 Jeongju-ro, Wonmi-gu, South Korea Ltda Ric de Janeiro, RJ, Brozil
Lirnited Bucheon-si, Gyeonggi-do, Mastercodi Avenida Giovanni Gronchi, 5174, Brazil
14523, South Korea Industrial Ltda sufte 11, Vila Andrade, 05724-002,
Foseco Limited 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond S8oPaule, State of S&o Paulo, Brazil
EC4A 2AE, England Mercajoya, 5.A. Capitdn Haya, 56 - 12H, Spain
Foseco CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Delaware)} 28020 Madrid, Spain
Metallurgical Inc Street, The Corporation Trusi Metal Way Estrada Santo Isabel, 7655 KM37,  Brozil
Company, Wilmington, Equipomentos Boirro Do Unag, fogquaquecetuba,
DE 198071, United States MetalurgicosLtda  Sao Poulo-SP, CEP: 08580000,
Foseco Binnenhavenstroat 20, Nethertands Brozil
Nederland BV 7553 GJHengelo (OV), Micro Jewels 10 Frere Felix De Valois Street, Mauritius
Netherlands Lirnited Port Louis, Mauritius
Foseco Overseas 165 Fleet Street, London, England Minerals 165 Flget Street, London, England
Limited ECAAJAE, England SeparationLimited EC4A2AE, England
Foseco Pansion 165 Fleet Street, London, England New Foseco 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Fund Trustee EC4A 2AE, England (UK) Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
Limited 543 4XA, England
Foseco Unit 401, 4th Floar 8 Antonio Philippines Prermier Refractaries 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
Philippines Inc Centre, Prime St. Madrigal (Belgium) S.A. 7011, Belgium
Busin.ess P‘:”k_z« AY?‘? A!obcng Process Melrix, 6622 Owens Drive, Pleasanton, us
Muntinlupa City, Philippines LLC CA94588, Unrited Stotes {California)
Foseco Portugal Rua 25de Abril, Lote 3, Portugal PT Foseco 2/5, Jalon Rowagelam, Indonesia
Prodgt?s para Aveleda-4485-010VCD, Indonasia Kawasan Industry, 2/No 5
Fundigdeo Lda Vila do Conde, Portugal Pulogadung, Jakarta Timur,
Foseco Pty 7, Stuart Street, Padstow, Australia 13920, Indonesia
Limited NSW 2211, Australia PTFoseco 2/5, JalanRawogelam, Indonesia
Foseco SAS Le Newton C, 7 Mail Barthélémy France Trading Indonesia  Kawasan Industry, 2/No .5

Thimonnier, 77185 Lognes, France

Fulogadung, Jakarta Timur,
13530, Indonesia
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CT Corporation, 1209 Orange

US (Delaware)

789, LLC Street, The Corporation Trust
Company, Wilmington, DE 198071,
United States
SGBlair& 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Company Barlbarough Links, Derbyshire,
Limited 543 4XA, England
SERT-Meta| SAS 3, Avenue de 'Europe, Parc, France
‘Les Pivaltes’, Decines-Charpieu
69150, France
SIDERMES |nc. 175, Calixa-Lavallée Verchéres, Canadeo
Québec JOL2RO, Canada
SIDERMES Zona Industrial, Son Vicente Av., Venezuela
Latinoamericana  Anfon Phillips Grupe Industrial,
CA San Vicente Local 4, Maracay,
Venezuela
SIDERMES Urquiza 919 Piso 2 Rosario Argentina
S AL Santa Fe, Argentine, CP 2000
SIDERMES ViaMantova 10, Italy
5p.A. 20835 Muggid (MB), ltely
SIDERMES Estrada Municipal PDD 436, S/N,  Brazil
SENSORES Prédio 'C', Bairro da Boa Vista,
TERMICOS DO Municipio de Piedade,
BRASILLTDA Estado de 580 Paula, Brazil
SIR Siegener Strosse 152, Germany
Feuerfestprodukte Kreuztal, D-57223,
GmbH Germany
SOLEDSAS Parc d'Activités, Belle Fontaine, France
57780 Rosselange, France
Tamworth 165 Fleet Street, London, England
UK Limited EC4A 2AE, England
Thomas Marshall Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge England
{Loxley) Limited Street, Oxford, OX1 2EP, England
Unicarn 165Fleet Street, London, England
Industries Limited ~ EC4A 2AE,England
Veservice Ltda Av Brasil, 49550, Distrito Industrial - Brazil
de Palmares, Campo Grande,
Rio de Janeiro, 23065-480, Brazil
Vesuvius 170/69, 22nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, Thailand
(Thailend) Co, Lid ~ Ratchadopisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkak, 10110, Thailand
Vesuvius Street Urquiza, 919,Floor 2, Rosario, Argentina
(VEARJIS A Provincia de Santa Fé Argenting
VesuviusAdvanced 221 Xing Ming Street, China- China
Cerarnics {China)  Singapore Suzhou ind Park, Suzhou,
Co., Ltd Jiangsu Province, 215021, Ching
Vesuvius 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington,  US (Delaware}

America, Ine.

DE 19801, United Stotes

Vesuvius Americas
Hotdings, Inc

Corporation Trust Center,

1209 Orange Street, Wilmington,
New Castle County, DE 19801,
United Stotes

US (Delaware)

Vesuvius Australia 40-46 Gloucester Boulevarde, Australia
{(Holding) Pty PortKembla, NSW, 2505,

Limired Australio

Vesuvius 40-46 Gloucester Boulevarde, Australic
Australia Pty [+d Port Kembla, NSW, 2505, Australia

Vesuvius Zandvoordestraaf 366, Oostende, Belgium
Belgivm NV, B-8400, Belgium

Vesuvius 181 Bay Street, Suite 1800, Canadao
Canadalnc Toronte, Ontario, M5 279, Canada

Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, Lendon, England

Ceramics Limited

EC4A2AE, England

Vesuvius China Office 813, 8/F, Paul Y centre, HongKeng
Heldings Co. 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,

Limited Kowloon, Hong Kong

Vesuvius 145 Fleet Street, London, England
Ching Limited EC4A ZAE, England

Vesuvius Street 20, number 13 A- 31, Colembia
Colombig SAS floor 6, Bogata, Colombia

Vesuvius Sclitadelle Ginestre 10, Lugane Switzerland

Corporation 5 A

Cassarate, CH 6700, Switzerland

Vesuvius Crucible

CTCorporation, 1209 Orange

US (Delaware)

Company Street, The Corporation Trust
Company, Wilmingteon, DE 19801,
United States
Vesuvius ul Pradnicka, nr4, Krakew, 30-002, Poland
CSDSpz.oe. Poland
Vesuvius Warehouse Na:1J-09/3 POBox  United Arcb
Emirates FZE 49261, Hamriyah Free Zone, Emirates
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates
VesuviusFinancial 165 Fleet Street, London, England
1 Limited ECAA2ZAE, England
Vesuvius Pajomaentie 10, 00360 Helsinki,  Finland
Finland QY Finland
Vesuvius Foundry 12 WeiWen Road, China-Singapore China
Praducts (Suzhou}  Suzhoulnd Park, Suzhou, Jiangsu
Co,, Ltd. Province, 215122, China
VesuviusFoundry 2 ChangchunRood, Economic China
Technologies Development Area, Changshu,
(Jiangsu) Co. Lid Jiongsu, China
Vesuvius France Rue Paul Deudon 68, Boite Pastale  France
S.AL 19, Feignies 59750, France
Vesuvius GmbH Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germany
Borkan, D-463225 Germany
Vesuvius Group 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Limited EC4A2AE, England
Vesuvius Group 5.A. 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
7011, Belgium
Vesuvius Holding Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germany
Deutschland GmbH Borken, D-46325 Germany
Vesuvius Holding 68 Rue Paul Deudan, BF 19, France
Fronce S A S Feignies 59750, France
Vesuvius Halding Piazza Borgo Pila 40, Italy
Italia - Societda Genoag, Italy
Responsabilita
Limitata
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Holdings Limited EC4A 2AE, England
Vesuvius Ibérica Caopitén Haya, 56 - 1¢H, Spain
Refractarios 5.A. 28020 Madrid, Spain
Vesuvius CT Corparation, 1209 Orange Us (Delaware)
International Street, The Corporation Trust
Cerporatian Company, Witmington, DE 19801,
United States
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Investments EC4A 2AE, England
Lirnited
Vesuvius Istanbul Gebee OSB82 Mh. 1700, Turkey
Sanayive Ticaret Sok Ne:1704/1, Cayirova,
AS Kocaeli, 41420, Turkey
Vesuvius ltalia SPA  Piazza Borgo Pila 40, Genoaq, lraly  ltaly
Vesuvius Daini-Naruse Akihabara Bldg. Japan
Japanlnc. 3F, 2710, 1-chome, Taito,

Taito-ku, Tekya, 110-0014, Jopan
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35. Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

35.1 Investmantin subsidiaries (continued)

35.2

Company Company
legal name Registered office addrass Jurisdiction legalname Registered office address Jurisdiction
Vesuvius 1 Midlend Way, Central Park, England Vesuvius Galati, Mareg Unire avenue 107, Romania
K.5.R, Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshira Refractories S.rl. Galecticounty, Romania
543 4X A, United Kingdom Vesuvius Av Brasil, 49550, Distrito Industrial - Brazil
Vesuvius Life Plon 165 Fleet Street, London, England Refrotdrios Lide dePolmores, Compo Gronde,
Trustee Limited EC4A 2AE, England Rio de Janeiro, 23065-480, Brazil
Vesuvius LLC 10, Ul. Kooperativnaya, Russia Vesuvius Refractory RoomNo. 9, 3rd Floor, 7 Ganesh India
Zhukavsky, Moscow, 140180, India Private Chandra Avenue, Kolkata,
Russian Federation Limited WB 700013, India
Vesuvius Level 18, The Gardens Narth Malaysia Vesuvius 4, Forradsgatan, Amal, Sweden
Maloysio Sdn Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Scandinovic AB $-8662 34, Sweden
Bhd Syed Putra, KUP'G Lumpur, Vesuvius Solar 58, KuaChun Road, China
59200, Malaysia Crucible (Suzhou)  Kua Tang, Ching-Singapore
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Sfreet, London, England Co, lid SuzouInd Park, Suzhou,
Management EC4A 2AE, Englond Jiangsu Provinge,
Limited 215122, Ching
Vesuvius Mexica Av. Ruiz Cartinez, Num, 140, Mexico Vesuvius Pebble Lane, Private Bag X2, South Africa
S.A.deCV Colonia Jardines de San Rafael, South Africa Clifantsfontein, Gauteng Province,
Guadalupe, Nuevo Ledn, CP 67119, (Pty) Limited 1665, South Africa
Mexico Vesuvius 55C Sp ul Pradnicka, nr 4, Krakow, 30-002,
Vesuvius 56,rd 15, Apt 103, Maadi, Egypt 2.0.0. Poland
Mid-EastLimited  Carre, Egypt Vesuvius UK 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Vasuvius 165 Fleet Streer, London, England Limited Barlborough tinks, Derbyshire,
Minerals Limited EC4A JAE, England 543 4XA, United Kingdom
WeswvivsMoravia,  Konskac p. 740, Trinec, 739 61, Czech Vesuvius Ukraine 27, Udarnykiv Street, City of Ukraine
s.r. CzechRepublic Republic LLC Dripropetrovsk, Ukraine
Vesuvius New 18 Cryers Road, East Tamaki, New Zealand Vesuvius USA CT Corperation, 208 SouthLaSalle US {lllinais)
Zealand Limited Auckland, New Zealand Corporation Street, Chicage, Cook County,
Vesuvius Afanasyevsky, Pereulok 41 A, Russia IL 60604, United States
slele} Moscaw, Russia, 119019, Vesuvius VA Limited 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Russian Federation EC4A 2AE, England
Vesuvius Overseas 165 Fleet Street, London, England Vesuvius Zyalons Brown Street, Newmiins, Scotland
Investments Limited EC4A2AE, England Holdings Limited ~ Ayrshire, KA16 9AG, Scotlond
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England Vesuvius Zyarock 58, KuaChunRood, Kua Tang, Ching
OverseasLimited  EC4A2AE England Ceramics China-Singopore Suzou Ind Park,
Vesuvius Pension 165 Fleet Street, London, England (Suzhou) Co,, L1d Suzhou, J'\G‘ngsuProv'\nce,
Plans Trustees EC4A 2AE, England 215122, Chino
Limited Vesuviug-Premier 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Vesuvius Pigments 165 Fleet Street, London, England Refrc.dorle; . BarlborcughlLinks, Derbyshire,
(Ho\dings) Limited EC4A2AE,England {Holdings) Limited 543 4XA, England
Vesuvius Poland Ul Tyniecka 12, Skawina, Poland V&V Advanced Xiaotaizi Village, Ningyuan Town,  China
Spolkaz.e.c 32-050. Polond Ceramics (Anshan} - Gionshan District, Anshan,
- . Ltd Liaoning Provi hi
Vesuvius Street No. F14, RAK Investment United Arab C? s iooning Province, Chin
Ras Al Khaimah Authority Free Zone, AlHomrg, Ermirates Wulkes~Lucos 165 Fleet Streer, London, England
FZ-LLC Ras AlXhaimah, PO Box 86408, Limited EC4A 2AE, England
United Arab Emirates Yingkou Bayuquan  Qing Long Shan Street, Bayuguan  China
Vesuvius Street Son Martin 870 Chile Refractories Ce., Ltd District, Liaoning Provinee, YingKou
Refractarios Room 308, Tower B, Concepcion,
de Chile 5A Chile
Vesuvius 56, 13th Avenue, TEDA, Tianjin, China

Refroctories
{Tianjin} Co., Ltd

300457, China

Investment in joint ventures and associates
Ajoint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint controlis the contractually agreed sharing of control of the arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. An associate is an entity
over which the Group has significant influence. Significantinfluence is the power to participate in the financial and operating

policy decisions of an entity, but is not control or jeint control over those policies.



The Group's investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method from the date
significant influence/joint cantrol is deemed to arise until the date on which significant influence/joint control ceases ta existor
whenthe interest becomes classified as an asset held for sale. The Consolidated income Statement reflects the Group's share
of profit after tax of the related associates and joint ventures. Investments in asscciates and joint ventures are corried in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost adjusted in respect of post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets, less any

impairment in value.

2017 2016
£m £m

At 1 January 18.0 16.1
Additions 0.4 —-
Share of posi-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3 1.0
Dividends received from joint ventures 1.7 (1.0)
Foreign exchange (0.5) 1.9
A1 31 December 17.5 18.0
Joint ventures
Set out below is the summarised financial information in respect of joint ventures. Amounts relate to the Group's share.

2017 2016

£m £m

Revenue 539 44.6
Trading profit 2.1 1.6
Net finance costs 0.1 0.1
Profitbefore tax 2.2 1.6
Incometax expense 09) (0.6}
Profit aftertax 1.3 1.0
Non-current assets 5.9 7.6
Current assets 41.7 42.0
Non-current liabilities — —
Current liabilities (30.8) {22.0)
Netassets 16.8 17.6

The purpose of the Chinese joint venture companies is ta research, develop, manufacture and sell refracrory products.
The role of Vesuviusis to provide technical personnel, training and access to the Group's international sales network.
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Nameof entity Registeraed address Jurisdiction % ownership

Angang Vesuvius Refractory Company Ltd Taxi District, Anshan City, Ligoning Province, Ching China 50

Wuhan Wugang-Vesuvius Advanced CCR Co,, Gongnong Village Qingshan District, Wuhan, China 50

Ltd Hubei Province, 430082, China

Wuhan Wugang-Vesuvius Advanced Ceramics  Gongnong Village Qingshan District, Wuhar, China 50

Co., Ltd Hubei Province, 430082, China

Becuvac Participagdes S/A Street Libero Badaro, 293, ¢j. 20D, Sao Paulo, Brazil 50
Centro, 01003-000, Brazit

INTAHSASA Street Dugue de Coxias 563, house 04, Room 01, Brazil 25
Barueri, 580 Paulo, Centro, 06407-010, Brazil

Newshelf 480 (Proprietary) Limited 44 Main Street, Johannesburg, 2001, South 45
South Africa Africa
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35.
35.2

35.3

36.

361

36.2

36.3

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

Investment in joint ventures and associates (continued)

Associates
During 2017, the Group acquired a 14.9% interest in Sapotech Oy, a Finnishtechnology company, for total consideration
of £0.4m.

Name of entity Registeredaddress Jurisdiction % ownership

Sapotech Oy Paavo Hovaksen tie 5 D, 30570 Ouly, Finland Finland 14.90

Non-contrelling interest

Non-confrolling interests represent the portion of the equity of a subsidiary not ottributable either directly or indirectly to the
parent company and are presented separately in the Consolidated Income Statement and within equity in the Consclidated
Balance Sheet, distinguished from parent company shareholders' aquity.

The total norn-controlling interest at 31 December 2017 is £6.4m (2076: £6.3m) of which £4.6m relotes to Vesuvius India Ltd
(2016: £4.2m). The non-controlling interests in respect of the Group's other subsidiaries are not considered to be material,

Nameof entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership

Vesuvius India Limited P-104 Taratala Road, Kolkata, 700088, India india 55.57

Foseco India Limited 922/923, Gat, Senaswadi, Taluka, Shirur, Pune, India 74.98
412208, India

Foseco Golden Gate Company Limited 6 Kung Yeh 2nd Road, Ping Tung Dist, Ping Tung, Taiwan 51
20049, Taiwan

Foseco {Thailand} Limited 170/69, 2 2nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, Thailand 74

Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok,
10110, Thailand

VESUVIUS CESKAREPUBLIKA, a.s. Prumyslovd 726, Konskd, Trineg, 739 61, Czech 60
Czech Republic Republic

Details of subsidiaries exempt fram audit of their individual finoncial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the Companies
Act 2006 are disclosed in Note 6 to the Company Financial Statements.

Aswith Vesuvius ple, all of the above companies have o 31 December year-end.

Related Parties
Allfransactions with reloted parties are conducted on an arm's-length basis and in accordance with normal business terms.
Transactions between related parties that are Group subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, assaciates, and key management personnel. To enable
users of our financial statements to form a view on the effects of related party relationships anthe Group, we disclose the
related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there hove been fronsactions between the related
parties.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates
All transactions with joint ventures and associates are in the normal course of business. Further details of joint ventures and
associates areincludedin Note 35.

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been no transactions with key management personnel of the Group other than the Directors' remuneretion.

Directors' remuneration is disclosed in Note 8 of the Group Financial Statements and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Transactions with other related parties
There are no controlling shareholders of the Group as defined by IFRS. There have been no material transactions with the
shareholders of the Group.

Pension contributions to Group schemes are disclosed in Note 28 of the Group Financial Statements.

Other than the parties disclosed above, the Group has no other material related parties.
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2017 2016
fotal total
Notes £m £
Fixed assets
Imvestment 4 1,778.0 1,778.0
Totalfixed assets 1,778.0 1,778.0
Currentassets
Debtors—amounts falling due within one year 5.1 1.8
Total current assets 5.1 1.8
Creditors—amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft 0.4) —
Cther creditors 7 (1,124.7) (1,074.5)
Net current liabilities (1,120.0) {1,072.7)
Total assets less current liabilities 658.0 705.3
Net assets 658.0 705.3
Equity capital and reserves
Issued share capital 8 278 278
Retained earnings 630.2 677.5
Totalshareholders' funds 658.0 705.3

Company number 82177564

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the reguirement to present an income statement.

During 2017 the Companyincurred aloss of £4.3m (2016: £3.0m loss).

The financial statements were approved and authorised forissue by the Directors on 28 February 20718 and signed on their

behalf by:
Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Asct 31 December 2017

Share Retained

capital earnirgs Total

£m £fn £fm

Asat T January 2016 278 7227 750.5
Loss recognised for the year — (3.0 (3.0
Recognition of share-bosed payments — 1.7 1.7
Dividend paid — (43.9) (43.9)
Asat1January 2017 27.8 6775 705.3
Loss recognised for the year - (4.3) (4.3)
Recognition of share-based payments — 2.6 2.6
Dividend paid — (45.6) (45.6)
Asat31December 2017 27.8 630.2 658.0

The Company had distributable reserves of £630.2m as at 31 December 2017 2016:

£677.5m}.



183

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1. General Information
Vesuvius ple (' Vesuvius' or 'the Company’} is a public company limited by shares. Itisincorporated and domiciled in England
and Watles and listed onthe London Stock Exchange. The nature of the company is a holding company. The address of its
registered office is 165 Fleet Street, London EC4A 2AE.

2. Basisof Preparaticn

2.1 Basisof accounting
The financial statements of the Company hove been prepared in accardance with Financial Reporting Standard 101,
Reduced Disclosure Framework {(FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention,

In these financiai statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 inrespect of the
following disclasures:

> Acashflow statement and reloted notes

> Disclosuresin respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries

> Disclosuresin respect of capital management

> The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs

> Disclosuresin respect of the compensation of key management personnel

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit
and loss account.

The accounting palicies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to ofl periods presented
inthese financial statements. There were no identified critical accounting estimates or judgements.

2.2  Goingconcern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt a going concern basis in preparing the financial staternents of the Group and the Company.

2.3 Accounting policy
Taxation

Both current and deferred tax are calculated using taxrates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively enacted,
by the balance sheet date.

Currenttax poyable is based on the taxable result for the yecr. Deferred taxation is recognised, without discounting, in respect
of alltiming differences that have originated, but not reversed, at the balance sheet date, with the exception that deferred
taxotion assets are anly recognised if it is considered maore likely than not that there will be suitable future profits from which
the reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. Provision is made for the tax that weuld arise on remittance
of tha retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries only to the extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been

accrued as receivable.
All ather accounting policies are set out within the respective notes.
3. Employee Benefits Expense
207 2016
£m £m
Wages & Salaries 3.7 2.4
Social security costs 0.6 0.4
Share-based payments 0.7 0.6
Pension costs—defined contribution pension plans — 0.1
Totalemployee benefits expense 5.0 35

The total average number of employees for 2017 was 3 (20161 3). As at 31 December, the Company had 4 employees.

Details of the Directors remunieration are disclosed inthe Directors’ Remuneration Report.

SUBWRDLIG |DIDUDUL I



184

Vesuvivsplc
Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

6.2

6.3

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

Amounts payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in relation to audit and non-audit fees are disclosed within Note 6 to the
Censolidated Financial Statements.

Dividends

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £30.8m (2015: £30.0m), equivalent to 11.40 pence (2015: 11.125
pence) per ordinory share, was paid in May 2017 (May 2016) and aninterim dividend for the year ended 31 Decernber 2017
of £14.8m (2016: £13.9m), equivalentto 5.50 pence {2016: 5.15 pence) per ordinary share, was paid in September 2017
(September 2016).

A proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2077 of £33.8m (2074: £30.8m), equivalent to 12.5 pence per
ordinary share (2016: 11.40 pence), is subject to approval by shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting and
has not been included as a liakility in these financial statements. If approved by shareholders, the dividend will be paid on
25 May 2018 to ordinary shareholders on the register at 13 April 2018.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Accounting policy
Sharesinsubsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Analysis of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Sharesin
subsidiaries
£m

Asat1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 1,778.0

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and asseciates of Vesuvius ple, their country of incorparation and % ownership is set out in
Note 35 of the Notas to the Group Financial Statements. With the exception of Vesuvius Holdings Ltd, whese ordinary share
capital was directly held by Vesuvius ple, the ordinary share capital of the other companies was owned by o Vesuvius plc
subsidiary as gt 31 December 2017

Audit-exempt subsidiaries
The following UK subsidiaries are exempt from audit of their individual financial statements by virtue of Section 4794 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Brazil 1 Limited John G. Stein & Company Limited

Foseco Limited S G Blair & Company Limited

Foseco Technology Limited Vesuvius China Limited

Foseco Transnational Limited Vesuvius Group Limited

Foseco (FS) Limited Vesuvius Minerals Limited

Foseco {GB) Limited Vesuvius Pigments {Haldings) Limited

Foseco Steel (Holdings) China Limited Vesuvius-Premier Refractories (Holdings) Limited
Foseco (IUK) Limited Vesuvius VA Limited

Other Creditors

2017 2016

£m £m

Amounts owned to subsidiory undertakings 1122.4 1,0673.2
Accruals and other creditors 2.3 1.3
Total amounts falling due within one year 1,124.7 1,074.5

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.
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Issued Share Capital

Accounting policy
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of diract issue costs.

Analysis of issued share capital

The issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 278.5 million shares of
£0.10 each (2016: 278.5 million shares of £0.10 each). Of this, 7.3 million (2016: 7.3 million) shares were held in Treasury
and 0.9 million (2076: 1.1 million) shares were held by the Vesuvius Group employee share ownership plan trust (ESOP).
The Company only has one class of shares in issue, ardinary shares. All shareholders enjoy the same rights in relation to
these shares, including rightsin relation to voting at General Meetings of the Company, distribution of dividends and
repayment of capital.

Share-based Payments

Accounting policy

The Company operates equity-settled share-based payment arrangements for its employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date takes account of the
effect of market-based conditions, such as the fotal sharehalder return target upon which vesting for some of the awards

is conditional, and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with 6 cerresponding increase in equity.

The cumulative expense recognised is adjusted for the best estimate of the shores that will eventually vest and for the effect
of other non-market-based vesting conditions, such as growth in headline earnings per share, which are notincludedin the
fair value determined at the date of grant. For grants with market-based conditions attaching to them, fair value is mecsured
using o form of stochastic option pricing model. For all other grants, fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model.

Profit and loss account recognition

The Company operates a number of different share-based payment schemes, the main features of which are detailed
between pages 99 to 105 of the Directors' Remuneration Report. Atcial of £8.7m was charged to the profit and loss account
in the year with regard to share-based payments (201&: £0.5m).

Details of outstanding options

Outstandingawards

Weighted
Awards average
exercisable outstanding
Asat Asat asat  contractual Range of
1Jan Forfeited/ 31Dec 31Dec life of exercise
2017 Granted Exercised lapsed 2017 2017 awards prices
no. neG. no. no. no. no. years pence
LTIP 1,156,560 409,453 —  (631,095) 934918 — 4.8 n/a
Weighted average
exercise price nil nil nil nil nil — n/a
Other plans 8,557 — (8,557) — — — — n/a
WeighTed average
exercise price nil nil nil nil nil — n/a
For options exercised during 2017 included in ‘Cther plans’, the share price ot the date of exercise was 552 pence.
Qutstanding awards
Weighted
Awards average
exercisable  outstanding
Asat Asat asat contractual Range of
1 Jan Forfeited/ 31 Dec 31 Dec life of exercise
2016 Granted Exercised laopsed 2016 2016 awards prices
na, ne. na. no, no ne. years pence
LTIP 916,163 581,501 —  (341,504) 1,156,560 — 8.5 n/a
Weighted average
exercise price nil lll nil nif il — n/a
Other pians 82,261 — (51,859}  (21,845) 8,557 — 0.8 n/a
Weighted average
exercise price nil riil nil nil nil —_ n/a

For options exercised during 2016 included in'Other plans’, the share price ot the date of exercise was 333 pence,
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10.

Share-based Payments (continued)

Details of outstanding options (continued)
Details of market performance conditions are included in the Directors' Remuneration Report.

As at 31 December 2017, the total options exercisable by all Group employees over the £0.10 ordinary shares and capable of
being satisfied thraugh new alletments of shares or through shares held by the Company’'s ESOP were as follows:

MNurrber

Latest year of options/

Yearsaf Option of exercise/ allocations

award/grant prices(f) vesting outstanding

Long Term Incentive Plan 20152017 nil 201772027 2,280,093

Medium Term Incentive Plan 2016-2017 nil 2019 141,302

Restricted rights 2016-2017 nil 2018/2020 11,135
Fair value of options granted under the LTIP during the year:

207 (March Grant) 2017 (Sept Grant) 2006

EPS T5R EPS TSR EPS TSHR

element element element element element element

Fairvalue of options granted {per share) 524.5p 401.0p 578.0p 467.0p 292.0p 112.0p

Share price on date of grant (per share) 524.5p 524.5p 578.0p 578.0p 292.0p 292.0p

Expected volatility nfa 30.90% nfa  33.00% n/a 26.00%

Risk-free interest rate nfa 0,17% n/fa 0.16% n/a 0.40%

Exercise price {pershare} nil nil nil nil nil nil

Expected term (years) 3 3 3 3 4 4

Expected dividend yield nil nil nil nil n/a n/a

The fair value of share options with non-market performance conditions has been calculated using the Black-Scholes

option pricing model. The fair value of options with market-related performance conditions has been measured using the
Monte Carlo model. Expected volatility waos determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over
the 2.8 y=ars (2016: 2.75 years) prior to the grant date. The risk-free rate of return was assumed to be the yield fo maturity
ona UK fixed gilt with the term to maturity equal to the expected life of the option. At the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, award holders receive the value of dividends that would have been paid on their vested shares in the period
between grant and vesting. Accardingly, there is no discount to the valuation for dividends foregene during the vesting period.

Contingent Liabilities

Where the Campany enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebredness of other companies within

its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such. In thisrespect, the
Company treats the guarantee confract as a contingent liahility until such fime as it becermes probable that the Company
wilt be required to make a payment under the guarantee. Guarantees provided by the Company as of 31 December 2017
in respect of the liabilities of its subsidiary componies amounted to £563.4m (2016: £569.4m), which includes guarantees of
$200.0m and £130.0m {2016: $310.0m and €30.0m} in respect of US Private Placement Loan Notes and £146.3m (2016:
£141.7m) in respect of drawings under the syndicated bank facility; rogether with £150.8m (2016: £150.8m} in relation to o
guarantee provided to the Company’s UK subsidiary which acts as Trustee for the Group's UK pension plan. The gucrantee
is over all present and future pension liabilities of the plan and the contingent liakility amount represents the net deficiton a
buy-out basis as shown in the most recent triennial valuation.

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject to various legal and regulatory regimes, including those
covering taxation and environmental matters. Several of the Company's subsidiaries are parties tolegal proceedings, certain
of which are insured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and are aware of a
number of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax authorities. Whilst the outcome of litigation and other
disputes can never be predicted with certainty, having regard to legal advice received and the insurance arrangements of
the Company and its subsidiaries, the Directors believe that none of these matters will, either individually or in the aggregate,
have amaterially adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or results of eperations.
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Related Parties
Alltransactions with related parties are conducted on an arm’s-length basis and in accordance with normal business terms.
Transactions between related parties that are wholly owned Company subsidiaries are not disclosed in this Note.

The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, ossociates and key management persannel. To enable
users of our financial statements to form a view on the effects of related party relofionships onthe Company, we disclose
the related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there have been transactions between the
related parties.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates
All transactions with joint ventures and assaciates are in the narmat course of business. Further detaits of joint ventures and
associates is included in Note 35 of the Notes to the Graup Financial Statements,

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been no fransactions with key management personnel of the Company other than the Directors’ remuneration.

Directors remuneration is disclosed inthe Annugl Report on Directors’ Remuneration.

Transcctions with other related parties
There are no controlling shareholders of the Company as defined by IFRS. There have been no material transactions with the
shareholders of the Company.

Pension contributions are disclosed in Note 28 of the Group Financial Statements.

Other than the parties disclosed above, the Company has no other material related parties.
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Five-Year Summary: Divisional Results from
Continuing Operations

2017 2616 2015 2014 2012
Steel Division
Revenue £m 1,148.7 942.0 8976 581.4 1,017.5
Trading profit £m 100.4 79.2 79.5 56.4 887
Returnon sales % B.7 84 8.9 9.8 87
Employees: year-end no. 7,930 7,782 7,783 8,349 7,524
Foundry Division
Revenve £m 535.2 459.4 424 4 463.0 493.0
Trading profit fm 65.1 541 44.5 46.4 51.3
Return on sales % 12.2 11.8 10.5 10.0 10.4

Employees: year-end no. 3,080 3,058 3,129 3,443 3,330




Shareholder Information

Enquiries

The share register is managed by Equiniti, who can be
contacted regarding shareholding queries.

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House, Spencer Road

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA

Tel (UK only) G371 384 2335

Tel {non-UK) +44 1271 4157047

For the hard of hearing, Equiniti offers a Textel service which
can be accessed by dialling 0371 384 2255 (or +44 121 415 7028
if calling from outside the UK,

Any shareholder enquiries not related to the

share register should be sent by email to
shareholder.information@vesuvius.com or by letterto
the Company Secretary at the registered office.

Registered Office and Group Head Office

Vesuvius plc

165 Fleet Street

London EC4A 2AE

Tel +44 (0y20 7822 0000

Fax +44 (0)207822 0100

Registeredin Englond and Wales No. 8217766

LEI: 2138000RZ521W58B55Y02
Vesuvius Website

Sharehelder and other information about the Company,
including details of the current and historical share price,
can be accessed on the Vesuvius website www.vesuvius.com.

Shareview and Electronic Communication

Equiniti's website www.shareview.co.uk enables shareholders

to access details of their shareholdings online. The website
provides answers to frequently asked questions and information
useful for the management of investments. To access online
information on ycur shareholding, you will require your
shareholder reference number, which can be found at the

top of your share certificate.

Shareholders can register to receive shareholder
cormmunications electronically, including the Company’s
Annual Report and Accounts, rather than in paper form, vsing
Shareview. The registration process requires shareholders to
input their shareholder reference number (which can be found
atthe top of Vesuvius’ share certificates). In order to receive
shareholder communications in electronic form, sharehclders
should select ‘email’ as their meiling preference. Once
registered, shareholders will receive an email notifying them
each time a shareholder communication has been published
an the Vesuvius website.
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Share Dealing Service

The Company’s shares can be traded through mest banks,
building societies or stockbrokers. UK resident shareholders
can also buy andsell shares online or by telephone using
Equiniti's Shareview dealing service by either logging onto
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing or by calling 0345 603 7037
between 8.00 am and 4.30 pm on any business day (excluding
bank holidays). The shareholder reference number (found at
the top of Vesuvius' share certificates) is required to use the
dealing facility.

ShareGift

ShareGift, the charity share donation scheme, is a free service
for sharehalders wishing to give shares to charitable causes.

It is particularly useful for those shareholders who may wish to
dispose of a small quantity of shares where the market value
makes it uneconamicto sell on a commission basis. Further
information can be obtained from ShareGift's website at
www.sharegift.org; telephone +44 {0)20 7930 3737 or by
emaiting help@sharegift.org.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Equiniti offers a dividend reinvestment plan, through which
shareholders can use any cash dividends declored to buy
additionai shares in Vesuvius. Further details, including how
ta sign up, and the terms and conditions of the plan, are
available from Equiniti by calling the Share Dividend
Helpline on 0371 384 2268 {or +44 121 415 7173 if calling
from outside the UK).

Overseas Payment Service

Equiniti provides a dividend payment service in over

90 countries that automatically converts paymentsinte local
currency and pays the funds into a shareholder’s bank account.
Further details, including an application form and the terms and
conditions of the service, are available at www.shareview.co.uk
or from Equiniti by calling +44 (0)121 415 7047 or writing to
Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BN92 6DA, United Kingdom (please quote Overseas Payment
Service, the Company's name and your sharehaolder reference

number),

Financial Calendar

2018 Annual General Meeting 10 May 2018
Announcement of 2018 half-year results 26 July 2018
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Analysis of ordinary shareholders

fnvestar type Sharehoidings
Institutional
Asat31Decemhber 2017 Private andother Total 1-1,000 1,001~-50,000 50,001-500,000 500,001+
Number of holders 2,566 600 3,166 2,468 498 132 68
Percentage of holders 81.05% 18.95% 100% 77.95% 15.73% 4.17% 2.15%
Percentage of shares held 0.92% 99.08% 100% 0.13% 1.61% 8.26% 90.00%

Share Fraud - Spot the Warning Signs

Investment scams are designed to look like genuine investments.
Have you been...

> Contacted outof the blue

> Promised tempting returns and told the investmant is safe

> Called repeatedily

> Told the offer is only available for alimited time?

If s0, you might have been conracted by fraudsters.

How to Avoid Share Fraud

1. Reject cold calls

If you hove been contacted by telephone, email or post, or via
athird party or at a seminar or exhibition, with an offer to buy
or selishares, the chances are that it's a high-risk investment
or a scam. You should treat any offer with extreme caution.
The safest thing to do is toignore the approach and if you
were contacted by phoneto hangup onthe call.

2. Check if the firm is authorised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) and recorded on the Financial Services register
atwww.fca.org.uk/register

The Financial Services Register is a public record of all the firms
and individuals in the financial services industry that are, or
have been, reguloted by the Prudentiol Regulotion Authority
and/or the FCA.

3.Getimportial advice

Think about getting impartial financial advice before you hand
over any money. Seek advice from someone unconnected to the
firm that has approached you.

Reporting a Scam

If you suspect that you have been approached by fraudsters
please tell the FCA by contacting them on G800 117 6768 (or
+44 207066 1000 from cutside the UK) or by using the share
fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk /scams, where you
can find out more about investment scams.

If you have lost money to investment fraud, you shouid
report it to Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or online ar
www.actionfraud.police.uk.

Find out more at www.fca.org.uk /scomsmart.
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55 Five Steps toimprove housekeeping and therefore GHG Greenhouse gas
\.«\I,"]c.arkplocejafz’.ry Onddefficiency: separate, sort, Group Vesuvius ple and its subsidiary companies
shine, stan seqQ srel]
e o [S)_G - Ic'” =EEn S:S an e IAS International Accounting Standard
i isciplines: an eight-st eftho
Togreso]ve chjsTomer/ ;E)pli:zreopnr;imemglogy IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
quality issues KPI Key Performance Indicator
AGM Annual General Meeting LTI Losttime injury
Cis Commonwealih of Independent States LTIFR Lost time injury frequency rate, a KPlwhich
(Russian Commonweglth) calculates the number of LTls per million
co, Carbon dioxide hours worked
CO,e Carbon dioxide equivalent Median The middle numberin a sortedlist of numbers
Compan Vesuvivs plc NAFTA The areato which the North American Free
Y Trade Agreementapplies
DSBP Deferred Share Bonus Plan — -
- . QOEMs Criginal Equipment Manufacturers
DTR The Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the " : ; -
UK Financial Conduct Authority Ordinary  Anordinary share of 10 pence in the capital of
share the Company
EBITDA Trading profit before depreciation and R&D R b and davel :
amortisation of non-acquired intangible charges Freqrch dna ceveropmen
EMEA Europe, Middle East and Africa TSR Total shareholder return
EPS Earnings per share TurboS The Vesuvius safety training programme
EU European Union UKGAAP UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
FRC Financial Reporting Council vsP Vesuvius Share Plon
FRS Financial Reporting Standards
FTSE250  Equity index whose constituents are the
101stta 350th largest companies listed on the
London Stock Exchange in ferms of their
market capitalisation
FX Foreign exchange

Designed and produced by Friend. www.friendstudio.com
Print: Pureprint Group

This repert hasbeen printed on Clarc Bulk which is

FSC* certified and made from 100% Elemental Chlorine
Free (ECF)pulp. The milland the printer are both certified
t01SQ 14001 environmental management system and
registered to EMAS the eco monagement Audit Scheme,
Thereport was printed using vegetable basedinks by a
CarbonNeutral® printer



